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About African Barrick Gold

A quality African gold producer

ABG 1s Tanzamas largest gold producer and one of the five largest gold producers 1n
Africa We have four producing mines, all located 1n north west Tanzania, and several
exploration projects at various stages of development With a high-quality asset base, sohd
growth opportumities and a clear strategy, we have the objective of increasing our existing
production to one million ounces per year by 2014

We aim to achieve this by

~ driving operating efficiencies to optimise production from our ex:sting asset base,

- growing through near mine expansion and development of advanced-stage projects, and
— orgamc greenfield growth and acquisitions in Africa

Mamntaining our hcence to operate through acting responsibly 1n relation to our people, the
environment and the communities 1n which we operate 1s central to achueving our objectives

ABG 1s a UK public company with its headquarters in London We are listed on the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange under the symbol ABG Historically and prior to our
initial public offering (IPO), our operations compnsed the Tanzanian gold mining business

of Barrick Gold Corporation (Barrick), our majority shareholder

ABG reports 1n US dollars (US$) in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European

Unuon, unless otherwise stated 1n this report

Go online to find more information
www africanbarrickgold.com

Forward-looking statements

This report wcludes forward looking statements that express or tmply expectauons
of firture events or results. Forward looking statements are statements that are not
tustoncal faces These statements mctude, without bmutanan, fAinancal prajecuons
and estimates and their underlying assumptions, statements regarding plans
objectrves and expectations with respect to future production, operations, costs,
products and services, and statements regarding future performance Forward
locking statements are generally identified by the words plans, ‘expects, ‘anticipates)
‘bebeves, ‘mtends, estimates’ and other simlar expressions

All forward looking statements involve a number of nsks, uncertamties and other
factors Although ABG's management believes that the expectations reflected

10 such forward lookmg statemnents are reasonable, investors are cautioned

that forward looking informanon and statements are subyect to various nsks

and unceniamnues, many of which are difficult to predict and generally beyond
the control of ABG, that could cause actial results and developments to differ
matenally from those expressed m, or implied or projected by the forward looking
information and statements contaned i this report. Factors that could cause or
contribute to differences between the actual results, performance and achrevements
of ABG mclude, but are not limsted to, polincal, economic and business conditions,
industry trends, competition comnodity prices, changes in regulation, currency
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fluctuations (including the US dallar; South African rend and Tanzanuan shibling
exchange rates) ABG's ability to recover its reserves or develop new reserves
wncluding s ability 10 convert wts resoucces tnto reserves and 1ts rmaneral potential
100 Fesources of reserves, and to tumely and successfully process its mineral
reserves, rnsks of trespass theft and vandahsm, changes o its business strategy

as weli as risks and hazands associated with the business of mineral exploration,
development, mining and production Accordingly investors should not place
rehiance on forward looking statements contained 1n this report.

The farward-locking statements in this report reflect intormation avadable at the
time of prepaning this repont Subject Lo the requiretnents of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules and the Listing Rules or applicable law ABG explicitly disctaims
anv obligation or undertaktng publicly to releass the result of any revisions 1o any
forward looking statements 1n this report that may occur due to anv change in
ABGs expectations or reflect events or circumstances affer the date of this report
No statements made in this report regarding expectations of future profits are profit
forecasts or estimates, and no statements made m this report should be mterpreted
10 mean that ABG's profits or carnings per share for any future peniod wall
necessarily match or exceed the hustorical publuhed profits or earnings per share

of ABG or any other level
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Performance highlights

The optimisation of our assets begins

Some of the year’s key achievements include:

- completing our imtial public offering and hsting on the Main Market
of the London Stock Exchange in March 2010

— generating strong sales ounces for 2010, up 6% on 2009, due to sales
of concentrate on hand

- making encouraging progress on our portfolio of growth projects

- identifying an initial high-grade underground resource at North Mara

- strengthening our management team at all levels throughout the year

- achieving a year end balance sheet with cash in excess of US$400 million
- putting a US$150 million credit facility in place

— making continued 1investments 1n operational efficiency initiatives

*  Including Corporate admunistration and explorznon costs

2 wwwafricanbarnckgold.com




Financial highlights

- Net income of US$218 mihion

- Earnings per share of US53 2 cents,
up 272% on 2009

- EBITDA' of US$419 muilhion, up 68%
on 2009

- Operauonal cash flow of US$345
million, an 1ncrease of 78% on 2009

- Revenue? of US$975 mulhon, up 37%
on 2009

— Recommended final dindend of US3 7

cents per share and a total dividend of
US5 3 cents per share

Operational highlights

- Sales for the year reach 724,083 ounces,
a 6% increase on 2009

« Full year production® of 700,934 ounces,
2% lower than 2009 production

- Cash costs of US$569 per ounce', an
increase of 7% on 2009

- Bulyanhulu and North Mara showed
consistent production and cost
performance throughout the year

- Measures undertaken at Buzwag)
during the year began to show positive
effects duning the fourth quarter

— Tulawaka focus successfully shifted
from closure to mune hife extenston

A successful year for exploration

-~ Irutial high-grade underground
resource declared at North Mara under
the Gokona and Nyabigena pits

- Higher grades at depth with additional
near surface minerabsation indicated
at the Nyanzaga Project

SJUDLLI3IRIS [RIDUERUIL] WSUBUIIACD OURILIOLIS] MIATIAD
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| Cash costs per ounce sold, EBITDA and operaung cash flow per share are non 1FRS financial performance measures with no standard meamng under IFRS Refer to
“Non-IFRS measures” on page 54 for the full defimitions of each measure

2 Based on restated revenue to include sales of co-products, refer to page 48 and note 2a) on page 107 as part of the Notes 1o the Consohdated financial statements
3 Productton and sold ounces reflect equity otnces which exclude 30% of Tulawakas production base,

4 The prior years basic earmings per share and operating cash flow per share comparatives were caleulated using the 2010 number of average weighted shares as the Company
was not incorporated in the prior years stated and thus had no share capual,
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Group at a glance

A focus on Africa

Where we operate

Currently, all of ABG's minung operations

are 1n Tanzania We believe that Tanzama Headquarters' London, UK

possesses significant nuning potential Qur office 1n [ ondon serves as ABG' corporate headquarters and 1s the base for ABG's Fxecutive
Critically, st has an established legal and Durectors and other members of the Senior Leadership Team, including the General Counsel and
regulatory framework for mining compames the Head of Corporate Development and Investor Relat:ons

and a history of political stability and

democratically elected governments
At present, we have four gold producing Regional Office, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania
mines, all in north west Tanzania These

Qur officc 1n Dar es Salaam serves as the primary interface with the t, in addition ©
are Bulyanhulu, Buzwagt, Tulawaka and . ' govermmen’, th acihion 2

being the logistical base in Tanzamia which provides in-country support to our operatiens Other

North Mara functions located 1 this office include community relauens and a number of technucal services
Regianal Office, Johannesbhurg, South Africa
Our Johannesburg office 1s the regional base for admimstrative, finance, human resources and
procurernent functions and a number of technical services for our operations
Producing mines
Bulyanhulu Buzwag) North Mara
Key features Key features Key features
- Production of 259,873 Oz n 2010 « Production of 186,019 Oz i 2010 + Production of 212,947 Oz in 2010
« Underground mine with a life of 25+ years + Open pit mine with a 13-year nune hfe » Open pit mine consisting of four open pits
« Proven and probable reserves of « Proven and probable reserves of with 2 ten-year mune Life
11,026,000 Oz 2,892,000 Oz + Proven and probable reserves of
2,836,000 0z
Key priarities for 2011 Key priorities for 2011 Key prionties for 2011
s Accelerate underground production at » Continue the development and tramning + Complete feasibility study for
Upper East Zone of the operation’s workforce North Mara Underground
« Continue strong cornmitment 1o traning + Continue the acceleration of stage + Commussion water treatment plant
with a focus on speciahised slalls two mintng
m  More information on page 36 P More information on page 38 s Moreinformation on page 40

4 www africanbarnckgold.com




Tulawaka (70%)

Key features
+ Production of 42,094 Oz 1n 2010

» Completed open pit mune with
underground access ramp

+ Proven and probable reserves of 67,000 Oz

Key priorities for 2011
« Open West Pit Extension to supplement
production

« Evaluate addional opportunities to fizrther
extend the mine hfe

= More information on page 42

Exploration

Approach

At ABG, our strategy 1s to maintamn a mix of
projects at different stages in the exploration
and development sequence We hold one of the
largest land packages in Tanzamia, over hughly
prospective greenstones and around the major
gold-muming projects in the Lake Victoria
greenstone belt We are 1n a strong position to
execute our strategy of increastng reserves and
resources by focusing on exploration tn and
around our existing operations, as well as on
early-stage exploration programmes

ra  More information on page 44

Prionties

Our most recent exploration focus has been
on realising value around our existing mines,
as well as identifying new opportunities

m Tanzania We believe that we are well
positioned from our base in Tanzama to
expand our exploration programmes into
other parts of Africa.

Annual Report and Accounts 2010
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Group at a glance continued

Defining milestones along our journey

Over a ten-year peniod, ABG has become 2001 2002 2003 2004
Commencement North Mars mine Placer Dome purchases North Mara Tulawaka
the largesft gold pro:lol.;:erlm Tan?.x(l;g, p e o Py ot obediiey open pt mine
growing from no producuon in Bulyanhulu gold poured Whlly el ghts a1 Pangea, operations
to 700,934 attnbutable ounces in 2010 (3 Moz reserve} started
To date, we have produced 5 3 million
attributable ounces of gold since beginmng
operations in lanzama We are one of
Afncas five largest gold producers
Slgmﬁcant events in world gOld pmdumon The Bank Total mined output 1n 2003 Tanzania reported Supply and
of England of gold was the lowest a 20% increase in gold dernand figures
announces that ance 1997 and the exports from USS414 mulion {from the World
the gold on offer first ume since 1995 1o USS5504 mullion which Gold Council
(approxtmately 20 that annual gold accounted for more than 62% show 2004 world
tonnes or 643 200 production has fallen. of total export reventes e production
ounces) has been down 4 4% to
allotted tn full at a 2,478 tonnes.
price of USS280 00
per otmce
Average market gold pnice US$271/0z US$309/0z U5$363/0z US$409/0z
Future growth - One of my key priorities for 2011 1s to

6 wwwafricanbarrickgold com

where will 1t come from?

Greg Hawkins, CEO, explains his priorities

ensure that we continue to build our
pipeline of growth opportunities While
we have a substantial platform of current
production with a long mine hife and
attractive grade profile we are by no means

complacent as to the importance of bulding




2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Tulawaka Acquusition of Placer Development and Underground Bulyanhaly total production [mual public offer:ng
commercial Dome by Barrick construction of nune development reaches 2 7 Moz of ABG Group
production Buzwag) feasibility Burwag mine at Tutawaka Buzwag mine completed 18 7 Moz reserve and
commences study completed comumences commences firstgold poured resource base 3t Bulyanhulu
South Africas gold Global mine China leads the The price of gold World goid On 9 November
production fell production cash costs world in goid continues to fluctuate production rose 2010 gold
by 88%to 3427 rose by USS45/ounce, muning output arcund the USS800 from 2,260 tonnes 1o dosed at a new
tonnes 1n 2004, the or 17% year-on year having upped its ievel. [ts most recent 2008 10 2 350 tonnes nomunal high of
lowest since 1931 to USS317/ounce production in 2067 low was US$773 90 1n 2009 an increase USSI 431 00/0z
The increase m cash by 12% over 2006, wnud August, Its of 3 9%. wn NYMEX.
costs was roughly producing 9 7 all ime tugh of
twice the stze of those mullion ounces USS1 030 80 was
expenenced n 2004 reached in March.
and 2005
US$444/0z US$603/0z US$695/0z US3$871/0z US$972/0z US$1,225/02
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substantially boost Group production over we continue to momtor potental
acquisition targets and greenfield
opportuntties across Africa to further

expand our existing asset base

future growth Thisis precisely why we have
more than doubled our exploration budget the next 2-3 years In addition, it wall fund
for 2011 to U5$55 million This investment the next group of projects, such as the

will help to advance our projects at Tulawaka,  Nyanzaga project, which can provide
Golden Radge, North Mara Underground medium-term growth whule also enabling
and Bulyanhulu Upper East Zone, which earlter stage generative work on our
between them have the potential to stigmficant land package At the same tune,

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 7




Chairman’s statement

A quality gold producer

Our first year has not been without
challenges, all of which have been dealt
with decisively by our management team
with the full support of the Board.

Aaron Regent

Recommended final dividend (per share)

US 3.7cents

Dear Shareholders,
It 1s a privilege to present ABG' first annual report as a hsted Company

I am delighted to be able 10 serve as Chairman of the new Company
as 1t establishes 1ts own 1dentity mn the public markets ABG has come
to market at a ime of unprecedented :nterest i the gold industry,
agamst a background of continuing global econonuc uncertainty

We have set some challenging objectives for ourselves to grow the
business over the medium-to-long term, and I am convinced that we
have the management team, the asset base and the financial resources
to deliver on these

Our first year has not been without challenges, all of which have been
dealt with decisively by our management team wath the full support
of the Board. Despite these, our production for 2010 was sull in excess
of 700,000 ounces, which enabled us to dehiver robust financial results
for our shareholders Our revenues were US$975 mulhion, we had an
operating cash flow of U58345 milhion and net income of US§218
mullion, with a net cash balance i excess of US$400 million at the end
of the year This provides us with the sigmificant strategic flexabslity we
need as we look to grow the business in the coming years It has also

8 www alnicanbarnckgold.com

enabled the Directors to recommend a final dividend of US3 7 cents
per Ordinary Share, in addition to the intennm dividend of US1 6 cents
per share that we paid 1n September

Throughout 2010, we have focused on continually improving
productivity and efficiency at our existing operations while reviewing
opportunities for new sources of value to enhance growth Tn this
way, we have sought to underpin the Company’s long-term future and
to deliver on our commitment to realise value for our shareholders

As we move mnto 2011, our business strategy will remain to opuimuise,
expand and grow Our ability to deliver on this strategy 15 based on
the fundamental strengths described below

High-quality asset base

In total, over US$2 billion has been mvested 1n the current asset
base of the Company, and we intend to mawntain this comnmutment
in the future This underpins the four operating mines, our range of
development projects, 26 9 million ounces of reserves and resources,
and substantial land holdings for exploration




Operational expertise

In Tanzania, we have grown our business from zero production

to over 700,000 ounces through the acquisition, development and
operation of four high-quality mines This experience provides a
significant compeliuve advantage when assessing growth opportunitics
throughout Africa

Experienced leadership and management strength

We are commuitted to maintairung the highest standards of corporate
governance Qur Board consists of some of the most respected figures in
the mining industry [t possesses the expertise, knowledge, expenence
and commitment necessary to help us achieve our business objectives
Collectively, the Board sets our standards, values and strategic aims
and reviews all matenal strategic 1ssues, financial performance, nsk
management and cntical business sssues

Furthermore, at the ime of our imtial public offering and through
subsequent additions of talent and expertise throughout the year,

we have put in place 2 management team with substantial industry
expertence - cntically, one with the capacity both to maximise the value
of our exssting assets and to deliver the growth we have targeted

Growth potential

Our exasting munes offer a number of additional opportuninies to

grow their exastng production levels Coupled with other greenfield
potential, such as the Nyanzaga Project, and our capability and appetite
for acquisttions, we have a range of growth options for the business

Balance sheet

With a preduction platform successfully generating strong cash ftows,
over US$400 million of net cash and 2n unused US$150 mullion credit
facility, we have significant balance sheet strength and the flexibility
needed both to carry out our orgamic growth plans and to realistically
assess acquusition opportunities

Cur supportuive majonty shareholder

We have access to industry-leading expertise and a strong talent pool to
augment our own resources through our relationship with our majority
shareholder, Barrick. We believe that this provides an important source
of advantage over our competiters

ABG ethics

Our core values are rooted 1n honesty, 1ntegnty, the highest ethical
standards and a commitment to corporate responsibility As one of the
largest foreign investors in Tanzama, we are deterrined to contribute
not oniy to the national economy, but also to the socio-economic
development of our host communities, leaving a positive legacy

for future generations We are cormmutted to operating 1n a socially
responsible way over the life cycle of our mines We recognuse that
fostering strong and mutually beneficial relationshups with our host
commumities ts critical of we are to secure a ‘social Licence to operate’
and realise the social and economic opportunities it presents

Outlook

As we go into 2011, I remain opumustic about the prospects for our
industry and I believe that ABG 1s well positioned to continue to be one
of the leading players within the Afnican gold miming industry We must
apply the lessons learned from the challenges we have already faced and
overcome to deliver on the potential of our asset base and reward our
shareholders for their loyalty throughout 2010

Ihe coming year will not be without its challenges but [ am convinced
that we have the elements in place to achieve our objectives Finally,

I would hke to thank my fellow Board members for their hard work,
dedication and valuable guidance throughout the year, and I look
forward to reporting again on our progress in 12 months’ ime

| A<

Aaron Regent, Chairman

As we go into 2011, [ remain optimistic about the prospects for
our industry and I believe that ABG 1s well positioned to continue

to be one of the leading players within 1t.
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

A strong financial performance

The last 12 months have marked the
beginning of a new chapter for our
business. Today, we have a mandate to
build on our substantial asset base and
strengthen our position within the gold
mining industry.

Greg Hawkins

Record operating cash flow
US $ 345 million

The last 12 months have marked the beginmng of a vibrant new chapter
for our business, for me personally and for many colleagues Several
months of preparations culminated in March with the creation of

ABG and our IPQ, turning what was formerly a regional business umt
of Barnick 1nto a significant independent business Today, we have a
mandate to build on our already substantial asset base and strengthen
our posttion within the gold mining industry

Our key focus over this past year has been to ensure that our assets are
postitioned to generate long-term, consistent operating performance
This has been evadent 1n the achievements at Bulyanhulu and North
Mara, the mine Life extension at Tulawaka and our determined
approach to overcorming the challenges at Buzwagy This marks the
approach ABG will continue to take with the business, to ensure that it
can be run consistently and sustamnably, to manage business nisks and

to apply all of our available resources to deal with any challenges This
underpns our strategy of building growth on a solid operating base and
adding value for our shareholders

Throughout the year, we have maintained our absolute comnutment
to operating in a responsible manner 1n close co-operation with

our host communities and to ensunng that we further embed the
culture of health and safety 1n all our operations and activities Itis
deeply regretiable that we suffered four fatalities at our Bulyanhulu

10  wwwafncanbarmckgold.com

mune during the year We must learn from these incidents and from
the thorough mvestigations we subsequently carned out to reduce

the possihality of any recurrence All our financial and operaung
achievements must be judged in the context of our over-nding
corporate goals of ensuring that everyone goes home safe and healthy
every day and of making a positive contribution to the areas where we
operate We made substantial progress in these goals in 2010, during
which our mines all achieved one million work hours without lost tune
mjuries This 1s haghly encouraging, but we are conscious that we must
contnue 1o mantain our focus on achieving constant improvement

Operatimg and financial performance

With the positive performances at Bulyanhulu and North Mara, as
well as the contribution from Tulawaka, we fimshed the year with
production of 700,934 ounces of gold at a cash cost of US$569 per
ounce With the positive evolution 1n gold prices over 2010, we are
pleased to report a robust operating cash flow of US§$345 rmullion,

and a year-end net cash position of US$401 milhonn We were also
successful in growng our overall resource base by 3 5% to 26 9 million
ounces, of which 63% are classified as reserves However, despute these
achievements the 1ssues faced at Buzwagy meant that we did not meet
all of our 2010 targets As such, resolving the 1ssues at Buzwagi wasa
top prionity for our management team during much of 2010, with the
objective of ensuring that the mane entered 2011 1n a position to dehver
on expectations

This work inctuded a number of senior management changes, including
the Chief Operating Officer and the General Manager al Burwagy, as
well as sigmificant addiional mvestment sn maming and process plant
equipment, security infrastructure, personnel huring and traiming
following the discovery of systematic fuel thefts at the site, and a
significant ighteming of secunty measures We are confident that these
nitiatives have helped to put the mine back on a more stable focting




Dnving efficiency and growth

We implemented a range of plans in 2010 to help dnive further
efficiency and growth in our business, and we will continue to invest
in these 1n 2011 We aim to reach one mullion ounces of production per
year by 2014, representing growth of 40% from 2010 levels We plan

to achicve thus whale also delivering cost-base cfficiencies These are
fundamental pillars of our focus on creating shareholder value and we
aim to deliver them by

+ optumsIng our existing assets,
+ expanding through organic growth, and

» growing through acquisitions in Africa

Optimising our existing assets

In order to ensure that our assets remain world class and continue to
operate at maximum efficency levels, we continue to undertake a range
of capital investment measures and efficiency programmes Aganst a
backdrop of cost pressures i the industry, we believe that these will
help us to continue to aperate at or below the mudpoint of the industry
cost curve

In 2010, these acuvities included a sigmificant upgrade of the venulation
system at Bulyanhulu, fleet expansion at Buzwag and Tulawaka, and de-
bottlenecking at our North Mara process plant to mcrease throughput
We also significantly streamlined our procuremunt and supply chain
functions, as well as re-orgamsing our office in Dar es Salaam In 2011,
we have a capital expenditure budget of US$140 million for sustaining
and development capital, US$24 mullion for expansion projects and
US3$73 million for waste stripping Key capital investment projects
include the water treatment facdity at North Mara, the additzon of
pebble ports and back-up generating capacity at our Buzwagy process
plant, additional underground mining equipment for Tulawaka and
continued security investment

Expanding through organic growth

The optimisation projects for all four of our mne sites remain on track
to deliver substantial and sustainable additronal production within
four years and we have made encouraging progress on these projects
throughout 2010

At Bulyanhulu, we are contiwng to dewater and rehabilitate access to
the Upper East Zone The feasibhity study for this project 1s progressing,
and we expect to finalise it duning the first half of 2011

At North Mara, we have been encouraged by the drill results below the
Gokona and Nyabigena pats, where we released an wnitial high-grade
resource of 370,000 gold ounces duning the fourth quarter of 2010 We
are targeting expanding this to one million ounces through an intensive
dnll programme 1n 2011, and the feasibility study for this project is also
on track to be completed during the first half of 2011

As announced n our prehminary results, we are extending the hfe of
our Tulawaka mune for the full year 2011 and into the second quarter of
2012 We will continue our exploration driling at the site with the aam
of further increasing the life of mine If successful, we anticipate this wall
be based sotely on the underground cperation through the addiion of a
second portal. We expect to provide an update on ths later n the year

Senuor leadership team

Kevin Jenmings
(CFO)

Marco Zaolezz
{CO0Q)

Deodatus Mwanyika
(Vice President
Corporate Affairs)

Peter Spora
{Vice President Exploration)

Kobus van Vuuren
(Head of Human Resources)

Katrina White
{General Counsel &
Company Secretary)

Andrew Wray
(Head of Corporate
Development and
Investor Relations)

®  Detals of the executives are on page 72
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Chiaef Executive Officer’s statement continued

More recently, we were pleased to announce an imtial mineral resource
at our Golden Ridge project The inntial resource consists of an indrcated
muneral resource of 527,000 gold ounces with an average grade of 2 94
grams of gold per tonne and an inferred mineral resource of 152,000
gold ounces with an average grade of 2 52 grams of gold per tonne

We intend to conduct additional exploration work throughout 2011 at
Golden Ridge 1in furtherance of these encouraging results and aim to
complete the feasibility study for the project by nud 2011

We also made encouraging progress at the greenfield Nyanzaga project
1n 2010 following completion of our acquisition of Tusker Gold,
notably with the discovery of mineralisation closer to surface as well

as increasing grades at depth We are stepping up the drdi programme
n 2011, with the aim of imtiating a scopung study later i the year
Elsewhere, the main focus of our generative exploration work was in the
North Mara area along the Gokona Corridor, with some excrting imtial
results that we will follow up on 1n 2011

In recogmition of the critical importance of organic growth to our long-
term ambitions, we are increasing our total exploration budget in 2011
to US$55 million, including US$26 mullion of capitalised expenditure
This represents a 103% increase on 2010

In addition to our organic growth plans, acquisitions to expand our
footprint more broadly in Africa remain an important part of our
strategy We have undemable strengths in this area, with substantial
capital flexibihty gained through our cash holdings and credat facihty,
a management structure that will enable us to acquure and develop
businesses n other parts of Africa, and the operational expertise to add
value to the assets we acquire We analysed a number of targets during
2010 and we continue to actively seek out opportunities

Slrengt hemng OUr mana.gement team

We have continued to strengthen our management team over the
course of the year, employing and promoting individuals with a track
record of leadership and the skull set and experience to help take our
business forward

In September, we announced the appountment of Marco Zolezz1 as
our Chuef Operating Officer Marco has significant expertise in runnming
mines and bninging complex, large-scale projects through to full

ramp up He has been of sigmficant value as we continue o focus on
delivering consistent performance at our operating mines and driving
forward our organic growth projects

We also appointed Boyd Timler as General Manager at Buzwagy. Boyd
has 28 years of muung experience and has been instrumental 1n defining
and implementing the action plan used to address 1ssues at the mine

n 2010 Towards the end of the year, we also appointed Basie Maree as
General Manager of Tulawaka Basie brings substantial expenence of the
industry, including a number of years with Anglo Amencan, and will
lead Tulawaka forward inte a new stage of its development.

With these and other appowntments, I am confident that we now
have a management team in place with the necessary expenience,
energy and enthusiasm to further develop the business and deliver
on ABG's potential

12 www africanbarrickgold com

Qutlook

As I have already mentioned, 2010 was 2 year of sigmficant achievement
while we also faced a number of challenges that impacted production
and cash cost targets However, with the measures we have taken, with
the investments made and with the additional expertise we have added
to our team, we ended 2010 strongly and enter 2011 with an impressive
platform on which to build.

We are aiming to develop the business further through the following
key objectives for 2011

+ achieving attnbutable Group production between 700,000 and
760,000 ounces,

« mamtaning cash cost of between US$590 and US$650 per ounce
sold, and direct cash operating costs of between US$545 and US$605
per ounce sold,

« increasing Group throughput and recoverzes,
« completing feasiility studies at our brownfield projects,

« achieving growth 1n our overall resource base,

improving further en our safety record, and

continuing our focus on opportunities for strategic acquisitions
to expand our footprmnt throughout Africa

Fnally, I would like to thank all of my colleagues for their commitment,
enthusiasm and hard work throughout what has been an extraordinary
year 1n the development of our business [ would also like to thank

our Board for thesr unwavering support, thetr wise counsel and their
comnutment throughout the year

i

Greg Hawkans, Chuef Executive Officer




Market review

The context for our operations

In 2010, the global economic recovery continued

at a slow and uneven pace. While growth 1n
emerging economues, led by China, was generally
strong, growth 1n the largest developed economies
mchuding the United States, the Eurozone and Japan,
was muted and held back by fiscal deficits, sovereign
debt concerns and high unemployment Global
monetary condittons remain historically loose and
the recovery process 1s expected to continue at a
sluggish rate, with downside nisks predicated mainly
on concerns of sovereign defaults and subsequent
tightening of cred:t conditions

During the year, the gold price showed an upward
trend The US dollar generally declined against
other global currencies, primarily as a result of low
US dollar interest rates, continued allocation by
investors 1nto riskier assets and concerns about
the level of US government borrowings and
deficits Gold has histoncally been inversely
correlated to the US dollar, and that trend
continued 1n 2010, with gold prices trading up to
all-time highs 1n a number of major currencies

Gold

The market price of gold 1s the most sigruficant factor in determunng
the earmngs and cash flow-generating capacity of ABG’ operatrons
The price of gold 15 subject to volatile price movements over short
penods of tme and 1s affected by numerous industry and macro-
economic factors that are beyond our control Gold price volatility
remained high 1n 2010, with the price ranging from US$1,045 to
US$1,431 per ounce during the year The average market price for the
year of U5§1,225 per ounce was an all-time high The market price of
gold has been influenced by low US dollar interest rates, sovereign debt
concerns, investment demand and the monetary policies put in place
by the world’s most prominent central banks As a result of the global
easing of monetary policy, as well as large fiscal deficits incurred in the
US and other mayyor developed econommes, we believe that there s a
possibihty that both inflation and US dollar depreciation could emerge
1n the coming years Gold 1s viewed as a hedge aganst inflation and has
hustorically been inversely correlated to the US dollar Therefore, higher
inflation and/or depreaiation n the US dollar should be positive for the
price of gold As a result, we believe the long-term upward trend in gold
prices will continue

Throughout 2010, we continued to see increased interest in holding
gold as an investinent This was evidenced by the increased volumes
held by exchange traded funds (ETFs) and global exchanges, as well
as the worldwide demand for physical gold, in forms such as bars
and co1ns, as investors seek a safe haven against the uncertamn global
economic outlook

We believe that the outlook for global gold mine production will be
one of declimng supply in the years to come While modest increases
i production have occurred in recent years, pnmanly as a result of

the increase in gold prices, we expect a decline over the long term
The primary drivers for the global dechine are a trend of lower-grade
production by many producers, increasing time requirements and
unpediments in bringing projects - especially large-scale projects —
to the production stage, a lack of global exploration success in recent
years, and a scarcity of new, promusing regions for gold exploration
and production A decrease in global industry production raises the
potential for a higher sustainable long-term gold price

Gold sales from the official sector under the Central Bank Gold
Agreement (CBGA) also have a sgmficant impact on gold prices
Sales for the year ended September 2010 were less than 2% of the
full-year quota of 400 tonnes, excluding sales from the International
Monetary Fund {(IMF) We are now in the second year of the current
CBGA which runs to September 2014 and allows for the sale of up

to 400 tonnes per year In 2010, the IMF completed their previously
announced sale of 403 tonnes of gold, with no future sales anticipated
at this ume Net official sector sales have been dechining in recent
years and, 1n fact, central banks were net buyers of gold 1n 2010

The reserve gold holdings of emerging market countries such as the
BRIC countnes (Brazil, Russia, India, and China) are ssigmificantly
lower than the reserve holdings of more developed countries The
central banks of these developing economues hold a significant
portion of therr reserves in US dollars As they identify a need to
dwversify their portfolio and reduce thetr exposure to the US dollar, we
believe that gold will be one of the main benefactors In comjunction
with the below-quota seliing of gold under the CBGA, which 1s
expected to continue in the current year of the agreement, the net
purchases of gold by global central banks provide a strong indication
that gold 1s viewed as a reserve asset and a de-facto currency
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Market review continued

Copper

Copper prices generally rose throughout 2010, particularly in the
second half, as London Metals Exchange (LME) copper prices traded
in a wide range of US$2 74 to US$4 42 per pound They averaged
US$3 42 per pound and closed the year at an all-time high of US$4 42
per pound. Coppers rise to all-time highs occurred mainly as a result
of factors including strong demand from emerging markets, especially
China, decreasing exchange stockpiles and increasing investor interest
in base metals with strong forward-looking supply/demand outlooks
Copper prices should continue to be positively influenced by factors hike
demand from Asia, global economuc growth, the hmited availabihity of
scrap metal and production levels of munes and smelters in the future

Utilising option collar strategies, we have put in place floor protection
on approximately 60% and 45% of our expected copper productien for
2011 and 2012 respectively, at an average floor price of US$3 25 per
pound and an average ceiling price of US$4 77 per pound.

Currency exchange rates

A portion of the Comparty’s costs are incurred in currencies other than

US dollars The exposure relating to other currencies 1s approximately
25% of the Company’s total operating expendrture of which the main
contributing currencies are the Tanzantan Shitling and the South Afrnican
Rand The Company has not entered mnto any long-term currency hedging
but it may consider hedgmg currencies at times when the opportunity
exsts to protect itsell agamst sigmuficant currency movements

Throughout the year, the Rand strengthened versus the US dollar

It traded between Ré 63 and R7 96, and averaged R7 32 per US dollar
Its strength was primarily driven by US dollar weakness, as well as
strong precious metals prices and investors purchasing niskier assets

In 2010, the Tanzaman Shilhng weakened versus the US dollar 1t
traded between Tsh1,333 and Tsh1,525, and averaged Tsh1,442 per
US dollar Its weakness was due to increased government borrowing
used to finance the large growth 1n government debt and a current
account deficit

14  wwwafncanbarnckgold.com




Fuel
During 2010, o1l prices traded between US$63 and US$92 per barre)

They averaged US$80 per barrel and closed the year at US$91 per barrel
as the global economy returned to growth

We consume on average approximately 60 nulhon hitres of diesel fuel
annually across all our nunes Diesel fuel 15 refined from crude oil

and 15 therefore subject to the same price volatildy affecting crude o1l
prices Volatiity in crude prices has a direct and indirect umpact on
our production costs Based on current consumptron figures at our
operations, we estimate that 2n 1ncrease of US$10 per barrel of crude
od would result 1n an approximate increase of US$5-US$6 in cash costs
per ounce of gold sold Although the Company has no diesel-price
hedging positions 1t may consider hedging 1ts diesel-price exposure to
protect against adverse cost umpacts that come with significant increases
m diesel prices We wall look at apportunities to hedge the exposure in
the future

US dollar interest rates

Beginning 1n 2008, in response to the contraction of global crednt
markets and 1n an effort to spur econormc actvity and avord

potential deflaton, the US Federal Reserve reduced 11s benchmark
rate to between 0% and 0 25% The benchmark was kept at thus level
throughout 2010 We expect that short-term rates will remaun at

low levels through 2011 and inte 2012, with the US Federal Reserve
continwng to use monetary policy imitiatives 1n an effort to keep long-
term interest rates low We expect such imtiatives to be followed by
incremental increases to short-term rates once economic conditions
and credit markets normalise

At present, our interest-rate exposure mainly relates to interest
rece1pts on our cash balances (US$401 mudlion at the end of the year)
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Our strategy

Delivering our full potential

The main focus of ABG’s strategy ts to increase our production levels

to one million ounces of gold per year by 2014

We aim to achieve this through continually optimsing and re-
sequencing our asset base, expanding our existing resources,
accessing ore 1n satellite deposits and purswing organic development
opportunities and acquisitions, with the goal of increasing metal
exposure per share

We aim to achieve our production targets while maintaining strict cost
discipline and optirusing capital efficiency to create shareholder value
on an absolute as well as a per share bagis

At ABG, we strive to empower and mncentivise our emplovees to
realise and deliver the full potential of our assets in order to enhance
shareholder value Above all else, we are commutted to bemng a
responsible member of the commumites where we operate and
determned to contribute not only to the national economy but

also to the soci0-economic development and wellbeing of our

host commumties

Increasing production to achieve one million ounces by 2014

16 wwwafricanbarnekgold.com




Strategic priorities

Optimise

the existing asset base

We aim to increase

production across our existing

assets through operational
improvements such as

» moving to electricity supphed
by the Tanzanian national
gnd and away from 1n-house
power generation,

« Increasing trammng and
development of our workforce

with the mtroduction of additional

tratning facilities such as the
Bulyanhulu Underground
training centre,

» stabihising operations at Buzwagi
to achieve consistency mn costs
and production

ra  More information on pages 18 - 21

Expand

through near mine projects

We pursue organic
growth opportunites
to expand our existing
resources such as

+ developing underground
operations at the Gokona and
Nyabigena puts following high-
grade success at North Mara,

- extending the mine hife
at Tulawaka through the
underground extension in
the East Zone,

« accelerating production at the
Bulyanhulu Upper East Zone

s More information on pages 22 - 25

Grow

through greenfield opportunities
and acquisttions i Africa

We are commutted to growing
our operations in Tanzama
and transforming our business
mto a truly pan-African player
within our industry through-

= more than 50,000 metres of
resource definition and exploration
dnlling across Nyanzaga in 2011,

« prospecting for future growth
along the Gokona Corridor
and at the Golden Ridge and
Nyanzaga projects,

» leveraging opportunities
which exast within the African
gold muning industry

ra  More tnformation on pages 26 - 29

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 17
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Optimise

A move away from in-house

The North Mara grid-connection project

In late October 2006, the North Mara
gold mine entered into a memerandum of
understanding with the Tanzanta National
Power Utility, TANESCO, to examine the
feasibihity of connecting to the TANESCO
electnicity grnd Until then the mine had
been supplied by diesel generators The
project scope involved the installation

of 88 kilometres of 132kV overhead power
line from the Musoma substation to the
town of Nyamongo, the construction

of a new substation at Nyamongo and
modifications to the Musoma and Bunda
substations This also included any voltage
support compensation required, and was
called the ‘Grid Connection Project’

ABG and TANESCO completed a
National Grid network study to finalisc
the requirements for the voltage support
compensation To support the network,
anumber of static variable compensators
were relocated and capacitor banks
upgraded in what was known as the
‘Grid Stability Project’

www africanbarnckgeld.com

The final costs were 1n the order of
US540 mullion for the two projects

‘The project ran from January 2008 to
September 2009 Following commssion,
further modifications were made to
address power-quality and grid-stability
1ssues These allow essential equipment
to run on diesel generators until the gnd
power stabilises, with around 4Mw of the
12Mw on this ‘spinming” power

In 2010, the mine benefited signmficantly
from the project’s outcome, thanks to its
reduced reliance on more expensive diesel-
generated power

US$40m

Capital investment




power generation

The man plant ar North Mara
Hlumninated at night, powered with
electricity from the National Grid

Annuai Report and Accounts 2010
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Optimise

Creating capacity to meet

The Bulyanhulu Underground

Training Centre

As the Bulyanhulu mine makes progress
towards growing productton using the

conventional cut-and-fill mumng method,

there 15 an 1ncreased need to train large
numbers of miners ABG carned out an
onsite gap assessment to highlight our
traiming needs and to ensure we have
the capacity to meet the demand To
meet this challenge, the mining team
has recruited a number of hughly skilled
trainers from one of South Africa’s
leading mine training schools and has
converted the mined-out 4700 level into
an underground mining school

The space contains a number of areas to
hold formal classroom lectures as well as
practical areas where employees can learn
basic skills such as pipe-fitting, inspecting
vehucles and ngging They can then
progress to more demanding training on
subjects such as jack legs and winches

All training can be carried out m a genwmne
underground environment without the
added pressure of being 1n a production
arez This makes the traming highly
effective and gives people who are

20 www africanbarrickgold.com

new to muning the opportunity to start
their career by learning 1n a safe and
controlled environment

The next phase 15 to start a low-priority
‘production’ heading, where students can
experience actual working conditions
without the added pressure of a fully-
fledged production environment We

are also currently carrying out a gap
assessment on all underground employees,
who will be undergoing training at the
centre to ensure we have the skills required
ta make the mine a success In the longer
term, we envisage that the centre will also
provide training for employees from other
ABG underground operations

2,210

New and existing employees
trained during 2010




Overview

our demand

Performance

Governance

Financial statements

Sharehalder information

Training underway at the Bulyanhulu

Underground traming centre
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Expand

Realising the potential of our

North Mara Underground

ABG 15 currently investigating the
potential for starting an underground
mine at North Mara to access a resource
that 1s currently outside the final planned
hmuts of the open pits This would also
allow for simultaneous underground and
open pit miming for a period of ume which
would both add to our production profile
and increase the hfe of the mine

fnitial investigations into possible resource
expansion at Gokona have shown positive
results In December 2010, we announced
an mmitial mineral resource at the project,
indicating the potential to develop a
substantial underground operation at the
Gokona and Nyabigena deposits with an
attractive grade profile

We are continuing deep drilhing in

order to identify further high-grade
gold mineralisation with the objective
of locating an underground resource of
up to one milhon ounces We are also
undertaking studies into suitabie mming
methods, potential operating and capital

www afficanbarnckgold.com

costs, infrastructure and risk analysis
assessments to assess the overall feasibility
for thus resource expansion We expect
to complete this phase of the study in
md-2011

The ymtial resource announcement and
on-gomng project reviews confirm the
encouraging progress ABG has made on
assessing the upside potential of North
Mara It 15 a testament to our strategy of
realising the additronal potential of our
existing portfolio of high-quality assets

You can find further information on
North Mara Underground on page 45

1 Moz

Total targeted underground
resource




Overview

ting assets

exI1S

Performance

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information

Drift rigs workeng on expanding the
Naorth Mara Underground resource
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Expand

Extending our mine life

Tulawaka extension

Tulawaka commenced open pit operations
1n 2005 with a declared reserve of 546,000
ounces It had produced 808,000 ounces
up until the end of December 2010

In 2009, open pit mining ceased and
underground mumng commenced,
exploiting the deeper extent of the ore
body white supplementing production
with surface stockpiles Cperations
were due to cease 1n 2011 However
underground resource delineation
drilling has resulted 1n an imitial mine life
extension into the second quarter of 2012
We will further explore opportumties
during 2011 to build on this imtaal mme
life extension

In addition to underground extensions,
driling programmes have indicated the

24 wwwafricanbarnckgeld.com

potential to recommence open pit mining
from the West pit extension, something
which had not been economucally viable
in the past Because this would be an
extension of historic open pit mining, no
additional permitting would be required.
ABG 1s currently examiming the overall
viability of this opportunity

We provide further information on the
Tulawaka extenston on page 46

2012

Irmihial mune lLife extension




Overview

Performance

Governance

Financial statements

Sharehaolder information

From open pit to underground - the

porial at Tulawaka leading to further
underground rumng opportunthes
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Grow

Prospecting for future

The Gokona Corridor

A group of 57 prospecting licences
surround the North Mara operation,
encompassing approximately 691 square
kilometres of laghly prospective Archaean
geology ABG controls the majority of
this prospective greenstone belt, with
most licences owned 100% by members

of the Group Currently, the top priority
target in the region 1s the 15 kilometre
long Gokona Corridor that straddles the
Gokona and Nyabigena gold deposits and
which 1s interpreted to extend some five to
six kilometres to the north west and nine
to ten kilometres to the south east of the
open pits Other targets in the North Mara
project include the Komarera trend four
kilometres south east of the Nyabirama
open pit and, more regionally, the Dett
and Surubu prospects some 45 kilometres
west of the North Mara operation

ABG believes that the North Mara
District, partrcularly the Gokona
Corridor, 15 one of the most haghly
prospective exploration areas in its
current portfolio and that the region
could eventually add sigmficantly to
the existing North Mara resource base
The Company has plans to expand the
2010 reverse circulation scout drilling

wwwafricanbarrnickgold com

programme on the Gokona Corridor and
nfill reverse circulation and diamond
core dnlling by July 2011

To date, reverse circulation scout driliing
has identified favourable rock types,
alteration and some gold anomahsm 1n
limited drdling This 1s very encouraging
for what has imtially been a broad-spaced
reconnaissance programme Drifling in
2011 will continue to target extensions
to the existing Gokona-Nyabigena
mmneralised system, with the objective

of locating new high-grade gold deposits
within trucking distance of the North
Mara plant These programmes will run in
conjunction with the programme being
undertaken by North Mara mine to add
and convert resources in the Gokona and
Nyabigena underground areas

12,000

Metres of drilhng planned
for 2011

growth
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Shareholder information

1s to discover further open pit and

A Iughly prospective area, the objective
underground potental
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Grow

Growing our resource base

Nyanzaga

The acquisition of Tusker Gold in the
first half of 2010 resulted 1n ABG gaining
100% control of the Nyanzaga project,
which hosts the Tusker and Kilimam
gold deposits as well as several other
exploration targets The Nyanzaga project
covers some 353 square kilometres of
prospective Archaean greenstone geology
and lies approximately 35 kilometres
north east of ABG's Bulyanhulu gold
mine Previous resource estimates by
Tusker Gold and Sub Sahara Resources
NL reported inferred resources of
approximately four million ounces for
Tusker and Kilimani projects (although
ABG has so far only recogmsed a
resource of 963,000 ounces) The

Tusker and Kilimani gold deposits and
the surrounding exploration targets
together represent an opportunity to add
significantly to the Company’s resource
base, with the potenual to contribute
substantrally to annual production in the
medium to long term

The Company is presently continuing
step-out and infill resource dnlhing en
the Tusker and Kiluman: deposits along
with scout exploration drill programmes
across various geophysical and
geochemical targets withan the project
In late 2010, our drilling on the Tusker

wwwalnicanbarnckgold.com

resource area identified additional near-
surface minerzhsation on the northern
end of the resource and new zones of
broad, higher-grade munerahsation

on the southern end of the resource
These intercepts indicate the potential
to identify broad, higher-grade zones
within the very large Tusker gold deposit,
and the current drill programmes are
specifically aimed at extending these
newly-identified zones

The Company plans to dnll more than
50,000 metres of resource defimtion and
exploration drilling across the Nyanraga
property in 2011 These dnll programmes
are focused on identifying additional
gold deposits and satellite ore sources
that could enhance the econormics of any
operation established on the Nyanzaga
project We also aim to wtiate a scoping
study later in 2011 as we gain a greater
understanding of the mineralisation 1n
this area

52,000

Metres of drilling planned for 2011




Overview Performance Governance Financial statements Shareholder information
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The way we work

Commiitted to excellence

At the time of our IPO we made commitments to excellence, and to establish strong and
effective leadership We believe this approach makes sound business sense as well as being

crucial for risk and opportunity management.

Board effectiveness and strength

ARG requires strong and effective leadership to achieve 1ts business
objectives For this reason, all our Directors have considerable
expenence n the minng industry, shaning a collective spectrum of
expertise that spans finance and accounung, regronal operational
experience, geology and engineering

Our Board 1s responsible for the overall management of ABG and its
business It sets our standards, values and strategic atms, and ensures
that we have the resources 1n place to meet our objectives Supported by
the Senior Leadership Team, the Board momtors and reviews materzal
strategic 1ssues, financial performance, risk management and cntical
business 1ssues

2 You can find dctals of each of our Directors on pages 70 71, and we
provide details of our governance structure in the Corporate governance
report contained in this report

Risk management

Effective risk management 15 imperative both to drive the success of
ABGS strategy and vision and to protect our values For this reason, we
have adopted a comprehensive nsk management framework to address
sk tolerance and control, based on iternational standards, applicable
governance requirements and the ethics that underpin our Code of
Conduct All members of the ABG Group, our material operations,
support functions, processes and procedures must comply with and
adhere to our nisk management controls and procedures

ea  We give (urther detauls of our approach to nsk management 1n the
Risk management section of this report on page 64

Orgamsational structure

The Board acts as overall guardian
of ABG’s business and its strategy
Speaific review and oversight
functions are delegated to
committees of the Board n line
with applicable governance
standards and requirements
Day-to-day management of the
business lies wath the Semor

1 eadership Team, who work with
the general managers of each mine
1o progress operations

Audit
commutiee

30 www africanbarnckgold com
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Strategic sharcholder support

Before our IPO 1n March 2010, ABG was a wholly owned subs:diary of
Barrick. Barrick continues to hold approximately 74% of ABG’s shares,
making 1t our mayority shareholder As a result of this close relationship,
we continue to benefit from having access to the Barnck Group for

a number of support and technical services We also recewve strong
shareholder support for our iutiatives, while retaining autonomy and
independence as a public company in the operation of our business

+s  Further detads of our relationstup with Barnck are on page 76.

Responsible mmning

As one of Tanzania’s largest investors, we strive to be a responsible
member of the communities in which we operate, and are determined
to contribute not only to the national economy but also to the socio-
economuc development of our host communities As such, we are
commutted to creating a positive and sustainable legacy in Tanzama by
operating 1n a socially responsible way over the life cycle of our munes
and by ensuring that our employees and local commurmities can share in
the benefits of our mining activities We have been engaged 1 a number
of imtiatrves that reflect this vision wath the local communtties around
our mines These can be hroadly broken down into the following
categortes community development, stakeholder engagement, and
local procurement and employment

Our values

ABG's conduct 1s gumded by the highest standards of honesty and
integraty, founded on our Code of Conduct that embodies our
commitment te conducting our business in accordance with all
applicable Jaws, rules, regulations and the highest ethical standards
We have also adopted a number of core values, which underline our
vision and commitment to stakeholders

. "
Our values

Behave like an owner

‘We accept accountability for our actions and resulis We are
entrepreneurial and look for opportunities 1o grow our business
We act with integnity ~ operatng within the letter and spirit of
the law and ABG's Code of Conduct

Be ateam player

We work safely at all ames ‘We respect our colleagues and
those we interact with outside our organssation We listen

to others for understanding and we ask for help We bwld
trust and we celebrate our successes We help others improve
therr effeciveness We promote confidence and trust in one
another’s capabilities

Continually improve

We are always commtted to improvement We bwild on good
1deas, we learn from our nustakes and we challenge the status
quo We think outside the box and have a desire to succeed and
add value to our work.

Act with a sense of urgency

We are decisive, take the initiatrve and make tough decisions
when necessary We set priorities and act on them

Delwver results

We have a clear vision of where we are going and of our plan
to get there We focus our resources to achieve our objectives
We pay attention to detail and keep our commitments We
dehver results

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 31
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Key performance indicators

Measuring our performance

We assess the performance of our business against a number of KPIs on a continuous basis
The use of KPIs in this way allows us to monitor and measure progress made in realising

and implementing our strategy '

Fimancial KPIs

Data
Definiion EBITDA {eartungs before Earnngy per share (EPS) Operaung cash flow per Cash cost per ounce sold Cash cost per tonne
(full defimtion mierest, taxes, depreciation 15 caleulated as the net share 15 the cash generated 15 calculated by dividing the milled 15 calculated by
for Non-TFRS and amortisatton) 1s the profit attnbutable to equaty from or utilised m operating te of cash costs by drading the aggregate
mensures are net profit or loss for the shareholders divided by actvities divided by the attributed gold ounces sold of these cash costs
provided on penod excluding: the weighted average of the weighted average of the by attnbuted ore
page 54) number of Ordinary Shares number of Ordinary Shares tonnes muted
+ INCOM¢ 12X eXpense; n issue 1N 155U
» finance expense,
« finance 1ncome, and
+ depreciation and amorusation
{including goodwal!
impairment charges)
Performance EBITDA totalied E gs per share d  Operaung cash flow per Cash cost per ounce sold was ~ Cash cost per tonne
in 2010 Us$419 million 1n 2010, to US53 2 cents for 2010, an share was US84 2 cents, a 78% 158569 per ounce for 2010, mulled was USS55
an increase of 68% on 2009, wnerease of 272% on 2005 The werezse on 2009 asaresaliof  a T%increase on 2005 The per wnne for 2010
as a result of improved increase was driven by net improved revenue increase was pnmarily due shghtly lower than 2009,
gold pnces, increased gold profit for the year to increased cosis ncurred primanly as a result of
ounces sold and record at Buzwag when cempared the overall incremental
co product revenue? to lower than expected increase in tonnes malled
production levels at the mine. from open pit operations
Relevance EBITDA 15 a valuable Farnings per share serves Operating cash flow per Cash cost per ounce sold 13 Cash cosl per tonne
indicator of ABGs ability to a5 an ndicator of ABGs share helps o measure ABGs  a key indicator used by ABG mulled 15 a key
generate operating cash flow profitability and 15 2 pnmary ababity to generate cash from 10 monutor and manage those wndrcator used by ABG
that can fund its workeng indacator in determimng share  its business factors that impaciproduction  management to track cash
capital needs, service price and value costs on a monthly basis. costs against productmity
debt obligations and fund
capital expenditures

1 thstoncally 2nd prior te otir yutial public offening,. the operattons of the ABG Group
comprtsed the Tanzanian gold mining business of Barmck.

2 Cash costs per ounce sold, EBITDA opurating cash flow per share and cash costs per tonne

mulled are non IFRS financaal performance measures with no standard meaming urder
IFRS Refer 1o "Non [FRS measures” on page 54 for the full defirwons of cach measute

32 www africanbarnickgold.com

Creating a track record

Kevin Jenmings, CFO, gives a perspective

on how 1t will be created




Operational KPis

Non-financial KPI

lotal shareholder Data
return
(%)
. 4 %)
Total sharcholder return Attnbutable production 1s Total reserves and resoutces Lost ume 1njury frequency Defimtion
15 the return on investment the aggregate of the Groups pet share are calculated as the rate ([ TIFR) 1s measured as (Fulk defimtion
a shareholder receives over equity 1nterest 1n gold cunces totat of proven and probable the number of lost time claams ~ for Non-IFRS
a specified ime frame and produced from its mines reserves, plus measured per million hours worked, measures are
takes into consideration the ndicated and inferred provided on
share pnce appreciaion/ resources expressed 1n page 54)
depreciation and contaned ounces drnded by
diidends recerved. the total numbers of shares 1n
wssue using a ratio of 1 1000
Total shareholder return Attnbatable production for Total reserves and Lost ime injury frequency Performance
was § 4% for the year This the year was 700 934 ounces resources per share equalled rate indicates that sigrficant m 2010
measure was dnven by the 2% lower than 2009 pnimanly 655 0z/1,000 shares milestones were achueved
change in ABG share price due to preduction challenges n 2010 with each of our
since the IPO As thisis the at Buzwag) riunes hitting one mlhon
first year of ABG's emistence as working hours withoui lost
a Listed company no prior year tumc 1njunes
comparator 15 shown.
Total shareholder return Attnbutable production Total reserves and respurces Lost time injury frequency Relevance
1s a key indicator that 1s used demonstirates progress per share 15 2 measure of our tate helps us to measure the
1o compare the performance towards achieving our target abehty to discover and develop ctfecuveness of our health and
of ABG's shares over time of increasing production to new ore bodies and to replace safety imtatives and controls
agamst industry peers. one milhon ounces per year and extend the hfe of our ACTOSS OUr Operallons.
by 2014 operating mines.

3 The prot years basic sarnangs per share and operaung cash flow per share comparaines
were calculated using the 2010 number of average weighted shares as the Company was

not mcorporated in the priof years stated, and thus had no shate capital.

4 Based on restated revenue to include sales of co-products refer 1o page 48 and Note 2a)
on page 107 as part of the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

5 Producuon reflects equity ounces which exclude 30% of Tulawaka's prosduction base

We set a range of KPls that seek to ensure close

alignment of our strategic and operational goals
with the interests of our sharcholders and other
stakeholders We also wndude certasn indicators that
are used and understood throughout cur industry,

to ensure we can track our operational

and financial progress aganst ndusiry peers

Overall cur KPls track our abihty to increase

production through operational improvements,

grow margins by managing our costs, invest wisely
with the aim of growing gold resources on a per

share basis, and operate wathin key safety targets

and standards Our pnimary goal in using these
KPIs and monitoring the undertying factors which
affect them 15 to develop a rehiable track record of
profitable growth and financial performance,
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Chief Operating Officer’s review

Driving process and performance

Operationally, 2010 has seen
unprecedented levels of activity for ABG
For the first time, all four of our mines
were operational for the full year, although
we faced a number of challenges 1n our
operating environment that impacted on
our overall Group production levels

Marco Zolezzna
2010 2009 % Varance
Operating results
Tonnes rined (thousands of tonnes) 40,016 36,781 9%
Ore tonnes processed (thousands
of tonnes) 7,706 6,546 18%
Recovery rate (percent) 86 1% 87 0% {1%)
Average grade (grams per tonne) a3 ig (15%)
Attributable gold production'
{ounces) 700934 716306 -2%
Attributable gold sold' (ounces) 724,083 683,687 6%
Copper production
(thousands of pounds) 7,958 6,788 7%
Cash cost per tonne mualled? (US$/1) 55 57 4%
Per ounce data (US$/Oz)
- Average spot gold price? 1,225 972 26%
~ Average reahsed gold pnce? 1,240 974 27%
- Cash cost per ounce sold? 569 533 7%
- Amortisation and costs per
ounce sold? 147 128 15%
- Total production costs per
ounce sold 716 661 8%

1 Production and seld ounces reflect equity ounces which exclude 30% of Tulawaka’s
production base

2 Cash cost per tonne milled, average realised gold price per ounce sold, cash cost per
ounce sold amortisation and other cosis per ounce and total production cost per ounce
are non IFRS financial performance measures with no standard meaning under IFRS
Refer to Non [FRS measures on page 54 for definitions

3 Reflects the London PM fix pnice.
The statistical information above includes non-IFRS measures. An explanation of Non
IFRS measures 15 included on page 54 An explanation of mune statistical information 15
wacluded on page 168
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L ]
Key initiattves and priorities for 2011

s+ Dehver maximum sustainable production and cost discipline

= Mamntain focus on best leadership, management and
technical pracuces

+ Continue the enhancement of site secunity infrastructure
and processes

+ Bwld on improvements to health and safety systems
and processes

+« Continue the development of tramng for workforce and
local communities

+ ‘Translate strategy into capital allocation, optimuse capatal
allocation and realise key business opportunities

Operationally, 2010 has seen unprecedented levels of actvity for ABG
For the first ime, all four of our munes were operational for the full year,
although we faced certain challenges in our operating environment

that impacted on our overall Group production levels Nonetheless,

our Group praduction for the year was 700,934 ounces

With respect to our cash costs for the year, we saw a 7% increase over
2009 to US$569 per cunce sold The increase was primarily due to lower-
than-expected producuion levels at Buzwagy, increased costs incurred

at the mine and industry cost pressures generally Cash costs of US$55
per tonne rmlled for the year were shghtly lower than the 2009 figure of
US$57 per tonne, prumanly as a result of the overall incremental increase
i tonnes milled from open pit operations.

ABG sold 724,083 gold ounces for the year, up by 6% on 2009 {683,687
ounces), despite the decrease m our overall production The increase
was dniven by the sale of concentrate ounces on hand at Bulyanhulu and
Buzwag at the end of 2009

We mined 40 0 nulhion tonines of ore and waste for the year, compared to
36 8 mlhon n 2009 The increase was driven pnmanty by the focus on
waste-stripping at the Gokona open pit, 1n order to access high-grade ore
from 2012




Tonnes of ore processed for the year totalled 7 7 mulhion, an 18% increase
on 2009 levels (6 5 million tonnes) The increase was mainly driven by
increased throughput at North Mara and at Buzwagi compared to the
prior pertod, which only reflected exght months’ production at Buzwag

The average grade for the year was 3 3 grams of gold per tonne, 15% lower
than the prior year period The decrease was due to three key ssues the
processing of low-grade stockpiles at Buzwag: in the thard and fourth
quarters, the lower grade of the transittonal ore processed overall at
Buzwagi when compared to the oxide material mined during 2009; and
the low-grade stockpiles processed throughout the year at Tulawaka

Our copper production for the year of eight millon pounds represents
a 17% increase on 2009, whuch only reflected eght months of production

at Buzwag.

Bulyanhutu delivered in hine with expectations throughout the year,
however, it was deeply regrettable that we suffered three fatalities as a result
of a rock fall in March as well as a further fatality from a non-mimng related
accident later in the year As Greg has noted, it is imperatve that we learn
from these maidents and from the thorough investigations we subsequently
carned out to ensure that there 1s no recurrence

North Mara delivered production ahead of budget and at a shghtly

lower cash cost per ounce sold, when compared to 2009 In addiuon, the
announcement of a ugh-grade tmtial underground resource beneath the
planned final Gokona and Nyabigena open pits hughhights the potential
for Nerth Mara both to extend its mune hfe and to add stgnificant ounces
to ABG’s production base going forward.

Tulawaka has continued to outperform its onginal feasibbity study for
1ts underground operation, with an smitial extenston of its hfe-of-mune,
through to the second quarter of 2012 Duning the year, we also invested
1n the infrastructure of the operation, particularly s mobile fleet, to
ensire consistency of production and continuing profitabality

At Buzwag, a number of challenges impacted production and cash
costs at the rmne In the first part of the year, the layer of transitional

ore between the oxide cap and the primary sulphide ore proved to be
both shghtly deeper than expected and of a higher grind index. This
caused a number of equipment farlures in the process plant, which were
compounded by a series of unscheduled power outages that negatively
impacted production In addition, during the third quarter we uncovered
an organised and systematc onsite fuel thefi, which had a further
impact on production at the mine Investigations indecated that ciminal
fuel theft syndicates had widely infiltrated cur mining department In
response, we suspended approximately 60 employees and 2 number of
contractors, representing over 40% of mining department personnel
Unfortunately, the reduction in rminmg capacity further delayed the
munng of lugher-grade ore and the processing of low-grade stockpiles

We mmplemented a senies of measures to address these 1ssues duning the
year These included

+ strengthening the senior management team with Boyd Timler’s
appointment as General Manager,

» brnnging forward muung fleet expansion from 2011 to accelerate stage
two nuning,

» optimusing the drill-and-blast programme in the open put,
+ hinng and traimung replacement miming personnei following the
fuel theft,

« recommssiomng the sulphur plant and optirmsing the flotaton plant,

« ordering additional pebble ports and back-up generating power for
2011,and

» conducting a full site security review, and implementing additional
secunty measures

Overall, we are confident that the measures undertaken in 2010 wall

have a positive long-term impact at Buzwagi. In addition, our recent
announcement of an imtial muneral resource at our Golden Ridge project
underpmns our belef and confidence 1 the potental of this project to
become a significant satellite operation to the Buzwagi mine tn the future

The stability of power supply posed a mumber of challenges to production
throughout 2010 We anticipate sporadic interruptions in power

supply throughout 2011 and wall continie to momtor this 1ssue and the
impact that this may have on our production levets closely throughout
the forthcoming year So far, we have made progress in connecting
Bulyanhulu, Burwagi and North Mara to the national gnid system
(Tulawaka remains exclusively diesel powered) Currently, we mamntain
back up diesel power generating capacity at Bulyanhulu and North Mara,
wn order to mutigate the nisks posed by power supply mterruptions at

our largest operations and we expect to install SMW of backup power at
Buzwag by mid 2011 From a State perspective, IANESCO continues to
expand uts transmmussion network and its generating capacity to meet the
increasing energy demands of the growing Tanzanian economy We have
been, and will continue to be, supportive of this expansion through our
on-gomg relationship with TANESCO An overview of our relationstup
with TANESCO 1s provided on pages 18, 19 and 83

In addstion, the recent shortage of runfall in Tanzama has raised the
possibility that there could be a reduction 1 the avallability of electnaity
generated from hydropower which may impact our operations if, as a
result, total electneity supply 1s insufficient to meet demand We wall
continue to momtor this development and the impact that it may have
0N our operations.

Further detals on cur iiatives to address power supply and the nsks
that power stoppages, shortages and interruption of utilities supply have
on our operations have been provided on pages 18, 19, 60, 67 and 68

As discussed at the ime of our IPQ, the North Mara MDA and mining
licence are due to expire on 7 September 2011 Apphications to renew
both of these agreements were submutted m the thurd quarter of 2010 We
expect the renewal of the MDA to be on the same terms as the exishng
agreements and for the remainder of North Mara’s hfe of mme

Lookng forward, we believe that we are well posiioned to deliver on the
potential of the Company’s asset base as we enter 2011 This year, our
focus will remain on achieving operationat excellence in order to deliver
stable and profitable productton levels

Marco Zolezzi, Chief Operaung Officer
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Operating review

Bulyanhulu - Optimising for growth

Mine profile

The Bulyanhulu gold mine 1s located in north west Tanzania,

in the Kahama district of the Shinyanga region, approximately

55 kilometres south of Lake Victoria and approximately 150
kilometres south west of the city of Mwanza, a regional business
and economic hub The Bulyanhulu process plant has the capacity
to process an average of approxamately 3,300 tonnes of ore per day
(approximately 1 1 million tonnes per year) operating 24 hours

a day on a 365 day per year basis

2010 performance

Pl’OgI’CSS and pl’lOI‘lthS

Key mane statistics

Year ended 31 December

2010 progress
» Sohd production for the year laying a good foundation for 2011
« Entrenchment of cost control structure 1n place across the operation

« Bulk Air Cooler project and electnical infrastructural upgrade completed during
the year, which will ssigmificantly improve mining conditions at depth

» Surface infrastructure was improved with the completion of a new emergency
response centre, mess:ng faclities and conference area

« Strong dnive on traming, especially focused on specialised areas such as mechanical
mining equipment operators

+ Estabhshment of new underground traming facihity

2010 2009 % vanance
Underground ore tonnes hosted (Kt) 958 967 (1%)
Ore mulled (Ki) 954 959 (1%)
Head grade (g/t} 92 87 6%
Mill recovery (%} 922% 92 1% 0%
QOunces produced (Oz) 259,873 248991 4%
Ounces sold (Oz) 262,442 255,124 3%
Cash ¢ost per ounce sold (U5$/0z) 539 651  (17%)
Cash cost per tonne mulled (US$/t) 148 173 {14%)}
Capital expendrture (USS 000) 80,539 59,583 35%

2011 priortties

+ Ensunng safety standards and in particular underground support regimes are
strictly observed

+ Focus on growth projects to improve the overall ounce profile with the continuance
of the Upper East Zone study and other production opportanties

« Completion of fuel, lubricant and workshop facilities and upgrades both on surface
and underground to improve equipment avallatilities

+ Continue our strong commutment to traimng with a focus on specialised skalls

+ Completion of the dewatering project to improve the reliabihity of the mine
dewatering systems

The statistical information above includes non TFRS measurcs An explanation of Non 1FRS measures 15 inctuded on page 54

An explanation of mine statistical mformation is included on page 168
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Bulyanhulu mine overview

The Bulyanhulu gold mine 1s located in north west Tanzania, 1n the
Kahama district of the Shinyanga region, approximately 55 kilometres
south of Lake Victonia and approximately 150 kdometres south west of
the city of Mwanza, a regional business and economic hub Site access 1s
good with a private airport and local unpaved roads connecting to the
matn highway close to Kahama The average annual temperatures range
between 15° and 35°C Average annual rainfall in the region 15 953mm

The nune consists of an underground mine, a process plant, waste
rock dumps, talings containment, water management ponds and
associated facihties The mine 1s an underground trackless operation
using long-hole as its principal stoping method, and 1t 1s transitioning
towards narrow-vein conventional mining as its principal muning
method As at 31 December 2010, a total of 2,940 individuals were
employed at Bulyanhulu, consisting of 2,437 Group employees and
503 contracted personnel

Bulyanhulu is a narrow-vem gold mine containing gold, sitver and copper
munerahsatton i sulphides, Mineralisanon of Bulyanhulu 1s associated
with steeply-dipping reefs ‘To date a number of distinct reefs have been
wdentthed mcluding Reef Zero, Reef One and Reef Two Bulyanhulu’s
life-of-muine 15 currently estimated to be 1n excess of 25 years, based on

its proven and probable gold reserves of 11,026,000 ounces.

Operating performance

Bulyanhulu delivered solid results in 2010, hitting key production
targets for the year

Gold production for the year was 259,873 ounces, 4% higher than the
prior year period’s total of 248,991 ounces mainly due to the higher-
grade ore mined 1n 2010

Gold ounces sold for the year were 262,442 ounces, which was 1%
hugher than the production figure and also 3% higher than 2009 The
difference 1n sales was due to selbing all unsold gold concentrate from
the previous year, bringing the year-end fimished gold inventones back
to normalised levels, combined with an increase in the production base
of 10,882 ounces

Cash costs for the year of US$539 per ounce sold were 17% lower

than the prior year of Us§651 This was primantly a result of our
improved production base and increased co-product revenue, which
was driven by increased copper prices Other contnibuting factors
mnclude improved cost-management measures, with lower consumables
costs, lower mantenance cost due to investments made 1 new mning
equipment, and a decrease 1n contracted services costs as a result of
insourcing Alimak muning actmvities The cost benefits of these measures
were partially offset wath an wncrease 1n labour costs due to increased
headcount and inflationary pressure

Cash costs per tonne milled fell to US$148 1n 2010 {U5$173 wn 2009)
as a result of mnung cost reductions and increased copper revenues

Caprtal expenditure for the year of US$80 5 million was 35% higher
than the pnior year of US$59 6 million This was mainly dniven by a
number of mvestments made in the underground mine and surface
infrastructure Notable investments included the new refrigeration
plant, the shaft dewatenng system, the underground workshop and
additional maning equipment

We suffered four fatalities at the mine thus year, which 1s deeply
regrettable Detals of these fataliies and the actions that we have taken
n response to this are provided as part of our health and safety report
on page 61
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Operating review continued

Buzwagi — Overcoming challenges

Mine profile

The Buzwag) mine 15 located 1n north west Tanzama 1n the
Kahama district of the Shinyanga region, approximately 97
kilometres from Bulyanhulu and six kilometres south east from
the town of Kahama The muill 1s designed with a throughput
capacity of 12,000 tonnes of ore per day, and the muine 1s capable
of moving approximately 4 4 million tonnes of ore per year

2010 performance Progress and priorities

2010 progress

+ Strengthenung the senior management team with appointment of new

general manager

+ Optimsing the drill-and-blast programme in the open pit

+ Hinng and traumng replacement personned followmng the fucl theft

+ Recommissioning the sulphur plant and optimising the flotation plant

» Enhancing site secunty and controls
Key mine statistcs 2011 pniorities

Year ended 31 December « Continue the development and traiming of workforce
2010 2009 % variance + Continue the acceleration of stage two muming by additional expansion of the

Tonnes muned (K1) 18348 19843 (5%) munng fleet
Ore tonnes mmed (K1) 4285 503 (15%) « Upgrade Detox circunt for improved mull recovertes and fower soluble copper levels
Ore mulled (K1) 3553 1671 3% + Install back-up power generation to reduce the impact of power outages, realising
Head grade g/} 20 35 (20%) higher mill availability
Mall recovery (%) BLO%  E74% (%) + Automate the flotation ciremt to improve copper and gold concentraion values
Ounces produced (0z) 186019 159031 (2%) + Improve SAG mill discharge for increased mull throughput
Qunces sald (Ox) 198,221 153682 29%
Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/0z) 685 422 62%
Cash cost per tonne muied (US$/t) 38 24 58%
Capntal expendature (U$5'000) 29781 109298  (73%) The statistical informanion above includes non-1IFRS measures An explanation of hon FFRS measures

Repositioning Buzwag

The focus at Buzwagy throughout 2010 has been
on tmplementing a detatled action plan with the
following areas of focus

Process plant

A review of the process plant highlighted a number
of measures and ways in which we could maximuse
future performance Measures included rebuilding
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the pnmary crusher concave liners and replacing the
secondary crusher hners, rebuitding the low pressure
water pumps, relimng the SAG mlt shell and
redesigning the pebble ports, recommssioning the
sulphur plant with a complete process review and
optirmising the flotation plant to increase the copper
contained 1n the concentrate [nvestments in these
measures should help to ensure that the plant meets
1ts target levels of throughput and recoveries

15 inchuded on page 54 An explanation of mine stanstical information s included on page 168

Mine

The pit scheduhing was reassessed and revised
following changes to equipment availabihity
expeclations We expanded the minng fleet
throughout the year in order to have appropriate
capzcity to deal with task spectfic support This
helped to ensure optinal avarlabihity for open pit
nuning operations There has also been a full review
of the drill-and-blast programme which has led




BUZWilgI mine overview

The Buzwag) mine s located m north west Tanzama in the Kahama
district of the Shinyanga region, approxamately 97 kilometres from
Bulyanhulu and six kilometres south east of the town of Kahama The
Buzwags rmine 15 Tanzanias second-largest mining operation and the
largest single open pit mine in the country Accessibihity to Buzwagy 1s
good, with the location of the site immediately beside a paved highway
and a 1,580-metre airstrip The site 15 also 40 kalometres from Isaka,

a railway hub with links to the port of Dar es Salaamn, located on the
Indian Ocean The annual average temperature ranges between 16°
and 29°C Average annual rainfali in the region 1s 953mm

The Burwag: mine consists of an open pit mine, ore-processing
facilities, a waste-rock storage facility, a tailings storage facihty, water
management and other ancillary faciliies As at 31 December 2010,
a total of 1,992 individuals were employed at Buzwagy, consisting of
802 Group employees and 1,190 contracted personnel

Buzwagi 15 a shear-hosted quartz-veined deposit hosted 1n
porphyntic gramte Buzwagr’s life-of-mine 1s currently estimated to
be approximately 13 years, based on its proven and probable gold
reserves of 2,892,000 ounces

Operaung performance

Buzwagy’s gold production for the year was 186,019 ounces, compared
to 189,031 ounces for the previous year, which only reflected

eight months of production This production level was lower than
management’s expectations for the year and was primanly due to two
reasons firsty, the longer-than-expected time taken to process the
low-grade transitional ore, which adversely impacted throughput and
plant recoveries, and, secondly, the short-term impact of measures
taken 1o address the systematic onstte fuel theft discovered during the
third quarter To address these production chailenges, management
focused cfforts on traming new mining and maintenance personnel and
mmproving plant and equipment availabihty We also made a number
of investments mn additional mobile miming equipment to help advance
muning activities and to address delays 1n the overall production
tumetable In additien to production challenges, it was also necessary
to address mult downtime resulting from unplanned breakdown

and power outages throughout the year, which remain an ongong
1ssue Production improved over the second half of November and
throughout December, as the operational measures taken during the
year began to take effect The grade of 2 0 g/t was 20% lower than the
previous year’s {2 5 g/t) This decrease was primanly due to processing
a dsfferent matenal blend and lower-grade ore when compared to 2009

to a number of operational improvements, atmed

infrastructure with the installation of additional

Gold ounces sold during the year amounted to 198,221, exceeding
production by 7% and represenuing a 29% ncrease over the previous
year (153,682) Theincrease in gold ounces sold versus the prior year
as well as versus 2010 production was due to a combination of the gold
concentrate and gold 1n circunt inventones that built up in the process
throughout 2009 and which were subsequently sold in 2010

Cash costs for the year were US$685 per ounce sold, compared to
US8422 1n 2009 Key factors which negatively impacted cash costs
included. (1) the lower-than-expected production levels, (1) higher
energy costs resulting from the fuel theft, and (1) ligher maintenance
and contracted services costs incurred in addressing mll downtume
and processing issues In addition, a number of measures were taken to
enhance security and onsite management 1n response to the fuel theft,
which resulted 1n increased labour-related costs

Cash costs per tonne milled increased to US$38 1n 2010 (US524

in 2009) The increase 1 costs was primanly due to the key factors
explained above and lower monthly average mulling throughput due
lo power outages and unplanned breakdowns

Capital expenditure for the year was US$29 8 mullion compared to
US$109 3 mullion 1 2009 Capttal investment 1n 2009 included project
development costs of US$101 2 million, whereas capital investment 1n
2010 was primarily focused on mining equipment and improving the
preducton plant to optimise operations

improved plant availabiity throughput and

at increasing blasting effectiveness and reducing
wall damage. We intend to continue the expansion
of our muining flect 1in 201§ 30 as to continue the
acceleration of stage two nmining in the open pit

Security
We implemented a number of measures to
maximise site secunky ‘We have enhanced secunty

penmeter fenaing and surveillance equipment and
we implemented 2 number of new secunty checks
and procedures We also increased secuny presence
both onsite and around the site penmeter and 1n
surrounding communities

We began to see the positive tmpact of acttons
undertaken 1n the fourth quarter, 1n terms of

recoveries (Overall, we beheve that Burwag 1s
now better positoned to deliver on its long-term
objectives and targets as a result of the actions that
we have undertaken
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Operating review continued

North Mara - Exceeding expectations
Mine profile

The North Mara gold mine 1s located in north west Tanzama in the
Tarime district of the Mara region, approximately 100 kidometres
east of Lake Victoria and 20 kilometres south of the Kenyan border
Current capacity of the mull operations 1s approximately 8,000
tonnes per day {or approximately 2 9 mullion tonnes per year)

2010 performance Progress and priorities

2010 progress
« Implemented commumty re-engagement strategy including umplementation
of stakeholder gnevance mechanisms

+ Consistently met or exceeded production targets and exceeded budgeted
gold production

» Commussioned the North Mara national power grid connection project

» Advanced the mme modermsation and upgrade plan as regards infrastructure,
facilitres, muming equipment and relevant technology

+ Acid rock drainage 1ssues addressed and approved by the lanzanian authorittes

Key mune statistics
Year ended 31 December
2010 2009 % vamance 2011 pnionties
Tonnes mined' (Kt) 20,106 15888  27% « Continue to build on engagement with local communities
Ore tannes mined {K1) 2624 4933 (47%) « Advance the North Mara Underground feasibility study
Waste (Kt) 17,482 10955 60% + Advance the plant upgrade project to focus on enhanced recovery
Ore mulled (Kt) 2860 2605 10% and the Detox Plant
Head grade (g/t) 28 32 (12%) « Commussion water treatment plant
Mull recovery (%) 829% 797% 1% « Continue to dehver on production and cost targets
Ounces produced (Oz) 212,947 212,358 0%
Ounces sold {Oz) 218,684 209495 1%
Cash cost per ounce sold (US8/0z) 472 508 (7%)
Cash cost per tonne mulled (US$/5) 36 41 {12%)
Captal expendature (USS 000) 91442 46114 98%

The statistical information above includes non IFRS measures An explanation of Non-IFRS measures 15 included on page 54
An explanahon of mune statistical information 1s included on page 168
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North Mara mine overview

The North Mara gold mine 1s located 10 north west Tanzama in the
Tanme district of the Mara region, approximately 100 kilometres east
of Lake Victona and 20 kilometres south of the Kenyan border The
site 15 accessible by vanous means, mcluding through the national road
system and an atrstrip located seven kilometres from the processing
plant The annual average tempcrature ranges between 16 and 29°C
Average annual rainfall for the region 1s 1,300mm

The North Mara mine consists of four open pit deposits Nyabirama,
Gokona and Nyabigena and development potential at Komarera

There are also a process plant, waste rock dumps, a tashngs containment
pond and other associated factities As at 3F December 2010, a total

of 1,753 individuals were employed at North Mara, consisting of 829
Group employees and 924 contracted personnel

The North Mara gold deposits are situated in the Mara Musoma
greenstone belt, and there are several types of gold mineralisation,
mcluding shear-zone-related quartz vewn and disseminated gold North
Mara’s life-of-mune 15 estimated to be approximately ten years based on
its proven and probable gold reserves of 2,836,000 ounces

Operating performance

North Mara performed 1n line with expectations and showed stable
production results

The mune’s gold production for the year was 212,947 ounces, remaing
flat when compared to the prior year figure of 212,358 ounces, where
lower mine production was offset by strong mill performance The
decrease 1n ore tonnes mined was a result of our continued focus on
stripping at Gokona, which was offset by increased ore tonnes mined
from Nyabirama The 2010 grade of 2 8 g/t compared negatively 10

the 2009 grade of 3 2 g/t This was the result of processing a higher
proportion of lower-grade stockpiled ore in the second half of 2010 to
supplement lower production from the Nyabirama and Nyabigena open
pits The processing plant’s throughput of 2,860 Kt was 10% higher than
the previous year owing to ligh mull uptime and a favourable ore blend

Gold ounces sold for the year were 218,684, 3% higher than the
production of 212,947 cunces and 4% higher than the previous year's
ounces sold of 209,495 ounces The increase 1n sales ounces was mainly
due to the sale of ounces on hand at the end of the previous year

Cash costs for the year were US$472 per ounce sold compared 1o
US$508 1n the pror year peniod The decrease was primarily driven by
lower admimistrative expenditure, cost savings achieved 1n the energy,
consumables and maintenance areas and the capitalisation of Gokona
stripping costs

Cash costs per tonne milled decreased to US$36 1n 2010 {US$41 1n
2009} The decrease was pnimanly due to improved mill productmty,
processing and admumistrative costs savings

Capatal expendrture for the year totalled US$91 4 rmillon, 98% higher
than the US$46 1 mullion 1n the prior year Key capital expenditure
driving the increase included capitahsed waste stripping mainly relating
to the Gokona stage two push back (US$49 8 milhion) and capitalised
exploration expenditure {US$8 1 mullion) to define the Gokona Deeps
underground project
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Operating review continued

Tulawaka - Focused on extension
Mine profile

The Tulawaka gold mine is located 1n north west Tanzama in
Biharamulo district of the Kagera region and borders the Bukombe
district of the Shinyanga region, south west of Lake Victoria near the
north west border with Rwanda Current operating capacity of the
mill operations 1s approximately 1,320 tonnes per day

2010 performance Progress and priorities

2010 progress

s Surface and underground exploration continued to deliver exciting results

+ The appaintment of a new management team to re cnergise the mine personnel
« Imtial mne-life extension to the second quarter of 2012

« Site security and controls enhanced to ensure ongong stability for operations

Key mune statistics 2011 prionties

(reflected a5 70%) Year ended 31 December = Evaluate additional expansion opportumties through underground exploration
M0 2005 % vamnce 10 further extend the hfe of e

Underground ore tonmes horsted (KD) 103 5 4% + Develop a second access portal to enhance ventilation and ore hauling abihity

Ore mulled (K1) 340 n2 9% « Open West P1t Extension to supplement production for six months and meet 2011

Head grade (g/t) a1 70 (a1%) production targets

Mill recovery (%) 92%  s11%  {(1%) + Obtain re-certification from the Internatronal Cyamde Management Institute

QOunces produced (Oz) 42094 55926 {36%)

Qunges sold {Oz) 44,736 65389 (32%)

Cash cost per ounce sold (US$/0z) 709 413 7%

Cash cost per tonne malled (USS/t) 93 87 7%

Capital expenditure (USS'000) (100%) 15513 7884 7%

The statisical informanion above includes non IFRS measures An explanation of Nor 1FRS measures ts included on page 54
An explanation of mune statistical information 1 included on page 168
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lulawaka mine overview

The Tulawaka gold mune 13 located in north west lanzama in the
Biharamulo district of the Kagera region It borders the Bukombe
district of the Shinyanga region, south west of Lake Victoria near

the north west border with Rwanda The mine is approximatety 120
kiometres west of the Bulyanhulu mine and 1,000 kilometres from
Dar es Salaam ‘The site 15 accessible through the existing road network
The main paved hughway from the railway hne from TIsaka to Burund:
passes about 20 kilometres to the south of the mine, while the old

Dar es Salaam to Burundi laterste road crosses the property three
kilometres south of the camp Local roads connect the property to the
Geita-Bitharamulo laterite road The annual average temperature ranges
between 25° and 40°C The average annual ranfall 1s 1n the region

of 860mm

The mune consists of a completed open pit mine with an underground
access ramp located at the bottom of the pit, waste rock dumps, an ore
stockpile area and crushing plant, a processing plant as well as water,
waste disposal and anaillary facilities As at 31 December 2010, a total
of 13 mdwiduals were employed, comprising 426 Group employees
and 287 contracied personnel

Pangea Minerals Limited owns and operates the Tulawaka mine

assets However, all capital and operating costs associated with the
Tulawaka mine and net cash generated by the mine are divided on a
70 30 basis between ABG subsidiary Pangea Goldfields Inc (70%), and
MDN (30%), ABG’s joint venture partner for the mune Further detals
regarding this relationship and the related Tulawaka Agreement are
provided on page 83

‘The Tulawaka mine compnises two ore bodies, the East Zone and the
West Zone The East Zone 1s the main gold deposit The West Zone 1s
still being explored. Tulawaka’s hfe-of-mine 1s currently estimated to
take operation to the second quarter of 2012, based on 1ts proven and
probable gold reserves of 67,000 ounces

Operating performance

Tulawaka has successfully outperformed its original feasibility for

the underground operation in terms of reserve additions and ounce
production Throughout the year a key focus of the mine’s management
has been on exploration and definiion drilling to extend the mne hfe
beyond 2011 We were pleased to announce an imtial extension of the
life-of-mme as part of our preliminary results announcement and will
continue to focus on further extensions mn 2011

‘The mines attnibutable gold production for the year was 42,094
aunces compared to the 65,926 ounces achieved in 2009 Thas tower
gold preduction leve! resulted from mining lower-grade ore from
the underground pit and processing lower-grade material from the
stockpiles than 1n 2009

Gold ounces sold amounted to 44,736 for the year, 6% higher than
production and down 32% compared to 2009, reflecting the decline
in production

Cash costs for the year were US§709 per ounce sold compared to
U58413 in the pror year Thus cost increase was mainly due to the lower
production base and increased mining costs compared with 2009

The increased muung costs were driven by higher fuel, labour and
maintenance costs

Cash costs per tonne mulled increased to US$93 in 2010 (US$87 1n
2009) pnmarily as a result of the higher cost of underground mining

Caprtal expenditure for the year totalled US$15 5 million compared

to USS7 9 mullion for the previous year Notable investments included
additional mining equipment {US$4 4 rmullion), increased exploration
development (US$2 8 milhon) and the support of mine life extension
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Exploration review

Progress across the portfolio

ABG 1s committed to expanding its gold
resources, reserves and production profile
through exploration. The current platform of
operating mines benefits from a significant
resource base that underpins the Company’s hife-
of-mine plans This resource base has been built
on our exploration efforts where our average
finding cost 1s around US$15 per ounce.

Peter Spora

2010 highhights 2011 priortties
« Successful drill hole 1ntercepts at the Nyanzaga project indicate » Continuation of drill prograrmes at the Nyanzaga project
the potential to locate additional resources at the Tusker deposit (Tusker and Kilimani resource areas) in combination with

+ Exploration drilling at Tulawaka contiriued to demonstrate the testing of additional targets on the property

potential to extend the mune hfe to 2012 + Expansion of the Tulawaka Peeps Underground dnll programmes

« Announcement of initial underground indicated resource of to further extend the hfe of mine

370,000 gold ounces at 8 29 g/t beneath the planned final Gokona + Progress infill and expansion resource drilling for North Mara
and Nyabigena open pits Underground project

+ Drilling along the Gokona Corridor to test for additionat gold Testing of regional targets within the wader North Mara region for
deposits has produced encouraging mitial results new stand-alone deposits

« Expansion of near mine exploration drill programmes at Bulyanhulu.

Exploration and Project Development Pipeline
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ABG’s commutment to exploration continues to grow, and for 2011 our
exploration budget 1s agarn being increased following the additional
expenditure in 2010 For 2011, we are budgeting total exploration
expenditure, both expensed and capitalised, of US$55 nulhon This
represents a 103% mcrease on 2010

The core objectives under which these funds will be deployed m our
exploration and development activities are threefold

+ to continue to dnive our strategy of orgamc growth through near
mune exploration and resource expansion,

« to optumse our existing assets through the 1dentification and
delineation of higher-grade satellite deposits, and

« to progress regional exploration in order to evaluate new
opportunities throughout Africa, parnicularly through acquisitions

Throughout 2010, our Exploration and Technical Services teams
have principally focused on advancing our organic growth projects
mn and around each of ABG’s current Tanzaman operations, as well as
advancing important regional exploration programmes at our North
Mara and Nyanzaga projects

We are undertaking ongoing feasibihity studies at four key projects
Golden Ridge, North Mara Underground, Bulyanhulu Upper East
Zone and the Tulawaka East Zone Underground extension All four
studies have progressed in hine with our expectations Of particular
note were the ongoing feasibility studies at Golden Ridge and
Bulyanhulus Upper East Zone which progressed positively through
the year So have our efforts on the East Zone Underground extenston
at Tulawaka, where we have achieved an imtial extension of the hfe of
the mine Key achievements duning the year included the declaration
of an inttial underground resource at North Mara Although at an
earlier stage, we also reported a number of successes in the continung
developments of the drill programmes we have been carrying out at the
Nyanzaga project

Dunng 2010, ABG reviewed a number of opportunities for regional
expansion We are continuing to undertake exploration and evaluation

work n a number of ¢countrres, assessing the potential for projects

that would add value through both enhancing our growth profile and
adding strategically important geographic diversification From a
greenfield perspective, in May 2010 we completed the acquisinon of
Tusker Gold for a consideration of approximately US$63 mullion, net
of cash acquured As a result of this acquisitton, we now control 100%
of the Nyanraga project, which includes the Tusker deposit This 1s one
of the largest undeveloped gold deposits 1n Tanzamia

Overall, the positrve progression of our exploration projects and efforts
throughout the year by the Exploration and Techmical Services teams
clearty shows ABG' ability to recognise near mine opportunities

and addittonal upside opportumties across regional areas This 1s
strategically important, as 1t supports both our existing production
platform and organic growth prospects

Organic growth projects

Brownfield projects

The North Mara Underground extension

Thus project 1s focused on developmg underground resources beneath
the Gokona and Nyabigena open pits The objective 1s to bring
underground resources into production as soon as posstble, with the
ain of processing higher-grade underground ore and displacing some
of the lower-grade open pit ore in order to mncrease production levels
and at the same time extend hife-of-mune at North Mara

As announced 1n December 2010, followmg an earlier scoping study,
we have delineated and validated an initial high-grade underground
indicated resource of 370,000 ounces of gold at 8 29 g/t beneath the
planned final Gokona and Nyabigena open pits This indicates that
there 15 the potential to develop a substantial underground operation
at the Gokona and Nyabigena depaosits with an attractive grade profile
The underground feasibility study to assess the full potential of the
current resource on the Gokona-Nyabigena project 1s on schedule for
1ts targeted completion in mid-2011

Driling en Gokona Deeps
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Exploration continued

In addition, ABG's exploratton group has been completing deep
diamond dnlling in and around the current Gokona underground
resource area This dnll programme 1s amed at extending and
validating higher-grade minerahised zones Assay results for this drilling
programme have now been received for six holes Results from maost of
these holes have better delineated the extent of higher grade shoots and
the potential extension of the Gokona West high-grade shoot at depth
Based on the positive results of the imitial resource estimate and the
exploration drlhing programme we are scheduled to begin a significant
resource dnll-out programme carly in 2011 The resource drill-out 15
aimed at expanding the total underground resource to greater than

one million cunces We will also use these programmes 1o demonstrate
and validate the economic viability of the project

North Mara ~ Nyabigena East

Grade-control activities that we conducted throughout the year
wdentified opportunities to extend the Nyabigena resource area at the
eastern end of the existing open pit A reverse circulation driling
programme mitiated during the first quarter of 2010 produced good
results, highlighting the opportunity to extend mining operations 1n the
Nyabigena East Main Zone and sigmificantly close the gap between the
Nyabigena man pit and the Nyabigena East mineralisation

The results of infill programmes conducted duning the year have
led to the upgrade from ‘Inferred’ to “Indicated’ of the resource of
Nyabigena East, for which a pit has been outhned as part of the
Nyabigena operations

North Mara - Gokena Corridor

In addition to the underground targets at North Mara, we are also
undertaking sigmficant additional exploration elsewhere around the
mune, particularly along the Gokena Cornder

The Gokona Corndor extends approximately six lalometres north west
of the Gokona depaosit and approximately ten kilometres south east of
the Nyabigena deposit Fistoncally, very ttle effective driling has been
completed outside the immediate mine area. For this reason, during
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2010 we completed a reverse circulation scout drilling programme
along this corndor to test for addit:onal gold deposits Imitial results
are encouraging with several holes intersecting anomalous gold zones
(>100ppb Au} along with zones of alteration and vermng To build on
this progress and accurately assess gold deposit potential, we are now
carrymng out a significant programme of multi-element geochemuistry
on the drill samples in conjunction with the gold analysis Additional
scout dnlhing and follow-up of the 2010 scout dnlling will be ongoing
throughout 2011

‘Tulawaka East Zone Underground extension

Throughout the year, the focus of our near mine expansion programmes
at Tutawaka was on the East Zone Underground extensions The
objective of the drilling here 15 to denufy and delineate additional
high-grade gold reserves and resources below the current East Zone
underground infrastructure, with the pnmary purpose of extending
the ife of the Tulawaka mune

Our exploration dnlling continued to extend the known high-grade
mineralised shoots below the Level 7 resource we had previously
defined, indicating potential to extend the mine hfe further Overall,
our dnlling programmes indicate that existing mincrahised zones
continue to at least 150 metres below the floor of Tulawaka's now-
completed open pit We expect to continue drill programmes
throughout 2011, which will 21m to extend known high-grade zones
for a further 100-200 metres below currently defined depths In this
way, we will be able to assess the possible significant expansion of our
current resource base to add further reserves and extend the rmine life
through an exciusively underground operation

Golden Rudge

Approximately 55 kilometres north of the Buzwag operation, the
Golden Radge project represents an impertant opportunty for ABG
to exploit a higher-grade mineralisation deposit as a satellite feed to
the Buzwag: mill Findings to date indicate that 1t has the potential to
produce between 70,000 and 100,000 ounces per year from 2013/14

Tulawaka East Zone - West Pit Portal into Underground




We are actively progressing the feasibility study, which 1s scheduled
for completion by mid-2011, in furtherance of our inttial resource
declarauon ABG' exploration team completed a programme of mfill
reverse circulation drilling and metallurgical test-work diamond
drilhing during 2010 Elements of this programme confirmed the
width and tenor of mineralisation in the main zone and indicated the
potential for further exploration dnlling to target hugher-grade areas

Bulyanhulu Upper East Zone

The Butyanhulu Upper East Zone 1s approximately 2 5 kilometres east
of the main Bulyanhulu shaft and conlams approximately one million
gold ounces at 10 g/t within Reef 1 and 2 The mineralisation n the
Bulyanhulu Upper East Zone 1s included in current reserves, but it
was not scheduled for mining untd later in the mine hife However,
following review of planming models and previous feasibility studies,
we are now considering accelerating the imetable for mning the Upper
East Zone within the overall hfe of mine This would make use of an
ewsting 1 8-kilometre decline to this zone, which 15 being dewatered
and rehabilitated, as well as uulising excess milling capacity in the
process plant

We started a further feasibility study inte the Upper East Zone area
during the year We intend to complete thas study 1n the first half of
2011, allowing us 1o assess the viability of mining the reserves in the
zone earher than anucipated 1n the current life-of-mine plan

Bulyanhulu Reef 1 and 2 West

During the year, we completed reverse circulation dnlling programmes
on areas of Reef 2 West, along with Reef 1 and Reef 0b targets where
there has previously been relatively imited exploration dnilling
Favourable results from this programme warrant a second phase

of follow-up drilhing so that we can 1dentify additional near surface
resources for either open pit or underground muning We are planning
deeper drill holes targeting extensions of higher-grade zones in early
2011 from the exasting underground development at Bulyanhulu.

Greenfield projects
The Nyanzaga project

We took control of 100% of the Nyanzaga project following completon
of our acquisition of Tusker Gold in May 2010 Since then the focus
of our exploration activities has remained on further dehneating and
expanding the project’s current resources

The actions we have taken include an aggressive reverse circulation
and drarmond-core step-out and infill dnll programme on the Tusker
and Kiliman resource areas Additionaily, these dnll programmes
also commenced testing of geophysical and geochemcal targets across
the Nyanzaga project area for large-scale gold deposits and additronal
satellite opportuniues within 15 kilometres of the Tusker resource area

Tusker Gold declared an inferred resource of approximately 4.2 million
ounces for the Nyanzaga project in June 2009 Our current drill
programme aims to confirm and expand thus resource base, and 1t has
shown positive results to date Step-out and infill drilhing on the southern
strike extensions of the Tusker prospect have 1dentified wide, lugher-grade
extenstons of gold mineralisation In particular, recent mtercepts mdcate
that mineralisation on the southern extensions of the Tusker resource
area occurs doser to surface than previousty modelled, and deeper
ntersections tnchcate the potential for grade quality to increase with depih
in this area of the system In addition, results obtaned from the drill
programme are showing potential to locate additional resources on the
north end of the Tusker resource area

In 2011, cur dniling will continue to focus on extending mineralisation
on the northern, western and southern domans of the Tusker deposit,
and given the success of the drll programme to date, we wall expand
step-out dnlhng o allow accelerated follow-up of identified positive
mtersections Infill dnlling on the main resource area will commence
to upgrade the exisung mineral inventory and inferred resources

We aum to mihiate a scoping study later in 2011 as we gain a greater
understanding of the extent of the mineralisation on the Tusker and
Kilimam project areas

Dhamond rig drilhing at Tusker
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Financial review

A strong financial year

2010 performance highhghts

- Revenue up 37% to US$975 mullion

- EBITDA of U5$419 million up 68%

- Operational cash flow of US$345 mithon, up 78%

~ Final recommended draidend of US3 7 cents per share
For the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 December

2010 2009 % chanpe
Revenue' (US$'000) 975,021 711,182 37%
EBITDAZ?(US$'000) 419,167 249,456 68%
Cash generated from operating
activities (US$'000) 345,141 193,961 78%
Net profit attnbutable
to owners {US$'000) 218,103 58,577 272%
Cash cost (USS$/ounce)® 569 533 7%
Average realised gold pnce?
(US$/ounce} 1,240 974 27%
Basic earmings per share
(US cents) 532 143 272%
Dividend per share (US cents)® 53 N/A -

b Basedon restated revenue to include sales o co products, refer to pages 48 and Note 2a)
un page 107 as part of the “otes 1o the Consohdatad finanaal satements

2 Cash costs per ounce sold average reahsed gold price per ounce sotd and FBITDA are
nan IFRS finanaal performance measures wath no standard mezning under IFRS
Refer 1o Non [FRS measures on page 34 for the defimtions ol cach measure

3 Includes final recommended drvidend o L53 7 cents to be paxd in 2018
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The ABG Group achieved robust financial
results over the course of the year, with
increased sales and increases in the average
realised gold price for the full year having

a positive impact on Group earnings and
cash flow

Kevin Jenmngs

The purpose of this review 15 Lo provide a detailed analysis of the
ABG Group’s conschidated 2010 results and the main factors affecting
financial performance This section should be read in comjunction
with the financial statements and accompanying notes on pages
100-147, which have been prepared n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the Furopean
Union {1FRS)

The ABG Group achieved robust financial results over the course of
the year Increased revenue from higher sales volume and increases in
the average realised gold price for the full year have had a very positive
mmpaci on Group earmings and cash flow Overall, increased sales and
average realised gold prices resulted 1n a year-end cash position of
approximately Us$401 million Lhe U$$150 milhon undrawn revolving
credit facility, which we finalised during the latter half of the year
strengthens the Company’s financral position and prownides us waith
add:itional financial flexabdity going nto 2011 Cash costs per ounce
averaged at US$569, mainly as a result of additional expenses incurred
at BuzwagL

Revenue

Revenue for the year of 185975 0 mullion was 37% higher than the prior
year period of US$711 2 milhion after restating 2009 revenue toinclude
co-product revenue as set out below The Group generated a year on-
year sales volume increase of 40,396 ounces and benefited from higher
average realised gold prices resulting from global economic conditions
that drove market gold prices to record levels The increase m sales was
primantly due to the sale of unsold ounces on hand at the beginning of
the year in gold concentrate at Buzwagi and Bulyanhuly The average
realised gold price was US$1,240 per ounce 1n 2010 compared to
US$974 per ounce 1n 2009

Co-product revenue wtalled US$53 7 milhon for the year This
represents an wicrease of 202% from the prior year penod {US$17 8
mithon} The ramp-up of Burwag: productien of gold/copper




concentrate contributed to the increase in copper sales volumes

Fhe 2010 average realised copper price of U583 55 per pound compared
to the prior penod realised price of US$2 24 per pound assisted greatly
n the mncrease in co-product revenue For these reasons, the Group

has reclassified copper and silver as co-product revenue to reflect their
increased sigmficance as a percentage of revenue The table below
provides a reconciliation between gold and co-product revenue for 2010
and the 2009 comparative

(US$'000) 2010 2009
Gold revenue as previously stated 921,302 693,412
Pius Co-product revenue 53,719 17,770
Total revenue 975,021 711,182
Realised copper price ($ per pound sold) 355 224

Commodtty prices

Gold prices have a sgmficant impact on ABG’ operating earmings and
1y ability to generate cash flows In 2016 the price of gold reached an
all-ume hzgh, trading in a range of US$1,045 to US$1,431 per ounce
and closing at US$1,421 per ounce Market gold prices averaged
UJS§1.225 per ounce, a new annual average record and a US$253 per
ounce improvement on the US$972 per ounce average in the prior
year penod

The market price of gold has been influenced by low US dollar interest
rates, sovereign debt concerns, investment demand and the monetary
policzes put in place by the world’s most promunent central banks As

a result of the global easing of monetary policy, as well as large fiscal
deficits incurred in the US and other major developed economues,
there 15 2 possibility that both inflation and US dollar depreciation
could emerge un the coming years Gold 1s viewed as a hedge against
inflation and has histonically been inversely correlated to the US dollar
Therefore, lugher inflation and/ur depreciation i the Us dollar should
be posttive for the price of gold

Gold prices also continue to be influenced by negative long-term
trends 1n global gold mine production, the impact of central bank gold
purchases and mvestor interest in owning gold In 2010, gold sales by
central banks were not sigmificant, while investor interest led holdings
by major global ETFs to increase by ten muillton ounces in the year to
total 69 mullton ounces at the end of the peniod. Histonically, gold has
been viewed as a reliable stare of value in tumes of financial uncertainty
and inflation and as a de facto global currency Investor interest m gold
as an asset class has increased greatly as a result of this

ABG also produces copper as a co-product that is recognised 1n
revenue Copper prices rose in 2010, particularly in the second half,
trading 1n a range of US$2 74 to US$4 42 per pound The average
price for the year was US$3 42 per pound and closed the year at an
all-time hagh of US$4 42 per pound Copper’s rise during the penod
resulted from a number of factors including strong demand from
emerging markets, especially China, decreasing exchange stockpiles
and increasing 1nvestor interest tn base metals with strong forward-
looking supply/demand outlooks Copper prices should continue

to be positively influenced by factors such as demand from Asia,
global economic growth, the limited availability of scrap metal, and
production levels of mines and smelters i the future

Cost of sales

Cost of sales was US$589 0 million for the year ended 31 December
2010, representing an increase of 21% from the prior year peniod
(US$487 0 mulhon) after restating 2009 cost of sales to reclassify co-
product revenue as noted above The key operational activities that
impacted cost of sales during the year included the following (1} the
transition of Buzwagi from a project to a full-year operation and the
associated operanonal chatlenges it faced in 2010, (i) the transition
of the North Mara mine from a three-pit operation to focusing on the
investment in the stage two push back at the Gokona open pit, and {1u)
production stabihity at Bulyanhulu providing the opportunity te focus
on cost optimisation

During 2009, a significant build-up in low-grade ore stockpiles at
North Mara and Buzwagi and copper concentrate at Buzwag) increased
inventories by US863 million The unsold gold was subsequently

sold 1n 2010

Revenue-related costs such as royalties and third-party smelting and
refiming fees increased by US$15 9 million following the nising trend
in revenue and concentrate volume The increase n the thurd-party
smelting and refiming charges has been impacted by increased metal
prices and costs attributable to sales of gold and copper concentrate

at Buzwagy, when compared to no such sales in 2009 Depreciation
and amorusauon was US$109 5 mullion for the year This represents
an mcrease of 17% from the prior year period {US$93 4 million} Thus
increase 1s due to the higher capital investment base employed 1n 2010
as a result of the commercial completion of Buzwagi and the rate of
depreciation when cornpared to other older operations

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
{US$ 000) 2010 2009
Cost of sales
Direct mining expenses 437,420 418,294
Change 1n 1nventories (9,753} {62,885)
Direct cash operating costs 427,667 355,409
Third-party smelting and refining fees 20,307 13,027
Other operating costs - 2,330
Royalty expense 31,550 22911
Depreciation and amortisation 109,515 93,350
Total 589,039 487,027

The consohidated direct mining expenses totalled Us$437 4 mullwn for
the year This represents an increase of 5% from the prior year peniod
(US$418 3 mlhon) The key reasons for the increase can be attnbuted
to a full-year of operating costs at Buzwag), compared to eight months
of operating costs tn 2009, and the operational challenges 1t faced.
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Financial review continued

The difference in total direct rmrung expense for Buzwag: was US$65 6
million year-on-year A detailed breakdown of direct mining expenses
for the Group 1s shown 1nt the table below

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
{USS$ 000) 2010 2000

Direct mining expenses

Labour 139,594 126,450
Energy and fuel 81,381 62,764
Consumables 82,841 86,462
Maintenance 64,441 57,292
Contracted services 81,873 59,775
General administration costs 72,272 68,704
Capttalised direct mining costs (84,982) (43,153)
Total direct mining expenses 437,420 418,294

Bulyanhulu showed an 8% (US$12 9 milhon) improvement 1n costs
driven by improved cost management measures lowening consumable,
maintenance, and contracted services costs, which were parually offset
by increased labour cests from increased head count and inflationary
mcreases in remuneration Direct mining costs at North Mara remained
flat versus 2009 and significant resources were focused on increased
capitahsed stripping of the Gokona stage two push back. Tulawaka costs
increased by 23% (US$5 7 mullion) due to the cost of labour, energy,
maintenance and administration costs required to mine and process
ore at a lower grade Buzwag costs increased by 71%, due to the cost

of operating the mune on a full year basis as opposed to eight months

in 2009 and the costs incurred i addressing production challenges
experienced during the year In addition, the lugher energy costs caused
by the onsite fuel theft, and increased cost pressure from additional
operational rtiatives taken to improve performance resulted in higher
labour, mantenance, consumables and administration expenditure

Indiidual cost components comprise

« Labour costs have been impacted by mcreased head count at Buzwag:
and Bulyanhulu and inflationary pressure in remuneration to attract
and retain personnel

+ Energy and dresel fuel expenses account for all electnicity, diesel
fuel, and oil/lubrscant expenditures On a comparable basis Buzwag:
drove costs higher partly due to increased nulling activity and the
consequence of the fuel theft The realised WTI crude ol cost per
barrel, the key input of diesel, rose from an average of US$62 to
US$80 1 2010 contributing to higher energy costs Thus increase
in diesel costs was partially offsct by North Mara converung from
seif-generation of electricity to drawing from the national power grid
which resulted in lower costs and less exposure to global fuel prices

« Consumable costs on a comparable basis have remained 1n line
with 2009 with Butyanhulu driving cost savings through better cost
management partly offset by bugher costs at Buzwag:
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» Maintenance costs on a comparable basis were higher, pnmanly
driven by plant breakdowns and a full year of operation at BuzwagL
In additron, Tulawaka costs were lugh due 1o mining equipment
fasdure and its transition to in-house maintenance

+ Contractor services consist mainly of maintenance and repair
contractors (MARC’) and dnlhing/geology services at Buzwagi and
North Mara. MARC costs at Buzwagi increased due to the increase
n size and age of the miming fleet and a full year of operation

+ General and admumstrative costs ncreased modestly compared to
2009 as a result of additional security costs at Burwagt

+ Capitalised direct muning costs consisted of capitalised operating
costs to reflect deferred stripping at North Mara, underground mine
development at Bulyanhulu and, toa lesser extent, Tulawaka

Other operating costs 1n the previous year related to net realisable value
write-downs relating to supphes inventory

Cash costs

Cash costs for 2010 were US$569 per ounce sold, a 7% increase over
2009’ cash cost per ounce sold (US$533) The increase can be explained
by lower-than-expected production levels at Buzwagi, combined with
increased costs incurred in dealing with operating challenges at the
mune parbally offset by improved co-product sales, now classified as
revenue, which we deduct from cash costs as set out on page 54 Cash
costs at Buzwagi for the year were US$685 per ounce sold, compared
to the previous year's US$422 Both North Mara and Bulyanhulu
performed m line with expectations from a cash costs perspective

A lower production base at Tulawaka resulted 1n a 72% mncrease 1n
cash costs per ounce sold at the mine, when compared to 2009

The table below provides a reconciliation between cost of sales and cash
costs to calculate the cash cost per ounce sold

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
(USS 000) except ounces and per ounce cost 2010 2009

Total cost of sales 589,039 487,027

Deduct By-product revenue - -

Deduct Depreciation and amortisation (109,515) (93,350)
Deduct Co-product revenue (53,719) (17,770)
Total cash costs 425,805 375,907
Total ounces sold’ 743,256 711,711
Consohdated cash cost per ounce 573 528
Equity ounce adjustment? (4) 5
Attributable cash cost per ounce 569 533

1 Reflects F00% of ounces sold,
2 Reflects the adp At for non ¢ lling interests at Tukawaka




Corporate administration costs

Corporate admumstration costs totalled US$35 4 mullion for the

year ended 31 December 2010 This equated to a 6% decrease from
the prior year peniod of US$37 8 million Corporate adminustration
comprised the expenses associated with mamntzining the Dar es
Salaam, Johannesburg and London offices Costs include salartes, office
rent, consulting, legal, audit fees and investor relations expenses The
decrease was predominantly driven by a saving 1n corporate labour
costs due to the reorgansation exercise completed during the second
half of 2009 with the transition from Dar es Salaam to Johannesburg
Thas was largely offset by the increased costs to run a publicly listed
company and costs of a London office which was not fully functional
until rmd 2010

Exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and evaluation costs are incurred to advance the
exploration at our greenfield projects For 2010, US$14 9 mullion was
incurred, approximately 68% higher than the US$8 9 million incurred
1n the same period n 2009 Key focus for the year was exploration
and step-out drilling at Nyanzaga of US$7 2 mullion, US$1 3 mulhion
at Golden Ridge to perform metallurgical samphing and resource
modelling, and US$3 6 mullion at Iulawaka to test satellite open pit
opportumties The increased expenditure supports the current focus
on growth projects around existing sites, some of which are close to
entering the feasibility stage

Where 1t 15 probable that resources will be converted mte reserves, the
expenditure 1s capitalised Dunng 2010 an amount of US$12 2 milhion
of exploration costs was capitahised compared to US$2 8 million in 2009

Other charges

Other charges amounted to US$26 0 milhon for the year, 22% up from
the 2009 amount of US$21 4 milhon Other charges consist mostly of
one-off costs including foreign exchange gains and losses (previously
deemed part of corporate admunistration}, gains and losses on
disposals, social development costs, IPO hsting costs, asset write-downs
and provision movements The ma:n contnbutors to the expense are
the following (1) foreign exchange losses of US$7 9 mullion (US$107
mulhon 1n 2009) from the continued devaluation of the Tanzaman
shilling against the US dollar impairing the TZS denominated assets
on the balance sheet, (1) US$3 5 mullion spent during the year on
corporate social programmes, compared to US$1 0 mullion 1n 2009,
(11} ABG’s entry mnto zero cost collar contracts as part of a programme
to protect 1t against copper market volatihties, which resulted in an
unrealised mark-to-market revaluation loss of US$3 7 mudhion at year
end, and (1v) IPO transaction costs of US$2 6 mithon

Other costs incurred related to the reversal of a Buzwag; fuel levy
claim associated with the fuel theft of U552 5 milhon, the net provision
to account for the discounting impact of indirect tax recervables of
U586 8 mullion (US$6 9 muilhion in 2009) and adjustments to existing
indirect tax provisions which were offset with an insurance dlam
recerved 1n respect of 2 claim settled in relation to an excavator
destroyed 1n 2009

Finance expense and income

The finance expense decreased to US$1 8 mullion for the year, compared
to US$6 1 mullion in 2009 This decrease was prumanly a result of the
repayment of the external debt facility at North Mara dunng the first
half of 2009 Finance expense for 2010 pnmantly relates to the interest
expense associated with discounuing of the environmental reclamation
habihities as well as the mitial fee payable for the US$150 mulhion crednt
facihty that was completed dunng November 2010 The inttial fees to
complete the transaction such as the participation fee and related legal
costs will be amortised over the 24-month term of the facility ABG will
incur a monthly commitment fee equal to 40% of the interest margin
above LIBOR as negotiated in the agreement Currently, ABG has no
external debt.

Finance income relates predominantly to interest charged on
non-current receivables and nterest received on cash balances

Taxation expense

The taxation expense increased to US$86 5 rmllion for the year,
compared to US$84 4 million in 2009 The 2010 expense consists

of deferred tax of 5386 2 milhon and corporate taxes of US30 3
mulhon which were mcurred 1n 2010 The higher tax expense relates
to the increased taxable income for 2010, which was generated mainly
from North Mara and Bulyanhulu as a result of improved margins
from higher gold prices The effective tax rate in 2010 amounted to
28% compared to 56% in 2009 The 2009 reconaliation includes an
amount of US$36 9 million relating to an increase in the amount of
unrecognised tax benefits carned forward

Disposals and acquisitions
Acqusition of Tusker Gold

On 27 Aprd 2010, ABG, through BUK Holdco Lumited, one of its
immediate subsidiaries, acquired Tusker Gold by way of a takeover offer
for a total aggregate purchase price of US$74 million Tusker Gold held
4 49% wnterest in the Nyanzaga project, with the ABG Group owning
the remanng 51% ABG now owns 100% of the Nyanzaga project
Further details on this project are provided i the Exploration review
and further details on the Tusker Gold acquisition are provided 1n note
22 1o the financial statements

Net profit for the penod

As a result of the factors discussed above, net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was US$222 6 million This represents an
mcrease of 237% from the prior year penod (US$66 0 million) The
key drivers were increased revenue as a result of a continued positive
gold price environment combined with higher sales ounces This

was partially offset by increased costs of sales which were primanly
due to the additional cost base from a full year of production at
Buzwag), increased direct mning expenditure across all sites, the
increased taxation expense, and increased exploration and evaluation
expenditure mcurred
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Financial review continued

Net profit attributable to non-controlling interest

The net profit attributable to the non-controlling interest for the

year ended 31 December 2010 was US$4 5 milhion This represents

a decrease of 39% on 2009 (US5$7 4 milhon), due to lower production
and increased exploration activity at the Tulawaka operation
EBITDA

EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2010 increased by 68% to
US$419 2 milion compared to the prior year period (US$249 5 milhion}
as a result of improved gold prices along with increased ounces sold
supported further by record co-product revenue This was partly offset
by an increase in direct muning cost base predorminantly driven by
Buzwag as 1t only reflected exght menths’ direct mirung costs in the
prior year period, increased direct mrnung costs across some sites as well
as increased revenue related costs such as royalties, smelung, refining
and transport costs Note that EBITDA includes the impact of other
charges totalling US$26 0 milion which compnise mostly one-off type
expenditure A reconciliation between net profit for the pertod and
EBITDA 1s presented below

Far the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December

(US5000) 2010 2009
Net profit for the perod 222,606 66,017
Plus income tax expense 86,471 84,388
Plus depreciation and amortisation 109,515 93,350
Plus finance expense 1,777 6,062
Less finance mncome (1,202) (361)
EBITDA 419,167 249,456

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 were
1S53 2 cents showing an increase of 272% from the prior year pertod
of US14 3 cents The increase has been dniven by net profit for the year
The prior year basic carnings per share comparative was calculated
using the 2010 number of average weighted shares as ABG was not
incorporated until January 2010 and thus had no share capital in 2009
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Cash flow
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
{US$ "000) 2010 20609
Cash flow from operating activities 345,141 193,961
Cash used 1n investing activities (275,555)  (248,448)
Cash prownded by financing activities 261,978 71,042
Increase 1n cash 331,564 16,555
Foreign exchange difference on cash and
cash equivalents (278) (136}
Opemng cash balance 69,726 53,307
Closing cash balance 401,012 69,726

Cash flow from operatmg activities was US$345 1 mullion for the

year, an increase of US$151 1 mallion on the prior year (US$194 0
milhon) The increase primanly related to mercased LBITDA which
was partially offset by working capital movements EBITDA has
predominantly been driven by increased revenue due to both price

and sales volume increases Working capital was adversely impacted by
the outflow associated with the increase 1 indirect tax recewvable and
prepayments of US$48 8 mullion, a decrease 11 trade and other payables
of US$28 5 million, mvestment 1n ore mventory of US$16 0 million
and supphies inventory of US89 6 million which was i part offset

by a reduction 1n gold sales recervables and fimshed gold due to the
introduction of quarterly counterparty advance settlement and backlog
concentrate sold during the year

Throughout 2010, ABG has been actively involved n discussions with
the Tanzamian government and the Tanzanian Revenue Authority to
resolve the status of fuel exaise levies and VAT refunds for its operations
These 1ssues have been cutstanding for some time and were further
complicated by amendments made to certain tax laws which were
passed 1 2009 The amendments conflicted with certain provisions
contamed 11 our existing MDAs which guarantee the fiscal stability

of our operations We are pleased to report that the Government has
adopted legislation to reverse the amendments, which should allow for
the fiscal and tax terms of our MDAs to be honoured Thus represents a
sigmuficant step 1n supporting the stability of the legal framework for the
runng industry in Tanzama As at 31 December 2010, the discounted
outstanding amounts due to us were approxumately US$121 million We
are 1n discusstons with the authorities to agree terms for the repayment
of these amounts, which s likely to be by way of tax offsets

Cash flow used in investing activities equalled US$275 6 mallion for

the year Thas represents an imcrease of 1% {rom the prior year of
1788248 5 mullion The increase includes net cash of US$63 1 million
used for the acquusition of Tusker Gold, taking mnto account the cash n
that business on the purchase date, as well as US$9 7 million in setthng
outstanding Tusker Gold stock options Total capital expenditure for
the year of US$224 4 mullion increased shghtly from the prior year
figure of US$223 3 rmlhion Key projects include the Bulyanhuly
Underground development, Buzwag mining equpment and additional
North Mara processing and mining projects, North Mara deferred stnp
of US$51 1 mullion, as well as US512 2 mullion relating to capitalised




exploration The US$248 5 mullion capital spent in 2009 was prrmarily
dniven by US$101 2 mullion spent on the construction of Buzwag

Total cash capital decreased from the prior year and amounted to
US5196 4 mullion for 2010 (US$207 4 mullion for 2009) and reflects
adjustments made for non-cash reclamation additions

A breakdown of mvested capital activities for the year 1s provided below

For the Ferthe

year ended year ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

(USS 000} 2010 2009
Sustaining capitat (133,312) (95,700)
Expanstonary capital {63,131) (111,668)
Total cash capital (196,443) (207,368)
Tusker acquistion’ (72,805) -
Non-current agset movement? (6,307) (41,080}
Cash used 1n investing activities (275,555} (248,448}

1 The Tusker Gold acquisition includes the acquisition of the subsidiary net of cash for
US$63 | million and the Tusker Gold stock options settled for US$9 7 million 1n total,

2 Non current asset movernent refates to the mvestment in the powerlme and land
acquisitions reflected as prepaid operating leases Tanzania government recervables,
willage housing proect, and other items, Note that for 2010 the long term indrect 1ax
movement has been reflected as part of working capital in the cash flow from operational
actovanes section which amounted to US$36 7 million US$26 5 million was classified in
2009 1n the non current asset movement as part of the cash flow fram tnvesung actvities

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended 31 December
2010 of US$262 0 mulhion increased 268% from the prior year of
US$71 ¢ mullion The increase primanly relates to ABGs IPO and 15
further supported by the partial exercise of the overallotment option
In total the IPQ and the overatlotment option proceeds resulted in
U5$865 million after deduction of transaction costs This was in part
olTset by the payment of a spectal dividend and the repayment of miter-
group loans to other members of Barrick Group as part of the Pre-1PC
Reorganmisation The inflow 1n 2009 was predorminantly funded by
Barrick to support the construction costs assoctated with Buzwagi and
repayment of external debt at North Mara as well as distnbutions paid
to non-controlling interests at Tulawaka. An intennm dividend of US$6 6
mullion was paid during Q3 of this year

At 31 December 2010 ABG had cash and cash equivalents of
US§5401 0 mihon

Credut facility

On 24 November 2010, ABG and its wholly owned subsidiary BarbCo
One Ltd entered nto a credit agreement with a syndicate of commercial
banks, for the provision of a revolving credit faclity in a maximum
aggregate amount of U$$150 million The facility has been pronded
to service the general corporate needs of the ABG Group and to fund
potential acqusitions All provisions contained in the credit facility
documentation have been negotiated on normal commercial and
customary terms for such finance arrangements The term of the
facibty 1s 24 months and when drawn the spread over LIBOR will

be 350 basis pownts No amounts were drawn down on the facility at

31 December 2010

Debt as at 31 December 2010 was zero and decreased substantially

from US$1 4 bllton for the prior year, which all related to inter-group
borrowings A portion of the debt was repaid through proceeds generated
from the [PO while a large portion was converted into equuty through
the Pre-1PO Reorgamsation

Dividend

An intenm dividend of USI1 6 cents per share was pad to sharcholders
on 27 September 2010 The Directors recommend the payment of a
final diadend of US3 7 cents per share, subject to the shareholders
approving this recommendation at the AGM

Financial posttion

Goodwill and intangible assets ncreased from US$156 4 million n
2009 to US5258 5 million 1n 2010 The increase related to acquired
exploration and evaluation properties of US$80 1 mullion as well as
goodwill of US$22 0 mullion relating to the acquisition of Tusker

The net book value of property, plant and equpment mncreased from
USS1 5 billion 1n 2009 to US$) 6 billion 1n 2010 ‘The man capital
expenditure drivers have been explained 1n the cash flow used 1n
nvesung activities section above, and have been offset by deprecration
charges of US$107 1 milion

‘Total indirect tax recewvables, net of a discount provision applied to
the non-current portion, mereased from US$77 8 mudhion in 2009 1o
US5121 2 mulhon 1n 2010 Throughout 2010 ABG has been acuively
involved i discussions with the Tanzaman Government and the
Tanzaman Revenue Authority to recover the fuel excise levies and
the VAT refunds for its operations, which 1s likely to be by way of
tax offsets

The net deferred tax position decreased from a net deferred tax assct
of US393 3 million in 2009 to a net deferred tax lrabihity of US$14 9
milon This was driven by the taxable income generated during
2010 Detauls of the deferred tax assets and habilities are contatned
withm Note 20 “Deferred tax assets and liabilitres™ to the 2009
financial staterments

Net assets attnibutable to owners of the parent increased by US$1 9
billion to US$2 5 bithion at 31 December 2010 The increase reflects the
net proceeds from the IPO including the exeraise of the overallotment
option of US$865 4 mulion net of transaction costs, the conversion

of certan related party borrowings into equuty as part of the pre-1IPO
reorgarusation of US$1 0 billion as well as the current year profit
atuributable to owners of the parent of US$218 1 muillion This was offset
by the payment of a special dvidend as part of the IPO reorganisation
of US$253 0 mullion, the repayment of intergroup borrowings to other
members of the Barrick Group and payment of an interim dividend of
US$6 6 mulhon to shareholders during 2010

Debt decreased from US$1 4 bilbon in 2009 to zero in 2010 The 2009
batance all related to related party borrowings from other entities n
the Barrick Group US$575 1 million of the debt was repaxd through
proceeds generated from the PO whale the remaining portion was
converted nto equity through the Pre-1PO Reorgarusation
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Financal review continued

Liquecity and Caputal sk management

Details of our Liquidity and Capital risk management are contained
withm Note 29 “Fmancial Risk Management” to the 2010 consel:dated
financial statements

Treasury management and financial instruments

Details of our treasury management are contained within Note
29 “Financial Risk Management™ to the 2010 consolidated
financial statements

Details of our financial instruments are contained within Note
28 “Dernvative financial instruments” to the 2010 consolhdated
financial statements

Post balance sheet events

No events have occurred since the balance sheet date which wall have
a sigmificant impact on future performance

Significant judgements in applying accounting policies and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

Many of the amounts included 1n the Consohidated finanaial statements
require management to make judgemnents and/or esimates These
judgements and esttmates are continuously evaluated and are based
on management’s experience and best knowledge of the relevant facts
and circumstances, but actual results may differ from the amounts
included in the conschdated financial information included 1 this
report Information about such judgements and estimation 1s included
in the accounting policies and/or notes to the Consolhidated financial
statements, and the key areas are summarised below

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty that
have the most sigmficant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the
Consolidated financtal statements include

«» Estimates of the quantuities of proven and probable gold reserves,
+ The capitahsation of waste stripping costs,
« The capntahsation of exploration and evaluation expenditures,

+ Review of goodwill, tangible and intangible assets carrying value,
the determunation of whether these assets are imparred and the
measurement of impairment charges or reversals,

« The esimated fair values of cash generating umts for i/mpairment
tests, including estimates of future costs to produce proven and
probable reserves, future commodaty prices, foreign exchange rates
and discount rates,

« The estimated useful hives of tangible and long-hved assets and the
measurement of depreciation expense;

« Recogmtion of a proviston for environmental rehabilitation and the
esumation of the rehabibitation costs and timing of expenditure;

« Whether to recogmse a hability for loss contingencies and the
amount of any such provision,

+ Whether to recogmise a provision for accounts recervable and the
impact of discounting the non-current element,
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» Recognition of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for
uncertain tax positions, the measurement of iIncome tax expense
and indirect taxes, and

+ Deterrmination of fair value of denvative instruments

Gaing concern statement

The ABG Groug’s business activities, together wath factors hkely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out 1n the
Overview and Performance secttons of this report. The financial position
of the ABG Group, its cash flows, iquudity position and borrowing
facilities are descnibed i the preceding paragraphs of thss financial
review [n addition, Notes 28 and 29 to the financial statements include
the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its
financial nsk management objectives, details of 1ts financial instruments
and hedging activities and 1ts exposure to credit nisk and hquidity nsk

In assessing the ABG Group's going concern status the Directors have
taken into account the above factors, including the financial posiuon
of the ABG Group and n particular its sigmuficant cash position, the
current gold and copper price and market expectations for the same
n the medium term, and the ABG Group's capital expenditure and
financing plans

After making appropnate enquines, the Directors consider that ABG
and the ABG Group as a whole has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that it 1s appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in prepaning the financial statements

Non-IFRS Measures

ABG has wlentified certain measures n this report that are not
measures defined under IFRS Non-1FRS financial measures disclosed
by management are provided as additional information to investors
1 order to provide them with an alternative methed for assessing
ABGS finanaial condition and operating results These measures are
not in accerdance with, or a substitute for, TERS, and may be different
from or tnconsistent wath non-IFRS financial measures used by other
companies These measures are explained further below

Average reahsed gold price per ounce sold 1s a non-1FRS financial
measure which excludes from gold revenue

« Unrealised gains and losses on non hedge dervative contracts

+ Unrealised mark to market gains and losses on provisional pricing
from copper and gold sales contracts, and

«+ Export duties

Cash costs per ounce sold 1s a non-IFRS financial measure Cash costs
include all costs absorbed into inventory, as well as royalties, by-product
credits, and production taxes, and exclude capitahised production
stripping costs, inventory purchase accountng adjustments, unrealised
gans/losses from non-hedge currency and commaodity contracts,
depreciation and amortisation and social development costs Cash

cost 15 further adjusted by deducting co-product revenue Thus reflects

a change 1n the cash cost measurement which follows the decision by
management to present the sale of copper and silver as co-product
revenue and part of total revenue




The presentation of these statistics in this manner allows ABG to
momntor and manage those factors that impact production costs on

a monthly basis ABG calculates cash costs based on 1ts equity mnterest
mn production from its mines Cash costs per ounce sold are calculated
by dividing the aggregate of these costs by gold ounces sold Cash costs
and cash costs per ounce sold are calculated on a consistent basis for
the periods presented Refer to page 50 as part of the financial review
section for a reconciliation of cost of sales to cash costs

EBITDA 15 a non-IFRS financtal measure ABG calculates EBITDA
as net profit or loss for the penod excluding

+ Income tax expense,

+ Finance expense;

« Finance income;

+» Depreciation and amortisation, and
+ Goodwill impairment charges

EBII DA 15 intended to provide additional information to investors and
analysts It does not have any standardised mearung prescribed by IFRS
and should not be considered 1n 1s0lation or as a substitute for measures
of performance prepared 1n accordance with IFRS EBITDA excludes
the impact of cash costs of financing activities and taxes, and the effects
of changes in operating working capital balances, and therefore 15 not
necessanly indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations
as determuned under IFRS Other companies may calculate EBITDA
differently Refer to page 52 as part of the financial review section for

a reconcihiation of net profit to EBITDA

EBIT 15 a non-IFRS financial measure and reflects EBITDA adjusted
for depreciation and amortisation and goodwill impatrment charges

Amorutsation and other cost per ounce sold 15 a non-1FRS financial
measure Amortisation and other costs mnclude amortisation and
depreciation expenses and the inventory purchase accounting
adjustments at ABG’s producing mmnes ABG calculates amortisation
and other costs based on its equity interest i production from its
munes Amortisation and other costs per ounce sold 1s calculated

by dividing the aggregate of these costs by ounces of gold sold
Amortisation and other cost per ounce sold are calculated on a
consistent basis for the periods presented.

Cash cost per tonne milled s a non-TFRS financial measure Cash costs
include all costs absorbed 1nto inventory, as well as royalties, by-product
credits, and production taxes, and exclude capitahsed production
stnpping costs, ventory purchase accounting adjustments, unreahsed
gans/losses from non-hedge currency and commodity contracts,
depreciation and amortisation and social development costs Cash

cost 15 calculated net of co-product revenue, and s measured on a co-
product basis ABG calculates cash costs based on its equity interest 1n
production from its mines Cash costs per tonne muilled are calcutated
by dinding the aggregate of these costs by total tonnes mlled

Operating cash flow per share 1s a non-IFRS financial measure and 15
calculated by dividing Net cash generated by operating activities by the
weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 1n 1ssue
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Corporate responsibility

Acting responsibly

At ABG we believe 1t 1s critical to establish mutually beneficial relationships with
the commumties in which we operate Maintaining our social licence to operate
15 central to our ethos of responsible mining [t will help to ensure a stable
operating environment for our existing assets and allow our Exploration team

access to prospective gr ound

We believe that our people are our most valuable asset, and our
objective 1s to become the employer of choice We respect, value and
support our people, and we are firm believers in investing 1n them to

improve their skills and increase their job satisfaction We are commutted

to providing the training and development opportunities they need to
advance n their careers and deliver on our business objectives

Guided by our corporate vision that ‘everyone goes home safe and
healthy every day, safety 1s our most important consrderation We
beheve that work-related injunes or ilnesses are unacceptable, and
have set a zero incidence goal for the Company Over the past year, we
have implemented vanious health and safety imtiatives to promote the
achieverment of supentor safety performance among ABG workers by
providing them with the skills and knowledge to perform their tasks
mn a safe and relwable way

At ABG, we also strive to meet high environmental standards

while continuously pursuing new avenues and opportunitzes for
improvement We adhere to Tanzania’s environmental laws and
mcorporate mternational best practice into our actvities This 15 all
part of our commtment to reviewing and incorporating external best
practice nto our own envirorunental policies and procedures

Communmty relations

ABG 15 commutted to operating 1n a socially responsible way over the
entire life-cycle of our munes, to ensure that local communities have
the opportumty to share in the benefits of our actnvaties

The most important ways in which we do this are by

= 1dentifying and mitigating any potential negative impacts of minng,

» engaging 1n an open and meamingful manner and respecting
stakeholders’ prionties and concerns,

» maxumsing commumnity members’ opportunities to benefit from
employment and local procurement, and

developing programmes to assist local communities to pursue their
own long-term socio-economic priorities

Working closely with
communities in Tanzania

Over the course of 2010, positive developments were evident 1n ail
of these areas, and there has been a marked improvement in the
relationships between our Company and our local stakeholders,
particularly at North Mara where a number of legacy 1ssues are being
proacuvely addressed

Social management expertise

Operaung 1n rural areas of Tanzama necessitates dealing with certain
mtrinsic challenges, with imited infrastructure and social services in
place, and many members of the communities in which we operate
faced with the daly challenges of poverty That the country’s mining
sector 15 1n tts relative infancy means that our host communities have
high expectanons of the economic benefits that an indwndual private-
sector organisation can deliver

These challenges demand a strong understanding of the complexities
of the operating environment 1n Tanzama Consequently, ABG has

instituted an energetic and commutted Commumnity Relations team of 50
full-time employees with expertise 1n social management During 2010
Community Relations staffing levels were increased at three of our four

mune sites and at North Mara internationally recognised consultancies
continue to support the mine’s community relatzons and resettlement
programmes Recogmising ABG's focus on future expansion, during
2010 the Commumity Relatrons function haised more closely with cur
Exploration and Projects personnel to focus on laying the foundations
for effective community relations at the earhest stage possible

In addition to the work this teamn carnes out, we also enable effective
social management through

* OUr SeNIOT Management team’s extensive experience of operating
1n Africa,

+ a culture where 1t 15 the responsibility of every employee to ‘behave
hike an owner’ and act as a positive ambassador for the Company in
our host communuties,

« close collaboration with other disciplines such as environment,
security, human resources and health and safety, and

« the development of a community relations management system that
will combine all our existing requrements, gurdelines and tools into
a single streamlined approach

Commumty Relations a5 a function not only deals
with how we manage potental social impacts
that miming creates but also how we enhance

Developing positive commumity relations 1s a core opportunities and benefits for the communities
part of the way ABG does business, not only as a where we live and work.

corporate responstbility but as a vital requrement

for our continued operational success For me,
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Highlights from 2010 and our targets for 2011

Focus Achievements in 2010 Targets for 2011

Employees Improvements made to ABGs management team Continue development of ABG as an employer of chowce
throughout the year and successful secondment and continue improvement of employee skelisets
programme to address personnel capacty 1ssues faced
at Buzwagi

Health and Safety All of ABG's operations achieved one mithon working Implementation of an ABG health and safety plan

hours wrthout lost time injuries in 2010

that will emphasise developing leadership skalls in
line management, common OHS standards, and
contintued devefopment of Tanzaruan employees
n the OHS profession

Environment

Improvernents in hydro carbon management and
changes 1n the type of energy used at our operations have
resulted i stgrmficant energy efficiencies and reduction
m carbon dioxide emussions

Continued inprovement 1n energy efficiency and
further reduction 1n carbon dioxide ermissions

Community relations

The estabhishment of a formal site grievance mechamsm
This allows us to address concerns raised by stakeholders
1n an appropnate and constructive manner

Devote additional resources to community relations
at exploration and development projects

Externally, we continue to develop our commumity relations practices
through engaging with key organisations including

« the International Council on Mining & Metals,

+ the World Bank, and

« the Global Business Coalition on HIV/AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malana.

In 2011, we expect to have the opportunsty to improve our performance
by learning from the findings of a commumty benefit study conducted
1n 2010 by the Tanzanmian Mumstry of Energy and Minerals and the
World Bank The study assesses the impact of mming operations in
Tanzama, and features our mines at Bulyanhulu and Buzwag:

Stakeholder engagement

We are commutted to tnclusive and transparent community engagement
1 order to build and mamtain trust with our host commumties and to
ensure that our activities are informed by their perspectives, concerns
and pnonties This process involves 1dentifying stakeholders, engaging
in disclosure and consultation processes and operating appropnate

and effective feedback mechanisms We give specific consideration to
inclusmty and gender-sensitivity in all our activities

Thus calls for effective collaboration and engagement
with key stakeholders In my role, I ook at how

we can form partnerships to delver sustamnable
community development initiatives to enhance
health, education, water and samtation provision
Tri-partite partnerships involve the commurty,
government authonties and development partners

for success

1n order to bring together the key ingredients

We maintain an ongoing dialogue with individuals, community leaders,
government representatives and non-governmental organisations
Furthermore, we have

+ established a formal grievance procedure which allows local
stakeholders to have any complaints investigated and resolved,

= tramed and employed local community members to act as village
hiaison officers providing a two-way conduit of informatton
and feedback,

« created haison centres within the communities around three of our
mines to ensure that all community members have easy access to
information about mine actvities, and

« used sports programmes to build local relationshups and convey key
messages on 1ssues such as pubhc health

the health chzllenges facing our host communites
and ensure that we are focusing our public health
wnihiatrves appropnately

Dunng 2010 1 began leading ABG's workstream

to conduct Health Impact Assessments around all
our operations and projects Workang together with
the government these studies will help us map out

Stephen Kisakye, ABG Commumty
Health and Development Coordinator
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Corporate responsibility continued

Social impact rdentification and mitigatron

Idennfying and mitigating any potential negative impacts of our
operations ts at the heart of our approach to communty relations We
acknowledge that large-scale muning operations 1n rural communities
can have negative as well as positive implicatrons for local residents
So our commutment 1s to strive to minimise any negative Lmpact,
while ensuring that the opportunities our operations present result

i a positive legacy for our host communities

We believe that the foundation of effective community relations
mvolves embedding social wnpact identificanon and mitigation in
our day-to-day operations and making these integral elements of the
way that we operate, from the exploration stage right through to mine
closure Some speaific examples of this approach include

+» comprehensive Social Impact Assessments conducted at the
feasibility stage and systemaucally updated during the hfe of mine,

« involvement of the communuty relations function in all risk
assessments,

= efforts o avord, or at least mumimise, involuntary resettlement by
exploring alternative project designs whlst also addressing legacy
challenges from previous resettlement programmes,

+ our multi-functional workstream on road safety,

« collaboration with the exploration team on community engagement
and influx management, and

alignment wath the secunty team on our approach to illegal miung
and trespassing and the protection of human nghts through the
Voluntary Principles (see secunty and human rights)

During 2010 we commenced a workstream to conduct Health Impact
Assessments (HIA) at all ABG operations and development projects to
assess potential impacts on public health and to mform our commumty
health programmes

Local employment and procurement

Increasing ‘local content’ has been recogrused as a key opportunity for
mimng operations 10 serve as catalysts for local economic development
and within ABG increased focus has been put on local employment
and local procurement Jobs and business opportunities are both key
benefits that our host communities expect to secure

ABG seeks to recriut from our host communities as much as possible
However, the low education levels 1n some of the rural areas in which
ABG operates makes always hiring locally a challenge As one means of
addressing this, ABG has provided funding for a national programme to
develop the skills required by Tanzamas mining sector The Integrated
Mining Technical Traumng {(IMTT) programme, which commenced n
2008, 1s 2 joint project of the Tanzanian Chamber of Minerals & Energy
and the Tanzanian government We provide sponsorships to young
people lnvng near our operanons to attend IMTT and we offer them
the possibility of employment at our operations upon the successful
completion of thewr programmes

We attempt to give preference to purchasing goods and services

locally or regionally We have held information serminars in our host
communitzes explaimng the breadth of business opportumties available
as well as the process required to become a supplier to ABG

58 www.alricanbarnckgold.com

At North Mara, we have assisted local businessmen 1n forming a
chamber of commerce and the establishment of a savings and credit co-
operative, which provides microfinance At Bulyanhulu, we assisted with
the formation of the IBUKA, a local community co-operative, whose
5,288 members from 12 willages benefit from the income they generate
from the labour and business services they prowvide to the mine

Commumty development

Leaving a positive legacy requures a strang understanding of the socral
and economic relationshups between our mines and the surrounding
commurutes A sustamable legacy also represents a shaft from a tradironal
phulanthropic approach to strategic sociad investment, partnership
development and integration with the Tanzanan government's
development plans

Qur Community Relations teams work closely with host commurities
to create and implement imtegrated development programmes that
take local priorities, concerns and needs into account, and focus on
long-term sustainable development Our operations seek to tackle the
ongong challenges of poverty, illegal activity and inadequate soctal
service provision In doing so, we liaise closely with local government
authorities as well as a broad range of development partners

Education

We believe education and economic progress go hand in hand, and
work closely with the Tanzaman Education Authority to support

the Government’s prioniies and programmes ABG supports the
development of school infrastructure in host communties and helps
to facilitate strenger school attendance through the provision of
educational scholarships

At Bulyanhulu, the mine’s scholarship programme enables Company
employees to become actively engaged 1n assisting the local community
and 15 now recerving further support through funds raised by Barrick
employees based 1n Canada At North Mara we are working with the
local Government authonties Lo find a comprehensive solution to
previous chatlenges faced by mine-commumity educational inttiatives

Community health

In addition to its employee health programmes, ABG continues to be
recognised for its support of public health imitiatives We have built
strong partnerships with Government health authenties and a range of
non-governmental orgamisations 1n order to combat HIV, malarta and
wberculosis and to improve access to health services Examples of these
partnerships include

+ HIV awareness programmes, condom provision and tramng
of peer health educators with EnGender Health and Population
Services International,

+ prowvision of a farm to Shrdepha (a local health NGO} to enable
tncome-generation by persons affected by HIV/AIDS,

« advocacy and awareness-creation for malana prevention with
Malaria No More,

+ trayming in dental services for government clinical officers by
Bridge2Aud,

« surgery for burns and cleft palates by Volunteer Surgicai Missions
Australia-Tanzanta, and




« trauung and staffing of government health facithities wath the
Touch Foundation

Our communty health tutiatives also provide an opportunity for
us to involve our contraciors and supphers in benefiting cur host
communities For the past three years, we have held a fundraising
dinner in Dar es Salaam which has, to date, contributed US$200,000
towards Volunteer Surgical Missions Australia-Tanzania for hife-
changing surgical operations

Development and traiming

As large-scale gold mining 15 a relatively new industry for Tanzama,

we imbally encountered a dearth of expenenced miming professionals to
meet the Company’s requirements In response, we have implemented
a two-pronged solution We are providing on-the-job trammng to all
employees, and are working with technucal colleges and umiversities to
develop educational and traiming programmes that will produce a new
wave of Tanzaman minung professionals

As ABG continues the expansion of our business operations, we belteve
it 1s more important than ever to develop our human capital We are
proud of our diverse workforce, and strive to attract a broad mix of
employees from both the tradittonal and non-traditional mining labour
markets Thus approach reflects the Company's philosophy of equal
opportunity and rests on the belief that a diverse workgroup gives a
competitive advantage to our business, and allows us to create a umque
company culture

We want to see our employees reach therr full potential, so we
constantly seek to

+ improve the workplace environment,
+ provide support tools and training for personal development,

« actively provide opportunuties for professional development and
career advancement, and

+ provide opportumties for assignments within the Barnck Group

Qur two-year Compass Graduate Development Programme aims to
provide a structured development programme for new graduates,
developing their talent as a corporate worldwide asset The programme,
which attracts the best candidates from uruiversities in Tanzama,
focuses on developing graduate technical and leadership skills

and blends ‘at the face’ work experiences with technical learmng
objectves In addition to formal tratming, the graduates benefit from
hands-on knowledge and expenience of areas including courageous
leadershap, frontline management, continuous improvement,
presentation and commumcation skills, field-level rnisk assessment
and incident investigation

The Management Development Programme and Intermediate
Management Development Programme, run by the University of
Cape Town, aim to equip managers with essential business knowledge,
basic management and leadership skalls The Supervisory Leadership
Development Programme helps potential supervisors acqure the
skills necessary to managing others, whule the Graduate Diploma

i Engineering 1s a course designed to cater for the needs of our
SeMoT engineers

As part of ABG’s commutment to development and traning, we
encourage and sponsor employees who wish to pursue full-time,
part-tume or online stuches At present, over 100 students are using our
employee study assistance programme in universities across the world
and we have disbursed approximately £130,000 on employee study
assistance We alse facilitate payments for membership of professional
bodues for all employees

Our commtment 1s not confined just to our employees We also offer a
variety of career starters’ programmes that enable Tanzanian citizens to
commence therr careers in the mming industry, give them an opportunty
to gain practical expenence and offer sponscrshups for professianal traimng

We have memoranda of understanding in place with the University

of Dar es Salaam’s College of Engineening and Technology and with
Muhimbili University of Health and Alhied Sciences These allow us

to provide traiming opportunities for students in areas close to our
operations, a scholarship programme for lecturers, project sponsorships
and bursanes for the best-performing students and laboratory
equpment for the universites Hundreds of students have benefited
from these programmes and sponsorships, and we are proud to
announce that two recipients of our scholarships recently completed
theirr Masters 1n Metallurgy and Mining Engineering from the
Laurentian Umiversity in Canada and are now assistant lecturers at the
Unuversity of Dar es Salaam in Tanzama

While expatriates are often necessary for the design and construction
phase of a mine's development, when possible we reduce their numbers
as the mine goes into production It 1s our goal to employ expatriates
only when needed.

Environment

Our Environmental Policy drives our commitment to responsible
environmental management and wise enviconmental stewardship

We are 1n the process of implementing an environmental management
system at each of our operations to complement our existing
environmental reporting Going forward, this system will set the
standards for cur environmental conduct Exasting envirenmental
reporiing systems and procedures record all significant environmental
impacts and incidents and track our corrective measures and

actions taken across all our sites In addition, regular thard-party
audits are undertaken to give us an independent assessment of our
environmental performance

Materials

We use ore and process matenals such as consumables and reagents to
extract copper and gold and to produce gold doré Key consumables
used are fuels, explosives, cyanude, mitric acad, sodium hydroxide,

lime and gninding media We have processes in place to manage all
consumables, and we actreely seek to use best practice in transporting
and storing consumables and reagents
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Corporate responsibility continued

knergy

We obtawn our energy from fossil fuels and purchased electnicity

Durect energy produced and consumed within our operational
boundaries includes fuel to run mobile equipment, o produce power
and heat onsite, [or the arrcraft we operate and for explosives used Lo
mune ore The largest consumption represents mobile diesel use and
electricity generation Indirect energy 1s also produced outside our
boundaries, comprising the power we purchase from TANESCO This
makes up 85% of our total electnicity usage at our operations and 1s
sourced largely from renewable hydro-power

We exarmne opportunities to reduce reliance on diesel power generatton
where possible The North Mara gnd connection project 15 a key example
of thus North Mara 15 currently runming on an 80 20 spht with TANESCO
and has realised a 79% reduction 1n carbon enussions largely as a result of
this project

As part of our aim te conserve energy, our operations are undertaking
a large number of efliciency improvements having assessed their energy
usage and 1dentified areas for making improvernents in consumption

The International Cyanide Code

The Internanonal Cyanide Code guides
best practice for transporting and using
cyanide It1s a voluntary initiative that is
widely supported by major gold producers
who mantain a registration with the
International Cyamde Management
Institute (ICMT) Three of ABG's four sites
are currently certified agamnst this Code and
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Water

ABGS sites are situated 1n different chmatic regumes, Buzwag 1s 1n an
area of low rainfall (700mm per annum) while North Mara expenences
hugh rainfall {1,300mm per annum) Water is mainly used for ore
processing, dust suppression and rock blasting We obtain our water
from both surface and groundwater sources In 2010, ABG used 4 8
multton cubic metres of make-up water at our operations 1 9 mihion
cubic metres were sourced from groundwater and 2 9 milhon cubic
metres from surface water

Biodiversity

ABG 151nvolved mn efforts to protect, manage and reclaim lands We
manage 15,550 hectares of land that we either own or lease (including
surface rights and mineral nghts) Of thts land, less than 18% has been
disturbed for mining activities Of the disturbed area, 71 hectares have
been reclaimed to agreed post-mining uses

Our Biodiversity Standard requires that we nerther explore nor
imttiate muming within World Heritage sites and that we respect the
requrements of legally designated protected areas Fauna and flora
surveys are undertaken on an annual basis on all our sites

We remove and stockpile top soil from the areas disturbed by mining
activities We have closure plans at each operation that aim to rmmrmse
the area disturbed and to mitigate our impacts, leaving behind
reclaimed lands that wall support productive post-mining land use
Reclamation occurs throughout the mine hife

submit te regular independent third-party
audits Bulyanhulu and Tulawaka have
cyamde detoxtfication plants North Mara
will install a simular plant during 2011, and
the Buzwaga plant 1s undergomng upgrades
to reduce cyamde levels in discharge and
enable this Code certification to be applied
for by the beginming of 2012




Emussians, effluents and wastes

We monirtor enussions, effiuents and wastes generated by our operations

We track greenhouse gas {GHG) emussions, and are actively workang
to improve our energy efficiencies and identify alternative technologes
We also consider the management of climate related risks at all stages
of our mine life cycles Continued energy efficiencies and mnovative
energy strategtes will serve to mummise GHG emussions of our total
ernisstons for 2010 Indirect GHG ermisstons make up 52% of the total
and direct emissions 48%

Programmes are 1n place to manage dust, hazardous and non-
hazardous non-process waste, waste rock and tailhings (the finely-
ground matenal that remains after the crushed and slurred ore passes
through the process) Our tathings storage facihties are subject to nisk
assessments and are independently audited on a regular basis In
addition, tailings storage facihities are subject to an annual review to test
physical and chemucal stabilsty At Bulyanhulu, paste material 15 placed
underground to fill the nmned-out voids On average, 40,000 to 50,000
tonnes of paste 15 back-filled 1nto the mne cach month This paste can
contan up to 40% of tallings ratenal, thereby reducing the amount
required to be stored above ground.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our workforce 1s a cnitical component of
ABG’s culture, and we have a comprehensive health, safety and
nsk management system for our underground and surface mming
operations We also require all contractors to provide and maintamn
a safe and healthy work environment, and ask that they meet, asa
mururnum, our health and safety standards

The Jatropha Biofuel Project

At ABG, we place a strong emphasis on the training, competence,
health and wellness of our employees As part of this, we provide
opporturuties for learming, as well as reinforcing and monitoring the
application of learned skalls and knowledge on the job

We have made a sigmficant investment 1n procedures and controls, and
have implemented various health and safety traning mitiatives as a
means of giving workers the skills and knowledge they need to perform
theur tasks 1n a safe and reliable way Qur commutment to health and
safety 1s reflected 1n the sigmificant safety milestones we achieved in
2010, with each of our munes acmeving one million working hours
without lost-time tn injuries In additron, ABG in total completed the
fourth quarter of 2010 withouta Lost-Tumne Injury

Mine LTIFR TIFR Hours worked
Bulyanhulu 014 18} 8,486,643
Burwagi 000 145 4,565,071
North Mara 006 056 6,470,636
Tulawaka 009 183 2,183,615
ABG 008 136 21,705,965

Despite the positive achievements of the past year, there were four
work-related fatalities at Bulyanhulu in 2010 On 16 March 2610, there
was a rock fall incident at the Bulyanhulu mine, which resulted n three
employee fatahiies ABG suspended muning activities for the rescue
and recovery mussion, and also for a pertod of mourming on 18 March
2010 Minung activities were restored on 19 March 2010, however the
areas affected by the rock fall remained closed unt the completion of
nvestigations 1nto this incident A team composed of Health and Safety,
Engineering, and Geotechnical experts from other Barrick operations
and support stafl in Toronto thoroughly investigated this incident As

a result, all underground work areas were assessed by a geotechnical
expert before work was restarted, with more extensive geotechnucal
evaluations following the inital assessment Ground support systems
were also reviewed and assessed to ensure they provide a safe working
environment and employees were retramned in the stallation of these
systems Regular inspections are made to ensure that both the correct
ground support system 1s used and tnstalled properly Prior to this
mcident, the ABG Group had expentenced no employee safety-related
fatalities since 2006

Bulyanhulu’s Commumity Relations
department is managing a project

to produce biofuel for use at the

ming, employing 92 members of the
neighbouring commumnity and sourcing
matenials locally Since 2007, 121
hectares have been planted with more

than 200,000 jatropha curcas plants

By the end of 20186, the plantation will
have increased to cover 1,246 hectares
containing over 5 5 mullion jatropha
plants within the Bulyanhulu lease area
The first batch of oil-bearing seeds 15
expected to be harvested 1n 2011
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Corporate responsibility continued

In addition, one employee died while using a faulty electric kettle to
heat water and as a result we implemented a robust inspection regime
and conducted extensive re-traning for our employees on using
electrical apphances

Having recognised that dniving incidents account for half of all
potentially dangerous incidents, we have introduced a Drive First
nitiative, as part of a drving improvement programme, to educate

and help employecs tmprove their driving The imtiative has recerved a
positive response from employees, and has highlighted the importance
of safe dnving at our operations We are also in the process of instaling
advanced technology in our hight vehidle and haul truck fieets that
provides real time in-cab coaching to our operators so that safe driving
behaviours are remnforced

We provide two day ‘Courageous Safety Leadership’ traiming to
employees and contractors at supervisor level, where they are given

the opporturuty to focus on those personal actions and behaviours that
promote the goal of ‘everyone going home safe and healthy every day’
Building on this traimng, non-supervisor-level employees are provided
with a one-day course and subsequent refresher training to build on the
skills imtially learned in the programme The programmes are designed
to empower and encourage employees to take the initrative and reward
them for identifying potential safety nsks and speaking up when faced
with a safety 1ssue

Another key tnutiative involves training employees in the use of
risk-management tools This focuses on identufying new hazards and
risks that result from changes and improvements to ABG’s facibties,
designs and plans, from exploration stage to closure It enables our
people to assess such changes and their consequent impact on people,
environment, processes, equipment and facibities, so allowing them to
mutigate the challenges involved.

One of the most sigmficant components of our health and safety
management system is the global health programme, which we are
implementing to ensure comphance with international, national and
local legislation as well as ABG’s own policies and standards The health
programme emphasises health controls through a systematic approach
to the anucipation, identification, evaluation, control and monitoning of
health hazards and exposures in the workplace The recent appointment
of an Oceupational Health Manager for ABG was made to help
accelerate the implementation of this system

Water conservation

We control our water resources carefully

at all our operations and believe that

water should be managed as a commumity
resource, respecting the nghts of other
water users. Our sites have conducted

nisk assessments related to water, and

we implement systematic monitonng
programumes of water supply, storage, usage
and discharge In a umque approach at
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Health nisk assessments form a key part of this system, and we are
continuously seeking to wdentify hazards, to evaluate exposure potential,
to control and manage health risks, and to monitor health-related
incidents The operational aspects of the programme compnise health
surveillance, training and competence, medical care and management,
record-keeping and reporuing, health promotion, employee assistance
programmes, mine hfe cycle planming and community health

We have also implemented HIV/AIDS awareness and prevention
programmes, as well as tuberculosis and malaria programmes,

for our employees, their famities and the local communities at all
ABG’s operating munes All of our mune sites also have chnucs that
provide voluntary counselling and testing for all employees and their
families They also provide follow-up care and treatment for HIV-
positive employecs

Security and human rights

‘We believe that effective secunty controls, standards, policies and
procedures contribute to the safety and protection of our employees
as well as the communities in which we operate

Operating 1n some areas of Tanzania requires ABG, as well as the
Tanzaman government and the local communities, to deal with law

and order 1ssues A number of these 1ssues have been related to speaific
events such as instability 1n areas at the ime of elections, while others
are longer term challenges, such as events of trespass and vandalism by
intruders seeking to unlawfully take gold and other property from ABG
operations These challenges vary depending on the location of the
operation and other circumstances For example, the North Mara mme
15 located close to the Tanzanian border with Kenya, which attracts a
number of transients and illegal miners Thas area has had continuing
law and order challenges, including illegal intruders at the North Mara
mine At Buzwag, in 2010, ABG uncovered a syndicated thefi nng
nvolving employees collaborating with external parties to remove fuel
from the operation ABG has implemented, and conninues to 1denufy,
alternatives to manage these security issues 1n a manner that places at its
heart the safety and secunity of people, property and assets

ABG employs secunty staff, retains secunity contractors and engages
with the Government of Tanzania and the communities in which we
operate Since 2008, we have also introduced a comprehensive security
management system, with continuous training programmes in place at
all our operations Central to this are the Voluntary Principles These

Buzwagy, ramwater 1s collected by a 73 ha
plastic ltned area and stored in a covered
1,500,000 m’ water storage pond for use as
‘make-up’ water in the process Much of the
water we use 15 recycled through our process
facthties For example, at Bulyanhuiu up

to 95% of the mines water requirement is
recycled through our practice of sunificial
paste technology 1 our taiings deposition




are a set of gmdehnes by which companues in the extractive sector can
maintain the safety and secunity of their operations within an operating
framework that ensures respect for human rights and fundamentat
freedoms Our majonity shareholder, Barnick, 1s a signatory participant,
and ABG’s secunty management system adheres to this commitment to
respect people and their nights as laid out 1n the Voluntary Principles

We also continue to 1nvest 1n security improvements, including the
mstaltation of addit:onal perimeter fencing and walls and CCTV
cameras 1n certain sensitive areas We also make efforts to educate the
local community about the inherent safety dangers associated with
illegal mining and intrusion on to the mine sites and operational areas

ABG supports the Tanzanian Police Community Policing Unit and

has assisted i establishing a pilot of community policing in the North
Mara area The community policing initiative was recognised by the US
Department cf State 1n therr 2009 Human Rights report on Tanzama
Thus programme 1s reflective of the fact that armed viclence and
crummakity impacts not just on ABG and its employees and contractors,
but also 1impacts negatwvely on the wider community, and as such,

a commumty based solution 1s desirable

We have entered into memoranda of understanding (MOUs) with the
Tanzaman police force for the provision of police force patrols in the
general area surrounding the mines for the purpose of maintaining
law and order The support provided by the mines 1s imited 1n scope
and 1s conditioned upon police compliance with all relevant laws

and wnternational enforcement principles, including the Voluntary
Principles Pursuant to the MOUs, the police must follow all relevant
domestic laws and must operate outside the mine sites except 1n
emergencies, when they are speafically called to enter the site In

Addressing the challenge of HIV/AIDS

addition, 1n accordance with the MOU, the police are specifically
required to recerve human rights training before being assigned

to the mine sites To our knowledge, ABG 15 the first and only

private company to comprehensively engage with semor Tanzanian
government officials and local law enforcement agencies to encourage
and support the provision of Voluntary Principles training to these
agencies and the adherence to international human nghts norms

ABG's private secunty employees and contractors also all receive
traiming and regular refresher courses in the secunty management
systems (including human rights and use of force traiung) Securty
personnel comply with a strict use of force procedure that 1s comphant
with the Voluntary Principles and has been validated by internat and
external experts and shared with international human nghts groups

as a part of the Voluntary Principles process In addition, security
personnel are required, at all times, to comply with all applicable
policies and procedures of ABG, mncluding the ABG Cede of Conduct
Most impertantly, we mantain a continuous process of engagement
with individuals and local community groups based 1n and around our
munes 1n order to create an envizonment that 1s safe for our staff and
the wader commumty as a whole

Despte the challenges and as a result of the above imitiatives, the
co-operation between ABG and the police in working to develop
commumty policing has led to a decrease of cnme and violence 1n the
general community Also, sigificant secunty-related incidents and
production stoppages as a result of violent incidents at the mune have
dechined over the past two years, and the overall security situation 1n
the regron and at the mines has improved In contrast to the situation
experienced by some of the region during the 2008 elections, the
security environment during the 2010 elections was generally calm

HIV/AIDS poses a significant threat not
only to our employees but also to the
communities 1n which our operations are
located Recent surveys indicate that the
average prevalence rate for the regions

0 the Lake Zone of Tanzama 15 7%, with
some regions showing a prevalence of up
10 9 6% These statistics show the need for
comprehensive programmes to address
this scourge

ABG has made a concerted effort

to combat HIV/AIDS by bolstering
prevention intiatives and supporting
care and treatment services To help
prevent new infections, ABG has
partnered with USAID, Engender Health
{a renowned international NGQ) and
Deloitte & Touche under an innovatrve
public private partnership called the

P3P project The objective 15 to train

and empower volunteer Peer Health
Educators to provide information about
HIV/AIDS to their colleagues and the
broader community These peer educators
emphastse the benefits of voluntary
counselling and testing and condom use
The programme has seen an increase 1n
people’s knowledge about HIV/AIDS and
a reduction 1n nsky behaviour that pre-

disposes individuals to HIV ABG provides
condoms to community members

As a member of the Global Business
Coalition for Tuberculosis, AIDS
and Malana, ABG has been able

to join forces with other corporate
members to define new strategies and
mtegraton opportunities

“The HIV/AIDS fight 1s one
that we can win but only with
concerted and collaborative
efforts from all stakeholders™

Stephen Kisakye, ABG Commumty
Health and Development Coordmator
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Risk management

Imperative to our strategy

Effective risk management 1s imperative The realisation of ABG's
strategy depends on 1ts ability to take calculated risks 1n a manner that
does not jeopardise the direct interests of ABG’ stakeholders

Overview

To achieve its vision and strategy and to protect its key values, ABG

1s commulted to establishing the most effective possible management
of nsk For this purpose, since our [PO the Board has adopted a nisk
management framework that incorporates the key requirements of ISO
31000 2009, UK corporate governance standards and other generally
accepted governance principles In addition to ABG's Cede of Condua,
this framework includes the Company’s risk management charter, its
risk management pohicy and a number of detailed risk management
procedures All members of the ARG Group, 1ts material operations,
its service organisations, its support functions and its processes and
projects must comply with and adhere to the requirements of this nsk
management framework.

Roles and responsibilities

Responsibihity for risk management 1s allocated between key functions
and tiers of ABG’s corporate governance structure to ensure that
decisions taken that affect nsk tolerance and ritigation remam prudent
and effective

QOversight and review

The Board 1s responstble for defining ABG's nisk appetite and tolerance
and has overall responsibility for risk management compliance It
approves all key components of ABGs nsk management and snternal
control systems and 1s ultumately responsible for the effectivencss of
these systems As part of its nsk management function, the Board or
1ts commmttees

= approves ABG's risk management strategy and policies recommended
by ABG management and ABG’s Internal Audit funcuion,
+ montors the ABG Group’s comphance with 1ts nsk
management framework,
+ reviews ABG's significant business risks and internal controls,
» ensures that appropnate action 1s taken n controlling
significant risks,
» conducts annual strategic risk workshops involving Directors and
ABG management, and
ensures that the Head of Risk and Internal Audit has the co-
operation and support of ABG management, staff and all other
relevant stakeholders

Significamt nisks for the ABG Group are assessed and reported on, and
the Board recerves quarterly reports on the status of the mternal control
environment through Audit committee reports
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Commuttee participation and review

The Audit commuttee and Environmental, Health, Safety, Secunity
and CSR committee (EHS&S) have active involvement in the nisk
Mmanagement review process

ABG’s Audit commuttee plays a key role in reviewing the effectiveness
of the ABG Group's internal control and financial reporung risk
management systems As part of its responsibilities, it approves the
annual internal and external audat plan and reviews all material findings
of the internal and external audit functions

ABG’s EHS&S commuttee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
environmental management programmes and systems and 1ts health
and safety systems It also receives reports from management on
ABG’s corporate social responsibility programme, including sigrificant
sustainable development, community relations and secunity policies
and procedures

Where appropriate, each of these committees reports to the Board and
makes recommendations to the Board and management on any areas
within its respective remil where action or ymprovement is needed

Implementat:on and application

ABG’s management 15 accountable for the design and implementation
of nsk management processes and their consistent application 10 ensure
that nsk management compliance 1s embodied in the culture and
practices of the ABG Group and its operations Management ensures
that relevant risk management matters are clearly communicated

to all employees and ensures that all members of the corporate risk
management function have unrestricted access to all personnel, records
and property of the Group, and are entitled to such information and
explanations as may be required for review purposes

Management, in consultat:on with ABG’s nisk management function,
15 nvolved 1n a process of implemenung and improving systems and
procedures to ensure effective mechanisms are in place to idenufy and
momtor nisks internal and external to the Group

Internal audit

ABG?’s Head of Rusk and Internal Audit assists ABG’s Board and
management i executing their respensibtlities This function plays a
cnizcal role in advising and producing girdance on nisk-related matters
It assists management in conducting nsk studies, reviewing nisk profiles,
mterpreting nisk data and integrating risk management 1n business
processes The Head of Risk and Internal Audit 1s responsible for




+ crafting a strategy for the implementation of ABG'’s nsk
management system,

» reviewing and momtonng ABG's nisk profile,

- constdering the adequacy of nisk treatment plans to address
signuficant risks,

+ considering significant internal audut, forensic audit and external
audit findings, and

« providing traiming and support 1n respect of the nisk
management framework

Polictes

ABG has adopted polscies and procedures for the application of risk
management In addition to those embodied in the nsk management
framework, the Company has adopted policies for environmental,
health and safety polictes and systems, charters and supply

chain management

Procedures

Procedures have been adopted with the objective of ensuring that risks
are managed at all appropnate levels of the business using processes
based on :dentification, analysis, evaluation, mitigation, reporung

and monitonng

Principal risks and uncertanties

The Group faces a vanety of nsks, the occurrence of which could
adversely affcct its performance, carmings, financial position and
prospects Over the course of the year under review, the Group made
materral developments 1n the identification and management of 1ts risk
profile 1in order to focus on the most significant risks and events that
could affect its operations, financials and performance

The following pages set out the principal nisks affecting the ABG Group
ABG has taken a number of steps to mitigate some of these nsks and
will continue to evaluate ways in which it can manage and mitigate risks
accordingly Notwithstanding this, due to the very nature of risks no
assurance can be given that mihgating actions taken or planned will be
wholly eflective In addition, there may be addittional nsks unknown

to ABG and other nisks, which are currently believed to be immatenal,
could turn out to be material These nsks, whether they matenalise
indvidually or ssmultaneously, could significantly affect the Group's
business and finanaial results In addivon, ABG could also be affected
by risks relating to the gold minung industry generally and the nsks and
hazards involved in the business of mining metals, which are largely
outside 1ts control

An overview of the risk management evaluation process which has been adopted by ABG 15 provided below

Risk management evaluation process

Establish the
context

Rask ident:fication

Communication &
consultation

Monutor & review Risk treatment

Identify potentiat
consequences

Communication & consultation

Risk evaluatuon

Identify causes Inherent analysis

Idenufy exisung
controls

Assess the effectiveness
& efficiency of
existing controls

Residual analysis
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Risk management continued

Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Ruish Mitegation/Comment Potenual impact  Further information

Strategac risks

Single country risk

All of the ABG Group’s revenue 1s denved ABG assesses a wide range of potential High A review of exploration activities
from production at its four facilities 1n growth opportunities to buld on 1ts existing and other growth opportunities 1s
Tanzama. In order to ensure continued portfoho, ncluding external acquusition and set out 1n the Exploration review
growth, the Group needs to 1dentify new development opportunities outside Tanzana on pages 44-47

resources and development opportunities to maxumise growth potential

through exploration and acquisition targets

Reserves and resource estimates

The ARG Groups stated mineral reserves ABG management has implernented a High Details on the ABG Group’s

and resources are estmates basedon a

range of assumptions, including geclogical,
metallurgical and technical factors, there can
be no assurance that the anticipated tonnages

number of processes to continuously monitor
and evaluate the current Life of the Company’s
rmune plans and production targets The ABG
Group’s resources and reserves are updated

reserves and resources are set out
on pages 96-99

or grades will be achieved annually ABG follows NI 43-101 of the
Canadian Instrtute of Mining Metallurgy
and Petroleum when calculating its mineral
reserves and resources

Financal risks

Commodity prices

The ABG Group's financial performance

1s highly dependent upon the price of gold
and, to a lesser extent, the price of copper

and sitver The prices of these commodities

are affected by a number of factors beyond
ABG’s control Rapid fluctuations in pricmg of
these commodities will have a corresponding
impact on ABGY financial position

ABG's strategic objective 1s to provide
maximum exposure to the price of gold.

As such a no-gold-hedging policy has been
adopted ABG has implemented a number
of processes to assess 1ts exposure to other
commodity price fluctuations ABG has
entered into hedging facilities in connection
with copper price fluctuations and 15
reviewing appropriate hedging facilities to
assist in the management of exposure to other
commodities, such as diesel

High

Further information 1s set out 1n
the financial review on page 48
and the market review on pages
13-15

Costs and capital ex;éndlture

ABG operates a cyclical business where
fluctuations in operating cash flow and capital
expenditure may adversely affect ABG's
financial position

ABG management continuously momtors
operational costs and capital expenditure
It holds a conservative balance sheet and
has a ngorous cash flow planting process
to mitigate hquidity nisks ABG has also
entered into a commercial credit facibity
to provide further support for working
capital requirements

High

Further information 1s set out
1n the financial review on pages
48-54
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Rusk

Mitigation/Comrnent

Potentialimpact  Further information

External rnisks

Pohtical, legal and regulatory developments

The ABG Group's exploration, development  The Group assesses legal and poliical risks High

and operational activities are subject to as part of its evaluation of potential projects

extensive laws and regulations governing It actively momitors legal and polttical

various matters in the junsdictions in which  developments in countries in which its

it operates Changes to existing law and existing operations are located

regulations, or more stringent application or

interpretation of current laws and regulanons The Group actively engages in dialogue with

by relevant government authorities, could the Tanzanian government and legal policy

adversely affect the ABG Group's operations ~ makers to discuss all key legal and regulatory

and development projects In particular, as developments applicable to nts operations, 1n

ABGS revenue 1s currently derived exclusively particular developments in connection with

from the production of its facilities 1n the Tanzaman Miming Act and apphicable

Tanzana, ts business operations and financial €nvironmental legislation

condition may be adversely affected by legal

and regulatory changes and developments n

Tanzama, or if exasting mineral development

agreements are not honoured by the

Tanzaman government

The Group may also be adversely affected

by changes 1n globat economic conditions,

political and/or economic instability in

Tanzania or any of its surrounding countries

Taxation reviews

The ABG Groups financial condivon may be  The ABG Group has entered into a series High Further information on the status
adversely affected 1f it 15 unsuccessful in s of engoing discussions with the Tanzanwan of these discussions 15 provided
current appeals and/or its discussions with government with the goal of resolving on page 52

the Tanzamian Revenue Authority regarding  outstanding tax disputes and recovering

outstanding tax assessments and unresolved  amounts owed.

tax disputes, namely n respect of fuel levies,

VAT and certain corporate taxes

Utilities supply

Power stoppages, fluctuations and disruptions  Back-up or alternative power generation High Further information on the status
1n electrical power supply or other utilities have been implemented at North Mara, of power supply 1s provided on
could adversely affect Group operations and ~ Bulyanhulu and Tutawaka ABG 1510 the page 35

impact its financial condition In addition, process of implementing additional power

an increase i power costs would make back-up facihties to mantamn critical systems

producuon more costly and alternative power  at Buzwag.

sources may not be available

Community relations

A farlure to adequately engage or manage In addstion to its existing corporate soctal Medium  Details of the Group's community

relations wath local communities and
stakeholders could have a direct umpact on
the ABG Group's abihity to operate at its
extsting operattons

responsibility programmes, the Group

15 implementing a number of additonal
mitiatives to 1mprove and buld on local
community refations, and has increased its
soctal management capacity

relations activities are set out
in the corporate responsibtlity
sectton on pages 56-59
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Risk management continued

Prinaipal nsks and uncertainties continued

Risk

Mitigauon/Comment

Potennal impact  Further informauon

Operational nsks

Loss of cnitical processes

The ABG Group’s mumng, processing, Management assesses the critical components High Rusks relating to utlity supply
development and exploration activities of ABG's operational infrastructure on a are summarised above Further
depend on the continuous availabihty of continuous basis In addition to external details of ABG's infrastructure
its operational infrastructure, i addion resources and when required, ABG has and processes are summanised on
to reliable utilities and water supples and established channels through the support of pages 18-19, 35 and 83

access to roads Any falure or unavailability  the Barrick Group network to address critical

of operauonal infrastructure, for example disruptions to 1ts technical services and plant

through equipment fatlure or disruption, equipment Supply chain management and

could adversely affect production output support are assessed and reviewed against

and/or impact exploration and development  business requirements on a regular basis

activities Dehcrencies in core supply chain

availability could also adversely affect

Group operations

Environmental hazards and rehabilitation

The ABG Group's activittes are subject to The Group has commutted itself to the High Detauls of the ABG Groups
environmental hazards as a result of the application of glebal standards and environmental actvities and
processes and chemicals used mn its extraction 1mplementing relevant International Council compliance programmes are set
and production methods The Group may on Mining and Metal practices, and the out in the corporate responsibility
be liable for losses and costs associated with  International Cyamde Code standards section on pages 59-61
environmental hazards at its operations, Compliance with apphcable environmental

have 1ts hicences and permuts withdrawn standards 15 assessed on a continuous basis

or suspended as a result of such hazards, Remediation and rehabilitation costs are

or may be forced to undertake extensive assessed and rewiewed annually

clean-up and remediation action 1n respect of

environmental hazards and incidents relating

to its operations Any such action could

have a material adverse effect on the Groups

business, operations and financial condition

Employees and contractors

The ABG Group’s business sigmficantly ABG regularly assesses its staffl recruatment High Further detail on employee

depends upon 1ts ability to recrut and retain
qualified personnel, in particular members
of the Senior Leadership Teamn and its skulled
team of engineers and geologists The loss of
skilled workers and a fallure to recrunt and
train equivalent replacements may negatively
impact on ABG’ operations and production

ABG depends on certamn key contractors
Interruptions i contracted services could
result in production slowdowns and/

ot stoppages

and retention policies to assist with labour
stability, and mamntains appropriate
investment in traimng and development to
safeguard the skalls of 1its work force It ts also
focused on furthering the nationahsatton of
its workforce in Tanzania and participates

1 a number of tramng programmes to help
develop local industry expertise

Assessments of arrangements with key
contractors are undertaken on a regular basis
to ensure that contracted services and support
meet business requirements and expectations

arrangements and related
mitiatives 18 provided (n the
corporate responsibility section
on pages 59, and the case study
on pages 20-21
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Risk

Miugation/Comment

Potential impact  Further information

Operational nsks

Securnty, trespass and vandalism

ABG faces certain nisks in dealing with
trespass, thefi, corruption and vandahsm

at 1ts mines and unauthonsed small-scale
nmunng 1 proximuty to and on specific areas
covered by ABG's exploration and mimng
Iicences The impact of such risks may have
an adverse cffect upon ABG’ operations
and financial condition

The ABG Group has taken measures 1o
protect its employees, mines and production
facihies from various secunty and theft risks
Steps include increasing exsting securnity
persannel, the mstallation of additional
perimeter fencing, surveillance equipment
and the mmposition of addiional secunty
checks and procedures Where appropriate,
the Group continues to work in collaboratron
with local law enforcement to address
security-retated matters In addition, ABG
adheres to the Voluntary Pninciples as part of
1ts membership of the Barnick Group

Further information on secunty
developments and imitiatives
can be found in the corporate
responsibility section on

pages 62-63

High

Health and safety, infectious diseases

Due to the nature of the Group's operations,

a wide range of occupational health diseases,
such as nose-induced hearing loss and

lung diseases, pose a risk to the Group's
workforce In addition, tropical and infectious
diseases, such as malana and HIV/AIDS,

pose significant health nsks to the Group’s
employees, due to the epidemic proportions
that such diseases may have 1n areas at

which the Groups operations are located

The potental habihties related to such diseases
and the impact that these diseases may have
on the Group's workforce may have an adverse
effect upon the Group's operations and
financial condition

The Group has implemented a number

of malaria and tuberculosts programmes
and HIV/AIDS awareness and prevention
programmes for its employees, therr families
and the local communities surrounding its
operations It also provides occupational
health services to its employees at its

mine chinics and it continues to improve
preventative hygiene imtiatives Health and
safety and nsk management systems are 1n
place onsite at all of ABG’s operations

Medium  Further details of health and
safety awareness programmes
are set out Ln the corporate
responsibality section on

pages 61-62
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Board of directors

Chairman
' Aaron Regent, age 45 (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr Regent 1s a Non-Executive Director of the ABG Group He has been
the President and Chiefl Executive Officer and a Director of Barnck
since 2009 Prior to joinng Barrick, Mr Regent was Seuor Managing
Partner of Brookfield Asset Management and Co-Chief Executive
Officer of its Infrastructure Group Mr Regent previously served as
President and Chuef Executive Officer of Falconbridge Ltd Mr Regent
holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the Umiversity of Western Ontario
and 15 a Chartered Accountant

Executive Directors

2 Greg Hawkins, age 42 {Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Hawkans 1s the Chief Executve Officer of the ABG Group He was
previously employed by Barrick, where since June 2006 he served as
Chief Financial Officer of the Agstrahia Pacific Busimess Unit From
1999 to 2006, Mr Hawkins served 1n finance management roles

for Barrick Austrahia/Africa and for Homestake Mining before its
acqusition by Barmick. Mr Hawlans also previously held roles as the
Finance Manager for Normandy Mining and as an Audit Manager for
Delortte He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the University
of Western Australia He 1s a Chartered Accountant and a member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors
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3 Kevin Jennings, age 41 (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Jenmings is the Chief Financial Officer of the ABG Group He was
previously employed by Barnck where he served from August 2609

as Vice-President of Corporate Development Mr Jenmings has held a
variety of sentor management positions tn the minmg industry over
the last ten years, including Director, Business Optumasation at Xstrata
plc, Director, Strategic Business Analysis at Falconbndge Ltd, and
Chief Financial Officer at Amenrican Racing Equipment Inc, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Falconbridge Mr Jennings holds a Bachelor of
Arts Degree 1n Economucs from the Umversity of Western Ontano and
a Bachelor of Admumstrative Studies, with Honours 1n Accounting,
from York University Heisa Chartered Accountant

Non-Executive Dhrectors

4 Derek Pannell, age 64 (Semior Independent
Non-Executive Prrector)

Mr Pannell 1s an independent Non-Executive Director of the ABG
Group Mr Pannell holds several other Board appointments, including
Agnum Inc, and 1s Chairman of the Board of Directors of Brookfield
Infrastructure Partners LP Mr Pannell was formerly President, Chief
Operating Officer and Cheef Fxecutive Officer of Noranda Inc, and
Falconbridge Ltd Mr Pannell 1s a metallurgical engineer with over 40
years of experience in the mning and metals industry He 1s former
Chaur of the Mining Association of Canada and a Board member of
the International Council on Mining and Metals Mr Pannell holds

a Bachelor of Science Degree in kngmeering from Imperial College
London, England, and 1s 2 professional engineer registered in Quebec
and Peru. He 15 also an Associate of the Royal School of Mines and

a Tellow of the Canadian Academy of Cngincers




5 James Cross, age 62 (Independent Non-Executrnve Director)

Mr Cross 1s an independent Non-Executive Director of the ABG

Group He s also a Board member of the Financial Services Board of
South Africa, Deputy Chairman of the Policy Board of South Africa,
Chairman of the Finanaial Markets Advisory Board and Non-Executive
Chairman of Swiss Gold DMCC Dubar He was formerly Semor Deputy
Governor of the South Afnican Reserve Bank, Chairman of Highland
Gold Mining Ltd, and a Director of Namakwa Ihamonds Ltd and

MEKS Finance Geneva He has a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from
the University of Witwatersrand, South Africa, and 1s a fellow of the
Institute of Bankers of South Africa

¢ Andre Falzon, age 56 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Falzon 15 an independent Non-Executive Director of the ABG
Group He 1s a financral consultant, and a Durector of Aunzon Mines
Ltd Mr Falzon 1s a sentor financial executive with over 25 years of
financial and management experience withun the miming industry,
including a peniod as Vice President and Controller at Barrick between
1994 and 2006 He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the
University of Toronto, Canada and 15 a Certified General Accountant
{Canada) and a Chartered Accountant (Canada)

7 Stephen Galbraith, age 39 (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Galbraith 15 2 Non-Executive Director of the ABG Group He has
been employed by Barrick since August 2000 1n treasury and finance
functions, and 15 currently Managing Dhrector of Barnick International
(Barbados) Corporaton Mr Galbraith previously held the role of Audit
Manager for PnicewaterhouseCoopers He holds a Bachelor of Arts
Degree 1n Accountancy from Strathclyde University, 1s a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and 1s a Chartered
Francial Analyst Charterholder

8 Bobby Godsell, age 58 (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Godsell 1s an independent Non-Executive Director of the ABG
Group He has held numerous semor Chair and Board positions,
including the former Chairmanship of the World Gold Council,
Presidency of the Chamber of Mines, and Non-Executive Chairmanship
of Eskom Holdings Lid He has over 30 years of experience tn the
mining sector, previously serving as Director and Chief Executive
Officer of AngloGold Ashanti [td and as a Dhrector of Anglo Amernican
plc He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the University of Natal,
South Afnca, and a Master of Arts Degree from the Umiversity of Cape
Town, South Afnca

9 Michael Kenyon, age 61 {Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Kenyon 1s an independent Non-Executive Director of the ABG
Group He 15 Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors at Detour
Gold Corporation, Chairman of the Board of Directors at Troon
Ventures Ltd, and has more than 35 years of expenience in the mining
industry He has previously been President and Chief Executive Officer
at both Canico Resource Corp and Sutton Resources Ltd, and a Director
of Cumberland Resources Ltd. He 1s a geologist by tratning, and holds
a Master of Science (Geology) Degree from the University of Alberta
in Canada He was also the reciprent of the 2005 Developer of the Year
award from the Prospector and Developers Association of Canada in
recogmtion of his accomplishments

Committee members

EHS&S commttee

Bobby Godsell (Charr),

Derek Pannell, Stephen Galbraith,
Audit commttee:

Andre Falzon {Chair), James Cross,
Michael Keayon

Compensation commuttee
Michaet Kenyon (Char),

Aaron Regent, Andre Falzon,
James Cross

Nomanation committee:

Derek Pannell (Char),

Stephen Galbraith, Bobby Godsell
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Senior management

in addition to ABG’s Executive Dhrectors histed on previous page,
Semor Management includes the following

Marco Zolezzi, age 55 (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr Zolezzi 15 Chuef Operating Officer of the ABG Group Mr Zolezzi
was previously employed as Director of Technical Services for Barrick’s
Austraha Pacific Region for the last four years Pnor to that, Mr Zolezz
held a number of semor project roles in the mdustry, mcluding five
years with Newcrest Miming where he was General Manager at the
Telfer Mine, taking 1t from the project stage through to full production,
as well as 13 years with WMC Resources in a number of semar
operational and technical roles In total, Mr Zolezz1 has over 30 years
of experience 1n complex open pit and underground operations in
Austraha and South Africa with a variety of operational, techmcal and
project management roles In addition to Diplomas in Mining and
Mechamical Engineering from Witwatersrand Institute of Technology
mn South Africa, Mr Zolezzi holds Bachelor Degrees in Apphied Science,
Mechanical from the New South Wales Institute of Technology and

in Applied Scrence, Mining from the Western Australian Institute

of Technology

Deodatus Mwanyika, age 48 (Vice President, Corporate Affairs)

Mr Mwanyika s the Vice President, Corporate Affairs of the ABG
Group He was previously employed by Barnck which he joined in

1999 as a Legal Consultant and where he occupied vanious managerral
positions i the last 11 years, culminating in hus appointment 1n 2008 as
Executive General Manager, lanzara Mr Mwanyika holds a Bachelor
of Law Degree with Honours from the University of Dar es Salaam and
a Masters in Law from the University of Cambridge Mr Mwanyika

1s a member of the Tanganyika Law Society and the East African

Law Society

Peter Spora, age 41 {Vice President, Exploration}

Mr Spora 15 the Vice President, Exploration of the ABG Group He was
previously employed by Barrick where he served as Principal Geologust,
Afnica, from 2006 to 2008 and Exploration Manager, Africa, since 2008
Mr Spora has over 15 years of expenence as a geologist in Australia
and Africa He holds a Bachetor of Applied Science in Geology Degree
from the Umiversity of Technology, Sydney, Austraha He 1s currently
the Chairman of the Exploration Commuttee of the Tanzanman
Chamber of Minerals and Energy, and 1s 2 member of the Soctety of
Economic Geologists
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Katrina White, age 35 (General Counsel and Company Secretary)

Ms White 1s the General Counsel and Company Secretary of the ABG
Group Ms White was previously employed by Barnick for the last five
years where she served as Regional General Counsel and Company
Secretary for Barnick Australia Africa, subsequently Barnck Australia
Pacific and as a Director of Barnick’s subsidianes in the regron since
2006 Prior to jorming Barrick, Ms White was employed as a semor
associate at Hunt & Humphry 1in Australia Ms White has an Honours
degree in Law from the University of Western Australia She 1s admutted
to practise as a barnister and solicitor n Western Australa, the High
Court of Australia and the Federal Court of Australia

Andrew Wray, age 47 (Head of Corporate Development and
Investor Relations)

Mr Wray 1s the Head of Corporate Development and Investor Relations
for the ABG Group He was previously employed by JP Morgan
Cazenove where he was a Director in the Corporate Finance team

Mr Wray has over 10 years of experience in advising a range of mining
and other companues in their capital-raising activities and in other
strategic objectives Prior to joining JP Morgan, Mr Wray worked for
the Kuwat Investment Office in London, dealing with their portfoho
of investments in Spain Mr Wray holds a Bachelor of Arts Honours
Degree in Modern Languages from University College Londen

Kobus van Vuuren, age 51 (Head of Human Resources})

Mr van Vuuren 1s the Head of Human Resources of the ABG Group
He1s responsible for overseeing all Human Resource activities, as well
as the management of the Johannesburg office Prior to jouning Barrick,
Mr van Vuuren was Sentor Director Human Resources and Services

at Midroc Gold Ethiopia, and occupred various managenal positions
over the previous 24 years at AngloGold and Harmony Gold He joined
Barrick 1n 2007 as Human Resource Manager at North Mara, and
served 1n a number of capacitics induding Orgamisational Eifectiveness
Manager and Mine General Manager, before being promoted to hus
current position 1n 2009 Mr van Vuuren 1s a diplomat of the Institute
of Personnel Management and has several quahifications in HR,
Tranmg and Development and Industrial Relations He 15 2 member
af the Soctety for Human Resource Management (SHRM)




Corporate governance report

Fully committed to the highest standards

2010 Highlights and performance

As this 1s ABG's first year as a hsted company, the Board focused
its attentions 1n 2010 on developing and confirming measures
that support its effectiveness and strengthen the Company's
internal control and nisk management systems To this end, the
Board and 1ts commuttees have

» undertaken assessments of ABG's key risks, mitigation and
process evaluation,

« conducted a review of internal systems and controls in line
with Turnbull Guidance requirements,

« commenced the review of requirements for Board evaluations
and succession planning, and

« progressed the implementation of reporting procedures and
processes over and above those financial reporting procedures
implemented as part of the [PO process

ABG approach to governance

ABG commutted to the hghest standards of corporate governance

at the ume of 1ts IPO The Company adopted a number of procedures
throughout the course of 2010 to underpin its governance systems
and structure These measures will remain under review, and
additional processes will continue to be considered and developed to
ensure that ABG’ approach to governance 1s appropriately ahgned
with 1ts operating environment, its performance needs and its
strateglc requirements

ABG has adopted a Code of Conduct as well as a number of other

policies and procedures including an Anti-Bribery and Anti-Carruptron

Policy, a Disclosure and Communscations Policy and a Secunties
Dealing Code to support its governance framework.

Good governance 1s fundamental to
the success of ABG's business and 1ts
relationships with key stakeholders.

Derek Pannell,
Semor Independent Non-Executive Direclor

All ABG employees and Directors must comply with these polictes
and procedures and with any additional applicable policies

Overall responsibility for the governance of the ABG Group lies

with the Board, which mtends wherever possible to comply with the
main principles of the Combined Code and the new UK Corporate
Governance Code which will apply to future reporting years Tt wall

also review other international standards as appropriate for ABG’s
operations As part of its corporate governance comphance obligations,
the Board 15 requured to explain how 1t apphed the main principles of
the Cambined Code during 2010 The relevant statement of compliance,
and any departures from governance requrements that occurred, are
explaned below

Board composition

The Board reviews its composition and balance on a regular basis

The Board currently comprises a Non-Executive Chairman, two
Executive Directors and six Non-Executive Dhrectors, of whom five are
independent For the reporting period, the Board considers that this

15 the appropniate structure and board balance between executives and
non-executtves for ABG 1o achueve 11s objectives

ABG regards all of s Non-Executive Directors other than Aaron
Regent and Stephen Galbraith as independent within the meaning
defined in the Combined Code The Board regards Andre Falzon as
independent within the meamng of the Combined Code although he
was an employee of the Barnck Group until 2006 and then provided
consultancy services to the Barnck Group until 2008
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Corporate governance report conttnued

All of the Directors have constderable knowledge and experience in
the mining indusiry and bring other relevant experence to the Board
to assist ABG in achieving its strategic goals Director brographies are
provided on pages 70-71

Leadership structure
Role of the Board

The Board 1s responsible for the overall management of the

ABG Group, as well as for setting ABG’s strategy and monitonng its
implementation As part of these requiremnents, the Board 1s required to
set ABG's standards, values and strategic ams It must also ensure that
the necessary financial and human resources are in place for ABG 1o
meet its objectives

The Board focuses on strategic 1ssues, financial performance, risk
management and critical business 1ssues It has a formal schedule of
matters that are specifically reserved for its decision, including the
review and/or approval of

« the extension of the Group’s activities into new business or
geagraphic business,

« mergers and acqusitions activity and material capital projects,

material capital raising,

« major changes to the Groups corporate structure,

+ the Groups internal control and sk management systems,
financial reporting and controls,

» COTpOrate governance systems,
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« policies and procedures, and
« changes to the composition, size and structure of the Board,

I'ne Board delegates certain matters to s commuttees Further details of
each commuttee are set out on pages 78 to 80 of this report In additton,
the Board has approved a delegation of authorty 1o officers and
managers of the Group for specific matters required for the day-to-day
functromng of the Company's bustness

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
In line with best practice, the roles of Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman and therr related responsibilities are separated Accordingly

the divistons of responsibilities have been set out in wnting and agreed
by the Board

ABG’s Chairman 1s principally responsible for the leadership of the
Board. He 1s responsible for ensuring that the Board plays a full

and constructive part in the development and determination of the
Company’s strategy and overall commercial objectives The Chairman
i1s responsible for setting the Board agenda, leading ns discussions and
ensunng effective commumication with shareholders The Chairman
promotes the highest standards of integnity, probity and corporate
governance throughout ABG, particularly at Board level

ABG’ Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for all executive
management matters affecting ABG and 1s principally responsible

for running the Company’ business All members of executive
management report directly to hum He 1s responsible for proposing
and developing ABGS strategy and overall commercial objectives, and
for implementing the decisions of the Board and its commmuttees He 1s
also requured to ensure that ABG Group affairs are conducted with the
highest standards of integnity, probaty and corporate governance

Seruor Independent Director

Derek Pannell 1s ABG’s Semor Independent Director As part of his
responsibilities, Mr Pannell 1s available for discussions with other Non-
Executive Directors who may have concerns which they believe have
not been properly considered by the Board as a whole Mr Pannell 1s
available as an alternative point of contact for the Executive Directors,
if required, in addition to the normal channels of the Chairman and
Chuef Executive Officer Mr Pannell 1s also available to shareholders

if they have concerns that have not been resolved by contact through
the normal channels of Chairman, Chiel Executive Officer or other
Executive Directors, or where such contact 1s inappropriate

The Senor Independent Director at least annually and on other
occasions as deemed appropnate leads a meeting of the Non-
Executive Directors without the Chairman present to appraise the
Chairman’s performance

Semor Leadership Team

Day-to-day management of the Group's business and operations 1s
delegated to the Executive Directors and the other sentor executives
who form ABG’ Seruor Leadership Teamn Thus tearn comprises

« Chief Executive Officer,

+ Chief Financial Officer,




+ Chuef Operating Officer,

« General Counsel,

« Vice President, Exploration,

« Vice President, Corporate Affairs,

+ Head of Corporate Development and Investor Relations, and
+ Head of Human Resources

The Semor Leadership Team meets regularly and 15 responsible for
monitoring the detaled performance of all aspects of ABG’s business

Board effectiveness

Decision makung

Board decisions are predominantly made by achieving a consensus at
Board meetings In exceptional circumstances, decisions may be taken
by the majonty of Board members Questions ansing at any meeting
are determined by a majonity of votes In the case of an equality of
votes, ABG’ articles of association do not provide the Chairman with
a second or casting vote All Directors are required to take decisions
objectively and 1n the best nterests of the Company

ABG’s Non-Executive Directors are expected to apply independent
judgement to contribute to 1ssues of strategy and performance and

to scrutimse the performance of management In addition, the
commuttees of the Board play an active role 1n reviewing management’s
petformance and achievement of ABG objectives on the basis of
responsibilies falling within the remit of each commuttee

Board briefings and development

The Board recerves monthly management reports and quarterly

reports outlmng all matenial operational, financial and strategic
developments These ensure that members remain properly briefed on
the performance and financial position of the ABG Group Board and
commuttee papers are circulated prior to ail meetings to allow Directors
to be briefed 1n advance of discussions  All Board meetings include a
quarterly business and financial review to ensure that, in addition to
specific scheduled matters and any other business, core operational
matters are reviewed on a continuous basis

In addition to scheduled Board meetings, all Directors have access
to members of the Semor Leadership Team and to whatever further
information they need to perform their duties and to satisfy their
responsibilities ABG's independent Non-Executive Directors and
commuttee chairmen meet with members of the Seruor Leadership
Team to recerve more 1in-depth brefings on Board and commuttee
matters, whenever required or requested.

The Chatrman and the Company Secretary review traiming and
development needs The induction traiming and process for new Directors
1s under development. All existing Directors and members of the Seruor
Leadership Team participated 1 mduction trainmg, which included
briefings on the responsibihities of Directors of a UK histed company, prior
to the [PO During the course of 2010, a number of Directors undertook
operational site wisits All Directors continue to have free access to visit
operations outside scheduled Board arrangements

Dhrectors may take independent professional advice, as necessary, at
ABG's expense in the furtherance of their duties In addition to ths,
each Board commttee 1s entitled to seek independent professional
advice at ABG’s expense where necessary to assist or guide the
commuttee in the performance of its functions

Board meetings and attendance

The Board 15 scheduled to meet at least four tumes a year, and at such
other times as are necessary to discharge its duties

The attendance record for each Drrector for 2010 15 shown below The
Board met on five occasions during 2010, of which one meeting related
to specific TIPO matters

Prior to the IPQ, Catherine Boggs and Paul Buchanan were apponted
as norminee Directors of ABG Catherine Boggs was appomted on

14 January 2010 and resigned from the Board on 19 January 2010 as
part of [PO preparations Paul Buchanan was apponted on 19 fanuary
2010 and resigned from the Board on 15 February 2010 as part of [PO
preparations Of the nominee Directors, only Paul Buchanan attended
a Board meeting for the purposes of resignation

Board meetings Audit commuttee Compensation commiltee Nomunahon committee EHS&S committee

Number Maxmum Number Maximym Number Maximum Number Maximum Number Maximum

attended possible attended possible attended possible ahiended possible antended possible

Aaron Regent 5 5 0 N/A 4 4 i N/A 0 N/A
Greg Hawking 5 5 2 N/A 3 N/A 1 N/A 3 N/A
Kevin Jennings 5 5 4 N/A 0 N/A ] N/A 0 N/A
Derek Pannell 4 5 0 N/A 0 N/A 1 1 2 3
James Cross 5 5 4 4 4 4 0 N/A 0 N/A
Andre Falzon 5 5 4 4 4 4 0 N/A 0 N/A
Stephen Galbraith 5 5 0 N/A 0 N/A 1 1 3 3
Bobby Godsell 4 5 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 1 2 3
Michael Kenyon 5 5 4 4 4 4 0 N/A 0 N/A

Noter N/A indicates where a Director 15 not a member of 2 commuttee and thus not obl

d to attend n

-
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Corporate governance report continued

Performance evaluation

The majonty of the Directors were appointed in February 2010 as
part of the corporate governance preparanons for the IPO In view of
this, the Board believes that a meaningful evaluation of performance
can only take place once the new Board has had a reasonable amount
of ime to work together An evaluation process will therefore be
implemented in the first half of 2011 for all of the Board members
including the Chairman

Retirement and re-election

Under ABG's articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement and re-clection by the sharcholders at the first Annual
General Meeting following their appointment and every three years
thereafier As such, all members of the Board will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM having been appointed by the
Board during the year

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for the ABG Group's svstemn of internal control
and nisk management and for reviewing us effectiveness In ine with
thus responsibility, the Board has established ongomg processes and
systerns for idenufying, evaluating and managing those significant nsks
that the Group faces These systems were put n place as part of the IPO
process and their implementation has been progressed throughout the
year ABGS system of internal controls and nisk management takes imto
account the recommendanons contained in the Turnbull Guidance on
Internal Systems and Controls published by the Financial Reporting
Coungil in October 2005 (the “Turnbull Guidance’} The system 1s
designed to manage rather than ebnmunate the nisk of fallure to achzeve
ABG’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance aganst material msstatement or loss

The Board principally bases 1ls monitoning of internal controls on its
review of management reports and assessments and on the quarterly
reports it recerves on the status of ABG's internal control environment
This 1s supported by the nisk profile reviews that ABG’s Internal Audut
function carnes out to help the Board 1dentify and manage the most
significant nisks and events that could affect the Company’s operations,
financials and performance Where necessary, the Board 15 assisted by
its commuttees in reviewing ternal systems and contrels, particularly
the Audit commuttee which 1s responsible for reviewing the effeciveness
of the Group’s internal control and financial nsk management systems
An overview of ABG’s sk management systems and procedures is
provided on page 64

In compliance wath s obligations, the Board has conducted an annual
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management

and internal control systems This review has covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and complhance controls

In conjunction with ABG’ Internal Audst Function and members of the
Senuor | eadership Team, the Board has conducted a speafic assessment
of nternal controls for the purposes of this report This assessment
considered all sigmficant aspects of internal control ansing duning the
period covered by this report During the course of its review of the
system of internal control, the Board did not identify or hear of any
faihings or weaknesses which 1t determined to be matenal Therefore a
confirmation of any necessary actions undertaken 1s not required
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Going concern

The Board’s statemnent on gowng concern 1s included n the Financial
review on page 54

Relationstup with shareholders

Dialogue with the investment community

Members of the Board and serzor management met with a number
of internattonal investors as part of ABG's IPO process Since the

IPO, ABG has established a headquarters i London and appointed

a Head of Corporate Development and Investor Relations to manage
and develop the Company’s investor relahons programme The

Head of Corporate Development and Investor Relations 1s primanly
responsible for mamtatming ABG's ongomng relations with the investor
and shareholder communuty, acting as the primary pont of contact
for members of this commumty Dunng the course of 2010, ABG
conducted a number of international investor meetings and analyst
presentations ABG intends to meet with investors and analysts at least
twice a year to discuss Group performance and respond to quertes
ABG also conducts periodic telephone calls and meetings with the
mvestment community to discuss results, and participates i mining
conferences to meet with current and prospecuve mnvestors

in addition to ats annual and half-year reports, ABG publishes quarterly
reports to the market, which provide further information on production
and financial results, and updates on its business and operations

Majonty shareholder

ABG was a wholly owned subsidiary of Barrick prior to its [PO Barrick
continues to hold approximately 74% of ABG, making 1t the Group's
majonty shareholder As a result of this relationship, ABG continues

to have access to the Barrick Group for a number of support services
and recerves strategic shareholder support for its mttiatives and goals
ABG and Barrick executed a number of agreements and arrangements
as part of the 1PO process to ensure that thewr ongoing relationship

was appropnately structured, including a relationship agreement. The
prinaipal purpose of the relationship agreement 1s to ensure that ABG 1s
capable of carrying on 1ts business independently of the Barrick Group
and that transactions and relationships with the Barrick Group are
conducted at arm’s length and on normal commeraial terms

Under the terms of the relationship agreement, Barrick has agreed to
exercise its powers 5o far as possible o ensure that ABG 1s managed in
accordance with the Combined Code It has also agreed that it will not
exeraise its voting nights or powers which would cause ABG to breach
any of the key eligibility critena for its histing

Barrick 15 entitled to appoint Directors to the Board in line with
a shding scale that depends on Barrick’s percentage shareholding
Pursuant to the shding scale Barrick 15 entitled to appoint the higher of

» three Non-Executive Directors and the maximum number of Non-
Executive Directors that may be appointed while ensuring that the
composition of the Board remains compliant with the Combined
Code to the Board for so long as Barnick holds an interest in 40%
or more of the issued share capital or vouing nghts of ABG,




+ two Non-Executive Directors and one less than the maximum
number of Non-Executive Directors that may be appomnted while
ensunng that the composition of the Board remains comphiant with
the Combined Code, for so long as it has an interest in 25% or more
of the wssued share capital or voting rights of ABG, and

« one Non-Executive Director and two less than the maximum number
of Non-Executive Directors that may be appointed while ensuring that
the composition of the Board remains compliant with the Combined
Cade, for so long as 1t has an interest tn 15% or more in ABG

In addition, subject to certain exceptions and only for so long as Barnck
holds 30% or more of the 1ssued share capital or voting rights of ABG,
Barrick has undertaken that it shall not, and shall procure that other
members of the Barrick Group shall not, carry on the exploration of
gold or sitver in Afnica or acquure, whether through an asset purchase
or the purchase of securiies, a gold or silver muming business in Afnica
which competes with the Company, unless Barrick has first notified
ABG in writing of such opportunity If ABG indicates that 1t wishes

to pursue such opportumty within 15 business days of recerving the
notification, then neither Barrick, nor any other member of the Barnick
Group, shall pursue the opportumity unless the Company subsequently
decides not to pursue the opportunity or fails to do so within a
reasonable peniod of ime

ABG has given a reciprocal non-compete commitment to Barnick in
thus regard

The relationship agreement will continue for so long as ABG 1s histed on
the London Stock Exchange and Barnck owns or controls in aggregate
15% or more of 1its tssued share capital or voting nghts

AGM

ABGS first annual general meeting as a UK listed company wall

be held on 21 April 2011 at 2 00pm London ume The business of

the meeting will be conducted in accordance with Compamies Act
2006 requirements and standards promoted by the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Chawrman and the chairmen of each of ABG’s
Board commuttees will be available to answer questions put to them
by shareholders at the meeting The AGM Notice 15 included in the
documentation which has been provided with this report and 15 also
available on the Company's website in accordance with best practice,
the notice has been sent to shareholders at least 20 business days pnor
to the date of the meeting

Conflicts of mterest

Aaron Regent and Stephen Galbraith are nomnee Directors appomnted
by Barrick in hine with its nights under the relationshap agreement
These indviduals hold a number of cross-directorships wath members
of the Barrick Group In particular, Mr Regent 15 Chuef Executive
Officer of Barnick and Mr Galbranh s Managing Durector of Barrick
International (Barbados) Corporation These directorships and
positions give rise to situations i which these Directors could have a
direct or mdirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with
those of ABG

Greg Hawkuns, Kevin Jennings and other members of senior
management hold interests under Barrick’s restricted stock unit plan,
which are not deemed to be matenal interests and will ulimately be
replaced by tnterests under ABG's share plans

The Companes Act 2006 requires Directors to avoid situations where
they have, or can have, a direct or mdirect interest that conflicts, or
may passibly conflict, wath Company interests However, the Act docs
allow Directors of public compames to authorse conflicts and potential
confhcts of mterests where a company’s articles of association contain

a provision to that effect ABG's articles of association contain such
provision and a procedure for this In accordance with this procedure,
the conflicts outhned above were declared and authonised by the Board
prior to our [PO

The monutoring and, o appropriate, authonsation of any actual or
potential conflict of interest 1s an ongoing process Directors are
required to notify the Company of any matertal changes in positions
or situations that have already been considered and any new situations
In addition, Directors are required to declare interests in potential or
actual transactions and are required to abstain from voting on such
transactions, subject to permutted exceptions If a question arses as

to whether any interest of a Director prevents him or her from voting
or being counted 1n a quorum in the context of a potential or actual
transaction, the matter 1s referred to the Charrman, whose findings are
final and conclusive In the context of questions relating to any such
conflict of the Chairman, the question may ultimately be decided by

a resolution of the other Directors

Spearfically as regards Directors apponted by Barnick, the relatonship
agreement provides that if any transaction or arrangement arises
directly between a member of the Barnck Group and a member of the
ABG Group and does or could, in the opimion of a majonty of Directors
(excluding any Director(s) appomted by Barrick}, give nisc to a confhet
of interest between ABG and any Director apponted by Barrick, any
such matter must be approved and authonsed at a duly convened

Board meeting or in wnting by a majonity of Directors (excluding any
Dhrector(s) appownted by Barrick) prior to the Company taking further
action n relation to such matter

Save for the matters set out above, none of the Directors has any
notifiable confhet of interests between thewr ABG duties and their
private interests or other duties duning the reporting period
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Corporate governance report continued

UK Corporate Governance Compliance

ABG corporate governance practices are structured so as to comply
wherever possible with the requirements of the Combined Code and
the new UK Corporate Governance Code For the year under review,
this corporate governance report explains our governance structure on
the basis of the requirements of both the Combined Code and the UK
Corporate Governance Code For Listing Rule disclosure purposes, this
compliance statement focuses on relevant confirmations in respect of
the Combined Code Going forward ABG will only report against the
UK Corporate Governance Code, this being the version of the code that
applies to accounting pertods beginmng on or after 29 June 2010

ABGs shares were admutted to trading on the Main Market of the
London Stock Exchange and to the Official List of the Umted Kingdom
Lisung Authonity on 24 March 2010 Since ABG was listed for only part
of the year, this report explains how ABG has applied and comphed
with the main principles of the Combmed Code from the date of its
listing and throughout the following months of the reporting peniod

Since uts listing ABG has also complied with the detailed provisions of
the Combined Code, save in the following respects

+ ABG's Chairman, Mr Regent, was not independent on appointment
The Directors consider that given Mr Regent’s expertise i the industry,
tus famubiarity with the assets comprised within the ABG Group and
his leading role with Barnck, his presence as Chairman 1s in ABG's best
nterests, even though he was not independent on appomntment within
the meanmng of the Combined Code

« The Board and Chairman’s evaluation have yet to be undertaken
As all members of the Board were appointed for purposes of the
PO, in January/February 2010, the Board believes that a meaningful
evaluation of performance can only take place once the Directors have
had a reasonable amount of ume to work together An evaluation
process will therefore be implemented in the first half of 2011 for all
of the Board members sncluding the Charrman

ABG’s external audstor has reviewed those parts of this statement which
it 1s required to review under the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom
Lisung Authonty

Board commuttees

‘The Board has estabhished an Audit commuttee, a Compensation
commuttee, a Nomunation committee and an EHS&S commuttee

Audit commuitee

Meetings and attendance

The commuttee met four nmes dunng the year Details of members’
attendance can be found on page 75

The commuttee has asked the Chief Financial Officer, the ABG Group's
Financial Controller, members of the Treasury function, the Head of
Rusk and Internal Audst and the external auditor to attend commitiee
meetings on a regular basis During the year, the commuttee held
individual meetings with ABG’s external auditors and the Head of
Rusk and Internal Audst without management present ABG's auditors
and the Head of Risk and Internial Audit have direct access to the
commuttee chairman
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Audit commutiee

Andre Falzon, Audit commuttee chair

Members and responsibilities

The Audit commuttee 1s chaired by Andre Falzon Its other
members are James Cross and Michael Kenyon All commuttee
members are determined to be independent in accordance with UK
corpurate governance reuirements Mr Falzon 1s a semor financial
executive with over 25 years of practical financial and management
expenence within the rmning 1ndustry He 1s also a member of

the Certified General Accountants {Canada) and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants (Canada) As such, the Directors consider
that Mr Falzon has recent and relevam financial expenience for UK
corporate governance purposcs Further details of the qualifications
of each member of the commuttee are set out 1n the brographes
contained on pages 70-71

The commttee 1s scheduled to meet at Icast four times a year and
has responsibihity for, among other things

+ rewviewing Lhe Groups financial statements and momtonng
their integrity,

« overseeing the Group's relationslup with its external auditors,

« reviewing the effectiveness of the external audit process and
agreeing the scope of the external audstors’ annual audit
programme,

« monitoring the role and effectiveness of the internal audit
function and approving the appomntment and removal of the
Head of Internal Audit,

» reviewing the effectiveness of the ABG Group’s systems of
internal control and financial reporting risk management,

» making recommendations to the Board regarding the
arrangements for the appointment and removal of the external
auditor and the appropriateness of related terms of engagement
and remuneration, and

+ reviewing the independence and obyectrvity of the external auditor

Activities

As 2010 represents ABGS first year as a listed company, the commuttee’s
focus for the year was on the development and progression of internal
controls and audit procedures suitable for ABGS status Key work
undertaken by the commttee included the following

+ consideration and approval of the internal audit plan the commuttee
met regularly with the Head of Rusk and Internal Audit to review
and progress the Group’s internal audit charter and internal audst




plan The relevant audnt plan and procedures are aimed at addressing
financial and overall risk management cbjectives, and have been
prepared in accordance with standards promoted by the Institute

of internal Auditors The commuttee will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of internal audit plans 1in accordance with ABG's
ongoing requirements,

constderation and approval of the scope of external audit and related
processes the commttee met regularly with ABG’s auditors to agree
the scope of the external audit plan for 2010, overall ABG Group
audit fees and the process for approving external audit and rax
services The commuttee also approved the non-audit services to be
provided by ABG’s auditors for the year (PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, whose appointrment has been approved by the commuttee),

review of existing internal control procedures and the allocation

of responstbility for risk management in comunction with ABG’s
mternai audst and finanaal control funcuons, the committee
conducted a number of reviews of ABG5 systems and processes to
progress internal control matters It also conducted a review of the
allocation of nisk management oversight to ensure that responsibility
for overall nsk management and review 1s appropriately allocated
between the vanous components of ABG's governance structure

"The findings of these review procedures are n the process of being
incorporated 1nto ABG's risk management framework and were
provided as appropriate for discussion at Board level The commuttee
has reviewed 1ts terms of reference 1o reflect its responsibilitics in the
context of the review of internal control systems and financial nsk
management systems,

+ consideration and review of the full-year and half-year results

as part of this process, the commuttee met with ABG's auditors to
discuss and review the treatment and disclosure of matters identified
during the audit and half-year review and the recommendations or
observations made by ABG’s auditors

Non-audit services

The committee montors and approves the provision of non-audit
services by ABG’s auditors The provision of non-audit services is
generally hrmited to services that are dosely connected to the external
audit or to projects that require a detailed understanding of the ABG
Group Detais of fees payable for audit and non-audit services are
contained on page 128 1n Note 9 to the financial statements As part
of the audit assurance process, ABG’s auditors provide appropnate
confirmations on independence and objectinty, irrespective of any
non-audit servaces they provide

‘Terms of reference

The Audit commttee terms of reference are available for inspection
on ABG's website

s Uy

Andre Falzon, Audit commuttee chair

L]
Nomination commuittee

Derek Pannell, Nomanation commuttee chair

The Nomination commuttee 1s chaired by Derek Pannell Its other
members are Stephen Galbraith and Bobby Godsell The majonty
of the commuttee members are deterrmined to be independent, 1n
hne with UK corporate governance requrements Further detads of
the qualification of each member of the commuttee are set out m the
biographies contained on pages 70-71

The commuttee 1s scheduled 1o meet at least once a year It playsa
leading role in reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board. It has responsibility for making recommendations to ABG’s
Board on Board and commuitee composition and on the retirement
and appointment of additional and replacemnent Directors

The commutiee met once dunng the year Detads of members’
attendance can be found on page 75

In 2010, the selection process for Board appointments was
performed as part of the [PO process External recruitment
consultants were not used for this purpose Goiwng forward, the
committee will take the lead in identifying and nominating
candidates for Board appomiments to ensure that the composition
of the Board retains an appropriate balance of the skills and
experience required for ABG’s business and operations

The Nomination commuttee terms of reference are available for
inspectson on ABG's website

e

Derek Pannell, Nomination commuittee chair
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Corporate governance report continued

|
EHS&S commuttee

Bobby Godsell, EHS&S comnuitee chair

Members and responsibilities

The EHS&S comnuttee 1s chaired by Bobby Godsell Iis other
members are Stephen Galbraith and Derek Pannell Further details
of the qualifications of each member of the commuttee are set out 1n
the biographies contained on pages 70-71

‘The commuttee 15 scheduled to meet at least twice a year Tt s
responsible for, among other things

+ overseeing the development of strategy and policy on
environmental, CSR and security matters,

» reviewing the effectiveness of the ABG Group’s environmental
management programmes and systems,

+» reviewing the effectiveness of the ABG Group's health and safety
systems and specific madent reports,

« reviewing the scope of potential environmental habilities and the
rnanagement processes for managing these habihties,

reviewing management reports on ABG’s CSR programme,

* reviewing management reports on secunty inaidents and the
effectiveness of related controls, and

« overseeing managerment in monitoring reviews and evaluating

emerging CSR 1ssues to assess the potential impact on ABG's

business and operations

Meetings and attendance

The committee met three umes during the year Details of members’
attendance can be found on page 75

‘The commuttee has asked the Chuef Executive Officer, the Chief
Operating Officer, ABG's General Counsel and members of ABG
environmental, commaunity relations and security teams to attend
commuttee meetings on a regular basis

Activities

Activities in 2010 focused on tdentifying key CSR and environmental
initiatives and on reviewing the key challenges and nisks faced by ABG’s
operations, specifically in the context of fraud, corruption and secunty
Key work undertaken by the committee included

« reviewing terms of reference the commttee reviewed its terms of
reference and recommended that certain changes be made to reflect
1ts responsibility for reviewing security matters and incidents,
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« wdentifymg CSR and environmental priorstres throughout the year,
the commuttee collaborated with ABG’s management and CSR
function to review the Group’s CSR and environmental objectives and
mitratives 1n order 1o confirtn prionties for 2011 Prionties included
- enhancing existing commumity and government dialogue to
support ongoing stakeholder engagement,

- umplementing comphance across all mine sites with the
International Cyamde Management Code, and

- implementing further safety awareness traming and inadent-
reduction programmes

« non-financial risk review as part of ABG's overall nsk management
review, the commuittee recetved and reviewed reports on a number of
non-financial risks falling wathan its renmt, principally in connection
with environmental and security matters,

developing CSR and environmental pshicies the committee
commenced a progressive review of CSR and environmental policy
agamnst ABG strategy and objectives, and

» reviewing security and corruption controls the commuttee received
quarterly management reports on secunty incidents As part of this
review and reporting process, it identified a number of secunity
tmtiatives for 2011, which seek to strengthen and develop existing
systems and rewnforce the security environment 1n which ABG
operates [mtiatives include-

- further enhancement of site secunity infrastructure,

- increasing mvestigative and detection capacities, and

- continung the implementation and reinforcement of adherence to
the Voluntary Principles and security systems management

Terms of reference

The EHS&S commuitee terms of reference are available for inspection
on ABG’ website

Bobby Godsell, EHS&S commuttee chair

Compensalion commuttee

The Compensation commuttee 15 chaired by Michael Kenyon Its other
members are James Cross, Andre Falzon and Aaron Regent In line
with UK corporate governance requirements, three members of the
commuttee are determuned by the Board to be independent. Further
details of the qualifications of cach member of the committee are set
out 1n the biographies contained on pages 70-71

The commuttee 15 scheduled to meet at least once a year and met four
times duning the year Details of members’ attendance can be found
on page 75

The Directors’ remuneration report on pages 87-95 contains further
nformation on the commuttee’s role, responsibilities and activities
throughout the course of 2010




Directors’ report

ABG 15 1incorporated and registered as a public limited company in England
and Wales Its headquarters are in London and 1t 1s histed on the Main Market

of the London Stock Exchange under the symbol ABG

Principal activities

With 16 8 mullion ounces of reserves, the ABG Group 1s the largest

gold producer i Tanzama and the fifth largest in Africa, growing

from no production 1n 2000 to approxmmately 701,000 attnbutable
ounces 1n 2010 It has four producing mines, all located in north west
Tanzania, and seven principal exploration projects The ABG Group has
substantial gold mimng experience and expertise, from exploration and
development through to mine construction and operation

Our four mines are

» Bulyanhulu an underground gold mine, which began production
in Apnil 2001,

Burwag: an open pit gold mine, which began production n

May 2009,

+ North Mara an epen pit gold mine consisting of three open pit
deposits, which began production in Apnl 2002, and

Tulawaka an open pit gold mine, which has transitioned to an
underground operation It began production 1n June 2005

The recent focus of ABG’s exploration has been on advancing the
exploration oppertunities around its exasting operating mines, 1n order
to increase the Company’s reserves and resources

Further details of ABG Group’s actiities are provided 1n the Overview
and Performance sections of this report Details of ABG’ registered
office and business locations are provided on the back cover

Business review
The requirements of the business review are contained 1n the Overview

and Performance sections of this report

An overview of the prinaipal nisks and uncertainties faced by the
ABG Group 1s provided on pages 65-69

See pages 56-63 for infermation on environmental, employee and
social and community matters

All of the matters above are incorporated by reference in this
Drrectors’ Report

Directors
The names and biographies of the Directars serving at the date of this
report are provided on pages 70-71

An overview of Directors” appointments for the duration of the year
under review 1s provided below

Date of Appointment Date of Termunation

Aaron Regent 15 February 2010 N/A
Greg Hawkuns 15 February 2010 N/A
Kevin Jennings 14 January 2010 NIA
James Cross 15 February 2010 N/A
Andre Falzon 15 February 2010 N/A
Stephen Galbraith 19 January 2019 N/A
Bobby Godsell 15 February 2010 N/A
Michael Kenyon 15 February 2010 N/A
Derek Pannell 15 February 2010 N/A

All Directors will put themselves forward for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM Details of Director re-election requirements are
provided on page 76

Catherme Boggs was appointed to the Board on 14 January 2010 and
resigned from the Board on 19 January 2010 as part of the preparations
for ABG’s [PO Paul Buchanan was appointed to the Board on

19 January 200 He ressgned from the Board on 15 I'ebruary 2010

as part of IPO preparatons

Directors indemnity insurance

In accordance with ABGS articles of association and to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act 2006, ABG may indemnify its
Directors out of s own funds to cover hiabiliies incurred as a result
of therr office The relevant provision contained in the Articles can
be categonised as a ‘qualifying third party indemmity proviston’ under
the Companies Act 2006 As part of [PO preparattons, ABG adopted
Directors’ and Officers’ habihity insurance This provides insurance
cover for any claim brought against Directors or officers for wrongful
acts in connection with thewr positions The insurance provided does
not extend to claims arising from fraud or dishonesty and it does not
provide cover for il or criminal fines or penalties imposed by law

Directors interests

Details of the interests of Directors and ther connected persons
in ABG’s shares or mn related denvates or finanaal instruments are
outhined in the Directors’ Remuneratton report on pages 87-95
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Directors’ report continued

Employee share schemes

Details of ABG’s employee share plans and long-term incentive plans
are contained on pages 89 and 90

Employees

Information relating to employees 1s contained on page 126 in Note 6 to
the financial statements and the corporate responsibdity section ABG
abides by anti-discnmination legislation in all junisdictions i which it
operates These principles are also set out 1n ABG’s Code of Conduct
which sets out the framework 1n which ABG expects all staff to operate
This 15 supported by anu-discnmination standards and training in
offices and mune sites which 1dentfy the required standards and prowide
mechanisms to raise any concerns with management

Dividends

An intenim dimdend of US1 6 cents per share was paid to shareholders
on 27 September 2010 The Directors recommend the payment off

a final dinndend of US3 7 cents per share Subject to shareholders’
approval of this recommendation at the AGM, the dividend will be paid
on 26 May 2011 to sharcholders on the register at 3 May 2011 The ex-
dividend date 1s 27 April 2011

ABG will declare the final dividend 1n US dollars Unless a shareholder
has elected or elects to receive dividends in US dollars, dividends will be
paid 1n pounds sterhing with the US dollar amount being converted nto
pounds sterling at exchange rates prevailing on or around 9 May 2011
Currency elections must be made by return of currency election forms
by the deadline date of 6 May 2011

Annual General Meeting

ABGs first AGM wall be held on 21 Apnil 2011 at the InterContinental
London Park Lane at 1 Hamuton Place, Park Lane, London W1] 7QY
Ihe notice of AGM and all accompanying details of business to be
conducted there are included 1n a separate document accompanying
this report, they are also available on ABG's website www
afticanbarrickgold com

The right of a shareholder to participate in the business of the AGM
shall include without hmutation the right to speak, vote on a show of
hands, vote on a poll, be represented by a proxy and have access to
all documents which are required by the Companies Act 2006 or the
articles of association to be made available to the meeting

Share capital

As at 31 December 2010, ABG's issued share capital comprised
410,085,499 Ordanary Shares of 10 pence each The votng nghts of all
ABG shares are identical, with each share carrying the right to one vote
ABG holds no Ordinary Shares 1n Treasury and does not have any class
of share other than its Ordinary Shares Further details on voung nights
and rights refating to the transfer of shares are provided below

ABG?s articles of association provide the authority for ABG to purchase
its own shares (ancluding any redeemable preference shares), provided
that 1t comphes with any applicable requirements contaned n the
Compantes Act 2006, the CREST regulations or any other applicable
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law ABG did not obtain any shareholder approval to repurchase any
of iis 1ssued shares duning the year under review

Details of ABG's 1ssued share capital and any movements during the
year are included on page 137 in Note 23 to the financial statements
Mayor shareholdings

The following persons as at 1 March 2011 are inferested 1n the following
percentages of ABG’s 1ssued ordimary share capital

Percentage

of 1ssued

Name No. of shares share capital
Barnck Internatuonal (Barbados) Corp 179,609,530 43 80
PDG Bank Limited 37,378,450 915
PDG Sona (Cayman) Ltd 86,258,970 2100
Total 303,246,950 7395

All of these shareholders are members of the Barnck Group

Relationship with major shareholder

An overview of ABG's relationshup with Barrick and the relationship
agreement that has been executed 1n respect of their ongoing
relationshup 1s provided on pages 76 and 77

Political and charitable donations

ABG does not make political denatiens During the year under review,
the ABG Group expended US$3 5 miliion on social and commumity
welfare activities surrounding 1ts operations

Creditor payment policy

It 1s ABG policy to settle all debts with creditors on a imely basisand
it accordance with terms and conditions agreed 1n advance with each
creditor Further detauls on trade creditors are provided on page 138
1n Note 25 to the financial statements

Suppliers

It 1s ABG’ policy that, subject to comphance with trading terms by the
supplier, payments are made in accerdance with terms and conditions
agreed i advance with the suppher

As at 31 December 2010 ABG had an average of 51 creditor days for
the ABG Group compared 10 46 1n 2009

Pohicy on denvataves, financial instruments and financial
risk management

AB(s policies on financial nsk management, denvatives, financial
mnstruments and nformation on its exposures to foreign currency,
commodity prices, credit, equity, iquidity and interest rates can be
found in Notes 27, 28 and 29 1o the financtal statements contained
on pages 139-144 of this report




Matenal agreements containing change of control provisions

The Directors consider the following as matenial agreements and
arrangements for ABG’s business and operations, which contain
provisions which alter or termunate on a change of control of ABG

+ Services Agreement as part of its [PO preparations, ABG entered
mnto a services agreement with Barrick under which Barnck provides
certain services to ABG and the other members of the ABG Group
for the ongoing operation of the busimess These services include
support for informatien technology, techmcal services, secunty and

other adminustrative and corporate functions The services agreement

provides that the services are to be provaded to the ABG Group
for an initial period of 12 months and will continue in force unless
termunated The agreement’s termination events include a basis for
either party to terminate the agreement with immedsate effect in the
event of speaified breaches of the agreement, msolvency or analogous
events or a change of control

« Relatonship Agreement see pages 76 and 77 of this report for an
overview of the Relationship Agreement

s+ Credit Agreement an overview of the credit agreement between,
among others, ABG and Citibank International ple as adrmmistrative
agent, 1s provided on page 53 of this report A change of control of
ABG 1s a mandatory prepayment event under the credit agreement
and, subject to certain exceptions, a termnation event

ABG’s mining concessions are held by its operating companues in
Tanzania Under apphcable law, a change of control of the operating
companies requires the consent of the Mirnster of Energy and Minerals
in Tanzama

There are no agreements 1n place between ABG and its Directors
or employees which provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a change of control of ABG

Special provistons also allow the early exercise of awards made
under ABG’ Stock Option Plan and early vesting of awards made
under ABG’s Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP?), in the event of a
takeover, reconstruction or windmgup In such crrcumstances, the
Compensation committee determunes whether and to what extent
options or awards become exercisable, by taking into account all
relevant facts and aircumstances including, but not himited to,
satisfaction of any applicable performance cordition

When determining the vesting of LTIP awards or aptions, the
committee may proportionately reduce the award depending on the
time which has elapsed between the first day of the performance
period and the date of change of control. Alternatively, awards may
be exchanged for new equivalent awards where appropnate

Signthcant relationships

ABG’s relationship with Barnck as its majonty shareholder 1s summansed

on pages 76 and 77 of this report. In addition to thss relationship,
the Directors consider the following contractual relationships and
arrangements as essential for the conduct of ABG's business

+ Tulawaka Agreement although the Tulawaka mne 15 100% owned
and operated by Pangea Minerals Limuted, the econormic wnterest in

the mune 15 divided on a 70 30 basis following a 1998 contractual yoint

venture agreement between Pangea Goldftelds Inc, an ABG Group

company, (PGI) and MDN Inc (MDN) The Tulawaka Agreement
provides that all capnial and operating costs associated with the
Tulawaka mune are funded by PGl and MDN on a 70 30 basis, and
that PGl 1s contractually obligated to pay MDN an amount equal
to 30% of the net cash generated by the Tulawaka mine, less any
apphicable wrthholding

» Mineral development agreements each ABG Group operating
mune has a mineral development agreement (MDA) with the
Tanzanian government The material terms and conditions of each
such MDA are substantially similar and include provisions governing
royaliy payments, taxes and other charges, banking arrangements,
local procurement obhigations, and import nghts The MDAs also
provide for no expropriation or nationalisation rights Broadly these
nights provide that the [anzaman government will not nationalise
or compulsonly acquire the whole or any part of ABG’s nterest in
the applicable special mining hcences or any of 1ts property or its
contractors” or subcontractors’ property used for the purpose of
mining operations or m relabon to the applicable special mimng
licences, without adequate compensatton Each MDA 1s governed by
‘Tanzaman law Adherence to the terms and conditions of the MDAs
15 of significant importance to ABG's business, given the agreements
overall importance to our operations

« TANESCO relationship. The North Mara, Buzwag and Bulyanhulu
munes rely upon electncal power generated by the state power unlity
company, TANESCO While North Mara and Buiyanhulu have
diesel power generat:on facilities on site capable of supporting their
operations, Buzwagt does not have such self-generation capacity
and there 1s no readily available alternative power supply to the
national gnd ABG has entered 1nto a number of agreements and
arrangements with TANESCO 1n respect of power supply and
purchase prices These agreements are reviewed on a regular basis
As national electricity generation and transrmission systems 1n
Tanzama are himited, ABG’s ongoing relatienship with TANESCO
1s of significant importance to its operations and business Any
adverse change or development 1n this relationship could produce
a material adverse effect on ABG’ operations, performance and
financial condition

All other matenal contracts and arrangements are summanised above,
under ‘Matenal agreements contaiming change of control provisions’

Going concern

The Directors” statement on gomng concern 1s contained on page 54
of this report

Corporate governance compliance

The statement on comphance with the Combined Code for the
reporting penod 15 contaned on page 78 of this report

Articles of association

The Company’s articles of association may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders

Shareholder nghts

The nghts and obligations attaching to the Ordinary Shares contained
n ABG’s articles of association are as follows
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Directors’ report continued

Voung rights

Subject to any special nghts or voting restrictions contained w the
articles of association for any class of share, at any general meeting every
member who 1s present 1n person or by proxy shall on a show of hands
have one vote and every member present in person or by proxy shall on
a poll have one vote for each share of which he or she 15 the holder

A resolution put to a vote of the meeting shall be decrded on a show

of hands, unless a poll 1s duly demanded. Subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, a poll may be demanded by the Chairman,
by at least five members who have the right to vote at the mecung, by a
member or members representing not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights of all the members having the night to vote at the meeting,
or by a member or members holding shares conferring a night to vote
at the meeting, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid
up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum pard up on all the
shares confernng that nght

Unless the Directors otherwise determine, a shareholder 15 not entitled
to vote at 2 shareholders’ meeting, either 1n person or by proxy, or

to exercise any other nght conferred by membership in relation to a
shareholders’ meeting, unless and untal all calls or other sums presently
payable by ham 1n respect of that share with interest and expenses (if
any) have been paid to ABG or 1f he or any other person appearing to
be interested in shares has been 1ssued with a notice pursuant to Section
793 of the Compantes Act 2006 (requuring cisclosure of mterest in
shares) and has faded to provide the required information within 14
days from the service of the notice

Dividend nghts

The Board may declare and pay dividends on any class of shares
carrying a fixed dividend expressed 1o be payable on fixed dates and
may from time to ime pay intenm dividends as 1t thinks fit Final
dividends shall be declared by ordinary shareholder resolution, 1n
accordance with Board recommendations No dividend declared by
shareholders shatl exceed the amount recommended by the Board

Provided that the Board acts in good faith, it shall not incur any Lablity
to shareholders for any loss that they may suffer by the lawful payment
of any fixed or interim dividend on any shares ranking after or pars
passu with those shares

Except as otherwise provided by the nghts attached to shares, all
dividends shall be apportioned and pard proportionately to the amounts
paid up on the shares during any portion or portions of the period 1n
respect of which the dividend 1s pard, but if any share 1s 1ssued on terms
providing that 1t shall rank for dividend as from a particular date, 1t
shall rank for dividend accordingly No amount paid up on a share in
advance of the date on which a call is payable shall be treated as paid up
on the share

Payment of any dimdend declared may be satisfied wholly or partly by
the distribution of specific assets, and 1n particular of pard up shares or
debentures of ABG, with shareholder approval
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The Directors may retain any dividend or other money payable on

or in respect of a share on which ABG has a lien and may apply the
same towards satisfaction of the monies payable to ABG in respect of
that share

Unless the Directors otherwise determine, the payment of any dividend
or other money that would otherwise be payable in respect of shares
will be withheld, and ABG shall have no obligation to pay interest on 1t,
if such shares represent at least 0 25% of the nominal value of the 1ssued
share capital of therr dass and the holder, or any other person appearing
to be interested in those shares, has been 1ssued with a Section 793
notice and has failed to supply the information requured by such notice
within 14 days Furthermore, such aholder shall not be entitled to elect
to receive shares mstead of a dividend

‘The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other montes
on or in respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute
ABG a trustee in respect thereof All dvidends unclaimed for a peniod
of 12 years afier having been declared or become due for payment shali
be forferted and shall revert to ABG

Transfer of shares

Subject to any applicable restrictions, each member may transfer all or
any of his or her shares, which are 1n certificated form, by instrument
of transfer in writing 1n any usual form or tn any other form acceptable
10 the Board and may be under hand only Such instrument shall be
executed by or on behalf of the transferor and {in the case of a transfer
of a share which 15 not fully paid up} by or on behalf of the transferee
The transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such share until
the name of the transferee 15 entered in the register n respect of it

All transfers of shares which are in uncertificated form shall, unless the
CREST regulations otherwise provide, be effected on a relevant system

The Dhrectors may, in their absolute discretion and without giving
any reason, refuse to register any transfer of a share 1n ceruficated form
(or renunciation of a rencunceable letter of allotment) unless

(1) 1tisn respect of a share which 1s fully paid up,

{u) 1t 1s 1n respect of only one class of shares,

{m)1t 15 1n favour of not more than four joint transferees,

(1) 1t is lodged duly stamped (if so required) at the transfer office,

{v) 1t 15 accompamed by the relevant certificate for the shares to which
it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably
require to prove the title of the transferor and the due execution of
the transfer or, if the transfer is executed by some other person on
his behalf, the authonity of that person to do so, and

(v1} 1n the case of partly paid shares listed on the London Stock
Exchange, such refusal would prevent dealings 1n such shares from
taking place on an open and proper basis




Unless the Board otherwise determnes, a transfer of shares wall not

be registered if the transferor or any other person appeanng o be
interested 1n the transferor’s shares has been ssued with Section 793
shares 1n respect of shares representing at least 0 25% of their class and
the relevant information has not been supplied within 14 days Thus
restriction on transfer wall not automatrcally apply 1f the member 15 not
personally in default as regards supplying the information required and
the proposed transfer 1s only part of the member’s holding, provided
that certain requirements are satisfied at the ime of presenting the
transfer for registration

Division of ABG assets on a winding up

If ABG 1s wound up, the liqindator may, with the sanction of a
shareholder special resolutton, divide the whole or any part of ABG’s
assets between shareholders In such circumstances the liquidator may
value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as
between the shareholders or different classes of shareholder Subject to
certain requirements, the liquidator may also vest any part of the assets
1n trustees on such trusts for the benefit of the shareholders, but no
sharehclder shall be compelled to accept any assets on which there 1s

a hability

Vanation of nights

If at any time the share capital of ABG 15 dmaded into shares of different
classes, rights attached to a class may only be vaned in such manner

(f any) as may be provided by prescnbed nights or, in the absence of any
such provision, either with the consent in writing of the holders of not
less than three-quarters i nommat value of the 1ssued shares of the class
or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general
meeting of the holders of shares of the class duly convened and held

Powers of Directors

Managing the business

ABG’s business 1s managed by the Board, and the articles of association
perm the Board to exercise all of ABG's powers in this regard These
powers may be exercised by any meeting of the Board at which a
quorum of two Directors 15 present The power of the Board to manage
the business 1s subject to any imitations imposed by the Companes
Act, the articles of association or any directions given by spectal
resolution of the shareholders applicable at a relevant tume

The articles contain an express authonty for the appomtment of
Executive Directors and provide the Directors with the authority to
delegate or confer upon such Directors any of the powers exercisable by
them upon such terms and conditions and wath such restnictions as they
see fit The articles contan additional authonties to delegate powers and
discretions to commuttees and subcommuttees

Borrowmg powers

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the CREST
regulations and any other applicable law, the Directors may exercise ail
the powers of ABG to borrow money, guarantee, indemmufy, mortgage
or charge its undertaking, property (present and future) and uncalled
capital or any part or parts thereof and tssue debentures and other
securities, whether outnight or as collateral secunity for any debt,

habihity or obhigation of ABG or of any third party up to a maximum
amount of two times the aggregate of the ABG Group's adjusted total
equty, calculated 1n accordance with the procedure contained in the
articles of association Borrowings 1n excess of this amount requure
prior shareholder approval

New issues of shares

The articles of associatron provide the Dhrectors with a general and
unconditional authonty to allot new shares up to @ maxaimum amount
of one-third of ABG’s 1ssued Ordinary Share capital for the period
ending on the date of the forthcoming AGM Pursuant to this, the
Directors are empowered to allot any new equuty securities wholly for
cash pursuant to and within the terms of the allotment authority on a
non-pre-emptive basis if the allotment 1s made in connection with a
rights tssue or, 1f not, up to a maximum aggregate amount that 1s equal
to 5% of ABG’ 1ssued Ordinary Share capital The related authonty to
allot shares on a non-pre-empuve basis also expires on the date of the
forthcoming AGM These powers were not exercised durning the year
under review

These powers are capable of renewal by shareholder resoluuion
Resolutions for a renewal will be put to the sharcholders at the
forthcormng meeting

Appomntment and replacement of Directors

Shareholders may appoint any person who 1s willing to act as a Director
by ordinary resolution and may remove any Director by ordinary
resolution The Board may appoint any persen to fill any vacancy or as
an additional Director, provided that they are submuitted for re-electton
by the shareholders at the AGM following their appointment

Each Director shall retire at the AGM held 1n the third calendar

vear following his or her election and subsequent re-elections Non-
Executive Directors shall also retire at each AGM following the minth
anniversary of the date of their initial election  All retinng Directors
shall be ehgible for election or re-election unless otherwise determined
by the Board.

Spealfic conditions apply to the vacation of office, including cases where
a Director becomes prohibited by law or regulation from holding office,
or 1s persistently absent from Directors” meetings, or if three-quarters
of appointed Directors request hus or her resignation or 1n the case of
mental incapacity or bankruptcy

Barmick’s nghts to appoimnt Directors are summansed on page 76

Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions undertaken dunng the year are
contained :n Note 32 on pages 146-147 of the financial statements
Post balance sheet events

Particulars of any inportant events affecting the Company or the
ABG Group since the year end are contaned 1n Note 34 on page 147
of the financial statements
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Directors’ report continued

Audit information

Having made the requusite enquuries, so far as the Directors are aware
there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418(3}
of the Companies Act 2006) of which the auditors are unaware and
each Director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as
a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to estabhish that the auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

ABG’s audutors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) A resolution to
reappoint PwC as auditors will be proposed at the forthcorming AGM
Refer to page 101 as part of the financial statements for the Independent
Auditors’ report

Directors’ responsibilities statement

Under apphcable UK law, the Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report, the Directors’ Report, the Remuneration report and the
financial statements 1 accordance wath applicable law and regulation

Responsibihity for financial statements

The Compamies Act 2006 requires the Directors to prepare financral
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and parent company financial statements i
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the Furopean Umon Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the ABG Group and the
Companv and of the profit or loss of the ABG Group for that peniod

In prepaning these financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select sustable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« make judgements and accounung estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

- state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financal statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
1t 1$ inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’ transactions and
disclose wath reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial posiion of
the Company and the ABG Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the ABG Group’s financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the ABG Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

The Directors arc responsible for the maintenance and integnity of
ABG's websute and legislation in the Umited Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemunation of financial statements may differ from
legtslation in other yunisdictions

Responsibility statement required by Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The Directors confirm to the best of ther knowledge that

+ the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with applicable
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, habihties,
financial positton and profit or loss of ABG and the undertakings
mcluded in the consohdation as a whole; and

« the management report, which 15 incorporated into the Directors’
report, 1ncludes a fair review of the development or performance of
the bustness and the position of ABG and the undertakings mcluded
n the consohidation as a whole, together with a description of the
principal nisks and uncertainties that they face

Approval of Directors Report
This report has heen approved by the Board and signed on 1its behalf by

Katrina White, Company Secretary




Remuneration report

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, 1 am pleased to present the Directors’ report
on remuneration for 2010, for which we will be secking approval from
shareholders at our Annual General Meeting

The Compensation commuttee 1s focused on ensunng the remuneration
policy enables the Group to attract, retain and motivate the executive
talent required for the successful delivery of our business strategy

ABG listed on the London Stock Exchange in March 2010, following
its part demerger from Barrick, whuch 15 listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange (ABX) Our remuneration arrangements for 2010 were
largely inhenited from Barnck,

During 2010, the commuttee reviewed ABG’s remuneration levels with
reference to the international gold mining compames with which we
compete for talent, and against FTSE compames of similar size and
complexity Based on this review the commuttee approved the following
satary mcreases

« Chief Executive Officer 1ncrease to £450,000 (12 5%), and
« Chuef Financial Officer mcrease to £327,000 (9%)

In the coming year, the comnuttee 1s commutted to further reviewing
the Company’s remuneration practices to ensure that our executive
remuneration arrangements conunue to be appropriate for our
particular circumstances and as a UK-hsted company In this way, we
will ensure that we continue to attract, retain and motivate the executive
talent required to ensure that we deliver long-term shareholder value

bl Ky

Michael Kenyon,
Chairman of the Compensation commuitee
10 March 2011

Audit notes

In accordance with Section 421 of the Compames Act 2006 and
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companzes and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulatons 2008 (the ‘Regulations’), the
following sections of the Annual Report have been audited Directors’
Remuneration, Directors’ Interests in Shares under the ABG Long Term
Incenuve Plan, Directors’ Interests 1n options under the ABG Share
Option Plan The remaimng sections are not subject to audit

L
CClmPCﬂSiltlDH committee
The commuttee’s pnncipal responsibihues are

=« setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval
the Company’s overall remuneratton policy and strategy,

+ setting, reviewing and approving individual remuneration
arrangements for the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Chuef TNnanaal Officer, including terms and conditions of
employment and any changes,

= setting, reviewing and approving individual remuneration
arrangements for the sentor managers including terms and
conditions of employment and any changes, after considening
the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer The
comnuttee mn consultation with the Chief Executive Officer shall
be responsible for determming which employees compnise the
SEnior managers,

approving the rules, and launch, of any Company share, share
option or cash-based incentive scheme and the grant, award,
allocation or 1ssue of shares, share opticns or payments under any
such scherne,

« setting, reviewing and approving the corporate and indwvidual
performance goals for the Chief Executive Officer and Chuel
Finanaial Officer,

+ setting, reviewing and approving the corporate and indvidual
performance goals for the sentor managers based on the
Chuef Fxecutive Officer’s recommendations,

+ assessing the achievement of corporate and individual

performance goals of the Cluef Fxecutive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and sentor managers,

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board with
regard to succession planmng with respect to the Chief Executive
Officer and other senior managers,

ensuring that all previsions regarding disclosure of remuneration
including pensions, as set out 1n the UK Corporate Governance
Code and the Listing Rules and as required in connection with
the preparation of the Directors’ remuneration report, are
fulfilled, and

establishing the selection cnterta, selecting, appointing and
setting the terms of reference for any remuneration consultants
who advise the commuttee, and obtaiming reliable, up-to-date
information about remuneration 1n other companes
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Remuneration report continued

The full terms of reference of the Compensation committee can be
found on the ABG website and copies are avalable on request

The committee compnses the Chairman of the Board and three
independent Non-Executive Directors [t meets on at least one occasion
each year and at such other umes as the Chairman of the commuttee
requires The members dunng the year were

« Michael Kenyon {Chairman)
« James Cross

» Andre Falzon

« Aaron Regent

Each member’s attendance at meetings held during the year 1s set
out 1n the Corporate Governance Report on page 75 The following
individuals attend meetings by tnvitation and provide advice to the
commuttee to enable it to make informed decisions,

« Greg Hawlans, Chuef Executive Officer, and
« Kobus van Vuuren, Head of Human Resources

No Director is present when his or her own remuneration 1s
being discussed

The commuttee also meets without management and receives
information and advice from Kepler Associates, an independent
executive remuneration consultancy firm appointed by the commttee
n 2010 Durning 2010, Kepler Associates provided advice to the
committee on market trends, remuneration benchmarking and other
remuneration 1ssues Kepler Associates does not advise the Company
on any other issues

Remuneration policy

ABG’ fundamental goal 1s to create value for its shareholders In
serving this goal, the Company’s remuneration policy 15 designed with
the following objectives in mind

» to align the interests of Executive Directors with the short- and long-
term interests of shareholders,

» to link executive remuneration to the performance of the Company
and the individual,

« to leverage performance through emphasis on vanable remuneration
to reinforce key business imperatives and strategy,

- to reinforce the key elements of the Company’s strategy and align the
Executive team with the strategy, and

s 1o remunerate the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Nnancial Officer
and senior managers at a level and in a manner that ensures that
ABG s capable of attracting, motivating and retaining talent

In definming the Company’s remuneration policy, the Compensation
commuttee takes nto account advice received from external consultants
and also best practice gumdelines set by institutional shareholder bodies,
including the principles and guidelines on executive remuneratton
1ssued by the Associatron of British Insurers (ABI) and the provisions
of schedule A of the Combined Code

To implement the policy, ABG utihses three complementary
performance-related incentive schemes for executives
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« the Short Term Incentive (STT) — 15 designed to focus executives
on the business prierities of the financial year and 1o reinforce the
wndrdual and Company performance ethu,
« the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) — arms to motvate participants
to maximuse total shareholder return (TSR) as measured against a
comparator group of international gold muning companes over a
period of three years, and
the Stock Option Plan (SOP) - aims to dnive shareholder value over
the long term and encourage retention

The three schemes complement each other and enable the measurement
and reward of both short- and long-term performance The commuttee
considers that the three-year vesting period for the LTIP 15 appropriate
as a measure of long-term performance, and that the phased vesting
period over four years for the SOP 1s appropnate to encourage retention

Activiies in 2010

During 2010, the Compensation commuttee carried out the
following activities

« review of updates on the regulatory, legislative and governance
environment for executive remuneration,

« review of competitive assessment of the remuneration arrangements
for the Chief Executive Officer, Chuef Financial Officer and Semuor
Managers for 2011,

« approval of remuneration arrangements for the Head of Corporate
Development and Investor Relations, the Chief Operating Officer and
the General Counsel and Company Secretary,

+ review and approval of 2010 individual performance, forecast of 2010
corporate performance resulls, and pay recommendations for the Chief
Executive Officcr, Chued Fanancial Officer and Semor Managers, and

+ approval of 2011 salary increases, STI payouts for 2010 and LTIP and
SOP awards for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial QOtficer,
Semior Leadership Team and other semior managers

Components of remuneration

The current remuneration package for Executrve Directors comprises
performance-related and non-performance-related components The
performance-related components are the incentive schernes referred to
above and the non-performance-related components are base salary,
taxable beriefits and pension entitlements Pay and employment condions
elsewhere 1n the Group have been taken into account by the commuttee in
determimung the remuneration packages for Executve Directors

The proportion of cach Executive Director’s totat remuneration that 1s
performance-related 1s significant even for target performance For stretch
petformance, the proportion of total remuneration that 1s performance-
related 15 hugher, as1s the total amount of remuneration payable

The average proportton of remuneration (including pension) that was
performance-related 1n 2010 1s llustrated by the following chart In
estimating the relative importance of those elements of remuneration
that are, and those that are not, performance-related, a number of
assumptions have had to be made about the Company’s share price
growth and TSR, relative to the Company’s comparator group, over the
next three years




Base salanes

Executive Directors’ salaries are reviewed each year with any changes
normally taking effect from 1 January This review takes into account
individual performance and market competiiveness Pensionable salary
1s derived from base salary only

In line with our remuneration policy, the commuttee benchmarks
Executive Dhrectors’ salanes against comparator groups, which, for the
2010 salary review, were international gold mining, general muning
and FTSE-listed comnpanies of similar size and complexity For 2011,
Executive Director salaries will be between the lower quartile and
median for these comparator groups

The commuttee approved the following 2011 salary increases for
kxecutive Directors

Increase on

2011 salary 2010 salary

Chuef Executive Officer £450,000 12 5%
Chief Financial Officer £327,000 9%

Short Term Incentive (STT)

The Group operates a cash-based STI, which in 2010 prownided an
incentive opportunity 1n the range of 09 to 150% of base salary for
Executive Directors For 20i1 the committee approved the following
STT opportunities for the Executive Directors

2011 target 2011 manmum
$T1 epportunity  STI opportunity

Chuef Executrve Officer 75% 150%
Chief Financial Officer 75% 150%

At the start of each incentive year, the Board will set challenging budget
and stretch financial performance targets and the commuttee endorses
other performance measures, notably with respect to health, safety

and environmental indicators Short-term incentives at the higher end
of the range are payable only for demonstrably superior Group and
indmdual performance

For the Executive Directors, the performance measures for the 2010
ncentive year were weghted on Group measures, including safety,
environment, security, government relations, community relations,
human resources, comphance, production, operating costs, capital
reserves, projects, the IPO, investor relations and earnings

In determimung the actual incentive payment, the commuttee considers
these results aga:nst the context of the overall performance of the
business and of the indnadual The review of the overall performance
of the business takes into consideration such factors as operational
performance, strategy and business development activities and
performance aganst industry peers The review of individual
performance takes into consideration achievements against the
individual’s personal performance contract

For the 2010 incentive year, taking into account overall business

and individual performance, the commuttee has awarded the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer STI payments of 90%
and 88% of base salary respectively

Long-term tncentives

For 2010, to ensure contimnty during the first year of hsting since ABG's
PO, the long-term incentive plans are broadly commensurate with
those of Barnick. Over the next 12 months, the commuttee will review the
Company’s long-term incentive offering to ensure that going forward 1t
takes into account accepted UK executive remuneration practices

The rules of the LTIP and SOP cach perrmt a maximurn award with a face
value equal to 2009 of salary 1n each year under normal circumstances
The commuttee may exceed this imst in exceptional circumstances The
award 15 delvered 50% through the LTIP and 50% through the SOP for
the year-end award The target combined award granted dunng 2010 was
170% of salary for the Chief Txecutive Officer and 148% of salary for the
Chief Financial Officer This includes the post admussion grant awards

Long Term Incentive Plan (L11P)

A lumited number of Semor Managers are allocated Company shares
under the LTIP The Companys TSR performance aganst the market
cap-weighted average TSR of a comparator group of companies over a
three-year performance penied commencing on the date of grant will
determine what proportion of the allocated shares will be transferred
mto the ownership of the employee There is no retest provision

In the event of a change of control, vesting of shares under the LTIP
15 not automatic and would depend upon the extent to which the
performance conditions had been met at the ime

For the 2010 LTIP allocations, the comparator group comprises 16
companies The commttee considers that this group represents an
appropnate set of international gold mining companies against which
ABG's performance could be compared by shareholders
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Remuneration report continued

The companies 1n the comparator group are as follows

Agnico-Eagle Mines Yamana Gold
Centamm Egypt Goldfields

Eldorado Gold AngloGold Ashanti
Harmony Gold Ziin

Tamgold Minas Buenaventura
Petropavlovsk Kinross

Randgold Resources Polyus Gold

Semafo Centerra Gold

The comnuttee reviews this comparator group from time to time and
intends to do so before making future allocations under the LTIP

‘The commuttee has set the following performance conditions for
allocations made under the LTIP

ABG's TSR % outperformance of comparator % of allocated
group weighted mean over three years shares ransferred
+20% 2x target
0% Target
-12 5% 0 5x target

Below -12 5% All allocated shares are forfeited

Where performance 15 between the above levels, the percentage of
shares to be transferred 1s determuned on a proportionate basis

These performance conditions are illustrated by the graph below
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Stock Option Plan (SOP)

The Company may grant options over its shares with the option price
set at least at the fair market value at the time of the grant Grants vest
in equal parts over four years and expire seven years from the date of
grant. A four-year vesting period 1s intended to aid in the retention
of key talent The commuttee may also, at its discretion, tmpose a
performance condition on SOP grants In 2010, options were granted
with no performance conditions attached.

Legacy Barrick Incentive Plans

Following the [PO in March 2010, many of our Senior Managers,
who were previously employees of Barrick, retained stock options and
restricted share units under Barrick’s remuneration arrangements
Further details of these plans and any holdings are disclosed on page
94 ABG Executive Directors are no longer ehgible for further awards
under the Barrick incentive plans

Pensions

Executive Directors recerve contributions of 25% of gross base salary
into a personal pension scheme of the Fxecutive Director’s choice,

or a cash supplement of commensurate value It 1s separately identified
in the emoluments table on page 92

‘The Group does not operate any defined benefit schemes

Dilution

No optrons have been exercised, In the event of alf options and shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2010 under ABG's share-based schemes
(which involve the 1ssue of new shares) becorming exercisable, the resulting
1ssue of shares would represent approxumaiely 0.30% of the 1ssued share
capital as at that date

Service contracts

The Executive Directors’ service contracts, including arrangements for
early termination, are carefully considered by the commuttee and are
designed to recruit, retain and motivate directors of the quality required
to manage the Company The commuittee considers that a notice period
of one year 15 appropriate

The Executive Directors’ service contracts provide for compensation
of 12 months’ salary 1n the event of early termination

Senior Managers below the Executive Directors

‘The policy and practice with regard to the remuneration of semor
employees below the Executive Directors 15 entirely consistent with that
for the Executave Dhrectors These Seruar Managers all have a sigmficant
porton of their reward package linked to performance They all quahfy
for apnual bonus and LTTP and SOP awards, and their performance
targets are the same as, or cascaded from, the targets for the Execunive
Dhrectors The commuittee reviews and approves the individual
remuneration packages for the Sentor Managers 1n accordance with

the overnding objectives of our remuneration policy Their indivnidual
performance is reviewed and their base salary increases, annual bonus
payments and LTIP and SOP awards are subject to approval by the
commutiee each year




Non-Executive Directors

The Board aums to recrutt Non-Executive Directors of a high cahibre
with broad commercial, international or other relevant experience
Non-Executive Directors are appounted by the Board on the
recommendation of the Normination committee  Their appointment

15 for an wmitial term of three years until 1 February 2013, subject to
election by shareholders at the first AGM following their appointment
Upon the recommendation of the Nominauon comnuttee, they are
re-appomnted for a second term of three years, subject to re-election by
sharcholders There 1s a three-month notce penod and no provision
for terrmination payments

The terms of engagement of the Non-Executive Directors are set out
1n a letter of appointment

The basic annual fee paid to Non-Executive Directors 1s £50,000

per annum Additional fees of £10,000 are also payable for acting as
Senior Independent Director or as Chairman ot the Audit commuttee,
Compensation comnuttee or EHS&S commuttee Fees are reviewed on
a regular basis, taking into account time commitment, competition
for high quality Non-Executive Directers and market conditions A
review 1s underway of the current level and components of the Non-
Executive Directors’ compensation and 1t 1s likely that the level will
increase in 2011

Non-Executive Directors are not ehgible to participate m any of the
Company’s share schemes, incentive schemes or pension schemes

Chairman

Aaron Regent was appointed as Chairman with effect from

1 February 2010 In line with the Non-Executive Ihreclors, Mr Regent’s
appowntment 1s for a three-year term and there 1s no notice peniod and
no provision for payment in the event of early termination Mr Regent
recetves no fee

Performance graph

The graph below shows ABG 15R performance for the period from
the [PO date to 31 December 2010 (calculated 1n accordance with the
regulations) against the performance of the FTSE 100

The FTSE 100 was chosen because this 1s a recogmsed broad
equty market index of which the Company was a member for the
reporting period

The following section of this report provides detauls of the
remuneration, service contracts or letters of appomntment and share
interests of all the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010
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Remuneration report continued

Thus part of the Remuneration Report has been audited by ABG’s external auditors

Audited Directors remuneration

Individual remuneranon for the year to 31 December 2010

Salary/fees Pension  Taxable benefits Bonus Total

2010 2010 2010 2010 2010

i £ £ £ £

Aaron Regent - - - - -
Greg Hawlans 346,301 86,575 70,696 270,000 773,572
Kevin Jennings 232,603 58,151 55,816 197,000 543,570
James Cross 50,000 - 50,000
Andre Falzon 60,000 - - 60,000
Stephen Galbraith - - - -
Bobby Gedsell 60,000 - - 60,000
Michael Kenyen 60,000 - - 60,000
Derek Pannell 60,000 - - 60,000

{a) Incdludes car allowance, relocation expenses and private medical/health insurance

No earnings are disclosed for 2009 as ABG Iisted 1n March 2010 Catherine Boggs and Paul Buchanan did not receive any remuneration from the

Company in respect of their positions as Dizectors Details of these appointments are provided on page 75

Directors service contracts

Executive Dnrectors

Details of the service contracts of the Executive Directors who served during the year are set out below

Contract date Unexpired term Natice peniod
Greg Hawkans 23 Mar 2010 mdefinite 12 months
Kevin Jennings 23 Mar 2010 wndefinite 12 months
The Executive Directors’ service contracts provide for compensation of 12 months’ salary in the event of early termunation
No payment 1s made on a change of conirol
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
Detals of the service contracts of the Non-Executive Directors who served during the year are set out below
Contract Expiry of
commencement date CUrTens term
Aaron Regent 01 Feb 2010 01 keb 2013
James Cross 01 Feb 2010 01 Feb 2013
Andre Falzon 01 Feb2010 01 keb 2013
Stephen Galbraith 01 Feb 2010 01 keb 2013
Bobby Godsell 01 Feb 2010 01 Feb 2013
Michael Kenyon 01 Feb 2010 01 Feb 2013
Derek Pannell 01 Feb 2010 01 Feb 2013

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appomntment do not contain any provision for compensation in the event of early termunation of their
appomntment They do not have pertods of notice Cathenne Boggs and Paul Buchanan did not enter mnto any service cantracts in respect of their

posttions as Directors, nor did they recewve letters of appointment Details of these appomntments are provided on page 75
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Audited Directors’ interests in shares under the ABG Long Term Incentive Plan

Shares over Shares over Shares over
which awards  which awands  Market price End of which awards
heldasat granted dunng al date performance held as at
Award date I Jan 2010 the year of award penod Vesting date 31 Dec 2010
Greg Hawkins
25 Nov 2010 0 39,901 £512 25Nov2013 25 Nov2013 39,501
Kevin jennings
25 Nov 2010 0 22,305 £512 25Nov2013 25 Nov2013 22,305
No awards have vested or lapsed dunng the year As such no mformation 1s hsted as regards such matters 1n the table above.
Nether Cathenine Boggs nor Paul Buchanan were granted awards under ABGs Stock Option Plan or ETIP
Auduted Directors tnterests in options under the ABG Share Option Plan
Sharesover  Shares over Shares over
whichawards  whuch awards Exercised/  Market price which awards
heldasar granted during Exercise  (tapsed) duning at date of Earfiest Final hed asat
Award date 1 Jan 2010 the year price the year exercise Expiry date vesting date vesting date 31 Dec 10
Greg Hawlkuns
27 Apr 2010 0 125,000 £568 0 N/A 26 Apr2017 27 Apr2011 27 Apr 2014 125,000
25 Nov 2010 0 142,501 £512 0 N/A 24 Nov2017 325Nov2011 25 Nov 2014 142,501
Kevin Jennings
27 Apr 2010 0 100,000 £5 68 0 N/A 26 Apr2017 27 Apr2011 27 Apr 2014 100,000
25 Nov 2010 0 79,659 £512 0 N/A 24 Nov2017 25Nov2011 25 Nov 2014 79,659
Netther Catherine Boggs nor Paul Buchanan were granted awards under ABG's Stock Option Plan or LTIP
Share Price Information
The mid-market pnee for the Company’s ordinary shares at 31 Decemnber 2010 was £6 11 The range durning the year was £5 03 to £6 70
Directors mterests in options under the Barrick Share Option Plan
Shares over Shares over Shares over
which awards  which awards Exercised/  Market ptice whach awards
heldasat granted dunng Exeraise  (lapsed) dunng at date of Eariest Final held as at
Award date 1 Jan 2010 the year price the year exerise Expiry date vesting date vestng date 31 Dec 10
Aaron Regent
06 Feb 2009 500,000 - US$3857 N/A -  05Feb2016 06 Feb 2010 6 Feb 2013 500,000
08 Dec 2009 231,791 - US$4244 N/A - 07Dec2016 08Dec2010 08 Dec 2013 231,791
07 Dec 2010 0 154,267  US5554 83 N/A - 06Dec2017 07Dec201l 07 Dec 2014 154,267
Stephen Galbraith
07 Dec 2004 1,250 - US$2380 1,250 USH4738  06Dec2011 07 Dec2005 07 Dec 2008 0
30 Jul 2008 10,000 - US$4258 N/A - 29 Jul 2015 30 Jul 2009 30 Jul 2012 10,000
07 Dec 2010 0 5,000 US$54 83 N/A - 06Dec2017 07Dec2011 07 Dec 2014 5,000
Greg Hawkuns
07 Dec 2004 2,500 - US$23 80 N/A - 06Dec20ll 07Dec2005 07 Dec 2008 2,500
Kevin Jennings
08 Dec 2009 28,287 - US$42 44 7,072 US$5438 07Dec2016 08Dec2010 08 Dec 2013 21,215
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Remuneration report continued

Barrick Stock Options

Grants vest in equal parts over four years and expire seven years from the date of grant subject to continued employment, commensurate with
competitive practice 1n North Amenca

Directors interests in Barrick Restricted Share Unit Plan (PRSU and RSU)

Shares
over which
Shares over awards Shares over
which awards granted Market price End of Vested Lapsed which awards
Incentrve heldasat  dunngthe at date performance duringthe  Market rate at  dunng the held as at
Award date Plan 1 Jan 2010 year of award penod Vesting Date year  date of vesting year 31 Dec 2010
Aaron Regent
06 Feb 2009 RSUs 104,842 - US$38 57 N/A 06 Aug2011 - - - 105,858
08 Dec 2009 RSUs 33,609 - C544 63 N/A  08]Jun 2012 - - - 33,934
07 Dec 2010 RSUs - 21,598 (85525 N/A 07 Jun 2013 - - - 21,598
08 Dec 2009 PRSUs 33,609 - C$4463 08 Dec2012 08 Dec 2012 - - - 33,934
07 Dec 2010 PRSUs - 21,598 85525 07 Dec2013 07 Dec 2013 - - - 21,598
Stephen Galbraith
09 Dec 2008 RSUs 4,452 - US$27 25 N/A 09 Jun 2011 - - - 4,495
08 Dec 2009 RSUs 2,379 - C$44 63 N/A 08 Jun 2012 - - - 2,402
07 Dec 2010 RSUs - 1,786 (855 25 N/A 07 Jun 2013 - - - 1,786
Greg Hawkuns
04 Dec 2007 RSUs 4,380 - US$41 08 N/A 04 Dec2010 4,422  USD$52 71 -
30 Jul 2008 RSUs 1,591 - US$42 58 N/A 30Jul 2011 - - - 1,614
09 Dec 2008 RSUs 2,771 - US$27 25 - 09 Jun 2011 - - N/A 2,797
08 Dec 2009 RSUs 4,534 - C8$44 63 - 08 Jun 2012 - - NIA 4,577
Kevin Jennings
08 Dec 2009 RSUs 2,403 - C$44 63 - 08 Jun 2012 - - N/A 2,426

Barnick Restricted Share Unuts (RSUs)

RSUs were granted 1n lieu of actual shares Each RSU has a value equal to one Barrick common share RSUs granted prior to 2008 vest and are pard
out 1 cash on the third anniversary of the grant date RSUs granted after December 2008 vest and are pmid out in cash 30 months afier the date of
grant Pursuant to the RSU plan, at vesting, each RSU will have a value equal to the then current average closing market price in Canadian dollars of
one Barrick common share on each day during the last five trading days prior to the vesting date Addional RSUs are eredted to reflect dividends
paid on Barnck commeon shares and are subject to the same vesung provisions as the underlying RSUs that were actually granted

Barrick Performance Restricted Share Units (PRSUs)

The number of target PRSUs granted equalled the number of RSUs granted (25% of the total long-term incentive award) PRSUs vest based on the
achievement of goals over a three-year performance period.

Addiuonal PRSUs are credited to reflect diidends paid on Barrick Common Shares during the performance period PRSUs resulting from dividend
equivalent credits are subject to the same vesting provisions as the underlying PRSUs that were actually granted.
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Performance for PRSU grants will be based on Barrick’s total shareholder return {share price appreciation plus reinvested dividends) over the three-
year pertod (beginning the date of the grant and ending on the third anniversary) compared to the total shareholder return performance for Gold
Mumng Peers {those with market capitabsations greater than US$3 ballion as at 30 September 2010) The Comparator group are hsted below

Agnico-Eagle Mines Ltd AngloGold Ashanti Ltd.
Eldorado Gold Corp ™ Goldcorp Inc

Gold Fields Lid. Harmony Gold Minuing Co Ltd.
[AMGOLD Corp™ Kinross Gold Corporation

Lihir Gold Limited® Newcrest Miming Ltd.®
Newmont Mining Corp Randgold Resources Ltd

Yamana Gold, Inc

(a) These companics were added to the Gold Mining Peers in 2010 based on the compensation cansuhant s assessment of the peer group.
(b} Lihir Gold 15 not included in the performance peer group subsequent to 1ts acquisition by Newcrest Miming 1n May 2010
The vesting schedule for PRSUs 1s the same as that for the ABG [ TIP as detaded on page 8%

Directors interest in ABG ordinary shares or dervatives or financial instruments relating to such shares

Asat

31 Dec 2010

Aaron Regent N/A
Greg Hawkins N/A
Kevin Jennings N/A
James Cross N/A
Andre Falzon NfA
Stephen Galbraith N/A
Bobby Godsell N/A
Michael Kenyon N/A
Derek Pannell N/A

There have been no changes in the interests of current Directors listed 1n the table above between 31 December 2010 and 10 March 2011

External appointments

None of the Executive Directors currently holds an appomtment as a non-executive of another company

By order of the Board

Michael Kenyon
Chairman of the Compensation Commuttee
10 March 2011

Registered ofhice

6 St James's Place
London

SWIA INP
Unuted Kingdom
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Reserves and resources

Mineral reserves and muineral resources estimates contamed n this
report have been calculated as at 31 December 2010 1n accardance
with National Instrument 43-101 as required by Canadian secunties
regulatory authonues, unless otherwise stated Canadian Institute of
Miming, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM} defimtions were followed
for mineral reserves and resources Calculations have been reviewed,
venfied (including estimation methodology, sampling, analytical and
test data) and compiled by ABG personnel under the supervision of
ABG Quahfied Persons MNic Schoeman, Director of Lechrucal
Services, Richard Adofo, Corporate Manager, Geology and Robert
van der Westhwzen, Corporate Mine Planming Manager However,
the figures stated are estimates and no assurances can be given that
the indicated quantities of metal will be produced

Mineral reserves have been calculated using an assumed long-term
average gold price of US$1,000 00 per ounce, a stlver price of

UJS$16 00 per ounce and a copper price of US$2 00 per pound
Reserve calculanons incorporate current and/or expected mine plans
and cost levels at each property Mineral resources have been calculated
using an assumed long-term average gold price of US$1,200 00 per
ounce, a silver price of US$19 00 per ounce and a copper price of

US$2 50 per pound Resources have been estmated using varying cut-
off grades, depending on the type of mine or project, its maturity and
orc types at cach property Reserve estimates are dynamic and are
influenced by changing economic conditions, techmical 1ssues,
environmental regulations and any other relevant new information
and therefore these can vary from year to year Resource estimates
can also change and tend to be influenced mostly by new information
pertaiming to the understanding of the deposit and secondly the
converston Lo ore reserves In addition, estimates of inferred mineral
resources may not form the basis of an economic analysis and #t
cannot be assumed that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource
witl ever be upgraded to a higher category Therefore, investors are
cautioned not to assume that all or any part of an inferred mineral
resource cxists, that 1t can be economically or legally mined, or that

1t wall ever be upgraded to a higher category Iikewnse, imnvestors are
cautioned not 10 assume that all or any pan of measured or indicated
muneral resources will ever be upgraded 1o mineral reserves

Tulawaka muneral reserves and resources are stated as ABG's 70%
attnbutable portion

The Nyanzaga mineral reserves and rmuneral resources estinates
contamed 1n this report are based on the inferred resource declaration
made by Tusker Gold Lumuted 1n June 2009, which was calculated in
accordance with the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration
Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves 2004 edition

Defimtions

A muneral resource 1s a concentration or occurrence of diamonds,
natural sohd snorgamc matenal, or natural solid fossihsed organic
matenal including base and precious metals, coal, and industnal
rmunerals 1n or on the Earth’s crust in such form and quantity and of
such a grade or quality that 1t has reasonable prospects for economic
extraction The locauion, quanuty, grade, geological charactenstics
and continusty of a mineral resource are known, estimated or
interpreted from specific geological evidence and knowledge Mineral
resources are sub-divided, in order of increasing geological
confidence, into inferred, indicated and measured categores
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An inferred nuneral resource 1s that part of a mneral resource for
which quantity and grade or quahty can be esumated on the basis of
geological evidence and hmited samphng and reasonably assumed,
but not venfied, geological and grade continuity The estimate 15
based on hmited information and sampling gathered through
appropriatc techmques from locations such as outcrops, trenches,
pits, workings and dnll holes

An indicated mineral resource 1s that part of a mineral resource

for which quantity, grade or quality, densities, shape and physical
charactenisics, can be estimated with a level of confidence sufficient
to allow the appropnate application of technical and economic
parameters, to support mine planning and evaluation of the
economic viability of the deposit The estimate 15 based on detailed
and reliable explorat:on and testing nformation gathered through
appropriate techmgques from locations such as outcrops, trenches,
pits, workings and dridl holes that are spaced closely enough for !
geological and grade continuty to be reasonably assumed \

A measured muneral resource 15 that part of a mineral resource for
whuch quanuty, grade or quality, densitics, shape and physical
characteristics are so well estabhshed that they can be estmated with
confidence sufficient to allow the appropriate application of techncal
and cconomic parameters, to support production planmng and
evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit The estimate 1s
based on detailed and reliable exploration, sampling and testing
information gathered through appropriate techmques from locations
such as outcrops, trenches, pits, workings and drill holes that are
spaced closely enough to confirm both geological and grade contimuty

Muneral resources which are not mineral reserves do not have
demonstrated economic viability

A runeral reserve 15 the economucally mineable part of a measurcd
or indicated mineral resource demonstrated by at least a prelimnary
feasibility study This study must 1nclude adequate information on
minmng, processing, metallurgical, cconomac and other relevant
factors that demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic
extraction can be justified A mineral reserve includes diluting
matenals and allowances for losses that may occur when the matenal
1s mined Mineral reserves are subdmvided in order of increasing
confidence into probable mineral reserves and proven mineral reserves

A probable mineral reserve 15 the economically mineable part of an
indicated and, in some circumstances, a measured mineral resource
demonstrated by at least a preliminary feasibility study This study
must iclude adequate information on mimuing, processing,
metallurgical, economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate,
at the time of reporting, that economic extraction can be jusufied

A proven mineral reserve 1s the economically mineable part of a
measured mineral resource demonstrated by at least a prehminary
feasibility study This study must include adequate information on
mining, processing, metallurgical, economic and other retevant
factors that demonstrate, at the time of reporting, that economic
extraction 1s justified




Mine gold reserves & resources

1010 2009
Mine Classificauon Tonnes (00075) Grade Au(g/t)  Ounces (000%)  Tonnes (DBO 5) {Grade Au (git) Ounces (000 3)
Bulyanhuiu Proven and probable 29,342 11 687 11,026 25,066 12 806 10,320
Mineral resource 11,062 8 096 2,879 10,297 10829 3,585
Inferred 3,814 11 804 3,345 6,679 14712 3,159
Burwag: Proven and probable 55,582 1619 2,892 65,873 1 606 3,401
Mineral resource 18,079 0971 564 18,664 1154 692
Inferred 6,284 1 215 246 6,692 1245 268
North Mara Proven and probable 27,623 3194 2,836 28,944 3169 2,949
Mineral resource 18,638 3059 1,833 7,992 3351 861
inferred 1,859 1893 113 1,312 2822 119
Tulawaka (70%) Proven and probable 320 6527 67 368 7913 94
Mineral tresource 518 5 405 90 174 5785 32
Inferred 94 4976 15 06 17 837 03
Total Proven and probable 112,867 4636 16,821 120,251 41336 16,764
Mineral resource 48,297 3 456 5,367 37,127 4332 5,170
Inferred 17,052 6783 3,719 14,684 7512 3,547
Exploration property gold reserves & resources
Mine Class:ificabon Tonnes (000 &) Grade Au (g/L) Ounces (000 &) Tonnes (000 5) Grade Ay (g/t) Ounces (000 5)
Nyansaga Proven and probable - - - - - -
Mineral resource 2,781 3500 313 1,377 3614 160
Inferred 7,690 2630 650 3,978 2 596 332
Contamned copper reported within gold reserves & resources
Mine Classification Tannes (000 s) Grade Cu (g/1) Pounds (000 ) Tonnes (300 s) Grade Cu {gh) Pounds (GO0 5)
Balyanhulu Proven and probablc 29,342 0 662 428,346 25,066 0696 384,597
Mineral resource 11,062 0541 131,887 10,297 0 664 150,620
Inferred 8,738 0 745 143,550 6,619 0879 128,288
Buzwag: Proven and probable 51,569 0125 141,687 65,873 G116 169,071
Mineral resource 18,079 0082 32,828 18,664 0097 39,783
Inferred 6,284 0 080 11,019 6,692 (0086 12,757
Taotal Proven and probable 80,911 0320 570,033 90,939 0276 553,668
Mineral resource 29,140 0 256 164,715 28,961 0298 190,403
Inferred 15,023 0 467 154,569 13,311 (481 141,045
Contaned silver reported within gold reserves & resources
Mine Clasaification Tonnes (000 5) Grade Ag (g/t)  Ounces (0065}  Tonnes (506 s) Grade A (p/t) Ounces (000 5}
Bulyanhulu Proven and probable 29,342 9340 8,812 25,066 9 863 7,949
Mineral resource 11,062 7 251 2,579 10,297 9238 3,058
Inferred 8,738 10273 2,886 6,619 12014 2,557
2010 detarled proven and probable reserves
Mine gold reserves
Mune Classification Toanes Grade Au {gh) Contamed An (oz)
Bulyanhulu Proven 1,197,565 11 052 425,527
Probable 28,144,863 11714 10,600,087
Total (P+P) 29,342,427 11 687 11,025,615
Burwag: Proven 4,204,245 1121 151,575
Probable 51,377,447 1659 2,740,674
Total (P+P) 55,581,692 1619 2,892,249
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Reserves and resources continued

2010 detailed proven and probable reserves continued

Mune gold reserves continued

Mine Clsafication Tonnes Grade Au (g/t) Contained Au (oz)
North Mara Proven 8,530,496 2618 718,085
Probable 19,092,203 3451 2,118,286
Total (P+P) 27,622,699 3194 2,836,371
Tulawaka (70%) Proven 199,919 4254 27,343
Probable 120,336 10302 39,858
Total (P+P) 320,256 6 527 67,201
Total mine gold reserves Proven 14,132,225 2911 1,322,530
Probable 98,734,848 4 882 15,498,906
Totat (P+P) 112,867,073 4636 16,821,436
Contained copper reported within gold reserves
Mine Classfication Tonnes Grade Cu (%) Contained Cu (lbs)
Bulyanhulu Proven 1,197,565 0413 10,915,583
Probable 28,144,863 0673 417,430,593
Total 29,342,427 0 662 428,346,176
Buswagt Proven ) 191,188 0122 516,299
Probable 51,377,447 0125 141,170,708
Total 51,568,634 0125 141,687,007
Total copper reported within gold reserves Proven 1,388,752 0373 11,431,882
Probable 79,522,309 0319 558,601,302
Total 80,211,061 0320 570,033,183
Contained silver reported within gold reserves
Minc Classification Tonnes Grade Ag {g/1) Contaned Ag (0z)
Bulyanhulu Proven 1,197,565 7719 297,216
Probable 28,144,863 9 409 8,514,380
Total (P+P) 29,342,427 9 340 8,811,596
2010 detarled measured and indicated resource
Mine gold resource (measured and indicated, exclusive of reserves)
Mine Classafication Tonnes Grade Au (g/t) Centamed Au (oz}
Bulyanhulu Mecasured - - -
Indicated 11,061,822 8 096 2,879,256
Total (M+1) 11,061,822 8096 2,879,256
Buzwag Measured 74,329 1276 3,049
[ndicated 18,004,326 (570 561,365
Total (M+1) 18,078,655 0971 564,414
North Mara Measured 2,522,712 2430 197,061
Indicated 16,115,749 3158 1,636,288
Total (M+]) 18,638,460 3 059 1,833,349
Tulawaka (70%) Measured - - -
Indicated 518,393 5 405 90,080
Total (M+1) 518,393 5405 90,080
Total mine resource (M+I) Measured T 2,597,040 2397 200,110
Indicated 45,700,290 3517 5,166,988
Total (M+I) 48,297,331 3456 5,367,098
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2010 detailed measured and indicated resource continued

Contained copper reported within gold resources

Mine Classifianon Tonnes Grade Cu (gh) Contained Cu {hs)
Bulyanhulu Measured - - -
Indicated 11,061,822 0 541 131,887,152
Total (M+I) 11,061,822 0 541 131,887,152
Buzwagi Measured 74,329 0107 174,528
Indicated 18,004,326 0082 32,653,609
Total (M+1) 18,078,655 0082 32,828,137
Total copper reported within gold resources Measured 74,329 0107 174,528
Indicated 29,066,148 0257 164,540,761
Total (M+I) ] 29,140,477 0256 164,715,289
Contained silver reported wathin gold resource
Mine Classafication Tonnes Grade Ag (gh) Contained Ag (02)
Bulyanhutu Measured - - -
Indicated 11,061,822 7 25} 2,578,615
Total (M+1) 11,061,822 7 251 2,578,615
2010 detasted mine inferred resource
Mine gold inferred resource
Mine Chasafication Tonnes Grade Au (it} Contained Ay (gz)
Bulyanhulu Inferred 8,814,392 11 804 3,345,173
Burwag Inferred 6,284,159 1215 245,554
North Mara Inferred 1,859,378 1893 113,149
Tulawaka (70%) Inferred 93,859 4976 15,016
Total mine inferred resource Total Inferred 17,051,787 6783 3,718,893
Centained copper reported within inferred gold resources
Mue Classificatian Toanes Grade Cu {g/t) Corntanred Cu (ibs)
Bulyanhutu Inferred 8,738,492 0745 143,549,747
Buzwagm Inferred 6,284,159 0080 11,019,052
Total copper reported within gold resources Inferred 15,022,651 0467 154,568,799
Contained silver reported within inferred gold resource
Mine Chisufication Tonnes Grade A (gft} Contzuped An (o2)
Bulyanhulu Inferred 8,738,492 10273 2,886,196
Detailed exploration property resource
Exploration property resource (M+I)
Mine (Classification Taznes Grade An (g/it) Contained Au {oI)
Nyanzaga Measured - - -
Indicated 2,781,000 350 313,000
Total {M+I) 2,781,000 3 50 313,000
Exploratien property resource (inferred)
Mine Casaficauon Tonnes Grade Au (gh) Conlatned Ay (of)
Nyanzaga Inferred 7.689,500 2630 650,000
Total Inferred 7,689,500 2630 650,000
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Financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of

African Barrick Gold plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of African Barnck
Gold plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 which comprise the
Consohdated Income Statement, Conschdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consohdated
Statement of Changes in Equsty, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the related notes The financtal reporung framework that has been
apphed in thewr preparaton 15 apphcable law and Internaucnal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamned more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 86, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they
gve a true and fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express
an opinion on the Group financial staterments in accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethucal Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimons, has been prepared {or and only
for the Company’s members as a body 1 accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companites Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, 1in giving these opintons, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audht involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
drsclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thus includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements

Opinion on hinancial statements
In our opimon the Group financial statements
» give a true and faur view of the state of the Group s affairs as at

31 December 2010 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Op:mion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opisien the information given i the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companes Act 2006 we are required lo report to you if,
1N our opinion

¢ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

& we have not recewved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

» a Corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
parent company

Under the Itsting Rules we are required to review

¢ the Directors’ statement, set oul on page 54, 1n relation to
going concern,

¢ the part of the Corporate Governance report relating to the
Company’s comphance with the nine provisiens of the June 2008
Combined Code speaified for our review, and

» certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors’ remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately en the Company financial statements

of African Barnick Gold plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
on the mformation 1n the Remuneration report that 15 described as
having been audited

&HM

Jason Burkatt (Semior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audstors
London

10 March 2011

Notes.

(a} The maintenance and integnty of the African Barnck Gold plc website 1s the
responsibility of the Directors the work carnied out by the auditors does not mveolve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly the auditors accept no responsibihty
for any changes that may have occurred 10 the financial statements since they were
mtially presented on the website

(b)Legstation n the Unuted Kingdom govermng the preparation and dissemination
of financtal statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the pear ended For the year cuded

31 December 31 Deccmber
(in thousands of Unuted States dollars) Notes 2010 2009
Revenue (Note 2a) 4 975,021 711,182
Cost of sales (Note 2a) 5 (589,039) (487.027)
Gross profit 385,982 224,155
Corporate admimistration {Note 2a}) (35,436} (37,759)
Exploration and evaluation costs 7 (14,861) (8,871)
Other charges (Note 2a) 8 (26,033) (21,419)
Profit before net finance expense and taxation 309,652 156,106
Finance mcome 10 1,202 361
Finance expense 10 {1,777) (6,062)

(575) (5.701)

Praofit before taxation 309,077 150,405
Tax expense 1i (86,471) (84,388)
Net profit for the penod 222,606 66,017
Profit attnbutable to
- Non-controlling interests 4,503 7.440
- Owners of the parent (net earmungs) 218,103 58,577
Earmings per share
- Basic carmngs per share (cents) 12 532 143
— Diluted earnings per share {cents) 12 532 143

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended Far the year ended

31 Deceraber 31 December
{in thousands of Unned States doilars} 2010 2009
Net profit for the peniod 222,606 66,017
Other comprehensive ncome for the penod - ~
Total comprehensive income for the penod 222,606 66,017
Attnibuted to
- Non-controlling interests 4,503 7,440
— Owners of the parent 218,103 58,577

The accompanying notes on pages 106 to 147 are an integral part of these consohdated financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
{1n thousands of Uuted States dollars) Notes 2010 2009
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 19 258,513 156,397
Property, plant and equipment 18 1,615,118 1,498,072
Deferred tax assets 20 121,269 18,138
Non-current portion of inventory t5 69,122 -
Other assets (Note 2a) 21 104,458 61,286
2,168,480 1,896,943
Current assets
Inventones 15 227,974 278,650
Trade and other recervables 16 59,214 61,598
Other current assets 16 70,428 58,311
Cash and cash equivalents 17 401,012 69,726
758,628 468,285
Total assets 2,927,108 2,365,228
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and share premium 23 929,199 -
Other reserves 1,584,125 636,922
Total owners’ equity 2,513,324 636,922
Non-controlling interests 29,761 20,493
Total equiiy 2,543,085 657,415
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax habihties 20 136,185 87,893
Derivative financial instruments 28 1,754 -
Provisions 26 108,944 83,565
Other non-current liabiities (Note 2a) 7,483 4,748
254,366 176,206
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 25 119,961 148,192
Denvative financial instruments 28 1,904 -
Provisions 26 4,000 -
Other current habihities 3,792 -
Borrowings from related parties 32 - 1,383,415
129,657 1,531,607
Total liabilities 384,023 1,707,813
Total equity and habilities 2,927,108 2,365,228

The accompanying notes on pages 106 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The consohdated financial statements on pages 102 to 147 were approved by the Board of Directors of African Barrick Gold plc on 10 March 201

and signed on their behalf by

Greg Hawlkans
Chuef Executive Officer
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Equaty mierest Equaty mterest

at 31 December 21 31 December

Compary Company

Company Pancpal acivty Country of Incorparation 2010 2009
Tusker Gold Ltd Holding Company Australia 100% -
indago Autan (Propnietary) Ltd Holding Company Australia 100% -
DG Aurum Holdings Lid Holding Company Tanzana 100% -
KDG Kutongo lanzama Lid Dormant Company Tanzama 100% -
Vulcan Resources Tanzanra Lid Dormant Company Tanzama 100% -
Aptian Resources [anzama Lid Dormant Company Tanrama 100% -
Sub-Sahara Resources Tanzania Ltd Exploration Tanzama 100% -
Kahamna Project Jont Venture Exploration [anrama 51% -
Nyakafuru Project Joint Venture Exploratnon Tanzama 51% -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

The principal accounning pohicies applied 1n the preparation of these consohdated financial statements are set out below These policies have
been consisiently applied o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

a) Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union (IFRS), International Financial Reporting Interpretattons Commuttee (IFRIC) interpretation and those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable 1o compantes reporting under IFRS

The Company became the holding company for the Group pursuant to the Pre-IPO Reorgamisation completed on 22 February 2010, as detailed
in Note 1 As this was a reorganisation of businesses under common ¢ontrol, the consolidated financial statements for the years ended

31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 have been prepared on a basis that combines the results and assets and habilities of each of the
compantes constituting the Group (the pooling of interest method of accounting)

For the pertods prior to the Pre-IPO Reorgamisation, consohdated financial statements were not prepared for the Group The accompanying
consolidated financial statements present the results of the Company and its subsidianes as if the Group had been 1n existence throughout the
penod presented and as if the Pre-IPO Reorgarisation had occurred as at 1 January 2009

L ke consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the hustorical cost convention basis, as modified by the revaluation of financal
assets and financial habihties (including denvative instruments) at farir value through profit or loss

The consolidated finanaial statements are presented m US dollars (US$) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (US$’000) except
when otherwise indicated

Where a change in the presentational format between the Prospectus and the consohidated financal statements has been made duning the
period, comparative figures have been restated accordingly The following presentational changes were made during the current year

* Revenue from the sale of copper and sidver 1s treated as co-product revenue, and included 1n total revenue 1n hine with a management
decision to record it as ¢o-product revenue Co-product revenue increased by 202% year-on-year Thisis different from the Prospectus,
where 1t was treated as by-product revenue as a credit to cost of sales The change was a result of increased revenue from copper following
the commencement of copper concentratc sales at Buzwagt Refer to Notes 2k), 3, 4and 5

Assets relating to restrictive share umit habihties of US$7 5 mullion have been reclassified and offset aganst the hability Thuis 1s different from
the Prospectus where the asset was shown separately as part of nen-current assets As this amount has an y/mmatenal impact on the opeming
position, no operung balance sheet 15 presented Refer to Notes 2w), 3 and 21

Gains and losses on the translation of foreign currency transactions are deemed to be part of other charges This s different from the
Prospectus where it was clasaified as part of corporate administration Refer to Note 3

Gans and losses on the translation of foreign currency transactions are deemed to e part of operating cash flows This 1s different from the
Prospectus where 1t was classified as part of working capital Refer to Note 14

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes 1n trading performance, show that the Group should be
able to operate within the level of its current financing

Alter making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequale resources to continue 10 operational existence
for the foreseeable future The Group therefore continues to adapt the going concern basts in prepanng its conschdated financial statements
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Notes to the Consoltdated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
b) Newand amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are applicable and were adopted by the Group for the first iume for the financial
year beginnung 1 January 2010

* IFRS 3 (revised), “Business combinations”, and consequential amendments to IAS 27 {revised), “Consolidated and separate financial
statemnents”, IAS 28 “Investments in associates”, and IAS 31 “Interest in joint ventures”, are effective prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date 1s on or after the beginnung of the first annual reporting pertod beginmng on or after 1 July 2009

The revised standard continues 1o apply the acqusition method to business combinations but with some significant changes compared
with IFRS 3 For example, all payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement There 1s a choice on an acqusition-by-acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree cither at fair value or at the non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets All acqusition-related costs are expensed

The revised standard was appled to the acquisitton of the controlling interest in Tusker Gold Lid on 27 Apnl 2010 Acquisitton-related costs
of US$387,294 have been recogmsed in the consolidated income statement, which previously would have been included 1n the consideration
for the business combmation See Note 22 for further details of the business combnation that occurred 1n 2010

1AS 27 (revised) requures the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interest to be recorded 1n equity 1if there 1s no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses The standard also speafies the accounting when control 1s lost
Any remaining interest 1n the entity 1s re-measured to far value, and a gain or loss 18 recognised 1n profit orloss 1AS 27 (revised) did not
have a matenal impact on the Group earmings or equity in the current period

* 1AS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets”, cffective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies that the largest cash-generating unit
(or group of units) to which goodwnll should be allocated for the purposes of impairment testing 1s an operating segment, as defined by
paragraph 5 of IFRS 8, “Operating segments” (that 15, before the aggregation of segments with similar economic characteristics) 1AS 36
(amendment) has had no wmpact on the current period as no mmpannent was identified when tesuing goodwill impairment at an operating
segment level

= IFRS 2 (amendments), “Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions”, effective from 1 January 2010 In addition to incorporating
IFRIC 8, “Scope of TFRS 27, and IFRIC 11, “IFRS 2, Group and (reasury share transactions”, the amendments expand on the gwmdance in
IFRIC 11 to address the classification of Group arrangements that were not covered by that interpretation The apphication of the standard
did not have a material effect on the Group

<) Newand amended standards, and mterpretations mandatory for the first ime for the linanaal year beginning
1 January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group (although they may alfect the accounting for future
transactions and events)

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been pubhished and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later pertods, but are currently not relevant to the Group

» IFRIC 17, “Dhstribution of non-cash assets to owners” {(effective on or after ! July 2009) The interpretation was published in November 2008
This interpretation provides guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to shareholders either as
a distribution of reserves or as dividends TFRS 5 has also been amended to require that assets are classified as held for distribution only when
they are amended to require that assets are classified as held for distnbution only when they are available for distnbution 1n thetr present
condition and the distnbution 1s lughly probable

+ [FRIC 18, " Transfers of assets from customers”, effective for transfer of assets recerved on or after 1 July 2009 This interpretation clanfies the
requirements of IFRSs for agreements in which an enlity recerves from a customer an item of property, plant and equipment that the entity
must then use either to connect the customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services
(such as a supply of eleciricity, gas or water) In some cases, the entity recerves cash from z customer that must be used only o acquire or
construct the 1tem of property, plant, and equipment 1n order 1o connect the customer to a network or provide the customer waith ongomng
access to a supply of goods or services (or to do both)
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* IFRIC 9, “Reassessment of embedded denvatives” and 1AS 39, “Financial instruments Recognition and measurement”, effective 1 July 2009
This amendment to [TRIC 9 requircs an entity to assess whether an embedded denvative should be separated from a host contract when
the entity reclassifies a hybnd financial asset out of the “fawr value through praofit or loss” category Thns assessment 15 to be made based on
ctircumstances that exssted on the later of the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any contract amendments
that signuficantly change the cash flows of the contract If the entity 15 unable to make this assessment, the hybrid instrument must remamn
classified as at fair value through prefit or loss in its entirety

IFRIC 16, “Hedges of a net investment 1n a foreign operation” effective  July 2009 This amendment states that, n a hedge of a net
investment 1n a foreign operation, quahfying hedging instruments may be held by any entity or entities within the Group, including the
foreign operation 1tself, as long as the designation, documentation and effectiveness requirements of IAS 39 that relate to a net investment
hedge are satisfied In parncular, the Group should clearly document its hedging strategy because of the passibility of different designations
at different levels of the Group

* [AS 38 (amendment), “Intangible assets”, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies guidance n measuring the fair value of an
intangible asset acquired 1n a business combination and permuts the grouping of intangible assets as a single asset 1f each asset has a simlar
useful economig hfe

» 1AS 1 (amendment), “Presentation of financral statements™ 'he amendment clarifies that the potential settlement of a hability by the 1ssue
of equuty 15 not relevant to 1ts classification as current or non-current By amending the defimition of current hability, the amendment pernuts
a liabihty Lo be classified as non-current (provided that the entity has an unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other
assels for at least 12 months after the accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by the counterparty to
settle 1n shares at any tme

e IFRS 5 {amendment), “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operattons” The amendment clarifies that IFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required 1n respect of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operatrons It also clanfies
that the general requirements of IAS 1 sull apply, in particular paragraph 15 (to achieve a far presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of
estimation uncertainty) of [AS 1

d) New standards, amendments and interprelations 1ssued but not effective for the finanaial year beginning 1 Janovary
2010 and not carly adopted

The Group’s and parent entity’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and mterpretations 1s sct out below

¢ IFRS 9, “Finanaial instruments”, 1ssued in November 2009 This standard 1s the first step in the process to replace 1AS 39, “Financial
mstruments recogmbon and measurement” IFRS 9 itroduces new requirements for classifying and measuning financial assets The standard
15 not applicable until 1 January 2013 but 15 avaitlable for early adoption However, the standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU

The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact, however imttial indications are that the adoption of IFRS 9 will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s operating results or financial position

* 1AS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures”, 1ssued 1n November 2009 1t supersedes TAS 24, “Related party disclosures”, 1ssued 1n 2003 1AS
24 (revised) 1s mandatory for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2081 Earlier application, m whole or 1n part, s permitted The revised
standard clanfies and simplifies the defimition of a related party and removes the requirement for government-related entities to disclose
details of all transactions with the government and other government-related entittes The Group will apply the revised standard from
1 January 2011 Tt1s not expected to have any impact on the Group's or the parent entity’s financial statements

s IAS 32 {amendment), “Classification of rights 1ssues”, 1ssued 1 October 2009 The amendment apphes to annual periods beginming on or after
1 February 2010 Earher apphcation 1s permitted The amendment addresses the accounting for nghts issues that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the 1ssuer Prowided certam conditions are met, such nights 1ssues are now classified as equaty regardless of
the currency m whach the exercise price 1s denominated Previously, these 1ssues had to be accounted for as denvative habiities  The amendment
applies retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors” The Group has not 1ssued
any rights 1ssues
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILS continued

d) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the finanaial year beginming i January

2010 and not carly adopted continued

IFRIC 19, “Extingwishing financial liabihties with equity instruments”, effecuve 1 July 2010 The interpretaton clarifies the accounting by

an entity when the terms of a financial Irabality are renegotiated and result in the entity 1ssuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity
to extinguish all or part of the financial hability (debt for equity swap) Tt requires a gain or loss to be recognised in profit or loss, which 1s
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial iability and the fair value of the equity instruments 1ssued If the fair
valuc of the equity mstruments 1ssued cannot be rehably measured, the equuty instruments should be measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial hability extinguished The Group will apply the interpretation from 1 January 2011 Ttis not expected to have any :mpact on the
Group's or the parent entity’s financial statements

IFRIC 14 (amendments), “Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement” The amendments correct an umntended consequence of
IFRIC 14, *1AS 19, [he hmit on a defined benefit asset, mummurm funding requirements and thewr interaction” Without the amendments,
entittes are not permitied to recogmse as an asset some voluntary prepayments for mimimum funding contnibutions This was not intended
when IFRIC 14 was 1ssued, and the amendments correct this The amendments are effective for annual periods beginming ! January 2011
Earlier apphication 1s permitted The amendments should be applied retrospectively to the earliest comparative period presented Itis not
expecied to have any tmpact on the Group's or the parent entity’s financtal statements

e) Sigmficant judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Many of the amounts included 1n the consohidated financial statements require management to make judgements and/or estimates These
judgements and estunates are continuously evaluated and are based on management's expenience and best knowledge of the relevant facts and
circumstances, but actual results may differ from the amounts included 1n the conschdated financial statements The Life of Mine plans are
central to a number of key estimates and are approved by the Board of Directors annually Information about such judgements and estimat:on
15 included 1n the accounting policies andfor notes to the consolidated financal statements, and the key areas are summansed below

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertamnty that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consuhdated financial statements mclude

Estimates of the quantities of proven and probable gold reserves — Note 21),
The capitalisation of production stripping costs - Note 2},
The capitalisation of exploration and evaluation expenditures — Notes 2m) and 7,

Review of goodwll, tangible and intangible assets’ carrying value, the determunation of whether these assets are impaired and the
measurement of impairment charges or reversals - Noles 2p), 2q), 2r), 2s), 18 and 19,

The estimated fair values of cash generating units for impairment tests, including estimates of future costs to produce proven and probable
reserves, future commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and discount rates — Notes 2s) and 19,

The esttimated useful hives of tangible and long-hived assets and the measurement of depreciation expense - Notes 2p) and 18,
Property, plant and equipment hetd under finance leases - Notes 2p) and 18,

Recogmuon of a proviston for environmental rehabilitation and the estimation of the rchabilitation costs and uming of expenditure -
Notes 2v) and 25,

Whether to recogruse a hability for loss contingencies and the amount of any such provision — Notes 2v) and 31,
Whether to recognise a provision for accounts recervable - Notes 2x), 16 and 21,

Recogmtion of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for uncertain Lax positions, the measurement of income tax expense and
indirect taxes - Notes 2z), 11 and 20,

Determunation of fair value of denivatuve instruments - Note 28, and

Determination of fair value of stock options - Note 24
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f) Basis of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements set out the Group's finanaial position as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, and operating results and cash
flows for the years then ended The consohdated financral statements of the Group mcorporate the financial statements of the Company and
compamies controlled by the Company (1ts subsidianes)

Subsidianies are entities over which the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating pohcies in order
10 obtain benefits from their actmties Control 1s presumed to exast where the Company has more than one half of the voting nghts unless 1t can
be demenstrated that ownership does not constitute control Control does not exsst where other parties hold veto nghts over sigmficant operating
and financial decisions In assessing control, putential voting nights that are currently exercisable or convertible as well as other contractuat
arrangements that enable the Company to exercise control are taken nto account The consolidated financial statements include all of the
assets, habilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows of the Company and uts subsidiaries after eliminating intercompany transactions as noted
above Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group
Subsidianes are included 1n the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control passed to the Group, and have been excluded
from the date on which control transferred out of the Group For partly-owned subsidiaries, the net assets and net earnings attributable to non-
controlling interests are presented as “Invested capital attnibutable to non-controlling interests” 1n the consohdated balance sheet and “Net
profit attnbutable to non-controthing interests” in the consolhdated income statement, respectively

g) Business combinations

On acquuring a business, the acquistion method of accounting 1s used, whereby the purchase consideration 15 allocated 10 the idenufiable net
assets on the basis of fair value at the date of acquisiion Provisional fair values allocated at a reporting date arc finalised within 12 months of
the acquisition date Acquisitien costs are cxpensed

When purchase consideration 1s contingent on future events, the imtial cost of the acquisiuon recorded includes an estimate of the fair value
of the contingent amounts expected to be payable in the future The cost of the acquisition 1s adjusted when revised estimates are made, with
corresponding adjustments made to goodwll

When the cost of acquisition exceeds the fair values of the identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as purchased goodwill, which 1s
reviewed for impairment annually or when there 1s an indication of impairment If the fair value attributable to the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets exceeds the cost of acquisition, the difference 1s recognised in the income statemnent

h) Foreign currency translation

The Group's transactions are denominated 1n a numnber of different currencies (primanly US dollars, Tanzaman Shillings (“Shillings™), South
African Rands ("Rands™), UK pound sterhng ("Pounds™) and Australian dollars) The Group has habilities that are primarily denommated 1n
US dollars The US dollar 1s the Company’s (and 1ts main subsidianies’} functional currency, as well as the Group's presentation currency
Transactions in currencies other than the US dollar are translated at the exchange rates as at the date of transaction Monetary assets and
habilities denominated in currencies other than the US dollar are translated to US dollars at year-end exchange rates All differences that anse
are recorded 1n the income statement Non-monetary assets measured at hustonical cost in a currency other than US dollars are translated using
the exchange rates at the date of the tnitial transactions Where non-monetary assets are measured at fair value 1n a currency other than U§
dollars they are translated 1nto US dollars using the exchange rates on the date when the fair value was determined

The following exchange rates to the US dollar have been applied

Average Average

Anpt Yearended Asat Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

1010 2010 2009 2009

South African rand (US$ ZAR) 6 66 731 738 8§33
Tanzaman shiling (USS TZS) 1,484 1,447 1,335 1,326
Austrahan dollars {USS AUD) 098 092 090 079
UK pound (USS GBP) 065 0 65 062 064

1) Determination of ore reserves

I he Group estimates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on information comptiled by Competent Persons as defined in accordance
with the Canadran Secunities Admimistrators’ National Instrument 43-101 “Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects™ requirements Reports
to support these esiimales are prepared each year Proven and probable (2P) reserves, and for certain mines other mineral resources, deterrmuned in this
way are used in the calculation of depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges, the assessment of hfe of mine stnpping ratios and for
forecasting the timing of the payments related to the environmental rehabilitation provision
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
1) Determination of ere reserves continued

In assessing the lifc of a mine for accounting purposes, mineral resources are only taken into account where there 1s a lugh degree of confidence
of economic extraction

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating ore reserves, and assumptions that are vaiid at the trme of estimation may change
sigmficantly when new information becomes available Changes in the forecast pnices of commodities, exchange rates, production costs or
recovery rates may change the econormic status of reserves and may, ultimately, result in the reserves bemg rewvised

1} Stripping costs

In open pit munng uperations, it 15 Necessary to remove overburden and other waste materals to access ore from which munerals can be extracted
economally The process of mumng overburden and waste materials 1s referred 1o as stripping Stripping costs ncurred duning the development
stage of a mmne (or pit) n order to provide imtral access to the ore body (referred to as pre-production stripping) are capitalised as mune
development costs and amortised over the ore reserves of the mine {or pit) using the umts of production method

Stripping costs incurred during the production stage (referred to as production stripping) are accounted for according to the benefit recerved by
the Group Production stnpping costs that benefit the current penod are considered costs of current production and represent a companent of
inventory cost, which 1s charged to cost of sales when the related inventory is sold Production stripping costs that generate a futere cconomic
benefit to the Group arce capitalised as mine development costs and amortised over the ore reserves to be mined 1n the future on a umits of
production basts (sumilar to the accounting treatment of pre-production stripping costs) and included as a component of inventory cost as the
applicable ore reserves are extracted Production stnipping costs incurred related to the further development of the mine (or pit), which
gencerally requires a phase of unusually high waste removal activity that 1s similar to pre-production stripping, are considered to generate a
future cconomc benefit to the Group Such production stripping costs generate a future economuc benefit when the celated stripping actiaty

1} provides access to ore to be mmned in the {uture, n) increases the farr value of the mine {(or prt), that 1s the mine (or pit) 1s more valuable afier the
waste malenal has been rernoved as access to fulure mineral reserves becomes less costly, (i) increases the productive capacity or extends the
productive hife of the mine (or pit) Such production phase stripping costs are capitalised as mine development costs

For periods where production stnpping activity generates a future econormic benefit, the planned life of mune {or pit) waste-to-ore tonnes ratio
(the “strip ratio™) 1s considered, along with other functions such as the length and intensity of the stripping campaign, to determine the amount
of production stnpping costs incurred related to current production versus the amount that relates to the future economic benefit

Where a mine operates several open pits that are regarded as separate operations for the purpose of mine planning, stripping costs are
accounted for separately by reference to the ore reserves from each separate pit (1e the matial stripping of the second and subsequent pits
15 considered to be pre-production stripping) If, however, the pits are highly integrated for the purpose of mine planning, the second and
subsequent pits are regarded as extenstons of the first pit in accounting for stnipping costs In such cases, the imnal stnpping of the second
and subsequent pits1s conswdered to be production stripping relating to the combined operation

k) Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recogmsed when persuasive evidence exsts that all of the following criteria are met
» the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the product have been transferred to the buyer,

¢ neither continuing managenal involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold,
has been retained,

+ the amount of revenuc can be measured reliably,
¢ 1115 probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale will flow to the Group, and

¢ the costs incurred or ta be incurred in respect of the sale can be measured rehably

Gold doré sales

Gold dore 1s unrefined gold bullion bars usually consisting of 90% gold that 1s refined to pure gold bullion prior to sale to our customers
Histonically all dore sales were made to Barnck international Banking Corporation {"BIBC"), a related party From May 2010 onwards gold
doré was sold directly to third parues Revenue from gold doré sales 1s recogmsed enther a1 the tume of sale to a third party or, 1n relation to
quarter end settlements, at the time of shipment should the Group have received confirmation of sale 1o the third party The sales price 15
based on the gold spot price at the tme of sale

[12 wwwafticanbarnckgold.com




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Cootributed Total nen
surplug/Other Stock aption Retamned Total owmers coatrolling

{1n thousznds of Unaed States doflars) Noies  Sharecapual  Share prevnam reserve reseTve eamings cquity mteresis Total equity
Balance at 1 January 2009 - - 633,749 - (55,407) 578,342 25,257 603,599
Profit for the period and other

comprchensive income - - - - 58,577 58,577 7,440 66,017
Contributed surplus addisons - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Distributions paid to

non-controlling interests - - - - - - (12,204) (12,204)
Balance at 31 December 2009 - - 633,752 - 3,170 636,922 20,493 657,415
Issuance of shares to BGC 23 1,921 1,989,138 (1,991,129) - - - - -
Capital reduction 23 - {1,989,138) 1,989,138 - - - - ~
Bonus 1ssue 1o BGL 23 43,805 - (43,805) - - - - -
Profit for the peniod and total

comprchcnswe mncome - - - - 218,103 218,103 4,503 222,606
Special dmidends - - {258,680) - - {258,680) - (258.680)
Conversion to contnbuted

surplus - - 1,039,498 - - 1,039,498 - 1,039,498
Share 1ssuance 23 16,301 921,035 - - - 937,336 - 937,336
Transaction costs 23 - (53,933) - - - {53,933) - (53,933)
Interim dividend 13 - - - - (6.562) (6,562) - (6,562)
Stock opuions - - - 640 - 640 - 640
Distnbuuons (rom

non-centrolling interests - - - - - - 4,765 4,765
Balance at 31 December 2010 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 640 214,711 2,513,324 29,761 2,543,085

The accompanying notes on pages 106 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Fortheyeaarended  Forthe year ended
31 December 31 Decamber
{1 thousands of Unsted States dollars) Notes 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the peried 222,606 66,017
Adjustments for
Taxation 86,471 84,388
Depreciation and amortisation 107,072 106,969
Finance items 575 5701
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment %0 1,204
Working capital adjustments 14 (84,248) (81,227)
Other 14 11,785 15,441
Cash generated from operations before interest and tax 344,351 198,493
Finance income 10 1,202 361
Finance expenses 10 (412) (4,893)
Net cash generated by operating activities 345,141 193,961
Cash flows from 1nvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18 (224,391) (223,268)
Investments 1n other assets (2,592) (8,994)
Acquistion of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (63,109) -
Other investing actinities 14 14,537 (16,186)
Net cash used 1n investing activities {275,555) {248,448)
Cash flows from financaing activities
Repayment of external debt - (112,500)
(Repayment)/receipt of related party debt funding 32 {575,100) 195,743
Share 1ssuance - TPO {net of transaction costs) 865,366 -
Increase in contnbuted surplus 231,255 3
Special dividend (252,981) -
Interim dividend (6,562) -
Dhistributions to non-controlling interest holders - (12,204)
Net cash provided by financing activities 261,978 71,042
Net increase 1n cash and equivalents 331,564 16,555
Net foreign exchange difference (278) {136)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 69,726 53,307
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 401,012 69,726

The accompanying notes on pages 106 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated finanaal statements
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

I GENERALINFORMATION

Afncan Barnck Gold plc (the “Company”) was incorporated on 12 January 2010 and re-registered as a publi hmited company on 12 March
2010 under the Companies Act 2006 It s registered in England and Wales with registered number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company’s shares were admitted to the Official List of the Umited Kingdom Listing Authority (“UKLA”) and to trading
on the main market of the London Stock kxchange, hereafler referred to as the Imitial Public Offering (“IPO”) The address of tls regislered
office 15 6 St James's Place, London SW1A 1NP, United Kingdom

Barnick Gold Corporation (*"BGC”) currently owns approximately 73 9% of the shares of the Company and 15 the ulimate controlling party
of the Group

In preparation for the IPO, BGC conducted a reorgamsatton, which was completed on 22 February 2010, whereby the companies comprising
the African Regional Busimess Umt of BGC were reorgamused under the Company (the “Pre-IPO Reorgamisation™) As such, prior to
22 February 2010, the Company dtd not control all of the entittes (collectrvely the “Group™) it acquired pursuant to the Pre-IPO Reorganisation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 10 March 2011

The Group’s pnimary busimess 1s the mining, processing and sale of gold The Group has four operating mines located 1n Tanzama The Group
also has a portfolio of exploration projects located across Tanzana

The principal activities of the subsidiantes and joint ventures included in the consohdated financial statements are as follows

Equity interest Eqtuty mierest

a1 31 December at 31 December
Company Princspal actmty Country of lncorporation 2010 2009
Afncan Barnick Gold ple Holding Company UK 100% -
BUK HoldCo Ltd Holding Company UK 100% -
1816962 Ontano Inc Holding Company Canada 100% -
BarbCo One Ltd Group Fimance Company Barbados 100% -
BAPL Holding Ltd Holding Company Mauntius 100% -
CayCo Iz Lied Holding Company Cayman Islands 100% -
Barrick Exploration Afnca Ltd ("BEAL”)  Exploration Tanzama 100% 100%
Matinje Exploration Ltd Explotation Tanzama 75% 75%
Itobo Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzama 75% 75%
Mkum: Exploration Lid Exploration Tanzania 80% 80%
Sekenke Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzania 20% 20%
Nyanzaga Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzania 100% 51%
Barrick Tanzanian Holdings Ltd Exploration Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Bansun Exploration Ltd Explorahion Tanzama 75% 75%
Safan Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzama 75% 75%
Prime Gold Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzania 75% 75%
Kasubuya Gold Exploration Ltd Exploration Tanzama 60% 60%
KMCL Holdings Ltd Exploration Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine 11d Operating Gold Mine Tanzama 100% 100%
North Mara Gold Mine Ltd Operating Gold Mine Tanzama 100% 100%
Pangea Goldfields Inc Holding Company Canada 100% 100%
Pangea Mmerals Ltd Operating Gold Mine Tanzama 100% 100%
1051694 Ontario Inc Holding Company Canada 100% 100%
Barrick Africa (Propretary) Ltd Shared Services South Africa 100% 100%
East Africa Gold Mines Lid Holding Company Austraha 100% 100%
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Concentrate sales

Concentrate 1s a processing product contamning the valuable ore mineral gold, copper and silver from which most of the waste rmuineral has been
ehmnated, that undergoes a smelung pracess to convert it into gold bullion, copper and siiver concentrate Under the terms of concentrate
sales contracts with independent smeltng companes, gold, copper and silver 1n conrcentrate 1s sold at traling monthly average spot prices
based on contract quotational periods

Revenue 1s recorded, net of selling costs, at the ime of shupment, which s also when nsks and rewards pass to the smelung compames, using
forward market prices on the expected date that final sales prices wall be fixed Vanations between the price recorded at the shipment date and
the actual final price set under the smelting contracts are caused by changes 1n market prices, and result in an embedded denvatve in accounts
recervable The embedded derivative 1s recorded at fawr value each perrod until final settlement occurs, with changes in fair value classified as
provisional prnice adjustments and included as a component of revenue Co-product revenues from the sale of by-products, such as copper and
silver, contained 1n the concentrate are recognised in revenue

Co-products

Revenue from the sale of co-products, such as copper and silver, contained i concentrates are recognised in revenue As detailed in Note 2a)
in the Prospectus co-product revenue was treated as a by-product and credited to cost of sales As a result of co-product revenue becoming
increasingly sigruficant to the Group, reflected in the 202% year-on-year increase, primarily as a result of Buzwag: commencing its production
of copper and increases in copper prices, copper sales have been reclassified as co-product revenue

) Costof sales

Cost of sales consists of direct nuning costs (which include personnel costs, gencral and admunistrative costs, energy costs (principally diesel
fuel and electricity), maintenance and repair costs, operating supplies, external services, third-party smelting, refining and transport fees),

and depreciation related Lo sales as well as production taxes and royalty expenses for the period Cost of sales 1s based on average costing for
contained or recoverable ounces sold as well as production taxes and royalty expense for the penod This is dafferent to the Prospectus in which
the sale of copper by-products was credited against cost of sales, as noted in Notes 2a) and 2k) All costs are net of any impairment to reduce
inventory Lo ils net realisable value

m) Exploration and evaluation

Exploration expenditures

Exploration expenditures relate to the imtial search for mineral deposits with economic potential as well as expenditures incurred for the
purposes of obtmming more information about cxistuing mineral deposits Exploration expenditures typically comprise costs that are directly
attnbutable to

¢ researching and analysing exisung exploration data,
» conducting geological studies,
» exploratory drlling and sampling for the purposes of obtaiming core samples and the related metallurgical assay of these cores, and

¢ drifling to determuine the volume and grade of deposits in an area known to contain muneral resources or for the purposes of converting
mineral resources inte proven and probable rescrves

Exploration expenditures incurred at greenfield sites (sites where the Group does not have any mineral deposits that are already being mined
or developed) are expensed as incurred Exploration expenditures incurred at brownfield sites (sites that are adjacent to a mineral deposit that
15 classified within proven and probable reserves and are already being nuned or developed) are capitalised 1f the following criterta are met

¢ The dnlling 1s being done 1n an inferred or measured and indicated resource, and
» There 1s an exssng proven and probable reserve that 1s contiguous or adjacent to where the drilling 15 being done, and
¢ Tt 15 probable that the resource wili be converted to a proven and probable reserve

The assessment of probability 1s based on the following factors results from previous dnll pregrammes, results from a geological study, results
from a mine scoping study confirming cconomic viability of the resource, and preliminary estimates of the velume and grade of the deposit,
and the net cash flows expected to be generated from its development Costs incurred at brownfield sites that meet the above critena are
capitahsed as a component of property, plant and equipmen (“mmne development ¢osts™) pursuant to IAS 16, ‘Property, Plant and kquipment’
All other dnlling and related exploration costs incurred at these siles are expensed as mine site exploraton Exploration expenditures incurred
for the purpases of determuning addinonal information on a mineral deposit that is classified within proven and probable reserves or for the
purposes of extending an exising muneral deposit that is classified within proven and probable reserves and 15 already being mined or
developed are also capitalised as mine development costs
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
m) Exploration and evaluation continued

Evaluatjon expenditures

Evaluation expenditures anise from a detailed assessment of deposits or other projects that have been 1dentified as having economic potential
1n order to determune their technical feasibility and commercial viabiity They typically include costs directly attnibutable to

¢ detailed engineening studees,

+ examination and testing of extraction methods and metallurgical/treatment processes,
* surveying transportation and infrastructure reguirements,

* permitting activities, and

¢ detailed economic evaluations to determine whether development of the reserves 1s commercially justified, imncluding the preparation of
scoping, pre-feasibility and final feasibihity studies

Evaluation expenditures incurred at greenficld sites are expensed as incurred Evaluatton expenditures incurred at brownfield sues are expensed
as incurred, unless 1t can be demonstrated that the related ¢valuation expenditures will generate a future economic benefit

Evaluation expenditures incurred at operating mines/development projects are capitabised as a component of property, plant and equipment,
“Mining properties and development costs”, respectively

Acquired exploration and evaluation properties

Exploration and evalvation stage properties acquired either as an acquisition of individual assets or as part of a business combination are capitalised
as an mtangible asset, “Acquired exploration and evaluation properties” Exploration and evaluation stage properties represent mnterests 1n
properties that do not have nuneralised material classified within proven and probable reserves The value of such properties 1s primanly driven
by the nature and amount of nunerahsed matenal contained in such properties, including value attnibutable to the rights to explore or develop
1) a property contaiming minerahsed matersal classified as a measured, indicated or inferred resource, or 1) a prospective greenfield property
with significant exploration potential Exploratron and evaluation expenditures incurred on such properties subsequent to their acquisition are
expensed as incurred unti the techmcat and commercial viability of developing the property has been demonstrated under the same cnteria
described above for exploration and evaluation expenditures

n} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 computed by dividing profit for the period attnbutable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding for the period Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur 1f additional
Ordinary Shares arc assumed to be 1ssued under secunities that enutle their holders to obtain Ordinary Shares in the future Tor stock options,
the number of additional shares for mclusion in diluted earnings per share calculations 15 determined using the treasury stock method Under
this method, stock oplions, whose exercise price 1s less than the average market pnice of our Ordinary Shares, are assumed to be exercised and
the proceeds are used to repurchase Ordinary Shares at the average market price for the period The imcremental number of Ordinary Shares
1ssued under stock options and repurchased from proceeds 1s included 1n the calculation of diluted earnings per share

o) Inventory

Matenal extracted from the Group's munes s classified as either ore or waste Ore represents matenal that, at the ime of extraction, 1s expected
1o be processed mnto a saleable form and sold at a profit Waste represents materal that is required to be removed to access ore bodies Orens
recorded as an asset that 1s classified wathan inventory as material 1s extracted from the open pit or underground mine Ore 15 accumulated 1n
stockpiles that are subsequently processed mnto gold n a saleable form under a mine plan that takes into consideration optimal scheduling of
production of our reserves, present plant capacity, and the market price of gold and copper Work 10 process inventory represents gold, copper
and silver 1n the processing circunt that has not completed the production process, and 1s not yet 1n a saleable form Fimished goods inventory
represents gold 1n saleable form that has not yet been shipped Mine operating supphes represent commodities and other raw matenals
consumed 1n the production process, as well as spare parts and other maintenance supplies that are not classified as capital items Inventones
are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, with cost being determined on a weighted average cost basis Average costs are calculated
by reference to the cost of iInventory at the beginmng of the penod together with the cost of inventory produced in a pertod
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Gold, copper and silver ore contained 1n stockpies 1s measured by esumating the number of tonnes added and removed from the stockpile, and
the associated estimate of gold contamned therein (based on assay data) and applying estumated metallurgical recovery rates (based on the expected
processing method) Stockpile ore tonnages are venfied by penodic surveys Costs arc allocated to ore stockpiles based on quantinies of matenal
stockpiled using current mining costs mcurred up to the point of stockpihing the ore and include direct labour costs, matenals and contractor
cxpenses which are directly atinbutable to the extraction of ore, including an allocation of stiipping costs attnbutable to current penod production,
an allocation of capitalised sinpping costs, an allocation of mine site overhead costs, and depreciation of muning properties and property, plant and
equipment used in the extraction of ore As ore 1s processed, costs are removed based on recoverable quanuues of gold and the stockpile’s average
cost per unit Ore that 1s not expected Lo be processed in the 12 months following the balance sheet date 15 classified as non-current

Costs capitalised in process and fimshed goods inventory include the cost of stockpiles processed, the cost of commodities and raw materials
consumed 1n the production process, direct labour, repair and rmaintenance costs, energy costs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment
used n the production process, and an allocation of mine site overhead costs Costs are removed from fimshed goods nventory and recorded
1n cost of sales based on the average cost per ounce of gold, copper and silver sold in the period

Cost of mine operating supphes 1s the purchase cost, including allocated frerght costs where applicable

Provisions are recorded to reduce ore stockpiles, 1n process and fimshed goods inventory to net reahisable value where the net reahisable value

of the wnventory 1s lower than s cost at each balance sheet date Net realisable value 1s determined with reference to relevant market prices less
apphicable vanable selling expenses Provisions recarded also reflect an estimate of the remaining costs of completion to bring the inventory into
its saleable form Prowvisions are recorded to reduce mine eperating supphes to net realisable value, winch 1s generally calculated by reference to its
salvage or scrap value, when 1t 15 determmed that the supphes are siow moving and/or obsolete Provisions are reversed to reflect subsequent
recoveries 1n net realisable value where the inventory s still on hand at the balance sheet date

p) Property, plant and equipment
Min lopmen

Muneral properties and mine development costs are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and appheable accumulated impairment losses
The acquisiion cost of a mineral property is the estumated fair value of proven and probable reserves and measured, indicated and inferred resources
acquired as a result of a business combination or asset acquisiion Capitalised mine development costs include pre-production stripping costs,
production strapping costs that result i a future economuc benefit (refer to Note 2)) for capitalisation cniteria for strpping costs), costs incurred
to access reserves at underground mining operations, and exploration and evaluation expenditures that result in a probable future economic
benefit (refer to Note 2m) for capitalisation critena for exploration and evaluation expenditures})

Development costs mcurred at underground munes to build new shafts, deufits and ramps that prownde physical access to the underground ore
are capitahsed as mncurred These costs can be incurred throughout the hife of the underground mine

Plant and equipment

Plant and equtpment 1s recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and applicable impairment losses Cost includes all expenditures incurred
to prepare an asset for its intended use including the purchase price, brokers’ commussions, and nstallation costs including architectural, design
and engineering (ees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation costs, frexght charges, transportation insurance costs, and duties

Costs that extend the productive capacuty or useful economuc life of an asset are capitahsed Costs mcurred that do not extend the productive
capacity or useful economic hfe of an asset are considered repairs and maintenance and expensed as incurred

The Group enters into leasing arrangements and arrangements that are 1n substance leasing arrangements The deterpunation of whether an
arrangement 15, o contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, including whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset A reassessment
after inception 15 only made 1n specific circumstances Leasing arrangements that transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to the Group are classified as finance leases

Finance leases are recorded as an asset with a corresponding hability at an amount equal to the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value at the beginning of the lease term of the mimmum lease payments over the torm of the lease Each lease payment 1s allocated
between the hability and finance costs using the effective interest method, whereby a constant rate of interest expense 1s recognised on the
balance of the hiabihty outstanding The interest clement of the lease 1s charged to the income statement as a finance expense The property,
plant and equipment assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful ife of the asset and the lease term

All other leases are classified as operating keases Operating lease payments are recogmsed as an expense in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease term
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILS continued
p) Property, plant and equipment continued

Assets under construction

Assets in the course of construction at both our development projects and operating mines are caputalised in the assets under construction
account The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing tt into working
condition for its intended use, at which point 1t 1s transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences Development
projects are recorded at cost, less applicable accumulated impairment losses Development projects represent interests 1n properties that contain
proven and prohable reserves and where development activities are ongotng The cost of development projects s composed of the estimated
fair value of development stage assets acquared as a result of a business combination or an asset acquisition, and costs assoctated wath the
construction of tangible assets, such as processing plants, permanent housing facilities and other tangible infrastructure associated with the
project Assets under construction also contains deposits on long lead items Asscts under construction arc not depreciated

latign

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated aver its useful Itfe, or over the remaining hfe of the mine if shorter on a straight ine basis For
maneral properties and mine development costs, the economic benefits of the assets are consumed m a pattern which 1s inked 1o the production
level Such assets are depreciated on a umit of production basis Depreciation commences when assets are available for their intended use In
applying the umts of production method, depreciation 1s normally calculated using the quantity of gold, copper and silver extracted from the
mune (or pit) 1n the period as a percentage of the total quantity of matenal expected 1o be extractled 1n current and future periods based on
estimnates of recoverable proven and probable reserves and, for some mines, mineral resources Such non-reserve matenal may be included n
the depreciation calculations where there s a high degree of confidence in 1ts economic extraction and the production of the non-reserve
material 1s reflected in the hfe of mine plan

Development costs that relate to a discrete section of an ore body and which only prownide benefit over the life of those reserves are depreciated
over the recoverable proven and probable reserves of that discrete section Discrete sections include capitalised underground development costs
or production stripping costs ncurred for the purposes of providing access to specific ore blocks or areas of the mine and which only provide
an economic benefit over the period of mining that ore block or area Development costs incurred which benefit the entire ore body are
depreciated over the recoverable proven and probable reserves of the entire ore body

The expected depreciation rates of the major categories of assets are as follows

Mineral properties and development costs uopr
Plant and equipment 4% ~ 25%
Underground mobile equipment 143% - 20%
Light vehicles and other mobile equipment 333% -50%
Furmiture, computer and office equipment 333% - 50%

= UOP indicates assets which are depreciated on the basis of units of preduction {("UQF"}, i this case cunces of gold copper and siver produced i a period divided by the total
recoverable reserves and resources of gold, copper and silver expected to be tuned based on the current bfe of mine plans

Each asset’s estimated residual value and useful hfe are reviewed, and adjusted 1f appropniate, on an annual basis The esttmate of residual value

and usefut life 1s based on the physical condition and life hmitations of buildings, plant and equipment and the present assessment of economically

recoverable reserves of the mine for the miming property and development cost asset Changes to the estimated residual values or useful hves are

accounted for prospectively

q) Goodwill

Goodwll represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent hiabihuies acquired
at the date of acquisiion Goodwill 1s 1nitially determined based on provisional fair values Fair values are finalised withun 12 months of the
acqusition date For non-wholly-owned subsidianes, non-controlling interests are imtially recorded based on the minonties’ proportion of the
fair values for the assets and habilities recogrused at acquisition

Goodwill that 15 acquired through business combnations 15 allocated to cash generating umits ("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are expected
to benefit from the synergres of the business combination Each of the Group's CGUs that has an allocation of goodwill 1s also 2n operating
segment as defined by TFRS 8 Consequently, goodwadl1s tested for impairment at the individual CGU level

Goodwill 1s not amortised, rather it 1s tested annually for impairment m accordance with accounting policy Note 25) Goodwill impairments
are not reversible
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r) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired by way of an asset acquisition or business combination are recogmsed if the asset 1s separable or anises from contractual
ot legal nghts and the fair value can be measured reliably on 1nitial recognition On acquisition of a mineral property n the exploration stage, we
prepare an estimate of the fair value attributable to the exploration potential, including mineral resources, if any, of that property The fair value of
the explorauon potential 15 recorded as an intangible asset (acquired exploration potential) as at the date of acquisituon When an exploration stage
property moves 1nto developmemnt, any acquired exploration mtangible asset balance attnbutable to that property 1s transferred to non-depreciable
muning mterests within property, plant and equipment

Imparrment testing and the reversal of impairments are conducted 1n accordance with accounting pohey Note 2s)

s) Impairment of non-current assets

Goodwill s reviewed for impairment annually or at any ume during the year if an indicator of impairment 1s considered to exist

We review and test the carrying amounts of intangible assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable

Property, plant and equipment 1s reviewed for impairment if there 1s any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss recognised in prior years {or non-financaal assets other than goodwll shall be reversed 1f, and only if, there has been
a change 1n the estumates used to determune the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogrused This reversal 1s
recogmsed 1n the consolidated statement of income and 1s himated to the carrying amount that would have been determuned, net of any
depreciation, had no impairment been recogmised in prior years After such a reversal, any depreciation charge 1s adjusted prospectively

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s assessed by reference to the hugher of value 1n use (*VIU") being the net present value (' NPV”) of future
cash flows expected 1o be generated by the asset, and fair value less costs to sell ("FVLCS”) Impairment assessments are conducted at the level
of CGUs, which 1s the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets Each operating
mine and development project represents a CGU for impairment testing purposes An impairment loss 1s recogmised for any excess of carrying
amount of 2 CGU over its recoverable amount

The FVLCS of a CGU 15 based on an estimate of the amount that the Group may obtain 1n a sale transaction on an arm’s length basts There 1s
no actrve market for the Group’s CGUs Consequently, FVI CS 15 derived using discounted cash flow techmques (NPV of expected future cash
flows of a CGU), which incorporate market parncipant assumptions Cost to sell i1s based on management’s best esumates of future selling costs
at the time of calculating FVLCS Costs attnibutable to the sale of a CGU are not considered sigmficant

The expected future cash flows utihsed 1in the NPV medel are derived from estimates of projected future revenues, future cash costs of
production and capital expenditures contained in the bife of mune ("LOM?) plan for each CGU, which are updated in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year The Group’s LOM plans reflect proven and probable reserves and convertible resources and are based on delailed research, analysis
and modelling to optimuse the internal rate of return for each CGU As such, these plans consider the optimal level of investment, overall
production levels and sequence of extraction taking snto account all relevant charactenstics of the ore body, including waste-te-ore tonnes, ore
grades, hzul distances, chemical and metallurgical propertics impacting process recoveries and capaaties of available extraction, haulage and
processing equipment

Projected future revenues reflect the forecasted future production levels at each CGU as detailed 1n the IOM plans Included 1n these forecasts
1s the production of mineral resources that do not currently quabfy for inclusion 1n proven and probable ore reserves where there 1s a high
degree of confidence in their economuc extraction This 1s consistent wath the approach that a market parucipant would utilise 1n prepaning a
forecast of expected production levels Projected future revenues also reflect the Group’s estimate of long-term gold prices, which 1s determined
based on current prices, an analysts of the expected total production costs of producers and forward pricing curves and forecasts of expected
long-term pnices prepared by research analysts These estimates often differ from current price levels, but this methodology 1s consistent with
how a market paruicipant would assess long-term gold prices

The estumates of future cash costs of production and capital expenditures are derived from the LOM plans for each CGU Costs incurred 1n
currenctes other than the US dullar are translated to US dollars using expected long-term exchange rates based on the relevant forward pricing
curve for that currency Ol prices are a sigmificant component, both directly and indirectly, of the expected cash costs of production Estimates
for long-term od prices used in the LOM plans are based on the current spot price, the forward pricing curve and long-term o1l price forecasts
prepared by analysts

The discount rate apphed to present value 1s based upon the real weighted average cost of capital applicable to the CGU The discount rate
reflects equity risk premiums over the nsk-free rate, the impact of the remamming economic life of the CGU and the nisks associated with the
relevant cash flows based on the country 1in which the CGU 15 located These nsk adjustments are based on observed equity nsk premiums,
historical country nisk premiums and average credit default swap spreads for the penod
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILS continued
s) Impairment of non-current assets continued

In determuning FVLCS, a market multiple 15 apphed to the NPV of each CGU Geold companies typically trade at a market capitabisation that is
based on a muluple of their underlying NPV Consequently, a market partuicipant would generally apply an NPV muluple when estimaung the
fair valuc of a gold property The NPV muluples utilised in the detcrmination of the FVLCS of a CGU consider the NPV multiples observed on
comparable companies These observed multiples are primanly derived from research analyst reports and take into consideration the following
1) estimate of underlying NPV prepared by the analyst, n) estimate of target market capitalisation prepared by the analyst, w) market capitalisaton
on the date of the analyst report, and 1v) market capitalisation on the date of the impairment test The NPV muluple applied also takes into
constderation the remaining economuc life of the CGU For CGUs with a remaiming economic hfe of five years or less, an NPV multiple on the
lower end of the observed multiple range 1s utithsed For other CGUs, the median observed NPV muluple 1s utidised

The VIU of a CGU 1s generally lower than its FVLCS, due primanly to the applicanon of a market multtple to the underlying NPV of a CGU when
determuning its FV1 LS Consequently, the recoverable amount of a CGU for impairment Lesting purposes 1s determmed bascd on s FVICS

t) Contnbuted surplus

The Company did not exast unul 12 January 2010, and did not become the parent company for the Group untl 22 February 2010 when the
transfer of the members of the Group pursuant to the Pre-IPO Reorganisation was completed Contributed surplus represents the difference
between the cumulative investment 1n the entitics and businesses which form part of the consohidated African Barrick Gold plc Group and
non-conirolling interests

u) Share capilal

Ordinary Shares arc classified as cquity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown 1n equity as
a deduction from the proceeds

v) Provisions

Provisions are recognused when the Group has a present obhigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbhgation If the effeet
of the ume value of money 1s matenal, provisions arc determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current markel asscssments of the ime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the hability Where discounting s used,
the icrease in the provision due to the passage of tume 15 recogmised as a finance cost

Rehabilitation costs

The mining, extraction and processing activities of the Group normally give rise to obligattons for environmental rehabihtation Rehabibitation
works can include factity decommussioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of waste materials, and site and land rehabilitanon The extent
of work required and the associated costs are dependent on the requirements of relevant authorities and the Group's environmental policies

Provistons for the cost of each rehabilitation programme are recogmised at the time that environmental disturbance occurs When the extent of
disturbance 1ncreases over the life of an operation, the provision 15 increased accordingly The major parts of the carrying amount of provisions
relate to tathngs pond closure/rchabilitation, demolition of bulldings/mine facilitics, ongoing water treatment, and ongoing care and maintenance
of closed mmes Costs mcluded 1n the provision encompass all closure and rchabilitation acivity expected to occur progressively over the hife of
the operation and at the time of closure 1n connection with disturbances at the reporting date Estimated costs included 1n the determination of
the provision reflect the nsks and probabilittes of alternative estimates of cash flows required to settle the obligation at cach particular operation
Routine operating costs that may impact the ulimate closure and rehabilitation activities, such as waste materal handling conducted as an
integral part of a mimng or production process, are not included n the provision Costs ansing from unforeseen circumstances, such as the
contamination caused by unplanned discharges, are recognised as an expense and hability when the event occurs that gives rise 1o an obligation
and rehable estimates of the required rehabihtation costs can be made

The tuning of the actual rehabihitation expenditure 1s dependent upon a number of factors such as the ife and nature of the asset, the operaung
licence conditions and the environment 1n which the mine operates Expenditure may occur before and after closure and can continue for an
extended penod of ume depending on rehabilitation requirements The majonty of the expenditure 15 expected to be paid over periods of up to
30 years with some payments into perpetuity Rehabilitation provisions are measured at the expected value of future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a current, market-based estimate of the real nisk-free pre-tax discount rates The unwinding of the discount 1s included
n finance expense and results 1n an increase 1n the amount of the provision Provisions are updated each reporting perniod for the effect of a
change m the discount rate and the change in estimate 1s added or deducted from the related asset and depreciated prospectively over the asset’s
useful hfe
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Significant judgements and estimates are mvolved 1n forming expectations of future activaties and the amount and tuming of the associated cash
flows Those expectations are formed based on existing environmental and regulatory requirements or, if more stringent, Group environmental
policies which give nse to a constructive obligation

When provistons for closure and rehabilitation are intially recognised, the corresponding cost 1s capitalised as an asset, representing part of the
cost of acquinng the future economuc benefits of the operation The capitahised cost of closure and rehabilitation activaties 1s recogmsed
property, plant and equipment and depreciated accordingly

It 1s possible that management’s estimates of provisions could change as a result of changes in regulations, the extent of rehabihtation required,
and the means of reclamation or cost estunates Rehabihtation provisions are adjusted as a result of changes m esimates Those adjustments are
accounted for as a change 1 the corresponding value of the related asset, except where a reduction in the provision 1s greater than the remaming net
book value of the related assets, in which case the value 1s reduced to nil and the remaiming adjustment ts recogmsed 1n the income statement In the
case of closed sites, changes to estimated costs are recogmsed immediately 1 the income statement Changes to the capitalised cost result in an
adjusiment to future depreciation and finance expense On an annual basts, the Group reviews for changes in ¢cost estimates, discount rates or
life of operations

w) Ekmployeebenefits

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan (the “Stock Option Plan™), a long-term incentive plan (the “LTIP™) and
a legacy restncted share umt plan (the “Legacy RSU Plan”™)

Share-based payments

Issue of Stock Options

Stock oplions can be granted under either the Company LTIP or the Stock Option Plan The Company recerves services from employees as
consideration for equuty instruments (options) of the Group The fair value of the employee services recerved 1n exchange for the grant of the
opuons 1s recogrused as an expense The total amount to be expensed 1s determined by reference to the far value of the options granted

# including any market performance conditions,

¢ excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting condinions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified ume penod), and

¢ excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirement for employees to save)

Non-market vestng condions are mcluded 1 assumptions about the number of opiions that are expected 1o vest The total cepense 1s recognised
over the vesting period, which 1s the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be sausfied At the end of each reporting period,
the Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected Lo vest based on the non-market vesting condiions It recogmses the
unpact of the reviston 1o orsginal estmates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

When the options are exercised, the Company may tssue new shares or procure the transfer of existing shares to sausfy the exercise Where
shares are 1ssued, the proceeds recerved net of any directly atinbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nomnal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised The grant by the Company of options over sts equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
underiakings tn the Group ts treated as a capital contnbution The fair value of employee services receved, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, 15 recogmised over the vesting period as an increase to investment i subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit

1o equity

LTIP

The Company has a cash-settled, Restricted Share Unit (RSU) plan for select employees Under the terms of the RSU plan, selected employees are
granted RSUs where each RSU has a value equal to one Ordinary Share of the Company RSUs vest over a two-and-a-half or three-year penod and
arc sctled 1n cash Additional RSUs are credited to reflect dnidends paid on Ordinary Shares of the Company dunng the vesting penod with a
corresponding charge to the compensation expense A ltability for RSUs 18 measured at fair value on the grant date and 1s recogmsed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding charge to the compensation expense At the grant date the fair value of the awards 15
determined from the market value of the shares at the date of award and adjusted for any market based vesting conditions attached to the award

e g relative Total Shareholder Retumn (“TSR") performance Changes in the fair value of the RSU hability, due to changes in the price of Ordinary
Shares of the Company, are recorded each period, with a corresponding charge to the compensation expense Compensation expenses recogrused
fur RSUs icorporate an estimate for expected (orfesture rates The expected forfeiure 1s estimated based on tustoncal forferture rates of the Group
pre-IPO and expectatrons of future forferture rates Adjustments to compensation expense are recogmsed in periods where the actual forfeiture rate
differs from the expected rate
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
w) Employee benefits continued

Legacy RSU Plan

Historically, the Barnck Group has maintained a Restricted Share Uit ("RSUT) plan for select employees who now work for the Group This
plan operates 1n an incidental manner to the Company RSU plan Thesc exssting legacy restricted share units wall continue to be admimistered
and accounted for based on the movement of the fair value of the Barrick Ordinary Share for recording of habiiies and compensation expense

Defined contnibution plan

The Group’s Tanzaman employees are members of erther the National Social Security Fund (*NSSF”) or of the Parastatal Pension Fund (PPF),
which are defined contribution plans A defined contribution plan 1s a plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate
entity The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution if the fund does not hold sufficient assets Lo pay all
employees the benefits relaung to the employee service 1n the current and prior periods The Group and employees both contnbute 10% of
the employees’ gross salaries to the schemes The contributtons are charged to the income statement when they are due

Ternunation benefits

Termtnation benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recogmises termination benefits when it 1s demonstrably commatted to
either termunating the employment of current employees according to a detaed format plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date are discounted to thewr present value

Bonus plans
The Group recogruses a liabihty and an expense for bonuses where 1t 1s contractually obliged or where there 15 a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation

Other entitlements

The estimated monetary hability for employees’ accrued annual leave entittement at the balance sheet date 1s recognised as an expense accrual

x) Financial mstruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carnied in the balance sheet at fawr value For the purposes of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents include
cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above

Loans and recetyables

[ oans and receivables are non-denvative financral assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, do not
quahify as trading assets and have not been designated as either fair value through profit and loss or available for sale These are inttially recognised
at farr value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date These are classified as non-current assets, where the receivables are discounted
and held at their net present value

Loans and recervables comprise trade and other receivables, other assets and cash and cash equivalents al the balance sheet date

A prowision for impairment of trade recewvables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the ongunal terms of receivables The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the
expected cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 15 reduced through use of an allowance account
The amount of the provision s recognised 1n the income statement

Dernvatives

Dervatsves are imtally recogmsed at fair value on the date a denvauve contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging mnstrument, and if so,
the nature of the item being hedged
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Embedded denivatives

Contracts are assessed for the existence of embedded denvatives at the date that the Group first becomes party to the contract, with reassessment
only 1if there 15 a change to the contract that signuficantly modifies the cash flows Fmbedded denvatives whuch are not clearly and closely related
to the underlying asset, habiity or transaction are separated and accounted for as stand-alone denvatives

Financial habilities

Borrowings are recogrused imitially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently carned at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 15 recogrsed 1n the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the cffective interest method Fees paid on the estabhshment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
lozn to the extent that it 1s probable that some or all of the facihty will be drawn down In this case, the fee 1s deferred until the draw-down
occurs To the extent there 15 no evidence that 1t 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 15 capitalised as a pre-
payment for hquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates Botrowings are classified as current habilities
unless the Group has an uncondiional nght to defer settlement of the habihty for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

y) Finance mcomeand finance expense

Interest tncome 1s recogrused on a ime-proportion basis using the effective interest method When a recervable 1s impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the esiimated future cash flow discounted at the onginal effecuve interest rate of the
mstrument, and continues unwinding the discount as nterest income

Tnterest 1s recogmised as a borrowing cost on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method Borrowing costs that relate directly to
the construcuon of property, plant and equipment during the lume that it 1s required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset

2) Taxes

The tax expense for the peniod comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recogrused in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised n other comprehensive income or directly in equuty In this case the tax s also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabihities for the current and prior penods are measured at the amount expected 16 be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities Management pertodically evaluates positions taken 1n tax returns with respect to sutuations in which applicable tax
regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authontics 1he tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substanuvely enacted by the balance sheel date

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 15 provided using the hability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bascs of assets
and hiabihities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes Deferred income tax 15 determined using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred imcome tax Liabilety ts settled Deferred
income tax asseis are recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax habilities are recognmised for all taxable temporary differences, except

* Where the deferred income tax hability anises {rom the 1mitial recogrition of goodwall ar of an asset or hability 1n a transaction that 1s not
a business combination and, at the tme of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit/loss, and

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments m subsidianes where the timmg of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
10 the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profit wall be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except

» Where the deferred mcome tax asset relating to deductible temporary differences anses from the instial recogmtion of an asset or babiity ina
transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the ume of the transaction, affects neither the accountng profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes deferred income tax assets are recogmised only to
the extent thal s probable that the temporary differences wall reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avanlable against
which the temporary differences can be utihsed
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
z) Taxes continued

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit wall be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utiised

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recogmised to the extent that 1t has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recavered

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset 1s realised or the
liability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Uncertainues regarding availability of tax losses, in respect of enquiries raised and additional tax assessments issued, have been measured using
the single best estimate of likely outcome approach

Deferred mcome tax relating to ttems recogrused directly 1n equity 1s recognused 1n equuty and not in the inceme statement

Deferred income tax assets and deferred imncome tax habihties are offset, if a legally enforceable nght exists to set off current income tax assets
against current income tax liabthties and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authonty

Indirect tax

Indirect tax assets and habilities for the current and prior penods are measured at the amount expected 10 be recovered from or paid to the
laxation authorities Management peniodically evaluates positions taken m indirect tax returns with respect to situations i which applicable tax
regulation 1s subject o interpretation It estabhshes provisions or recervables where appropriatc on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to
or received from the tax authontties The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date If the recervable 1s expected to be recerved in more than 12 months from year end, the recervable 1s discounted and
held at 1ts present value Amounts expected to be payable or recervable in more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets or habiities
i the balance sheet, as appropnate

aa) Royalties

Royalty arrangements based on mineral production are in place at each operating mine The primary type of royalty 15 a net smelter return
("NSR”) royalty Under this type of royalty the Group pays the holder an amount calculated as the royalty percentage multiphed by the value
of gold production at market gold prices less third-party smelting, refining and transportation costs

The Buzwag: mune 15 also subject to a net profits interest (*NPI”) arrangement and a production sharing arrangement held by separate thurd
parties The NP1 1s calculated as a percentage of profits realised from the Buzwag: mine after all capital, exploration and development costs and
interest incurred in relation to the Buzwag mine have been recouped and all operating costs relating to the Buzwagt mune have been pard The
production sharing arrangement commences after 2 ruillion ounces of gold have been produced, as at 31 December 2010 375,050 ounces have
been produced After ths level of production, US$1 per ounce produced 1s payable based on a gold price of US$300 per ounce and the amount
must be increased pro rata to reflect current gold prices

The North Mara mune 1s also subject 1o a land royalty (land tenements (“L'T")} based on the net revenue derived from the open pit mines
Royalty expense 1s recorded when revenue from the sale of gold, copper and silver production 1s recogmised

The following percentages apply

Bulyanhulu 3% NSR
Tulawaka 34 NSR
North Mara ~ Nyabirama and Nyabigena pits 3% NSR, 1% LT
North Mara - Gokona pit 3% NSR, 1 1% LT
Buzwag 3% NSR, 30%NPI*

* The NF] 1 calculated as a percentage of profits realised (rom the Buzwag: mine after all capstal exploration and development costs and interest meurred 1 relation 1o the Buzwag:
mine¢ have been recouped and all operating costs relating to the Buzwagt mune have been patd Mo amount 1s currently payable

bb) Dividend distribution

Drvidend distribution to the Company's shareholders 1s recognised as a habality in the consohdated financial statements in the penod 1n which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharecholders
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3 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has only one pnmary product preduced in a single geographic location, being gold produced in Tanzania In addition the Group
produces copper and silver as a co-product Reportable operating scgments are based on the internal reports provided to the Chief Operaung
Deaision Maker (“*CODM?”) Lo evaluate segment performance, decide how to allocate resources and make other operating decisions After
applying the aggregation criteria and quantitative thresholds contained in [FRS 8, the Group’s reportable operating segments were determined
to be North Mara gold mme, Tulawaka gold mine, Bulyanhulu gold mine, Buzwag: gold mine, and a scparate Corporate and Lxploration
segment, which primarly consists of costs related to corporate adimmistration and exploration and evaluation activities (“Other”)

Segment results and assels include items directly attributable o the segment as well as those that can be allocated on a rcasonable bays
Segment assets consist primarnily of property, plant and equipment, inventories and recervables Capital expenditures comprise additions to
property, plant and equipment Segment habilitics are not reported since they are not considered by the CODM as matenal to segment
performance The Group has also included segment cash operating costs

Segment information for the reportable operating segments of the Group for the years ended 31 Decemnber 2010 and 31 December 2009 15 set
out below

For the year ended 31 December 2010

{1 thousands of United States dollars) “arth Wara Tulawaka Bulyanhul Burwigl Other Total

Gold revenue 268,762 78,499 327,847 246,194 - 921,302

Co-product revenue 304 148 31,977 20,790 - 53,719

Total segment revenue' 269,566 78,647 359,824 266,984 - 975,021

Segment cash operating cost? 103,983 45,450 173,461 156,600 50,297 529,821

Other charges® 12,743 {5,865) 5,100 14,408 (353) 26,033

EBITDA*S 152,840 39,062 181,233 95,976 (49,944) 419,167

Depreciation and amortisation 28,018 10,622 28,386 39.087 3,402 109,515

EBIT* 124,822 28,440 152,847 56,889 (53,346) 309,652

Total segment finance income 1,202

Total segment finance expense {1.777)
Profit before tax 309,077

Income tax expense (86.471)
Net profit for the period 222,606

Capital expenditure

Sustaining 26,217 9,748 71,387 18,844 7,116 §33,312

Expansionary 59,043 2,758 357 973 - 63,131

Rehabiltation asset adjustment 6,182 3,007 8,795 9,964 - 27,948

Total capital expenditure 91,442 15,513 80,539 29,781 7,116 224,391

Cash costs

Segmental cash operating cost? 103,983 45,450 173,491 156,600 - 479,524

Deduct co-product revenue {804) (148) (31,977) (20,790) - (53,719)
Total cash costs 103,179 45,302 14t,514 135,810 - 425,805

Sold ounces® 218,684 63,909 262,442 198,221 - 743,256

Cash cost per ounce sold* 472 709 539 685 - 573

Equity ounce adjustment’ (4)
Altributable cash cost per ounce sold* 569
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

3 SEGMENT REPORTING continued

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(1n thousands of Untted States dollars) North Mara Tutawika Bulyanhula Burwag Other Total

Gold revenue 204,760 90,446 244,513 153,693 - 693,412

Co-product revenue 753 160 16,669 188 - 17,770

Total segment revenue’ 205,513 90,606 261,182 153,881 - 711,182

Segment cash operating cost’ 107,174 38,757 182,665 65,081 46,630 440,307

Other charges® 9,511 1,988 19,976 2,581 {12,637) 21,419

EBITDAY" 88,828 49,861 58,541 86,219 (33,993) 249,456
Depreciation and amortisation 25,890 20,935 26,894 16,991 2,640 93,350

EBIT* 62,938 28,926 3,647 69,228 (36,633) 156,106
Total segment finance income 361

Total segment finance expense (6,062)
Praofit before tax 150,405

Income tax expense (84,388)
Net profit for the penod 66,017
Capital expenditure

Sustaining 28,012 2,546 56,694 8,059 389 95,700

Expansiwonary 17.876 3,655 2,286 87,851 - 111,668

Rehabilitation asset adjustment 226 1,683 603 13,388 - 15,900

Total capital expenditure 46,114 7,884 59,583 109,298 389 223,268
Cash costs

Segmental cash operating cost? 107,174 38,757 182,665 65,081 393,677

Deduct co-product revenue (753) (160) {16,669) (188) (17,770)
T'otal cash costs 106,421 38,597 165,996 64,893 375,907

Sold ounces® 209,495 93,413 255,121 153,682 711,711

Cash cost per ounce sold* 508 413 651 422 528

Equity ounce adjustment’ 5

Attributable cash cost per ounce sold* 533

I Revenue includes the incidental revenue derved from the sale of co products Previously co-product revenue was regarded as by productsand included 1n ¢ost of sales 2009 figures
have been restated

2 The Chiel Deasion Maker reviews cash operating costs tor the four operating mine sites separaiely trom corporate admunistration costs and explorauon custs Conseguently, the
Group has reported these costs in this manner

3 Foreign exchange gans and losses were included 1n Cash operating costs as per the Prospectus In the analysis above they have been reclassified to other charges.
4 These are non-IFRS finznaial performance measures with no standard meamng under [FRS Refer to Mvon IFRS measures on page 54 for defimtions
5 Endirect corporate administration costs previously on charged to the sites have been exctuded from the indidual site s EBITDA and included 1o Other for 2010 and 2009
6 Reflects 100% of ounces sold
7 Reflects the adjustment for non-contrelling interests at Tulawaka
Asmt Asat

31 December 31 December
{1n (bousands of Unsted States dollars) 2010 2008
Segment assets
North Mara 603,739 528,667
Tulawaka 104,063 93,612
Bulyanhulu 1,109,740 1,026,668
Buzwag 724,467 664,383
Other® * 385,159 51,858
Total segment assets _ ] 2,927,108 2,365,228

& Duning the current year assets to the value of US$102 mulion were acquired from the purchase of Tusker Net cash proceeds of 1755269 milhon were recewed from the IPO

9 Assets relating to restnctive share unit habilities of US$7 5 million have been reclassified and offset against the habibty Thus 1s different to the Prospectus where the asset was shown
separately as part of non current assets As this amount has an immaterzal unpact on the opening posttion, no opening balance sheet 1s presented
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4 REVENUE

For the year ended  For the year ended
{in thousands of Uruted States dollars) . D““:I‘l’le; . D"ﬂ;’:;;
Gold doré sales 576,839 540,617
Gold concentrate sales' 344,463 152,795
Copper concentrate sales? 47,279 14,531
Silver sales? 6,440 3,239
Total 975,021 711,182

1 Gold and capper concentrate sales includes provisional price adjustments to the accounts recereable balance due to changes i market gold and copper pnces prior to final setdement

as follows 1S$3 2 mullion for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009 US31 2 milhon)

2 Revenue from the sale of Lo products, such as copper and silver contained in concentrates 1s tecogmsed 1 revenue As detailed m Note 2a), per the Prospectus co product revenue
was treated as a by product and credited 1o cost of sales Management's decision to make thes change was a result of co product reverue becomung increasingly sigmficant 1o the
Group ncreasing 202% year-on-year primantly as a result of Buzwag commencing s production of copper, but also due to an mcreases i copper prices, copper sales have been

reclassified 1o revenue where they are disclosed as a co product

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Decemnber 31 Decernber

(n ds of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Revenue by location of customer?
Europe
Swatzerland 576,839 540,617
Germany 32,491 3,914
Asia
China 298,676 118,896
Japan 67,015 47,755
Total revenue 975,021 711,182

3 Revente by location of customer ts determuned based on the country to whech the gold 1s delivered

Included 1n revenues for the year ended 31 December 2010 are revenues of approximately US$567 mullion (2009 Us5104 mullion} which arose
from sales Lo two of the Group’s largest customers Duning the year ended 31 December 2009 as well as the first quarter of 2010 all gold doré
sales were made 10 BIBC, a related party Refer to Note 32, (2010 U55185 mullion, 2009 158540 nullien) No other customers mdividually

account for more than 10% of the Group's revenues

5 COSTOFSALES

For the year ended For the year ended

3 December 31 December

(1n thousends of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Direct mining costst 447,974 370,766
Depreaiation? 109,515 93,350
Royalty expense 31,550 22,911
Total® 589,039 487,027

I Direct mumng costs inctudes charges to reduce the cost of mventory to net realisable vatue as follows USS nil for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010 (2009 1582 3 mudkon)

2 Depreaanen ctudes the depreciation component relaung 1o the cost of inventory sold.

1 Cost of sales less depreciauion equals cash operating costs

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 125

asuewopag MIAIIAQ

SjU3UIME)S [RIDURUTY JDUBUIIAOD

UONBULIOJUT I3P[OYITeYS




Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

6 EMPLOYLE BENEFITS

For ke year ended For the year cnded
31 December 3 December
(in thousands of United Srates dollars) 2010 2009
Wages and salanes 113,221 106,352
Other employee benefits 51,193 27,035
Share-based payments charge? 3,756 40
Total 168,170 133,427
1 Other employee benefits include bonuses, leave pay pensions, medical expenses and other benefits
2 Further details of the Group’s stock opuons and other share based payment plans are given 1n Note 24
Dretails of Directors remuneration can be found i the Remunerztion report on pages 87 to 95
Average number of employees
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Decesuber 3l December
{10 thoysands) 2019 2009
Operations 4,351 3,993
Admnstration 226 186
Total average headcount 4,577 4,179

7  EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION

The following represents a summary of exploration and evaluation expenditures incurred at cach rmne site and sigmificant exploration targets

(:f applicable)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Expensed duning the year
North Mara - 1,402
Burwag - 3,023
Tulawaka 2,343 2,242
Bulyanhulu 419 -
Other! 12,099 2,204
Total expensed 14,861 8,871
Capntalised duning the year
North Mara 8,065 950
Buzwag 973 -
Tulawaka 2,758 1,641
Bulyanhule 357 170
Total capitahised 12,153 2,761
Total 27,014 11,632

1 In¢luded in "other™ are the exploration activities conducted through Barnick Exploration Afnica Lid All pnmary greenfield explorauon and evaluation actnnues are conducted in

this Company
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8 OTHER CHARGES

For theyearended  For the year ended

31 December 31 December
{1n thousands of Unated States dollars) 2010 2009
Other expenses
Loss on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 90 1,204
Discounting of indirect tax recewables 6,808 6,903
Environmental clean-up - 878
Severance payments - 969
Foreign exchange losses (net)! 7,863 10,705
Unrealised non-hedge denvauve losses 3,658 -
Asset write-down - 143
Transactton cost associated with hsting 2,575 -
Social development cost 3,467 1,026
Insurance? 1,840 -
Buzwags fuel clarm? 2,539 -
Other 3,577 861
Total 32,417 22,689
Other income
Insurance proceeds (4,535) -
Other* (1,849) (1,270)
Total (6,384) {1,270)
Total other chargcs 26,033 21,419

1 Gains and losses on the translation of foreign currency translations are deemed to be part of other charges Thus has been reclassified since the Prospectus where it was classified as

part of corporate admunistration

2 Pre-IPO insurance costs were borne by the parent compzny BGC and not recharged
3 Fuel duty recervable previously recognased has been derecogmised followang the Buzwag fuel thelt incident

4 Other incame represents the gain recognased following the waning of payables balances owed to related parties

Foreign exchange differences on working capital items

During the year, the Group expenenced the following foreign exchange difference relating to working capital items

For the year ended  For the yrar ended

31 December 31 December
{1n thousands of Unted States doflar<) 2010 2009
Loss on foreign exchange differences relating to working capital 1items 10,698 10,893
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

9 AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year the Group {including 1ts subsidiaries) obtaned the following services from the Company s auditor(s)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 31 Decomber
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Audit fees
Fees payable for the audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 384 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
Audit of the Company’s subs:diaries pursuant to legislation 547 484
Other services pursuant to legislation 133 46
Tax services 202 249
QOther services i connection with the capital rmising! 1,314 4,630
QOther services 162 -
Total B o 2,742 5,409
1 The majonty of capital racsing costs pard were capiizlised against Share Premium
10 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCLE EXPENSE
a) Finance income
For the yrar ended For the year ended
31 Decesnber 31 December
{1n thousands of Umited States dollars) 2010 2009
Interest on time deposits 720 361
Other 482 -
Total 1,202 361
b) Finance expense !
For the year ended For the year ended :
31 Decernher 31 December ‘
(in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Unwinding of discount {Note 26) 1,365 1,169
Interest on bank overdraft and external debt 202 4,893
Other! 210 - ‘
Total? 1,777 6,062

1 Included in “other” finance expense 1s the amortisation ot the fee relating to the revolving credut factity

2 For cash flow purposes unwinding of discount 1s excluded from the finance expense movement
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11 TAX EXPENSE

Fut the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December
{10 thousands of Unated States dollars) 2010 2009
Current 1ax
Current tax on profits for the penod 291 -
Adjusiments in respect of prior years - -
Total current tax 291 -
Deferred tax (Note 20}
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 86,180 £4,388
Total deferred tax 86,180 84,388
Income tax expense 86,471 84,388

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax daffers from the theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average tax rate applicable 1o
the profits of the consohdated entities as follows

Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended

31 December 31 December
{in thowsands of Uruted States dollars) 2010 2009
Profit before tax 309,077 150,405
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits 1n the respective countries 88,186 45,130
Tax effects of

(Non-taxable income)/expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2,908) 3,995
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised 4,347 (2,883)
Prior year adjustments (2,201) 1,681

Adjustment to unrecogmsed tax benefits carried forward’ - 36,892
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (63) (2)
Qther (890) (425)
Tax charge 86,471 84,388

1 The 2009 reconciiauon includes an amount of U5$36 9 mullion relaung to an increase 1o the amount of unrecognised tax benefits carmed forward The adpustment reflects
unceriainty regarding recoverability of certain tax losses, and gaves nse 10 an increased deferred 1ax charge The Group antcipates that the amount of unrecogmsed tax benefits
may change within 12 months of the reporting date shrough 2 potential settiement with tax authontics, which may result in an adpustment o available tax losses

The tax rate 1n Tanzama 1s 30% and 1n South Africa 28% for both years presented

Tax pertods remain open to review by the Tanzaman Revenue Authonty (“TRA™} in respect of income taxes for five years following the date

of the filing of the corporate lax return, durmg which time the authorities have the nght to raise additional tax assessments including penaltes
and interest Under certain aircumstances the reviews may cover longer punods  Because a number of tax penods remain open to review by tax
authorities, there 1s a nsk that transactions that have not been challenged in the past by the authorities may be challenged by them 1n the future,
and this may result in the rasing of additional tax assessments plus penalties and interest The 2009 reconaliauon includes an amount of
US$36 9 million relating to an increase m the amount of unrecogmsed tax benefits carned forward The adjustment reflects uncertainty
regarding recoverability of certain tax losses, and gives nise (o an increased deferred tax charge The Group anticipates that the amount of
unrecogrsed tax benefits may change within 12 months of the reporung date through a potential settlement with tax authonties, which may
result in an adpustment to available tax losses With the exception of the adjustment made mn 2009 in respect of unrecogmsed tax benefits, the
Group has made no further provision 1n respect of such tax assessments (refer to Note 31)
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share (“EPS”) 15 calculated by dmding profit for the pertod attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue during the penod

For the purpose of calculauitng EPS, the share caputal for the Company in the period prior to the Pre-IPO Reorgamisation on 22 February 2010 15
calculated as 1f this reorgamisation was completed as at 1 January 2009

Dhiuted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Grdinary Shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential Ordinary Shares The Company has dilutive potenuial Ordinary Shares in the form of stock options The weighted average
nurnber of shares 15 adjusted for the number of shares granted assuming the exercise of stock options

At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, earnings per share have been calculated as follows

For the yrar ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December
{tn thousands of Uruted States dollars) 2010 2009
Earnings
Profit from continuing operauons atirnbutable to owners of the parent 218,103 58,577
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares m issuc! 410,085,499 410,085,499
Adjusted for dilutive effect of
- Stock options 18,482 -
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for dituted carmings per share 410,103,981 410,085,499
Earmings per share
Basic earmings per share from continuing operations 532 143
Dilutive earmings per share from continuing operations 532 14 3

| The prior year basic earmings per sharc comparative was calculated using the 2010 number of average wesghted shares as the Company had not been formed 1n the prior year, and had
o share capttal

13 DIVIDENDS

An intertm dividend of USS$6 6 million (US1 6 cents per share) was pard during 2010 and recogmsed in the financial statements Refer to
Note 34 for details of the final dvidend declared subsequent to year end

14 CASH FLOW - OTHER ITEMS
a} Operating cash flows - other items

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December
{10 thousands ¢f Unted States dollars) 2010 2009
Adjustments for non-cash income statement 1ems
Foreign exchange losses 7.585 10,569
Provision added 67 4,600
Unrealised loss on derivative copper options 3,658 -
Stack option expense 640 -
QOther non-cash items (443) 136
Exchange loss on revaluation of cash balances 278 136
Total 11,785 15,441
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Adjustments for working capital items.

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December
(0 thousznds of Lnuted States dollars) 2010 2009
Trade recervables 2,384 {16,822)
Inventornes' (18,446) (91,619)
Other current assets (48,802) {2,757}
Other liabilities? 6,527 7,055
Irade and other payables® (28,513) 33,621
Working capital adjustments relating to Tusker acqusition (Note 22) (3,734) -
Other working capital items* 6,336 (10,705}
Total (84,248) (81,227}

1 Thenventory adjustrent meludes both the movement in inventaries as well as the non current portion of inventory
The other habilities adjustment includes both the movemnent in ¢urrent and non-current Liabidities

The trade and ather payables adjustment excludes statutory habilities in the form of income tax payable

W N

Other warking capital tems includes exchange losses associsted with working capital, as well as one off type working capital adjustments relatimg to rmnonty interest and
intercompany settlements

b) Investing cash flows - other items

For theycarended  For the year ended

3 Devcember 31 December
(1n thousands of Unated States dullars) 2010 2004
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 183 138
Other long-term receivables® (4,033) (31,806)
Village housing receivable 135 (419)
Tusker options movement (9,696) -
Movement in rehabilitation habihity 27,948 15,901
Total 14,537 (16,186)

5 Non current asset movement velates 10 the investment 1 the powetline and land acquisinons reflected as prepaid operating leases, Tanzama government recewvables village housing
project, and other stems Note that for 201G the long-term wndirect tax movement has been reflected as part of worlung capital in the cash flow from operational activines section
which amounted to US536 7 million US$26 5 mmathon was classified 1n 2009 in the non-currens a4set mavement as part of the cash flow from investing activities

15 INVENTORIES

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Raw materals
Ore 1n stockpiles 34,412 87,514
Minc operating supplies 140,411 130,771
Work 1n process 36,568 38,883
Finished products
Gold dore/bulhion 5,936 5,969
Gold, copper and silver concentrate 10,647 15,513
Total current portion of inventory 227,974 278,650
Non-current ore in stockpiles 69,122 -
Total 297,096 278,650

1 Dunng 2010 L5$69 | million of ore at Burwag and North Mara was classified as long tenn followtng management s assessment thal these stockgnles wall be processed after 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

16 TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at Asat

31 December 31 Decernber

{in thousands of Unted States dolars) 2010 2009
Trade receivables

Amounts due from dore and concentrate sales 46,491 16,219

Other receivables' 11,621 9,662

Due from related parties (Note 32) 2,131 37,518

Less Provision for doubtful debt on other recevables (1,029) {1,801)

Total 59,214 61,598

| Other recervables relates to employee and supplier backeharge related receivables

Trade recervables other than concentrate recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms Concentrate recervables are
generally on 60-120 day 1erms depending on the terms per contract Trade recewvables are amounts due from customers 1n the ordinary course
of business If collection 1s expected 1n one year or less, they are classified as current assets If not, they are presented as non-current assets The
carrying value of trade receivables recorded in the financial statements represents the maximurm exposure to credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral as secunty

Trade receivables are recogmised mitally at fair value and subsequently measured at amorused cost using the effective interest method, less any
provisions for impairment A provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group wall
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the oniginal terms of the recewvables

Asat Asat

31 December M December

{un thousands of Unned States dollars) 2010 2009
Qther current assets

Current portion of indirect tax receivables? 58,048 51,339

Other debtors and advance payments? 12,055 6,142

Insurance receivable 325 830

Totat 70,428 58,311

2 The total indirect tax recervable 1s US§121 2 mullion of which US$63 2 muhion 1s mcluded 1n non current assets. This recervable 1s due from the Tanzantan Revenue Authonty and &
15 anticipated to be offset against future corporation tax payments Ta reflect the me value of money the long term portion of this recetvable has been discounted at s rate of 5 7%

3 Other debtors and advance payments relates to prepayments for insurance

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Asat Asat

31 December 3t December

{in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Cash at bank and on hand 389,158 69,726
Money market funds 11,854 -
Total 401,012 69,726
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Muneral
For the year ended 31 December 2010 Plant and mwm: Assets under
{10 thousands of United States dollars) equipment costs coastrction' Totad
At 1 January 2010, net of accumulated depreciation 784,122 625,030 88,920 1,498,072
Additions - - 224,391 224,391
Disposalsfwnte-downs (273) - (273)
Deprectation (45,839) (61,233) - (107,072)
Transfers between categortes 58,989 130,037 (189,026) -
At 31 December 2010 _ 796,999 693,834 124,285 1,615,118
At 1 January 2010
Cost 1,067,766 875,242 88,920 2,031,928
Accumulated depreciation (283,644} (250,212) - (533,856)
Net carrying amount 784,122 625,030 38,920 1,498,072
At 31 December 2010
Cost 1,125,072 1,005,279 124,285 2,254,636
Accumulated depreciation (328,073) (311,445) - (639,518)
Net carrying amount 796,999 693,834 124,285 1,615,118
Mineral
For the year ended 31 December 2009 Plant and mln':mw::: Asscs onder
{1n thausands of Unated States dollars) cquipment Losls construction’ Total
At 1 January 2009, net of accumulated depreciation 365,067 587,642 430,406 1,383,115
Additions - - 223,268 223,268
Disposals/wnte-downs (1,342) - - (1,342)
Depreciation (72,297) (34,672) - (106,969)
Transfers between categories 492,694 72,060 (564,754) -
Al 31 December 2009 784,122 625,030 88,920 1,498,072
At | January 2009
Cost 578,457 803,182 430,406 1,812,045
Accumulated depreciation (213,390) {215,540) - (428,930)
Net carrying amount 365,067 587,642 430,406 1,383,115
At 31 December 2009, net of accumulated depreciation
Cost 1,067,766 875,242 88,920 2,031,928
Accumulated depreciauion (283,644) (250,212) - (533,856}
Net carrying amount 784,122 625,030 88,920 1,498,072

1 Assets under construction represents {a} sustammng capital expenditures incurred constructing tangible fixed assets related to operating munes and advance deposits made towards the
purchase of tangible fixed assets, and (b) expansionary expenditure allocated o a project on a business combinanon or asset acquisition and the subsequent costs incurred to develop

the mine Once these assets are ready for their intended use, the balance 1s transferred to plant and equipment andfor mineral propenies and mine development costs

Property, plant and equipment includes assets relating to the design and construction costs of power transnussion hines and related

infrastructure At completion ownership was transferred to TANESCO tn exchange for amortised repayment in the form of reduced electnaity
supply charges No future lcase payment obhgations are payable under these finance leases The following amounts were included in property,

plant and equipment where the Group 15 a lessee under a finance lease

Asat Asat

31 Decomber 31 December

{1n thousands of United States dollars) 1010 2009
Cost ~ caputalised finance leases 46,822 16,822
Accumulated depreciation (4,203) (773)
Net carrying amount 42,619 46,049
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

19 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired
For the year ended 31 December 2010 mdﬂ:::::x
(in thuusands of Unted States dollars} Goodwll properiies Total
Openming net book amount! 156,397 - 156,397
Addiuons® 22,023 80,093 102,116
Closing net book value 178,420 80,093 258,513
At 31 December 2010
Cost 394,898 80,093 474,991
Accumulated impawrment (216,478) - (216,478)
Net book amount 178,420 £0,093 258,513
For the year ended 31 December 2009 Mineral
{1n thousands of Unated States dollars) Loodwll Properties Tota
Opening net book amount 156,397 - 156,397
Closing net book value 156,397 - 156,397
At 31 December 2009
Cost 372,875 - 372,875
Accumulated tmpatrment (216,478) - {216,478)
Net book amount 156,397 - 156,397

1 The Group s opemng goodwill arase from the acquisition of 3 subsidhary of Placer Dome In¢ an 19 January 2006 (the “acquisition date™), by Barrick Gold Corporation The goodwnl!

allocated to the Group has been presented as if the Group acquired this busmess as of the acquisiion date

2 Addiuons to Acquired exploration properties and Goodwill relate 1o the acquisition of Tusker Gold Lid and are provisiond pending receipt of the final valuation Refer to Note 22 for

further details

Goodwill and accumulated impairment losses by operating segments

{in thousands of United States Dollars) “orth Mara Bulyankuly Tulawaka Other Total
At 1 January 2009 21,046 121,546 13,805 - 156,397
At 1 January 2010 21,046 121,546 13,805 - 156,397
Additions® - - - 22,023 22,023
At 31 December 2010 21,046 121,546 13,805 22,023 178,420
Cost 237,524 121,546 13,805 22,023 394,898
Accumulated mmpairments (216,478) - - - (216,478}

3 Goodwill amounting to USS$22 million arese on the Group s acquisition of Tusker Gold Lid un 27 Apnl 2010 Refer to Note 22 for further detaids

In accordance with [AS 38 “[ntangible Assets” a review for impairment of goodwill 1s undertaken The review compared the recoverable
amount for goodwll for cach cash gencrating unit {CGU) to the carrping value of the CGU including goodwill The key economic assumpuions

used in this review were

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

T ong-term gold pnce per ounce $1,150* $950
South African Rand (USS ZAR) 8 00° 900
Tanzanian Shilling (US$ TZS) 1,400 1,320
Long-term o1 pnice per barrel $75 875
Dhscount rates 712%-8 67% 879%-1037%
NPV multiples 120-1 80 190-2 00

4 Shori-term gold price of §1 250 per ounce wsed for 2011 and 2012 cash flow forecast

5 Short term exchange rate of 7 50 used for 2011 and 2012 cash flow lorecast
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20 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recogrused in respect of the following items

As at Asal

31 December 1 December
{1n thousands of United States doflars) 2010 2000
Tax losses 195,693 179,968
Total 195,693 179,968
Deferred 1ax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of these items due to uncertainties regarding availlability of tax losses, or there being
uncertainty regarding future taxable income against which these assets can be utilised
Recogmised deferred tax assets and habuities
Deferred tax assets and habilities are atiributable to the following

Assets Liabiizes. Net
Balance sheet classifications
{in thovsands of Unsicd Mates Dollars) 2010 2009 20t0 2009 2010 2009
Property, plant and equipment - - 441,758 410,293 441,758 410,293
Provisions (12,994) (7,124) - - (12,994) {7,124)
Interest deferrals (7,213) (16,175) - - (7,213} (16,175)
Tusker acquisition - - 22,023 - 22,023 -
T'ax loss carry-forwards (428,658) (480,289) - - (428,658) (480,289)
Net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (448,865) (503,588) 463,781 110,293 14,916 (93,295)
Assets Lizh Net

Legal entities
{10 thousands ot United States Dollars) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
North Mara Gold Mme Limsted - (21,520) 13,865 - 13,865 (21,520}
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Limited (121,116) (159,668) - - (121,116) (159,668)
Pangea Minerals Limited - - 100,297 87,410 100,297 87,410
Other (153) - 22,023 483 21,870 483
Net deferred tax {assets)/liabihties (121,269) {181,188) 136,185 87,893 14,916 {93,295)

Uncertainties regarding availlability of tax losses, in respect of enquiries raised and additional tax assessments 1ssued by the TRA, have been
measured using the single best csimate of likely outcome approach resulting in the recogmition of substanually all the related deferred tax assets
and habihites Alternative acceptable measurement policies (e g on a weighted average expected outcome basis) could result 1n a change 1o

deferred tax assets and habilities being recognised, and the deferred tax charge in the income statement
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

21 OTHER ASSETS

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Umited States dollars) 2010 2009
Amounts due from government' 24,844 23,098
Operanng lease prepayments - TANESCO powerlines 4,210 3,876
Prepayments — Acquisition of nights over leasehold land? 7,444 6,933
Non-current portion of indirect tax recervable’ 63,174 26,489
Vittage housing 465 600
Othert 4,321 2590
Total 104,458 61,286

1 Included in this amount are amounts recewvable from the Tanzamar Social Secunity Fund of US$8 1 milhion (2009 US$6 7 mullion) as welt as amounts due from TANESCO for
US$15 3 milhion (2009 US$16 4 mullion)

[N

Prepayment made to the villagers in respect af acquisition of the nghts over the use of leasehold land

o

The non current poruon of the indirect tax recervables has been discounted to tts current value usng an effective intetest rate of 5 7% {2009 7 19%) This resulted 1n a discounsting
charge of US$6 8 nullion (2009 USS$6 9 milhon} to the income statement, refer Note 8

s

Assets relating to restrictrve share unit liabiities of US$7 5 muthon have been reclassified and offset against the habihty Thus 1s different to the Prospectus where the asset was shown
separately as part of non current assets As this amount has an immatenial npact on the opening position no opemng balance sheet is presented

22 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 27 April 2010, the Company, through BUK Holdco Ltd, one of its immediate subsaidiares, purchased 100% of the 1ssued share capital of
Tusker Gold Ltd (“Tusker™) by way of a takeover offer for an aggregate net consideration of approximately US$74 mullion Tusker 15 an
Australian based exploration company with a focus on gold Tusker was histed on the Australian Stock kxchange but was delisted from the
Exchange as part of the acquisition  All of Tusker’s assets are located in Tanzama and consist of a sigmificant gold resource base and additional
exploration ground

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwnll are as follows

(n thousands of United States dollars) I
— Purchase consideration 74,232
— Foreign gain on cash scttlement recognised in other charges (3,109)
Total purchase consideration 71,123

I'he assets and liabilities as of 27 Apnil 2010 recogmsed as a result of the acquisiion are as follows

Acqurree s
(in thousands of Urured States dollars) Fazr value carrylng amount
Cash and cash equivalents 8,014 8,014
Property, plant and equipment 115 115
Exploration and evaluation assets 79,533 5,740
Recervables 314 314
Deferred taxation hability {22,023) -
Payables (4,048) (884)
Stock options (9,696) (9,696)
Fair value of net assets 52,209 3,603
Goodwll 22,023
Total purchase consideration 74,232
Purchase consideration 74,232
Foreign gain on cash setilemnent recognised in other charges (3.109)
Cash and cash equivalent 1n subsidiary acqured (8,014)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 63,109

The goodwll arosc after the application of FAS 12 “Income taxes™ and s attributable principally to expanding growth opportumities in
Tanzama None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes The farr value of the acquired 1denufiable intangible assets,
goodwill and deferred tax hiability 1s provisional pending receipt of the final valuations for those assets
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Included 1n payables 15 the fair value of a contingent Liability of US$3 5 million Thss relates to a US$4 6 mulhon payment required to be made
to the vendor on commencement of commercial production at Nyanzaga The assessed possibility that Nyanzaga has the potential to reach
commercial production within four years 15 75%

Acquisition costs incurred relating to the Tusker acquisition amounted to USS0 4 milbon and were all expensed as incurred

Cancellation of options

A total of 12,450,000 stock options were held by Tusker dtrectors and employees at the ume of the acquisituon  The holders of all options
wrrevocably agreed to cancel their options in exchange for a considerauon of US$8 1 mullion, which formed part of the consideration

On 31 December 2009, Tusker announced that 1t had appointed Argonaut Secunties Lid to provide assistance wath any future capital rmsings
Based on the terms of the arrangement, Argonaut will be remunerated for its services by Tusker agreeing to 1ssue Argonaut with two miilion
options with an exercise price of US30 cents, two mithon options with an exercise price of US50 cents and a further four million options with
an exercise price of US80 cents The Argonaut agreement was cancelled in exchange for payment of an amount of US$1 6 nuilion

Lxpenses
The acquired business contnbuted expenses of US$765,822 to the Group for the pentod from 30 Apnil 2010 te 31 December 2010 1f the acquisition

had occurred on 1 January 2010, consohdated loss for the year ended 31 December 2010 would have been US$2 7 mullion These amounts have
been calculated using the Group's accounting pohcies

23 SHARE CAPITAL

Share capiral Share premium

Number £000 USS 000 Uss 000

At 12 January 2010 1 - - -
Issuance of Ordinary Shares to BGC 303,246,949 30,325 45,796 -
Issuznce of shares on IPQ 101,082,317 10,108 15,415 870,950
1ssuance of gver-allotment shares 5,756,232 576 886 50,085
Transaction costs - - - (53,933)
At 31 December 2010 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102

Incorporation of Company and Pre-IPO Reorgamsation
The Company was incorporated and registered in England and Wales on 12 January 2010 as a private hmited company with a share capital of
onc Ordinary Share of £1

On 19 Tebruary 2010 the Company entered 1nto a share exchange agreement pursuant to which it acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of
BUK Holdco Ltd, an intermediate holding company of members of the Group, from members of Barnck Gold Corporation’s group 1n return
for 1ssuing 943,464 Ordinary Shares of £1 each at a prermum of £999 per share

On 22 February 2010 the Company entered into a share exchange agreement pursuant to which it acquired the enure 1ssued share capital of
1816962 Ontano Inc from BGC, an intermediate holding company of members of the Group, n return for 1ssuing 375,000 Ordinary Shares of
£1 each at a premum of £999 per share

The Company subsequently entered into a reduction of capital, ehmuinating share premium of U5$1,989,138 to create distributable reserves,
and restructured 1ts share capatal so as to reduce the nominal value of each of is Ordinary Shares to 10 pence Following the share capital
restructuning the Company made a bonus issue of shares to 1ts then existing shareholders 1n preparation for the TPO, resulting 1n a total of
303,246,950 Ordinary Shares being 1n 1ssue prior to the [PO

Re-regustration of the Company as a public company
On 12 March 2010, the Company re-registered as a pubhc limited company

Issuance of shares on [PO

On 24 March 2010, the Company successfully completed s [IPO A total number of 101,082,317 shares with a par value of 10 pence each were
1ssued at a price of 575 pence per share for a total of £581,223,322 (US$886,365,567) net of underwriter fees On 15 April 2010 the Company
1ssued a further 5,756,232 Ordinary Shares at a price of 575 pence per share for a total of £33,098,334 (U$52,275,508) pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option granted in connection with the IPO Total costs related to the 1ssuance of new shares taken agamst share premwum
amounted to US$53 9 million
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

24 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Stock options

Stock options are granted to Executive Directors and to selected employees The exercise price of the granted options 15 determined by the
Compensation commuttee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middle-market quotation
of such shares (as derived from the London Stock Lxchange Dady Official List) for the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of
grant All opuons outstanding at the énd of the year expire n 2017 None of the options granted were exercisable at 31 December 2010 The

vesting period of the optrons is four years, with an exercise period of three years

Movements 1n the number of options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prnices are reflected in pence as follows

Average exer(ese Average exercise

price m pence price Lo pence
per share Cptions per share Uptions
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2010 2009 2009
At 1 January - - - -
Granted 539 1,326,459 - -
Forfeited 568 {105,000) - -
At 31 December 536 1,211,459 - -

The weighted average far value of the options granted dunng the current year using the Lattice valuation approach was determmined as 180
pence per option The sigmficant inputs into the model were weighted average share and exercise price of 539 pence at the grant date, volatility
range of 32% to 50%, dividend yield of 0 57%, an expected option hfe of seven years, annual nisk-{ree mterest rate of 2 83% and suboptimal

exercise multiple of 1 5x

Cash-settled Restricted Share Units are granted to executive directors and to selected employees Further disclosures over these plans are not

provided as the related charge and Liabilities are not matenal to the Group

25 TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES

Asal Asat

31 December 31 Thecember

(11 thousands of United Stazes dollars) 20i¢ 2009
I'rade payables 23,133 17,105
Accrued expenses 72,889 96,120
Payroll-related payables 10,405 6,116
Contract retentions 1,503 2,488
Royalty payable 8,482 9,023
Income tax payable 309 18
Trade payables to related partics {Note 32) 3,240 17,322
Total 119,961 148,192

Trade payables arc ebligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordimary course of business from suppliers Trade
payables are classified as current liabihties 1if payment 1s due within one year or less If not, they are presented as non-current habihties Trade
payables are recogmsed nitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Terms and conditions of the above payables hiabihities
¢ Trade payables are non-interest beaning and are normally settled on 30-day of statement terms

¢ Accruals and other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of 30-60 days
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26 PROVISIONS

Rehabultatson' Other- Totat

(11 thousands of Unutad States Dollars) 10 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
At ] January 72,164 55,095 11,400 6,800 83,564 61,896
Addizons 27,948 15,500 67 4,600 28,015 20,500
Unwinding of discount 1,365 1,169 - - 1,365 1,169
At 31 December 101,477 72,164 11,467 11,400 112,944 83,565
Current portion - - (4,000) - (4,000) -
Non-current portion 101,477 72,164 7.467 11,400 108,944 83,565

1 Rehabihtation provisions refate to the decommissiomng costs expected to be incurred for the operaung mines This expenditure arses at different times over the Ife of mine for the
different mine sites and 15 expected to be uthsed in terms of cash outflows between y ars 2014 and 2034 and beyend varying from mine site to mine site

2 Other provisions relale to provisions for legal and tax retated Labilities where the outcome 15 not yet cenain but 1t 15 expected that 1 will lead to a prabable outflow of economic

benefits 1n future

27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Finanaal assets

Carryng value Fair value

(an thousands of Umited States Dollars) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents 401,012 69,726 401,012 69,726
Accounts recervable 59,214 61,598 59,214 61,598
Total other assets! 174,886 119,597 174,886 119,597
Total financial assets 635,112 250,921 635,112 250,921
Less Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (401,012) (69,726) (401,012) (69,726}
Accounts recexvable (59,214) (61,598) (59,214) (61,598)
Other current assets (Note 16) (70,428) (58.311) (70,428) (58,311)
Total other non-current financial assets (Note 21) 104,458 61,286 104,458 61,286

T Assets relating to restnctive share unit anhtaes of US$7 5 mulhon have been reclassified and offset against the hability This s different to the Prospectus where the asset was shown
separately as part of non current assets As this amount has an immaterial impact on the opening posinon, no opening balance sheet is presented

The fair value of financial assets, excluding other assets, equal their carrying amount as the impact of discounting 1s not significant Included 1n other
assels are indirect tax recervables from the Tanzaman Revenue Authonty, whach have been discounted to their present value, refer to Note 16 and

Note 21

b} Financial habilities

Carrying value Faurvakue

(in thousands of Umted States Dotlars) 2010 2005 2010 2009
Dervative financial instruments 3,658 - 3,658 -
Related party debt - 1,383,415 - 1,383,415
Other habilitzes? 7,483 4,748 7,483 4,748
Total 11,141 £,388,163 11,141 1,338,163
Less Current financial habilities

Denvative financial instruments (1,904) - {1,904) -
Less Current portion of related party debt® — (1,383,415) - (1,383,415)
Total non-curreat portion of net borrowings 9,237 4,748 9,237 4,748

2 Assets relaing to restnichive shere unit Labihiies of U547 5 mithoo have been reclassified and offset agamst the habiity Thas as dufferent to the Prospectus where the asset was shown
separately as part of non current assets As thus amount has an ummatenal mpact on the opening position no opening balance sheet 15 presented

3 Related party debt was repaid dunng the current financial year by cash smounting to US$575 mullion and converting US$2,039 million to contributed surplus

The fair value of the current portion of borrowings held in 2009, excluding other habilitres, was equal to their carrying amount as they were
repayable on demand Other Liabilities relate to equuty settled stock option plans and their valuation 1s based on unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical financial instruments Denvative financial instruments are valued based upoa inputs that are observable for the
financral instruments which includes quoted pnices for sitmilar instruments or 1dentical instruments in markets which are not considered to

be active or either directly or indirectly based on observable markets data
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES continued
b) Financial habilities contimued

Revolving credit facality

On 24 November 2010, the Group concluded negouauons with a syndicate of commercial banks, led by Citibank, for the provision of a revolving
credit faciity in a maximum aggregate amount of US$150 mullion The facility has been provided 10 service the general corporate needs of the
Group and to fund potential acquisiions All provisions contained in the credit facility documentation have been negotiated on normal commercial
and customary terms for such finance arrangements The term of the facility 1s 24 months and when drawn the spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis
pomnts At 31 December 2010, none of the funds were drawn under the facility while a commitment fee of 1 4% was payable The shares of all
sigmficant subsidianes have been pledged as sccunty for the loan

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIALINSIRUMENTS

During 2010 the Group entered into zero cost collars to manage copper pnice fluctuztions in the prce of copper The Group does not use such
derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes

1 hese transactions are economic hedges, and do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment for the posittons Changes i the fair value of these
copper upuions are recorded as a component of other income/expense in the ncome statement At 31 December 2010, the Group had 21,826
thousand pounds of collar contracts outstanding containing purchased put and call options with an average strike price of USS3 25 per pound
and US$4 77 per pound respectively The Group did not have any dernvative financial instruments in 2009

Unrtabised Josscs Total balance

resulting from sheet mmpact of

marked 1o-market marked to-market

(in thousands of United States dollars) Realisad losses adptstrents Total netloss adjustmments
Commodity derivatives

Copper collar - 3.658 3,658 3,658

Total - 3,658 3,658 3,658

For the year ended For the );e;enrlad

31 Decernber 3) Decernber
{in thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Analysed between
Current habilities 1,904 -
Non-current habilities 1,754 -
Total 3,658 -

29 FINANCIAI RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure Lo the following nisks through its commeraial and financial operations
a) market nsk, mcluding commoduty price, foreign currency and interest rate risks,

b) credit nsk, and

¢} hqudity nsk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
assessing and managing nisk. Further quanutave disclosures are included throughout the financial statements

The Board of Directors has overall responsibthty for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

The Group's nisk management poiicies are established to 1dentify and analyse the rnisks faced by the Group, to set appropriate nsk hmits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to refect changes in
market conditions and the Group's actvities The Group, through its truning and management standards and procedures, aims o maintain
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and abligations

The Board of Directors has responsibility for overseeing how management monitors comphance with the Group’s nsk management policies
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework m relation to the risks faced by the Group The Audit commattee
15 assisted 1n 1ts oversight role by Internal Audit which undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of nsk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported 10 the Audit commttee
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a) Market nisk, including commodaty price, foreign currency and interest rate risks

Market risk 1s the nisk that changes in market factors, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange rates or mnterest rates will affect the Group's
mcome or the value of its financial instruments

Gold pnce

The market price of gold 15 one of the most sigmficant factors in determimng the profitability of the Group’s operations The pnice of gold 1s
subject to volatile price movements over short penods of ime, especially in the current market environment, and 1s affected by numerous

industry and macro-economc factors that are beyond the Group’s control In 2010 the price ranged from US$1,058 to USS1,431 per ounce,
with an average market price of US$1,225 per ounce (2009 US$972 per ounce) The Group’s policy 1s to sell gold at prevailing market prices

Copper price

During 2010 the Group entered into zero cost collars to manage copper pnce fluctuations (see Note 28 for additional details) In 2010 the price
ranged from US$2 76 1o US54 44 per pound, with an average market pricc of US83 42 per pound (2009 USS3 22 per pound)

Ol price

Diesel fuel 1s refined from crude oil and 1s therefore subject to the same price velatility affecting crude wil prices During 2010, ol pnices traded
between US$63 and US$92 per barrel with an average market price of US$80 per barrel The Group currently has no o1l price hedging 1n place
but may consider opportunities to hedge against o1l price exposure 1n the future

The table below summartses the impact of changes in the market price on gold The impact 1s expressed in terms of the resulting change n the
Group's profit after tax for the year or, where applicable, the change in equity The sensitivities are hased on the assumptzon that the market
price changes by 10% with all other variables held constant The impact of a stmilar change 1n copper, silver and diesel prices 1s not matenal to
the Group’s profit after tax

Effect on Effect on

profit after tax profit after tax

for the ded for th ended

Gan associated with 10% increase from year end price SDecomber
(1 thoursands ot United States doilars) 010 2009
Gold 62,556 46,235

Foreign currency risk

The Group's transactions are denominated 1 a number of different currencies (primanly US dollars, Shillings, and Rands) The Group has
liabilitses that are pnmanly denominated in US dollars The US dollar 1s the Company’s (and its subsidianes’) functional currency, as well as the
Group's presentation currency Therefore, transactions in currencies other than the US dollar give nise to foreign currency translation risk The
Group's pnmary exposure to this nisk anses from direct rmine aperating costs and corporate administration costs that are transacted in Shilhings
and Rands, respectively Consequently, fluctuations in the US dollar Shilling/Rand exchange rates increase the volatility of cost of sates,
corporate admumstration costs and overall net earmungs, which are reported 1n US dollars The vast majonity of all direct mumng costs and
corporate admimstration costs are denominated and settled 1n US dollars Consequently, the effect of foreign exchange fluctuations on the
Group’s reported direct muming and corporate admimistration costs 1s not sigmificant

Fhe exchange rates at the end of each financial year are detailed in Note 2 h)

Under normal market conditions, the Group does not generally believe that active currency hedging of transactions would provide long-term
benefits to shareholders Histoncally, the relationship between the gold price and the value of the Shilling and Rand provide a natural hedge
against {luctuations in the exchange rate of these currencies against the US dollar Generally, a strengthening of the Shuling/Rand, which would
cause an increase in reported US dollar operating cosis, corresponds with an increase in the US dollar gold price, which results in an increase in
reported US dollar revenues This natural protection significantly reduces the need for using dervauves or other forms of synthetc hedging
However, the Group reviews its exposure on a regular basis and reserves the night to enter into foretgn currency hedges should the
arcumstances warrant Any such currency protection measures deemed appropriate by management are subject to approval by the Board

The Group does have sigmficant financial assets denaminated 10 a currency other than US dollar These financral assets are as follow

As at As at

31 Decamber 31 December

{1 thousands of Umited States dollars) 2010 2009
Indirect tax recervables 121,222 84,731
Total 121,222 84,731
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued
a} Market risk, including commeodity price, foreign currency and interest rate risks continued

The following sensitvity analyses give the estimated effect of a reasonably possible change mn the full year closing US dollar exchange rate on the
value of the financial assets

Effect on Effecion
profil after tax profit after tax

Increase/{decrease) associated with 10% change of the US dollar as at 31 December for “;Y;,:::t? for u;’;;z:;t:
(1n thousands of Unated States dollars} 2010 2009
Increase/(decrease) associated with 10% change of the US dollar
US dollar strengthens by 10% to the Tanzaman Shilling
Increase in total indirect tax recervables 13,469 9,330
US dollar weakens by 10% to the Tanzaman Shilling
Decrease in total indirect tax recewvables {11,020) (7,634)
Interest rate rigk

Interest rate nisk refers to the nisk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the istruments will fluctuate due to
changes i market interest rates Borrowangs issued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate sk Borrowings 1ssued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value mterest rate risk The Group 15 also exposed to interest rate nsk on uts cash and cash equivalents

At present, available funds are held wath financial institutrons at vaniable rates and primarily denominated 1n US dellars, interest income 15 not
materially affected by changes in short-term 1nterest rates The amount of interest expense recorded in the Group’s consohdated income
statement 15 not matenally impacted by changes in shorl-lerm interest rates, due to the Group's low levels of interest-bearing debt at present
The revolving credit facility’s spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis points Group debt levels are impacted by the amount of operating cash flow
generated by 1ts operating rmnes, as well as capatal expenditure requirements related to existing operations and development projects

b) Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk that a thard party mght fail to fulfil its performance obhgauons under the terms of a financial instrument For cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other recevables, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet, net of any overdraft positions

Credt risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables The Group’s financial assets
are with counterparties whom the Group considers have an appropnate credit rating Location of credit nisk 1s determined by physical location
of the bank branch, customer or counterparty The maximum allowable term of matunty for any individual security 15 12 months Investment
counterparties must have a credit ratmg of at least Baa2 or better by Moody’s Investor Services or BBE by Standard and Poor’s No more than
25% of the aggregate market value of the investment portfolio 1s maintained in any one country, with the exception of the Umited States of
America, United Kingdom and Barbados, or in any one industry group Investments are held mainly in United States dollars and cash and cash
equivalents m other foreign currenctes are mamntained for operational requirements

With respect Lo other recervables, the most significant debtor 1s the 1anzanian Revenue Authority Throughout 2010, ABG has been actively
involved i discussions with the Tanzanian government and the Tanzaman Revenue Authonty to resolve the status of fuel excise levies and
VAT refunds for 1ts operations These 1ssues have been outstanding for some time and were further comphcated by amendments made to
certamn tax laws which were passed in 2009 The amendments conflicted wath certain provisions contained 1n the Group’s existing Mineral
Development Agreements (“MDAs") which guarantee the fiscal stability of its operations The government has adopted legislation to reverse
the amendments, which should allow for the fiscal and tax terms of our MDAs to be honoured As at 31 December 2010, the discounted
outstanding amounts due to the Group were approximately UsS121 milhon The Group 1s m discussions with the authorities to agree terms
for the repayment of these amounts, which 1s likely o be by way of tax offsets Further detail 1s mcluded 1n Notes 16, 21 and 31 b)

Group polictes are aimed at mummsimg losses as a result of a counterparty’s failure to honour its obhigations Individual exposures are
monitored with trade customers subject to credit hmuts to cnsure that the Group’s exposure to bad debts 1s not sgmificant The Group's
exposure to credit risk 15 influenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of cach counterparty The Group’s financial assets are wath
counterparttes whom the Group considers have an appropnate credst rating

Maximum exposure 10 credit risk at each reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of finanaal assets in Note 27 The Group does not
hold collateral as secunty for any trade recewvables The Group does not grade the credit quality of receivables
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c) Liqumdity nsh

Ligudsty nisk 1s the nsk of loss from not having access to sufficient funds to meet both expected and unexpected cash demands The Group
manages 1ts exposure to liquidity nsk by ensunng that its operating and strategec hquadity levels are well above mimimum internal requirements
Prudent hquidrty nisk management mcludes maintaining suffictent cash balances, and the avalability of funding from an adequate amount of
commuitted credit facihities At the end of both 2016 and 2009 the Group was 1n a positive net cash position, as disclosed in Note 17 Detads of

the undrawn revolving credit faciity are given in Note 27

In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash proceeds from its operations and 15 required to fund working capital and capatal
expenditure requirements The cash 1s managed 1o ensure surplus funds are invested to maximise returns while ensuring that capital 1s
safeguarded to the maximum extent possible by investing only with finanaial institutions with a streng credit raung Insigmificant uncommatted
overdraft factlities are maintained with several banking counterparties to meet the Group's normal {funding requirements The Group's pnimary
source of iquidity 1s operating cash flow, and over the past two years the Group has generated an average of about US$269 6 mithion per year

The principal risk factor affecting operating cash flow 1s market gold pnices

The principal uses of hquidity are sustaiming capital expenditures at existing operating mines, construction activittes at development projects,
and interest payments Sustaiming caprtal expenditures have averaged about USS$114 5 million per year over the past lwo years

The following table outlines the expected maturity of the Group's sigmficant financial assets into relevant matunty groupings based on the
remaining pentad (rom the balance sheel date to the contractual matunty date As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed 1n the balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Less than o3 Jws Overs

{tn thousands of Unated States dollars) 1 year YRS FEATS Yeirs Total
Cash and cash equivalents 401,012 - - - 401,012
Accounts recervable 59,214 - - - 59,214
Other receivables 70,428 104,458 - - 174,886
Total ] } 530,654 104,458 - - 635,112
For the year ended 31 December 2009 Less than 1o3 3te5 overs

{10 thousands of United States dollars) I year years years yeass Total
Cash and cash equivalents 69,726 - - - 69,726
Accounts recervable 61,598 - - - 61,598
QOther receivables? 58,311 61,286 - - 119,597
Total 189,635 61,286 - - 250,921

The following table outlines the expected maturity of the Group’s significant financial habilities into relevant maturity groupings hased on the
remaimng period from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed in the balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2010 Lessthan

w3 Jtos Over 5
(& thousands of United Mates dollars) 1 year years YOArs YeATH Total
Dertvative habilities 1,904 1,754 - - 3,658
Cther habilities 3,792 4,011 3,472 - 11,275
I'rade and other payables! 119,652 - - - 119,652
Total 125,348 5,765 3,472 - 134,585
For the year ended 31 December 2009 Less than lio3 Jto5 Overs
{n thousands of United States dollars) 1 year yRArs years years Total
Related party debt 1,383,415 - - - 1,383,415
Other habihties? 3,364 1,384 - - 4,748
Trade and other payables 148,192 ~ - - 148,192
Total 1,534,971 1,384 - - 1,536,355

1 Trade and other payables exclude statutory Liabilities in the form of income tax payable

2 Asscts relating to restnctive share unit habilitses of U557 5 million have been reclassified and offset against the habibiy Ths 1s different 1o the Prospectus where the asset was shown
scparately as part of non-current assets, As this amount has an smmatertal impact on the opening position, Ao npening batance sheet 1s presented
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements continued

29 TINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT continued
<) Ligquidity nisk continued

Management considers that the Group has adequate current assets and forecast cash flow from operations to manage Liquidity risks artsing
from settlement of current Labilities and non-current iabilities

Capital nsk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management 1s to ensure that 1t maintains a strong balance sheet and low gearing ratio to support
its business and provades financial flexibility in order to maximise shareholder value Tn order to ensure a strong balance sheet and low gearing
ratio, management thoroughly evaluates all material projects and potentral acquisitions and 1s approved by the Senuor leadership team before
submission to the Board for ultimate approval, where applicable

At 31 December, the geaning ratio was as follows

Asal As at
31 December 31 December
{1 thousands of Unued States dollars) 20190 2009
Total borrowings, including related party debt - 1,531,607
Less cash and cash equivalents (401,012} (69,726)
Net {surplus)/debt (401,012) 1,461,881
Total equity 2,543,085 657,415
Total capital 2,142,073 2,119,296
Gearing ratio® N/A 222%

3 The geanng ratio 15 catculated by donding the net (surplus)/debt by total equity

30 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 Decerber
{n thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Mimmum lease payments under operating leases recogmised in income for the period 556 -
Total 556 -

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mumimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, whtch fall due as follows

As at As at

31 December 31 December

{10 theusands of United Statcs doltars) 2010 009
Within one year 984 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,459 -
After five years 1,718 -
Total 5,161 -

Operating lease payments relate mainly to rental of office space by regional business units of the Group

31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCILES

The Group 15 subject to vanous laws and regulations which, if not observed, could give nse to penalties As at 31 December 2010, the Group has
the following commutments and/or contingencies

a} Legal contingenaies

As at 31 December 2010, the Group was a defendant in approximately 240 lawsuits The plantiffs are claiming damages and interest thereon for
the loss caused by the Group due 1o one or more of the following unlawful eviction, termunation of services, wrongful termination of contracts
of sennce, non-payment for services, defamauon, neghigence by act or ormisston in failling to prowvide a safe working environment, unpaid
overume and public holidays compensation

The total amounts claimed from lawsuits in which specific monetary damages are sought amounted to U§$44 million The Group's Legal
Counsetl 1s defending the Group’s current position, and the outcome of the lawsuits cannot presently be determmed However, 1n the opimion of
the Directors and Group's Legal Counsel, no matenal Liabilities are expected to matenahise from these lawsuits Consequently no provision has
been set asnide against the claims in the books of account
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Included in the total amounts clarmed of U$$44 milhon 1s a lawsurt insututed against North Mara Gold Mine Ltd and Genkuru Vallage in which
the plaintiffs claim US$29 million The case 1s based on a claim resulting from alleged 1llegal action by East Afnca Gold Mine Ltd (North Mara’s
predecessors) entering the area where the planuffs allege they had claim of nght The arca in question was given by Genuru Village to the mine
to conduct mining activities and a hicence 10 that effect was 1ssued Compensation to occupiers of land was handed over to the government for
distribution Subsequent to year end this claim was struck out by the Court of Appeal of Tanzama

b) Tax-related contingencies

1 On 26 October 2009, the TRA 1ssued a demand notice against the Group for an amount relating to withholding 1ax on techmucal services
provided to Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Ltd The clairm amounts to US$5 4 milhon Management ts of the opinion that the Group comphed
with all of the withholding tax requirernents, and that there will be no amount payable Therefore no provision has been raised

1 The TRA has issued a number of tax assessments to the Group relating to past taxation years from 2002 onwards The Group believes
that these assessments are incorrect and has filed objections to each of them The Group 15 attempling to resolve these matters by
means of discussions with the TRA Management 15 of the opinion that this will not result 1n any material iabilites to the Group

<) Fxploration and development agreement

Pursuant to an agreement with the Government of the United Republic of Tanzama, entered 1nto tn 1996, the Group was 1ssued a miming heence
for the Nyabigena, Nyabirama and Gokona concesstons in the Nyamongo region, North Mara in Tanzama The agreement requires the Group
to pay to the Government of Tanzama annual rents of US$1,500 per annum per square kilometer for as long as the Group holds the mining
hcence The total commitment for 2010 based on munceral hicences held as at 31 December 2009 15 U580 17 mullion

d) Purchase commitments

At 31 December 2010, the Group had purchase obhgations for supplies and consumables of approxamately US564 million (2009 US$56 mullion)

¢) Capital commitments

In addition to entering into vanoeus operational commitments in the normal course of business, the Group entered into the following
commitments for construction activities for capital projects

Asat Asar

31 December 31 December

{in thousands of Unsted Mates dollars) pAIT] 2009
Contracted caputal expenditure 29,323 29,460
Total 29,323 29,460

f) Insurance

Insurance coverage 15 purchased for certain insurable losses, subject to varying deductibles, at the Group’s mineral properties including losses
such as property damage and business interruption The Group records losses relating to insurable events as they occur Proceeds recervable
from insurance coverage are recorded at such time as receipt 15 virtually certain and the amount recervable 1s fixed or determinable The
following table sets out the effect of the insurance claims

Fortheyzarended  Forthe yeur ended

{in thousands of Unsted States dollars) 3 m“::f'n * M%
Cost of sales (2,100) -
Other income (4,535) -
Total (6,635) -
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Notes to the Consohidated financial statements continued

32 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following related party balances and transactions during the years ended 31 December 2016, and 31 December 2009
Related partics are those entites owned or controlled by Barrick Gold Corporation, which 1s the ultumate controlling party of the Group

Transactions with related parties are as follows

a) Transactions

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Deecensber 31 December
{1n thousands of Unied States dollars) 200 2009
BIBRC - gold sale (dore) 185,233 540,617
Provision of goods and services 2,443 497
Purchase of goods and services (8,864) (9,132}
Special dividend payment (258,680) -
Interim dividend payments (4,852) -
Total (84,720) 531,982

Proviston and purchase of goods and services to/from related parues are on normal commercial terms and conditions Provision of services relates to
cost mcurred by the Group and recharged to related parties Purchase of goods and services relates to cost mcurred by related parties and recharged to
the Group Services purchased relate mainly to insurance and software licences Goods purchased relate mainly to consumables and capital equipment

b) Balances due from related parties

Asat Asar

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

BIBC (gold sales recervable) - 26,218
Barrick Platinum {P1y) Ltd 1,696 5474
Pangea Fenn Gibb - 4,999
Other 435 827
Total 2,131 37,518

Recervables from Barrick Platinum are for services rendered The gold recervable related to sales of dore to BIBC, and were payable within one
weel after sale to BIBC The recervables are unsecured 1n nature and bear no interest There are no provisions held agunst recervables from Barnck

¢} Balances due to related parties

Asat Asat

31 Decemnber 31 Decemnber

(1n thousands of United Srates dollars) 2010 2009
BIBC 54 -
Barrick Gold Corporation 2,608 12,465
Barrick Gold Australia Lid 317 -
Other 261 4,857
Total 3,240 17,322

The payables to Barrick arise mainly from purchase transactions noted above and are due 30 days after the date of purchase The payables are
unsecured and bear no interest For the year ending 31 December 2009, corporate overheads including, but not himited to, technical service
costs, have not been allocated to the Group Following the TPO these charges were incurred by the Group

d) Balances due to related parties (funding in nature)

Asat Asar

31 December 31 December

(11 thousands of United States dollars) 2010 2009
Barrick International Bank Incorporation (“BIBC") - 1,383,415
Total - 1,383,415

Related party borrowings related to amounts due to BIBC and PDG bank which were repaid duning the current financial year m the form
of cash of US$575 million and conversion to contributed surplus of US$1,039 milhon These amounts were interest-free and had no fixed
repayment terms
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e) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel include the members of the Board of Directors and the Semuor leadership team who receive remuneration As the
Group was only formed dunng February 2010, the Board of Directors was not 1n place for the entire penod, and no remuneration was paid to
key personnel by the Group during the 2009 financial year Compensation for key management personnel (including Directors) was as follows

For the year ended

31 December

(in thousands of United States dallars} 2010
Salartes and short-term employee benefits 6,001
Post-employment benefits 486
Share-based payments 728
Total 7,215

33 MINERALLICENCES

The Group holds exploration concessions in the United Republic of Tanzania These concessions are held in the form of erther reconnaissance
licences or prospecting licences 1ssued by the Mimistry of Energy and Minerals and are held either directly by the Group or indirectly 1n
exploration joint venture agreements with thard parties The concesstons held by the Group as at 31 December 2010 are summansed in the
following table

Number of Approximale
Minera! Licerce concessions conressions Krm®
Held by North Mara Gold Mine Limuted 23 129 08
Held by Pangea Minerals Limited 76 1,920 11
Held by Barnck Africa Exploration Limuted 95 1,231 50
Held by Vulcan Resources (Tanzamua) 12 207 58
Held by Sub-Sahara Resources (TZ) Linmted 13 121 16
Held by Nyanzaga Exploration Limited 1 829
Prospecting hicences — indirectly held! 83 994 02
Total 303 4,611 74

1 Via exploration joint venture with third parties

34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Dividend

A didend 1n respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of US3 7 cents per share, amounting to a final dividend of US5 3 cents per share for
2010, 15 to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 21 Apnl 2011 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of

African Barrick Gold plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Afnican Barrick Gold ple for the year ended 31 December 2010
whnch comprise the Parent Company Income Statement,

Parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, Parent
Company Balance Sheet, Parent Company Staternent of Changes in
Eqtuty, Parent Company Cash Flow Statement and the related notes
The financial reporung framework that has been applied in therr
preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRSs) as adopted by the European Unton

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibihities statement
set out on page 86, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financal statements and for
being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibihity 15 to audit and express an opinion on the parent
company financial statements i accordance with apphicable law
and Internattonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Anditing Practices Board’s
Lthical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opintons, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body i accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, in grving these opimions, accepl or assume
responsibihty for any other purpose or to any other person Lo
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our pnior consent in wriling

Scope of the audit of the financaial statements

An audat involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclasures in the financaial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statcments are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pohicies are appropnate to
the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed, the reasonablencss of sigmificant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opimon on financial statements

In our opimon the parent company financal staternents

s give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2010 and of 1ts loss and cash flows for the year
then ended,

e have been properly prepared 1n accordance with 1FRSs as
adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Compamies Act 2006
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
AcL 2006

In our opmnion

e the part of the Remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared n accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

 the informauon given in the Directors’ report for the financial year
for which the parent company financal statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the parent company financral statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to repott to you 1f,
1N our epimon

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounung records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Other malter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of
Alncan Barnck Gold ple for the year ended 31 December 2010

&m

Jason Burkatt (Semior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

10 March 2011

Notes

(a) The maintenance and integnty of the Afncan Barnck Gold plc website ts the
responsibility of the Directors, the work carned out by the auditors does not
iavalve consideration of these matters and, accordingly the auditors accept no
respansibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements
stnce they were nitally presented on the website

{b)Legslation 1n the Umited Kingdom governing the preparztion and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation tn other junsdictions




Parent Company Income Statement

For the

peniod ance

ncorporstion

ended

31 December

{in thousands of Unatad States dollars) Notes 2010

Corporate adrministration 3 (5,888)

Other charges (2,294)

Finance mncome 4 338

Loss before taxation (7,844)

Income tax — _ i} _ __ _ 5 ) -

Net loss for the period {7,844)
Parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the

period since
mncorparavion

ended

31 December
{trx thousands of United States dollars) 2010
1 0ss for the penod (7,844)
Other comprehensive income for the period -
Total comprehensive loss for the period (7.844)

The accompanying notes on pages 153 to 165 are an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

Asat

31 December
{in thousands of Unsted States doltars) Notes 2010
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 425
Investment in subsidianes 8 1,324,568
Non-current receivables 18 772,680
2,097,673
Current assets
Other receivables 9 1,024
Cash and cash equivalents 10 187,491
188,515
Total assets 2,286,188
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and share premium 11 929,199
QOther reserves 1,355,008
Total equity 2,284,207
Non-current liabihities
Other non-current habilities 327
327
Current habilities
Other current habilities 14 1,654
1,654
Total habilities 1,981
Total equuty and habilities 2,286,188

The accompanying notes on pages 153 to 165 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 149 to 165 were approved by the Board of Directors of African Barnick Gold plc on 10 March 2011 and

signed on thewr behalf by

Greg Hawlkans
Chief Executive Officer
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

sucr;iﬁ“ﬂ‘:cdr Stock option
{wn thousands of Unned Staes dollars) Notes yhare capulal Share premwm reserves rescrve Retained earmings Total equity
Balance at 12 January 2010 - - - - - -
Issuance of shares to BGC il 1,991 1,989,138 (1,991,129) - - -
Capital reduction 11 - (1,989,138) 1,989,138 - - -
Bonus 1ssue to BGC 11 43,805 - (43,805) - - -
Loss for the period - - - - (7,844) (7,844)
Speaial dwadends - - (258,680} - - (258,680)
Conversion to contrnibuted surplus - - 1,673,250 - - 1,673,250
Share 1ssuance 11 16,301 921,035 - - - 937,336
Transaction costs 11 - (53,933) - - - (53,933)
Intenm dividend 13 - - - - {6,562) (6,562)
Stock options - - - 640 - 640
Balance at 31 December 2010 62,097 867,102 1,368,774 640 {14,406} 2,284,207

The accompanying notes on pages 153 to 165 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Parent Company Cash Flow Statement

For the
period anoce
mcorpurabion
ended
31 December
{m thausands of Lnated States dollars) Notes |10
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the penod (7,844)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 41
Finance items (338)
Working capital adjustments 6 957
Other 6 694
Cash used by operations before interest and tax (6,490)
Finance income 338
Net cash used by operating activities (6,152)
Cash flows from 1nvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (466)
Net cash used 1n investing activities (466)
Cash flows from financing activities
Related party debt funding (772,680)
Share 1ssuance ~ IPO (net of transaction costs) 865,366
Increase in contributed surplus 361,031
Special divadend (252,981)
Intenm dividend (6,562)
Net cash provided by financing activities 194,174
Net increase 1n cash and equuvalents 187,556
Net foreign exchange difference (65)
Cash and cash equivalents at 12 January -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 187,491

The accompanying notes on pages 153 to 165 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1  CORPORATE INFORMATION
African Barnck Gold plc (the “Company™) was incorporated on 12 January 2010 and re-registered as a public imited company on 12 March
2010 under the Compames Act 2006 1t 1s regystered 1 England and Wales wath regrstered number 7123187

On 24 March 2010 the Company’s shares were admutted to the Official List of the United Kingdom Listing Authonty (*UKLA™) and to trading
on the main market of the London Stock Exchange, hercafter referred 10 as the Inwial Public Offening (“IPO”) 1 he address of its registered
office 1s 6 St James's Place, London SW1A INP, United Kingdom

Barrick Gold Corporation (“BGC”) currently owns approximately 73 9% of the shares of the Company and 15 the ulumate controlhing party
of the Group

In preparation for the IPO, BGC conducted a reorgamsation, which was completed on 22 February 2010, whereby the companies comprising
the Afnican Regional Business Unit of BGC were reorgamised under the Company (the “Pre-IPO Reorgamsation”™) As such, prior to
22 February 2010, the Company did not control all of the entities 1t acquired pursuant to the Pre-IPO Reorganisation

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
10 March 2011

The primary activity of the Company 1s as holding company for the African Barnck Gold Group of companies

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies apphed in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below

a) Basisof preparation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (IFRSs), [FRIC interpretations and those parts of the Compantes Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a histonical cost basis As the Company was only incorporated on 12 January
2010, no comparative nformation exists

The Company's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes 1n trading performance, show that the Company
shoutd be able to operate withm the level of its current finaneing

After making enquurtes, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future The Company therefore adopts the going concern basis 1n preparing ils financial statements

The financal statements are presented in US dollars (US$) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (US$°000) except when
otherwise indicated

The basis of preparation and accounting pohcies used 1n prepanng the financial statements are sct out below

b) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to standards are applicable and were adopted by the Company for the first ume for the financial
year beginning 12 January 2010

» [AS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets”, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies that the largest cash-generating unt
(or group of units) to which goodwll should be allocated for the purposes of impairment testing 1s an operating segment, as defined by
paragraph 5 of IFRS 8, ‘ Operating segments” (that 1s, before the aggregation of segments with similar economic charactenstics) 1A% 36
{amendment) has had no impact on the current period as no imparment was dent:ifiecd when testing goodwill impairment at an operating
segment level

» [FRS 2 (amendments), “Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions™, effective 1 January 2010 In addition to incorporauing IFRIC
8, “Scope of IFRS 27, and IFRIC 11, “IFRS 2, Group and treasury share transactions”, the amendments expand on the guidance in IFRIC 11
to address the classification of Group arrangements that were not covered by that interpretation The application of the standard did not have
a matenal effect on the Group
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Notes to the Company financtal statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

¢) Newand amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for the first ime for the financial year beginning
12 January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Company (although they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events)

The following standards and amendments to exasting standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s accounung penods
beginning on or after 12 January 2010 or later periods, but are currently not relevant to the Company

¢ JFRIC 17, “Distnbutien of non-cash assets to owners” (effective on or after T July 2009) T'he interpretation was published in November 2608
This interpretation provides guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to shareholders either as
a distribution of reserves or as diidends TFRS 5 has also been amended to requure that assets are classified as held for distribution only when
they are amended to require that assets are classified as held for distnbution only when they are available for distribution 1n their present
condition and the distribution 1s haghly probable

« TFRIC 18, “Transfers of assets from customers”, effective for transfer of assets recerved on or after 1 July 2009 Thes interpretation clanfies the
requirements of IERSs for agreements in which an entity recerves from a customer an 1item of property, plant and equipment that the entity
must then use either to connect the customer to a network or to prowvide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services
(such as a supply of electricity, gas or water) In some cases, the entity recewves cash from a customer that must be used only to acquire or
construct the item of property, plant, and equipment 1n order o connect the customer to a network or provide the customer with ongoing
access to a supply of goods or services (or to do both)

+ IFRIC 9, “Reassessment of embedded derivatives” and TAS 39, “Fiancaial instruments Recognition and measurement”, effective 1 July 2609
This amendment to IFRIC 9 requires an enuty to assess whether an embedded denvative should be separated from a host contract when the
entity reclassifies a hybnd financial asset out of the “fair value through profit or loss”™ category This assessment 1s to be made based on
crrcumstances that existed on the later of the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any contract amendments
that significantly change the cash flows of the contract If the entity 1s unable to make thus assessment, the hybnd instrument must remain
classified as at {air value through profit or loss in s entirety

¢ [FRIC 16, “Hedges of a net mvestment in a foreign operation”, effective 1 July 2009 This amendment states that, i 2 hedge of a net
mnvestment 1n a foreign operation, qualifying hedging instruments may be held by any entity or entittes within the Group, including the '
foreign operation 1tself, as long as the designation, documentation and effectiveness requirements of IAS 39 that relate to a net irvesiment
hedge are satisfied In particular, the Company should clearly document its hedging strategy because of the possibility of dafferent
designations at different levels of the Company

¢ 1AS 38 (amendment), “Intangible assets”, effective 1 January 2010 The amendment clanfies guidance in measuring the faiwr value of an
intangible asset acquired in a business combination and permuts the grouping of intangible assets as a single asset 1f each asset has a similar
useful economuc Life

¢ [AS 1 (amendment), “Presentation of financial statements” The amendment clanfies that the potential settlement of a habiity by the 1ssue
of equuty 1s not relevant to its classification as current or non-current By amending the defimtion of current hability, the amendment permuts
a hability to be classified as non-current (provided that the entity has an unconditional rnight to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other
asscts for at least 12 months after the accounting peried) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by the counterparty to
settle 1n shares at any tume

o [FRS 3 (revised), “Business combinations”, and consequential amendments to TAS 27 (revised), “Consolulated and separate financial
staternents”, IAS 28 “Investments in associates”, and TAS 31 “Interest 10 jeint ventures”, are effective prospectively to business combtnations
for which the acquisition date 15 on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting penod beginming on or after 1 July 2009

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to business combinations but with some sigmficant changes compared
with IFRS 3 For example, all payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair value at the acquisiion date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement There 15 a choice on an acquisition-by acquisition hasis to
measure the non-contrelling interest in the acquiree exther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest in the acquiree etther at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proporticnate share of the acquiree’s net assets All acqusition-related costs are expensad
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TAS 27 (revised) requures the effecis of all transactions with non-contrelling interest te be recorded 1n equity if there 1s no change 1n control
and these transactiens will no tonger result in goodwll or gains and losses The standard also specifics the accounting when control 1s lost
Any remaining interest i the entity 1s re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss 15 recogmised 1n profit or loss

» IFRS 5 (amendment), “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” The amendment clarifies that IFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operattons It also clarifies
that the general requirements of IAS t still apply, in particular paragraph 15 (10 achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph 125 {sources of
estimauon uncertainty) of IAS 1

d) Newstandards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginning 12 January
2010 and not carly adopted

The Company's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations 1s set out below

¢ IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, 1ssued 1n November 2009 This standard 1s the first step in the process to replace IAS 39, “Financial
instruments recogmtion and measurement” TFRS 9 intreduces new requirements for classifying and measuning financial assets The
standard 15 not apphcable untl 1 January 2013 but 15 available for carly adoption However, the standard has not yet been endorsed by the
EU The Company 1s yet to assess IFRS @'s full impact, however, imbial indications are that the adopuon of IFRS 9 wall not have a sigmficant
impact on the Company's operating results or financial position

TAS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures”, 1ssued in November 2009 Tt supersedes IAS 24, “Related party disclosures”, ssued in 2003 IAS
24 (revised) 1s mandatory for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 karher application, in whole or in part, s permitted However, the
standard has not yel been endorsed by the EU I'he revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party and removes the
requirement for government-related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government and other government-related entities
The Company will apply the revised standard from 1 January 2011 It 1s not expected to have any impact on the Company or the parent
enuty’s financial statements

* 1AS 32 (amendment), “Classification of nghts issues”, 1ssued in October 2009 The amendment applies to annual peniods beginning on or
after 1 February 2010 Earlier apphcation ts permitted The amendment addresses the accounting for rights 1ssues that are denominated in a
currency other than the funcuonal currency of the 1ssuer Provided certain conditions are met, such rights issues are now classified as equaty
regardless of the currency in which the exercise price 1s denominated Previously, these 1ssues had to be accounted for as denvative habiliies
The amendment applies retrospectively 1n accordance with TAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes 1n accounting estimates and errors” The
Company has not 1ssued any nghts 1ssues

o IFRIC 19, “Exunguishing financial habilities with equuty instruments”, effective 1 July 2010 The interpretatton clanfies the accounting by an
entity when the terms of a financial Lability are renegotiated and result in the entsty 1ssuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to
extinguish all or part of the financal lrability (debt for equity swap) It requures a gain or loss to be recogrused 1n profit or loss, which 1s
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the finanaal iability and the fair value of the equity instruments 1ssued Tf the fair
value of the equity instruments 1ssued cannot be rehably measured, the equity instruments should be measured 1o reflect the fair value of the
financial habihity extinguished The Company will apply the interpretation from 1 January 2011 Tt 1s not expected to have any impact on the
Company or the parent entity’s financial stalements

IFRIC 14 {amendment) “Prepayments of 2 nutimum funding requirement” The amendments correct an unintended consequence of IFRIC 14,
“[AS 19, [he hmut on a defined benefit asset, mimmum funding requirements and their mteraction” Without the amendments, entities are
not permutted to recognise as an asset some voluntary prepayments for mimmum funding contributions Thas was not intended when IFRIC 14
was i1ssued, and the amendments correct this The amendments are effecuve for annual periods beginmng | January 2011 Earlier application
15 permitted The amendments should be apphed retrospectively to the earhiest comparative period presented 1115 not expected to have any
impact on the Company or the parent entity’s financial statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
e} Significant judgements in applying accounting pohcies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Many of the amounts included 1n the parent company financial statements require management to make judgements and/or estimates These
judgements and estimates are contunuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and best knowledge of the relevant facts and
circumstances, but actual results may duffer from the amounts included in the parent company financial statements Information about such
judgements and estimation 1s included 1n the accounting policies and/or notes to the finanaal statements, and the key areas are summarised below

Areas ol jadgement and key sources of esumation uncertainty that have the most sigmficant effect on the amounts recognised 1n the parent
company financial statements include

o Whether to recogmse a provision for accounts recervable - Notes 21) and 9, and

* Recogmtion of deferred income tax assets, amounts recorded for uncertain tax positiens, the measurement of iIncome tax expense and
ndirect taxes - Notes 2k}, and 5

f) Toreign currency translation

The Company’s transactions are denomnated m a number of different currencies (pnimardy US doltars and UK pound sterling) The Company
has lizbilities that are primanly denominated in US doltars The US dollar 1s the Company’s functional currency, as well as the Company's
presentation currency Transactions 1n currencies other than the US dollar are translated at the exchange rates as at the date of transaction
Montetary assets and liabilities denormnated 1 currencies other than the US dollar are translated to US dollars at year-end exchange rates All
drfferences that anse are recorded in the income statement Non-monetary assets measured at historical cost in 2 currency other than US dollars
are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the instial transactions Where non-monetary assets are measured at fair value in a
currency other than US dollars they are translated into US dollars using the exchange rates on the date when the fair value was determined

The following exchange rates to the US dollar have been apphied

Average

Asat Year ended

31 December 31 December

010 2010

UK pound (US$ GBP) 0 65 065

g) Investmentin subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies in order to
obtain benefits from their activities Control 1s presumed to exist where the Company has more than one half of the votaing nghts unless it can
be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute contrel Control does not exist where other parties hold veto nghts over sigmficant operating
and financial decisions In assessing control, potential voting nights that are currently exercisable or convertible as well as other contractual
arrangements that enable the Company to exercise control are taken into account

At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made to determine whether there are any indicators of impairment Where an mdicator of impairment

exists, a formal esumate of the recoverable amount of the investment 1n subsidiary 1s made, which 15 considered to be the higher of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use Fair value 1s determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the investment in an arm’s

length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties If the carrying amount of an mvestment exceeds the recoverable amount, a provision
15 recorded 1n the income slatement to reflect the investment at the recoverable amount

Where an impairment charge has previously been recogmised, an assessment 15 made at the end of each reporung period whether there 15 any
indication that the impairment loss may no longer cxist or may have decreased 1f any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable
amount 15 made An umpairtnent loss 1s reversed to the income statement to the extent that the increased carrying value of the investment in
subsidiary does not exceed the oniginal carrying value

h) Share caputal

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable 1o the 1ssue of new shares or optiens are shown 1n equity as
a deducuon from the proceeds
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1) Financaal instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at fair value For the purposes of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents include
cash, and money market funds For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above

Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables are non-denvative financal asscts with fixed or deterrminable payments that are not quoted 1n an active market, do not
quahfy as trading assets and have not been designated as erther fair value through profit and loss or available for sale These are mitally recognised
at fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method They are included in current assets, except for
matuntics greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current asscts

Loans and receivables compnse other recewvables and cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date

A provision for umparrment of trade recervables 1s established when there 15 objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the onginal terms of recervables The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through use of an allowance account
The amount of the provision 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement

Financial habihties

Other payahles are recogmsed initsally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectrve interest method

1)) Finance income and finance expense

Interest tncome 1s recogrused on a ime-proportion basis using the effective interest method When a recervable 1s impaired, the Company
reduces the carrying amount to s recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the ortginal effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income

k) Taxes

The tax expense for the period compnises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recogmsed in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised m other comprehensive mcome or directly in equity In this case the tax s also recogmsed 1n other comprehensyve income
or directly in equity, respectively

Currentncome tax

Current income tax assets and habilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities Management penodically evaluates positions taken 1n tax returns with respect to situations i which applicable tax regulation 1s subject
to mterpretation 1t establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be pard 1o the tax authonties The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax

Unrecogmised deferred imcome tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that 1t has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

1re:

Indirect tax assets and hiabihties for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authonties Management penodically evaluates positions taken m indirect tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions or recervables where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be pad to
or recerved from the tax authorines The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date If the recervable 15 expected to be received in more than 12 months from year end, the recervable 15 discounted and
held at its present value Amounts expected to be payable or recetvable i more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets or habihities
1n the balance sheet, as appropnate

1) Dwvidend distribution

Dindend distribution to the Company's shareholders 15 recognised as a hability in the Company's financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

3 CORPORATL ADMINISTRATION

Included in corporate admimstraiion costs are the following

For the

penod since

ncorporation

ended

31 December

{1n thousands of United States dollars) 2010
Salanes 2,257
Other employee benefits 256
Share-hased payments 544
Durectors’ fee 455
Professional and consultancy fees 913
Foreign exchange loss 85
Travel and admimistration 699
Depreciation 41
Other 638
5,888

Details of Directar’s remuneration can be found in the Remuneration report on pages 87 to 95 Details of the auditors’ remuneration can be
found in Note 9 of the Group financial statements

Average number of employees

For the peniod
since
mcorporation

ended

31 December

2010

Adrministration 5

Total average headcount 5
4  FINANCEINCOME

For the

pertod since

corporation

ended

31 December

{1 thouwsands of United States dollars) 2010

Interest on time deposits 338

Total 338
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5 TAXEXPENSE

(in thousands of Umted States doflars)

Fort the
period ance
wnorpoTain

31 December
2010

Corporation taxes

Total

The statutory income tax rate in the United Kingdom 1s 28% for 2010 The tax on the Cormpany’s profit before tax differs from the theoreucal

amount that would anse using the statutory tax rate as follows

For the

penod since

mtm‘ponhon

ended

31 Decerber

{in thousands of United States dallars) 010
Loss before tax {7,844)
Tax calculated at statutory tax rates 2,196

Tax effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 561
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised (1,635)
Tax chane 0

Deferred tax assets have not been recognused 1n respect of the tax losses amounting to US$6 1 milhon as at 31 Deceruber 2010, as there 1s not

sufficient certainty over future profits

6 CASH FLOW - OTHER ITEMS
a) Operating cash flows - other items

For the
pensd ance
ncorporation
ended
31 December
{1n thousands of United States dollars) 20190
Adjustments for non-cash income statement ttems
Foreign exchange losses 150
Other expenses 544
Total 694
Adjustments for working capital items,
For the
period ended
31 December
(1 thossands of Unued Stares dollars) 2010
Other receivables (1,024)
Other payables 1,654
Other habihitics 327
Total 957
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment 1s composed of U58466,000 of computer equipment and office furniture, all acqinred duning the current year

The depreciation charge for the year 1s US541,000

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

For the

penod since

wcorporalicn

ended

31 December

(1n thouysands of United States dollars) 2010

Opeming balance -

Additions 1,324,568

Closing balance 1,324,568
The subsidianes in which investments are held as at 31 December 2010 are as follows

- - B S - T l:qmly mierci(

Company Principal actmty Country of incorporation 2010

BUK Holdco Ltd Holding Company UK 100%

1816962 Ontario Inc Holding Company Canada 100%

9 OQOTHFRRLCEIVABLLS

Asat

31 December

(in thousands of Unuted States dollars) 2010

Indirect tax recervables 295

Advance payments 117

Other receivables 11

Due from related parties (Note 18) 601

Taotal 1,024

At 31 December 2010, no other recervablies were erther past due or impaired In determiming the recoverability of a recervable, the Company

performs a nsk analysis

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Asat

31 December

(1n thousands of United States doilars) 2010
Cash at bank and on hand 175,637
Money market funds 11,854
Total 187,491

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Company, and earn interest at the respecttve short-term depostt rates
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Il SHARE CAPITAL

Share cagnial Share capital Share premum

Number £000 US$ 000 USS'000

At 12 January 2010 1 - - -
[ssuance of Ordinary Shares at 10 pence cach 303,245,949 30,325 45,796 -
Issuance of shares on IPO 101,082,317 10,108 15,415 870,950
Issuance of over-allotment shares 5,756,232 576 886 50,085
Transaction costs - - - (53,933}
At 31 December 2010 410,085,499 41,009 62,097 867,102

The Company was incorporated and registered m England and Wales on 12 January 2010 as a private imited company with a share capital of
one Ordinary Share of £1

On 19 February 2010 the Company entered into a share exchange agreement pursuant to which 1t acquired the enuire 1ssued share capital of
BUK Holdco Ltd from members of BGC i return for 1ssuing 943,464 Ordinary Shares of £1 each at a prermum of £999 per share

On 22 February 2010 the Company entered tnto a share exchange agreement pursuant to which it acquired the entire 1ssucd share capital of
1816962 Ontano Inc from BGC in return for issuing 375,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each at a premium of £999 per share

The Company subsequently entered nto a reduction of capital, ehminating share premium of 175$1,989,138 Lo create distnibutable resqrves,
and restructured its share capital so as to reduce the nominal value of each of its Ordinary Shares to 10 pence Follow:ng the share capital
restructuning the Company made a bonus 1ssue of shares 10 1ts then existing shareholders in preparation for the IPO, resulting in a total of
303,246,950 Ordinary Shares being 1n 1ssue prior to the IPO

Re-registration of the Company as a public company

On 12 March 2010, the Company re-registered as a public hmited company

Issuance of shares on IPQ

On 24 March 2010 the Company successfully completed s IPO A total number of 101,082,317 shares with a par value of 10 pence cach were
tssued at a price of 575 pence per share for a total of £581,223,322 (U5$886,365,567) net of underwnter fees On 15 April 2010 the Company
1ssued a further 5,756,232 Ordinary Shares at a price of 575 pence per share for a total of £33,098,334 (US$52,275,508) pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option granted in connection with the IPO Total costs related to the 1ssuance of new shares taken agamst share premium
amounted to US5$53 9 mullion

12 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock options are granted to Executive Directors and to selected emplovees The exercise price of the granted options 1s determined by the
Remuneration commuttee before the grant of an option provided that this price cannot be less than the average of the middle-market quotation
of such shares (as denved from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official Last) for the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of
grant All options outstanding at the end of the year expire 1n 2017 None of the options granted was exercisable at 31 December 2010 The
vesting peniod of the options 1s four years, with an exercise period of three years

Movements i the number of options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices in pence are as follows

Average cxerase

price in penice
per share Qpuons
For the penod ended 31 December 2010 2010
At 12 January - -
Granted 532 676,075
At 31 December 532 676,075

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the current year using the Lattice valuation approach was determined as 171
pence per option  The significant inputs into the model were weighted average share and exercise price of 532 pence at the grant date, volanhty
range of 32% to 50%, dividend yeld of 0 7%, an expected option hife of seven years, annual risk-free interest rate of 2 68% and suboptimal
exercise multiple of 1 5x
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

13 DIVIDENDS PAID

An intenm dinidend of US$6 6 rullion (US1 6 cents per share) was pard during 2010 Refer to Note 19 for details of the final dividend declared
subsequent to year end

14 OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES

3 Deceber

{1n thousands of Unuted States dallars) 010
Payables 576
Payables to related parties (Note 18) 1,078
Total 1,654
15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Finanaal assets

Carrying value Farr valur
(10 thousands of Unated States dollars) 2010 2010
Cash and cash equrvalents 187,491 187,40
Other recervables 729 1,024
Non-current receivables’ 772,680 772,680
Total financial assets - . . - - 960,966 ) “__961,195
Less Current financial asscts
Cash and cash equuvalents (187,491} (187,491)
Other recewvables (729} (1,024)
Total non-current portion of receivables 772,680 772,680

1 Related party loans are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms

The far value of financial assets equal their carrying amount as they were repayable on demand

b) Financial habilities

Revolving credit facihity

On 24 November 2010, African Barrick Gold plc and its wholly-owned subsidiary BarbCo One Ltd concluded negotiations with a syndicate

of commercial banks, led by Cittbank, for the provision of a revolving credit facility in a maximum aggregate amount of US$150 mulhon The
facility has been provided to service the general corporate needs of the Group and to fund potential acquisttions All provisions contained 1n the
credit facility documentation have been negotiated on normal commercial and customary terms for such finance arrangements The term of the
facility 15 24 months and when drawn the spread over LIBOR will be 350 basis pomnts The shares of all significant subsidiaries have been pledged as
security for the loan At 31 December 2010, none of the funds were drawn under the facihity while a commtment foe of 1 4% was payable

16 TINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks through its commercial and finanaal operations
a} credit nsk, and

b) hqudity nsk

Ths note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes
for assessing and managing nisk Further quanutative disclosures are included throughout the financial statements

The Board of Directors has overalt responsibihity for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Company, to set appropriate nisk himats
and controls, and to momtor risks and adherence to limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market condions and the Company’s acuwities The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims (o maintam
a disciplined and constructive control environment 1n which all employees understand their roles and obhigations
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a) Credit nsk

Credit risk 1s the risk that a thard party mught fail te fulfil its performance obligations under the terms of a financial mstrument For cash and
cash equivalents and other receivables, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the balance sheet

Credit risk arises from loans to two subsidianies, recervables, cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks The Company’s financiat
assets are with counterparties whom the Company considers have an appropnate credit rating Location of credit nisk 1s determined by physical
locauon of the bank branch, customer or counterparty The maximum allowable term of maturity for any indsvidual secunity 1s 12 manths
Investment counterparties must have a credit rating of at least Baa2 or better by Moody’s Investor Services or BBB by Standard and Poor’s No
more than 25% of the aggregate market value of the investment portfolto 1s maintained 1n any one country, with the exception of the Umited
States of America, Umted Kingdom and Barbados, or in any one industry group Investments are held maimnly in United States dollars and cash
and cash equivalents in other foreign currencies are mamtained for operational requirements

Company policies are aimed at mamimasing losses as a result of a counterparty’s failure to honour its obligations The Company’s exposure to
credit nsk 1s mfluenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each counterparty The Company’s financial assets are with counterparties
whom the Company considers have an appropriate credit rating

Maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of financial assets in Note 15 The Company does not
hold collateral as secunty for any recervables The Company does not grade the credit quality of recervables

b) Liguidity nisk

Liquidity risk 1s the nisk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Company monators 1ts risk of
a shortage of funds using projected cash flows and by momitoring the matunty of both 1ts financial assets and habilities

The following table outhines the expected maturity of the Company's sigmificant financial habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date As the amounts disclosed 1n the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, these balances may not agree with the amounts disclosed 1n the balance sheet

For the pertod ended 31 December 2010

{in thousands of Unsted States dollars) [ ¢ss than 1 year 1te 3 years 310 5 years Over 5 years Total
Other non-current habilities - 327 - - 327
Other current habilities 1,654 - - - 1,654
Total 1,654 327 - - 1,981

Management considers that the Company has adequate current assets and forecast cash flow from operations to manage ligmdity nsks ansing
from settlement of current habilities and non-current habihities

Capntal risk management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital managernent 1s to ensure that it maintains a strong balance sheet and low geanng ratio to
support 1ts business and provide financial flexibility in order to maximse sharcholder value In order 1o ensure a strong balance sheet and low
gearing ratio, management thoroughly evaluates all matenal projects and potential acquisitions and approves them at 1ts Executive comuttee
before submussion to the Board for ultimate approval, where applicable

At 31 December, the gearing ratio was as follows

Asat

31 December
(1 thousands of United States dollars)} 2010
Total borrowings, including related party debt -
Less cash and cash equivalents 187,491
Net debt/(surplus) 187,491
Total equnty {2,284,207)
Total capital 2,096,716
Gearing ratio N/A
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

17 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

For the

penod uace

meorporabion

ended

31 December

{in thousznds of Untted States dollars) 1010

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogmised 1n ncome for the period 131
Total 131

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

31 December
{1n thousands of Unued Statcs dollars) 2010
Within one year 262
In the second to fifth years inclusive 787
Aficr five years 1,443
Total 2,492

18 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Company had the following related party balances and transactions dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 Related parties are those
enuties owned or controlled by Barrick, which 1s the ultimate controlling party of the Company

Transactions with related parties are as follows

a) Transactions

Tor the

penod snce

mcorporation

ended

31 Devember

{in thousands of Unsted States dollars) 2010
Management fee 797
Provision of goods and services 460
Purchase of goods and services (1,734)
Special dividend payment (258,680)
Intenim dividend payment (4,852)
Total (264,009)

Management fees relate to an allocation of cost incurred based on ime spent by management for the benefit of the related party, a 5% mark-up
1s applied 1o these custs Provision and purchase of goods and services toffrom related parties are on normal commercial terms and condinons
Provision of services relates to cost incurred by the Company and recharged to related parties with no mark-up Purchase of goods and services
relates to cost incurred by related parties and recharged to the Company with no mark-up Services purchased relate mainly to nsurance,
software hcences and professional services
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b) Balances due from related parties

Asat

31 Dexember
{un thousands of United States dolars) 2010
Bulyanhulu Gold Mine Lid 92
Pangea Minerals Ltd 146
North Mara Gold Mine Lad 151
Barnck Afnca (Pty) Lid 141
BarbCo One Ltd 67
Other 4
Total 601

The recewvables from related parties arise mainly from the provision of goods and services The recervables are unsecured in nature and bear no
mierest There are no provisions held against recevables from related partres

¢) Balances due to related parties

Asat

31 December
{1n thousands of United States dollars) 2010
Barrick Gold Corporation 1,027
Barrick Gold Australia Lid 36
Barnick Gold of North America Inc 15
Total 1,078

The payables to Barrick anse mainly from purchase transactions, noted above, and are due 30 days after the date of purchase The payables are
unsecured and bear no interest

d) Balances due from related parties (funding in nature)

At

31 December
{1y thousands of United States dollars) 2010
BUK 772,680
Total 771,680

Related party borrowings relate to amounts due from BUK Holdco [ td These amounts are interest free and have no fixed repayment terms but
are treated as long-term loans as there 1s no intention to recall the loan within 12 months

19 POST BATANCE SHTIT'T FVENTS
Dividend

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of US3 7 cents per share, amounting to 2 final diadend of US5 3 cents per share for
2010, 15 10 be proposed at the Annual General Mceting on 21 Apnl 2011 These financal statements do not reflect this dividend payable
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Glossary of terms

The following defimtions and terms are used throughout this report In addition, specific terms and defimtions relating to mineral reserves and
resources can be found on page 96

ABG or the Afnican Barrick Gold plc, a company CREST the computerised settlement system operated by

Company mncorporated under the Companies Act 2006 and Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited to facilitate the
registered 1n England and Wales with registered transfer of title to shares m uncertificated form

187
number 712318 Crushing breaking of ore from the size delivered from the

ABG Group the Company and its subsidiary undertakings mine into smaller and more uniform fragments to

or the Group be then fed to gnnding mulls or to a leach pad

AGM annual general meeting CSR corporate soctal responsibility

Amortisationand  has the meaning given to 1t on page 55 Cu copper

other cost per Cut-off grade the mintmum metal grade at which material can

ounce sold

be economically mined and processed (used 1in

Articles the articles of association of the Company the calculation of ore reserves)

Assay a chemical test performed on a sample of ores or Development work carrted out for the purpose of opening
minerals to determine the amount of valuable up a mineral deposit In an underground mine
metals contaned thus includes shaft sinking, crosscutting, dnfung

A d and raising 1n an open pit mine, development

i £% includes the removal of overburden

Average head grade average ore grade fed into the mll Directors the directors of ABG, details of whom are set out

Average realised has the meaning given to it on page 54 on pages 70 and 71 of this report

gold pnc;: dper Disclosure and the disclosure and transparency rules made by the

ounce so Transparency FSA under Part VI of FSMA

Barnick Barnick Gold Corporation, a company existing Rules
under the laws of the Province of Ontario, Canada Dollaror USSor §  United States dollars

Barnck Group Barnck and uts subsidrary undertakings Doré doré bullion 1s an impure alloy of gold and silver

Board the board of directors of ABG and 15 generally the final product of mumng and

By-product a secondary metal or mmeral product recovered processing, the dore bullion will be transported to

be refined 1o hugh purity metal
m the mulling process such as copper and silver
Cash cost per has the meaning given to 1t on page 54 Dnft a horizontal underground opening that follows
along the length of 2 vemn or rock formation
ounce sold
as opposed to a crosscut which crosses the

Cash cost per has the meaning given to 1t on page 55 rock formation

tonne milled Dnift-and-fll a methed of underground mining used for flat-

CIM the Canad:an Institute of Mining, Metallurgy lying mineralisation or where ground conditzons
and Petroleum are less competent

Code of Conduct  ABG' Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Drilling core dnilling with a hollow bit with a diamond

Combined Code  the Combined Code on Corporate Governance cutting rim to produce a cyhndrical core that

dated June 2008 1ssued by the UK Financial
Reporting Council

Companies Act
2006

the Companies Act 2006 of England and Wales,
as amended

Concentrate

a fine, powdery product of the milling process
containing a high percentage of valuable metal

Contained ounces

represents total ounces n a mineral reserve before
reduction to account for ounces not able to be
recovered by the apphcable metallurgrcal process
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15 used for geological study and assays Used m
muneral exploration

Dnlling wn-fill

any method of dnlling intervals between existing
holes, used to provide greater gealogical detail
and 10 help establish reserve esimates




Drilhing: dnlhng method that uses a rotating cutting but LTIFR Loss time mjury frequency rate (LTIFR) 15
Reverse circulation  within a double-walled dnil pipe and produces measured as the number of lost-time ¢laims per
rock chips rather than core Air or water 15 mullien hours worked
crculated down to the bit between the inner and
Majority Barrick
outer wall of the dnll pipe The chups are forced Shareholde
to the surface through the centre of the dnll pipe '
and are collected, examined and assayed MDA a muneral development agreement
EBITDA has the meaning given to it on page 55 MDN MDN Inc, a company existing under the laws of
Executive Directors the executive directors of the Company, Greg the Province of Québec
Hawkins and Kevin Jennings Ml a plant in which ore 15 treated and metals are
recovered or prepared for smelting, also a
Exploration prospecting. sampling, mapping, diamond dniling revolving drum used for the grinding of ores
and other work 1nvolved in searching for ore
n preparation for treatment
Financial Services  the Financial Services Authonty of the Moz llvon ounces
Authontyor FSA  Umted Kingdom m
Flotation a milhng process in which valuable mineral Mt mulhion metric tonnes
particles are induced to become attached to NGOs non-governmental orgamsations
bubbles and float as others sink NI 43-101 Canadian National Instrument 43-101
ki
FSMA ?:::ﬁ:g;:’;cm Services and Markets Act 2000 Non-Executive the Non-Executive Directors of the Company
Directors bemg Aaron Regent, James Cross, Andre Falzon,
Grade the amount of metat 1n each tonne of ore, Stephen Galbraith, Bobby Godsell, Michael
expressed as troy ounces per tonne or grams per Kenyon, and Derek Pannell
tonne for precious metals and as a percentage for Official List the Offictal Last of the Financral
most other metals
Services Authonty
g/t Grammes per metnc tonne Open Pit 2 mne where the minerals are mined entirely
1AS International Accounting Standards from the surface
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, as Operational cash  has the meaning given to 1t on page 55
adopted for use 1n the European Union flow per share
1PO ABG’s imtial public offering on the Main Market Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares of £0 10 each in the capital of
of the London Stock Exchange the Company
IS0 Internationat Standards Qrgamsation Ore rock, generally containing metallic or non-
metallic mnerals, which can be mined and
Koz thousand ounces
processed at a profit
Kpls key performance indicators Ore Body a sufficiently large amount of ore that can be
Kt thousand metric tonnes mined econormucally
LIBOR The British Bankers' Association Interest Oxade ore mnerahsed rock in which some of the oniginal
Settlement Rate for the relevant currency and munerals have been oxidised Oxdation tends
period displayed on the appropniate page of the to make the ore more amenable to cyamde
Reuters’ screen solutions so that mmute particles of gold will be
Listing Rules the rules relating to admission to the Official List readily dissalved
made 1n accordance with section 73A(2) of FSMA Oz troy ounce (31 1035g)
London Stock London Stock Exchange plc PGI Pangea Goldfields Inc , a Canadian subsidiary
Exchange or LSE of ABG
LTI Lost Time Injury, meamng an occupational injury ~ Pre-1PQ the reorgamsation of the companies comprising

or illness that results :n days away from work

Reorganisation

the ABG Group into a separate corporate group
and the acqusition by the Company of the
companies comprising the ABG Group
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Glossary of terms continued

Reclamation

the process by whach lands disturbed as a result of
murang actvity are modified to support beneficial
land use Reclamation activity may include the
removal of buddings, equpment, machinery

and other physical remnants of mming, closure

of talhings storage facilities, leach pads and other
mune features, and contounng, covering and re-
vegetation of waste rock and other disturbed areas

Recovery Rate

a term used in process metallurgy to indicate
the proportion of valuable material physically
recovered 1n the processing of ore It 1s generally
stated as a percentage of the matenial recovered
compared to the total matenal onginally present

Refining

the final stage of metal production in which
impurities are removed from the molten metal

Relationship

the relationship agreement between Barmnick

TZS Tanzanian Shulling

UK Corporate the UK Corporate Governance Code dated

Governance Code  June 2010 1ssued by the UK Financial
Reporting Council

United Kingdom  the United Kingdom of Great Britain and

or UK Northern Ireland

United States or US the United States of America, its territories and
possessions, any state of the United States of
America and the Dustrict of Columbia

VAT value-added tax

Voluntary means the Voluntary Principles on Security and

Principles Human Rights

Mining stanistical information

Agreement and ABG The following descnbes certain hne items used in the ABG Group’s
Services the services agreement between Barrick and ABG  discussion of performance indicators
Agreement Open pit material  measures in tonnes the total amount of open pit
Sentor Leadership  those members of the ABG Group's management mined ore and waste mined
'Ih:am or Senior team, details of whom are set out on page 11 Underground ore  measures i1 tonnes the total amount of
anagement tonnes horsted underground ore mined and hoisted
Shaft a vertical or inclined excavation in rock for the Total tonnes mined include open pit material plus underground ore
purpose of providing access to an ore body
tonnes hoisted
Usually equipped with a houst at the top, which
lowers and raises a conveyance for handling Stnp ratio measures the ratio of waste to ore for open pit
workers and matenals material mined
Shareholders holders of Ordinary Shares Ore milled measures 1 tonnes the amount of ore material
rocessed through the mull
Spot or spot pnice  the purchase price of a commodity at the current P 8 '
price, normally this 15 at a discount to the long- Head grade measures the metal content of mined ore going
term contract price mto a mill for processing
Stripping removal of overburden or waste rock overlying Mlled recovery measures the proportion of valuable metal
an ore body 1n preparation for rmuning by open physically recovered in the processing of ore
pit methods it 15 generally stated as a percentage of the
metal recovered compared to the total metal
Tailings the matenal that remains after all economucally ongmally present P
and technically recoverable precious metals have
been removed from the ore during processing Total production  measures the total cost of production and 15
costs an aggregate of cash costs as well as production
Tailings storage a nawral or man-made confined area suitable BETeR P
specific depreciation and amortisation
facihty for depositing the materal that remains after the
treatment of ore Direct cash measures the total direct cash cost attributable to
operating cost producing an ounce It reflects cash costs adjusted
TANESCO Tanzanian Electric Supply Company Limsted per ounce to exclude royalties and third party smelting and
Tulawaka the joint venture agreement dated 15 September refimng fees on an ounce basis
Agreement 1998 {as amended from time to tme) between
PGI and MDN
Tusker Gold Tusker Gold Limited, a company incorporated

under the {aws of Western Australia

168 wwwalncinbarmckgold.com




Shareholder enquiries

Shareholder enguines

All enquines concerrung sharcholdings including noufication of
change of address or dividend payments should be made to ABG's
registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, whose contact
detals are as follows

Computershare Investor Services PL.C
The Pavihons

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 6ZZ

Helpline number +44 {0)870 707 1895

Computershare online enquiry service

Computershare provides a range of services through 1ts online
portal, Investor Centre, which can be accessed free of charge at
www investorcentre co uk. This service enables shareholders to check
details of their shareholdings or dvidends, download forms to notify
changes in personal details and access other relevant information

Payment of dividends

Detals of dividends proposed in relation to the year are contained in

the Durectors’ Report on page 82 and Notes 13 and 34 to the financial
staternents Shareholders may elect to recerve payment of the 2010 final
dnadend and any future dvidend 1n pounds sterling directly to a Bank
or Building Society account. Payments of amounts 1n US dollars shall be
made by cheque and sent by post to shareholders registered addresses on
26 May 2011 Any shareholders who elect to recerve a dmdend in pounds
sterling but who do not provide a direct credit mandate will recerve

therr dividend by chegue, which will be sent to shareholders registered
addresses on 26 May 2011

If you wash to recerve the 2010 final dovidend and any future dividend
by direct credit and have not already made a payment election, please
request a dividend mandate form from the shareholder helpline and
return 1t to Computershare at the address above by no later than

6 May 2011 Alternatively, direct credit mandate instructions can be
updated onhine at www 1nvestorcentre co uk.

Currency Election forms can be returned using the pre-paid envelope
provided with the matenials accompanyng thus report Elections made
after 6 May 2011 will be apphed to subsequent dividends only

Should you have any queries relating to the payment of dividends, please
call Computershares shareholder helpline on +44 (0) 870 707 1895

Electronic commumncatons

At the forthcoming AGM, ABG wall seek shareholders’ consent 1o send
or supply documents and information to shareholders in electronic
form and via ABG's website, i accordance with provisions contained
i ABGSs articles of association

Increased use of electronic communicatsons will deliver additional
savings to ABG 1n terms of administration, printing and postage costs,
as well as speeding up the provision of information to shareholders
The reduced use of paper will also have environmental benefits

Under the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006, ABG 1s also

required to ask you individually for your consent to supply documents
electromcally via ABG’s website The relevant documentation relating
to this consent 1s contained i the accompanying materials to this
report entitted Important Notice — Legislauon Change If you agree to
ABG sending or supplying documents and information via the website,
please subrmut your emanl address by visiing www investorcentre co uk/
ecomms If you would prefer to recerve documents and information 1n
paper form rather than via the website, you will need to let us know by
completing the reverse of the form and returning it to Computershare
at the address detmled above

If we do not receive a response from you within 28 days of the date of
notice of the AGM, then you will be taken to have agreed that ABG may
send or supply documents and information to you via its website ABG
will write to you with details of how you can access the mformation

Further details regarding electronic communications can be found 1n
the notice accompanying this repont

Shareholder security

Shareholders should be cautivus of any unsoheited financial advice,
offers to buy shares at a discount or any other unsolicited adwvice
regarding investment matters More detailed information can be
provided at www moneymadeclear fsa gov uk.

Financaial calendar

Financial year end 31 Decernber 2010

Preluminary results for 2010 16 February 2011t
Annual General Meeting 21 Apni 2011
Quarterly Results Q1 2011 26 Apri 2011
Payment date for 2010 final dvidend 26 May 2011
Half year report 2011 July 2011
Quarterly Results Q3 2011 Qctober 2011
Quarterly Results Q4 2011 January 2012

Thus report has a cover printed on Hello Silk and text pages printed on
Soporset Prermum Offset paper The paper has been independently
certified accordsng to the rules of the Forest Stewardshup Council (FSC)
All pulps used are mix elementat chlonine free {(ECF} and totally chlonne
free (TCF) The ks used are all vegetable oil based

Pninted at St Ives Westerham Press Lid, 15014001, FSC certified and
CarbonNeutral®

Consultancy, design and production by Black Sun Plc
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Contact details

ARG offices

Registered office
Afnican Barnick Gold ple
6 St James’s Place
London

SWIA INP

United Kingdom

Registered number 7123187

Business address

5th Fioor

No 1 Cavendish Place
London W1G 0QF
United Kingdom

Johannesburg office

2nd Floor

Bedlord Square Offices Suite
Bedford Gardens
Bedfordview

2007

South Afnca

Dar Es Salaam office

Plot 1736, Hamza Aziz Road,
Msasam Peninsula,

PO Box 1081, Dar Es Salaam,
Tanzania

Contacts

ABG Investor Relations

Andrew Wray, Head of Corporate
Development and Investor Relations
Phone +44 (0) 207 129 7150

E-mal awray@afnicanbarrickgold.com

ABG Regstrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol, BS99 6ZZ

United Kingdom

ABG Corporate Brokers
} P Morgan Securities Ltd
125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5A]
United Kingdom

Morgan Standey & Co International plc
25 Cabot Square

Canary Wharf

London k14 4QA

Umited Kingdom

Audhtors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place

London WC2N 6RH

United Kingdom

Legal Advisers
Shearman & Sterling LLP
Broadgate West

9 Appold Street

London

EC2A 2AP

United Kingdom

Additonal Information

Additional information regarding
ABG can be found on the website

wwwafncanbarnckgold com




